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Class A.
 

LIST OF PAPERS.
 

No.

—
go

ts

10.

He

12.

13.

14,

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

SIERRA LEONE. (General.)

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning

Mr. Secy- Canning to H. M's. Commrs. -

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning
Four Enclosures

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning -

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
Three Enclosures

G, Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

J.T.Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning -
One Enclosure

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning -

Mr. Secy. Canning to J. T.Williams, Esq. -

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning
Two Enclosures

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning-

D. M.Hamilion, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning-

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning-

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning-
Two Enclosures

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to H. M's. Commrs.
Mr. Secy- Canning to H. M’s. Commrs- -

Joseph Planta, Jun.Esq. to D. M. Hamilton,
Esq. - - -

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to W. Smith, Esq. -

Date & Receipt. SUBJECT.

a oni A 1826. arrival at Sierra Leone ~

D.May 6, — Papers laid before Parliament-

r Feb. ey — Return of Cases adjudicated,
MAY As and Slaves emancipated, 1319

to 1826 - - -

.M
n May2 — ReportonSlave-trade,generally

D. Nov. 10, 1825.RiJune 2> 1826. Clerks to the Commission

D. Jan. 10, __| Abstracts of Proceedings in
R, June 2, 1825 _ -

D. Jan. 12 a :
R Tune 2, — Mr, Williams's Arrival -

D. Moreb30, -— Vessels boarded byHL.EL. M’s. S.
R. July 12, “Brazen” - .

D. April 5. . .Rey 12 Mr. Hamilton’s Return

D. July 21, -- Approbation of Conduct -
XK «os

Pp Sen °. — Piratical Vessels = - -

D, Aug. 7 . .
R. Ock i7, — ReceiptofParliamentaryPapers

Rose iy? — Death of Mr. Williams -
D, Aug. 28, __ Cases of Absence of Commis-
R. Nov. 2, sioners . . .

D. Sept.
sept, 20, Principe de Guinea. Intrepida.R. Nov. 14, P

Perpetuo-Defensor. San Be-
nedicto = - - -

D. Oct. 31,.—. Clerks to the Commission -

D. Nov. 25, — Cases of Absence of Commis-
sioners ~ - -

D.Nov. 25, — Agpginiament as Commissary

D.Nov. 25, — Appointment as Commissioner
of Arbitration - -

 

SIERRA LEONE. (Separate.)

W. Smith, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

Joseph Planta, Jun, Esq. to W. Reffell, Esq.

D. March15, 1826.
Slaves Emancipated, 1825RB. May 22 " pated, ayu Ninfa Habanera. - -

“a jan. 12, _. Vacancies in the Mixed Com-
“ missions = - - -

D. Aug. 15, __ Return of Slaves Emancipated,R. Oct. 17; 1996

D, Nov. 25, — Appointment as Registrar -

sae
}

B e
1S

14

16

16

16

20

20

21

23

24

24

26:

26

27

27



iv

No.

40.

41.

42.

48.

49.

50.

List or Papers.

SIERRA LEONE.

G. Rendall, Esq. ta Mr. Secy. Camning -
One Enclosure

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

G. Rendall, Esq.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

to Mr. Seer. Canning -
One Enclosure

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Joseph Planta, Jun.
Esq. One Enclosure

DG. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning-
One Enclosure

Mr. Secy- Canning to H. M’s. Commrs. -

H. M's. Comms.

Jan.
JuneP

O
F
o

S
o

F
D

June

Aug.
Oct.

Ang.
Oct.

P
o

F
o

P
o

o Nov.

(Spain.)

Date & Receipt.

10, 1826.
2, —

10,
2,

10,
2;

10,
2
ms

10,
2,

March 25,

2,

15,
16,

7,

17,

29,

 

SUBJECT.

Segunda Gallega - -

Clara, or Clarita - -

Teresa 4 “ -

Ana - - -

Ninfa Habanera - -

Iberia - - -

Return of Cases Adjudicated,
1826 - - -

Nicanor. Tenders to King’ses
Ships - - -

WNicanor. Tenders to King’s
Ships - - -

SIERRA LEONE. (Portugal and Brazil.)

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning -

H. M’s. Commrs- to Mr. Secy- Canning -

H. M's. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning -

One Enclosure

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
Two Enclosures

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy: Canning -
One Enclosure

D. M. Hamilton,Esq. to Mr. Sccy. Canning
One Enclosure

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Joseph Planta, Jun.
Esq. One Enclosure

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning
One Enclosure

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning
. , Four Enclosures

Mr. Secy- Canning to H. M’s. Comms. -

 

%

SIERRA LEONE.

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Commrs. -

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
One Enclosure

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -
Eight Enclosures

D. Nov. 21, 1825. TactRi June 2 1826. Bom Jesus dos Navigantes  -

D. Nov. 21, 1825. y7,: . -
BR. June 2, 1426, Uniao .

D.Jan. 10 de Bahia - -
R. June 2 ™~ Paqueta

D. March21, __ Removal of M. Altavilla -
R. June 2, l

D. March21 :, SJave- -R.June 2) — Licences to Slave vessels

R yarn -— Charters from Bahia. “George
, and James f - -

D. March25, = Sam Joao Segunda Rosalia -
R. June 2, .

D. June 10 .It. Sept. 2 — Esperanca - - -

R sont 2 — Netuno - - -

D. June 10, :
R. Sept. 2, ~~ Activo ° . .
D. July 25. ie - ~ -
R. Oct, 17, — Activo

D. Aug. 15, Return of Cases adjudicated,R. Oct. 16, 1826 * ”
Ss g :

QR Nee vy — Activo. Perpetuo Defensor -

D. Oct. 12Ro Dec 22 — Perpetuo Defensor - -

D. Dee. 30, — Active. Perpetuo Defensor -

(Netherlands.)

D. March 13, 1826. Vessels furnished with Instruc-
tions - - -

D, Feb. 15, .R. May 22, — Hoop - - -
D. Marck s 4R. May. ey — Amable Claudina, Charles -

29

31

32

33

34

36

37

38

39

40

41

4l

50

59

61

62



5.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64,

65.

66.

Lisr oF Pavers.

 

Date & Receipt. SUBJECT.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning - Repus: *% ieee. M. Bonnouvrie's Arrival -

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning -2 hoe ai, 182 Bey - - -
One Enclosure ° aes

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning - z jo n Ison, Big <Z" - -
One Enclosure ; ‘

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning - r ove *B lee La Venus - - -
: One Enclosure ;

. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Commrs. - D.July 8, — The Dutch Brig « Panther”
Mr. Sect. Canning One Enclosure furnished with Instructions -

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning - R550 yy? — Vogel — - -
Two Enclosures Ds 4

H. M's. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning - R-Sept, 2, — Receiptof No.48 - -

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Joseph Planta, Jun. D- Aug. 15, | Return of Cases Adjudicated,
Esq. 4 Oné Enclosure B- Oct-16, 1826 > - -

D. M. Hamilton,Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning- p. Aus: e — Receipt of No.55  - -

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Comms. - D.Dec. 5, — Vessels furnished with Instruc-
tions ~ - -

HAVANNAH.

H. M's. Comme. to Mr. Secy. Canning - y oh . 1826. Return of Cases Adjudicated,
One Enclosure ~ , 1825 + - -

H. M's. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning - Re iat 7 — Piracy. Gavilan, or Feliz = -
One Enclosure

H. M's. Commr. to Mr. Secy. Canning - ° Aor — Magico - - -
Eight Enclosures > ;

H. M's. Commrs- to Mr. Secy- Canning - 2 yen bee — Departures and Arrivals of

H. M's. Commrs- to Mr. Secy- Canning - D. March 16,
‘ R. M 19

One Entlosure ay
: » March 23H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning - p May. 19.

Two Enclosures Mt. chit
: D, Mar

H. M’s. Comms. to Mr. Secy- Canning - RiMay 21,
Two Enclosures

. D. March 11H. M’s. Commrs- to Mr. Secy- Canning - RiMey 20

H. M’s. Commrs- toMr. Secy. Canning ~~ x peel *
‘Ewo Enclosures. ~~ ,

t = . i: 1 aH. M's. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning - Re fer 1

, ‘apy, Canni . D. April 30H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Seey. Canning RJune 24

H. M’s. Comms. to Mr. Secy. Canning - r May Prd

\ : . ; . D.May 2.H, M's. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning Ro Jone 28

’ . to. ¥. Canni . D. May 31H. M's. Commrs. to. Mr. Secy. Canning Ru

H. M's. Comms to Mr, Secy. Canning - , une P
Two Enclosures “ONY 1%

’ ’ D, Ju I,H- M's. Comm. to Mr. Secy. Canning - 2 July ia

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Commrs: “ DJuly 31,

. d $ . D. dune 28H. M's. Comm. to Mr. Secy. Canning R Sept. 6.

H. M’s, Commrs- to Mr. Secy. Canning - Rr Some 8

TT. MW Canni - DJuly 1,H. M's. Comms. to Mr. Secy. Canning R Se. 6
One Enclosure “" °*P

H. M's. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning - p guy 3,
I. » Sept. 6,
Yhree Enclosures

Mr. Secy: Canning to. H. M's. Comms. ~ D. Sept. 11,

HU. 'T. Kilbee, Esq. to Joseph Planta, Jun, Esq. D. July 30,
One Enclosure 5 Oct 4,

Slave-vessels - -

Magico - - ~

Orestes - - -

Departures of Slave-vessels -

Royal Order for the suppres-
sion of Slave-trade in Cuba -

Departures of Slave-vessels -

Departure of aSlave-vessel -

Royal Order published in Cuba

Piracy of a Slave-vessel -

Departures and Arrivals of
Slave-vessels - -

Steam-vessel “ Neptune” ~

Departures of Slave-vessels  -

Approbation of Conduct -

Communication of the Addi-
tional Article, &c. - -

Return of Emancipated Slaves,
1826 o - -

Return of Cases Adjudicated,
1826 - - ~

Carlota - . -

Evasion of the Royal Order -

Leave of Absence - -

86

87

94

94

96

96

97

97

104

104

105

107

110

110

12

112

112

113

113

114

116

116

H6

117

17

119

120

121



85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

$2.

93.

94.

96.

97.

‘98.

99.

100.

101.

102.

108.

104,

105.
106.

107.

108.

109.

110-

itl.

112,

13.
514,

List or Papers.

 

 

Date & Receipt. SUBSECT.

W. S. Mac Leay, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canningp.Sent. uy 1826. Minerva + - ~
Twelve Enclosures ee

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning = - ne on ” — Piracies of a Spanish Slave-ship

Hi. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning = - n aug: 2 — Arrivals and Departures of
Two Enclosures coe Slave-vessels - -

W. S. Mac Leay, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning 2dept. " — ReceiptofParliamentary Papers

W. S. Mac Leay, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning rs ort v _ Steam-boat “ Mexicano ” -
. Oct. 17, :

W. 8. Mac Leay, Esq. to Mr, Secy. Canning D- Sept. 11, Steam-boat “Mexicano” ° -
“Eight Enclosures ®- Nev. 6,

W., S. Mac Leay, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning D. Sept. 30, _ Nuevo Campeador, or Argus -
“Seven Enclosures 2: Pee: 8:

W. S. Mac Leay, Esq. to Mr.Secy--Canning rpet. ? — Arzival of a Slave-vessel -
.Dec. 8, :

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to H. M’s. Commrs- p. nec, 290, — Mr. R. B. Jackson - -

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Comme. + D.Dec. 30, — Infractions of the Treaty -

RIO DE JANEIRO.

H. M’s. Commts- to Mr. Secy. Canning = - E Apel .18°. Appointment of Snr Joao
; Carneiro de Campos -

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy. Canning = Pp ren 10. tee. Treatment ofEmancipated Ne-
One Enclosure groes " - -

, . . i - D.Jan. 10, . adiH. M’s Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Canning Ro April 10, — Cases Adjudicated, 1825 -

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M's. Commrs. - p. may 16, — Treatment of EmancipatedNe-
groes " - -

. \~ . t . D. July 30 : *H. M’s. Comm's. to Mr. Secy. Canning R Now. 9. — Receipt ofParliamentaryPapers

H. M's. Commts. to Mr. Secy. Canning = - ze Ans oa -- Cases Adjudicated, 1826 -
» Nov. .

H. Hayne, Esq. to Mr. Secy. Canning — - D. Oct. 26, _ Leave ofAbsence - -
~ Dec. 16,

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to H. Hayne, Esq. p. pec. 16, — Leave of Absence = - -

Mr. Secy- Canning to H. M’s. Commrs. - D. Dec. 30, — Receipt ofDespatches ~

SURINAM.

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Commrs. = + yy, March 18, 1626,. Vessels furnished with Instruc-
tions - - ~

H. M’s. Commrs. to Mr. Secy- Cannin; rat 8 Datel Cruizer i. M’s. . S > R. April 20 utch Cruizersat Surinam = -

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s. Comms. =p. Sune 28, — Dutch Cruizergat Surinam —-
Mr. Seey. Canning te H. M’s. Comms. = - p. July 8, — Dutch Brig “Panther,” fur-

nished with Instructions = -

Hi. M’s: Commas.to Mr..Secy. Canning = - R. ne i; — Receipt of No. 103. - -

Mr. Secy- Canning to H. M’s. Commis. =- D. Dec. 5, — Vessels furnished with Instruc-
\ , tions ; - -

H. M’s. Comms. to Mr. Secy. Canning ~~ R pnt ; x, — ReceiptofParliamentaryPapers

“HL. M's. Comms. to Mr. Secy- Canning —- » pete whe — Publications. Registration of
Three Enclosures one Slaves - - -

J. H. Lance, Esq. to Mr. Secy- Canning - R pet 1 — Leave of Absence - =

H. M's. Commrs. to Mr.Secy- Canning = - Re pt ie, — Keceipt of Despatches -

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to J.H. Lance, Esa. p. Dec. 99, — Leave of Absence - -

Mr. Secy. Canning to H. M’s, Comas. =D, Dee. 30, — Receipt of No, 110 - -
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Class A.
 

CORRESPONDENCE

WITH THE

BRITISH COMMISSIONERS.

 

SIERRA LEONE. (General.)

 

No. 1. .

J.T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(ReceivedApril 24)

Sir, Sierra Leone, January 28, 1826.
I HAVE the honour to acquaint you that I arrived at this Place on the

5th instant, and that I lost no:time in proceeding to make the requisite
arrangements, previous to entering on the functions of the Office which His
Most Gracious Majesty has been pleased to entrust to me.
On the 10th, f took the Oaths, in the form prescribed, before the Principal

Magistrate, and in the presence of His Excellency Major-Gencral Turner, and
the Members of the several Mixed Commissions.
The various Despatches, of which I had the honour to be the hearer, were

laid before His Majesty’s Acting Commissioners, and, as they relate princi-
pally to circumstances of previous occurrence, I beg to refer you to their

espatches, for such information and explanation as may be deemed necessary.
Iam given to understand, that some delay has taken place in transmitting

the Reports of the Cases of several Vessels adjudicated. I am also aware-that
this has been mainly owing to the multifarious duties which have occupied,
and still continue to occupy, the time and attention of His Excellency the
Governor, in carrying into effect matters which are highly important to the
present interest, and which materially concern the future prosperity, of this
Colony. Some difficulty has also arisen from the absence and sickness of
Clerks attached to the Commissioners.

I purpose having the honour again to address you in a few days, and to
communicate such information as I have beén able to acquire on the present
state of the Slave-trade..

I am duly impressed, Sir, with the great importance of the Trust which
has been reposed in me; and it shall be my endeavour to prove, by the most
strict and conscientious attention to the performance of the duties of. my
Office, rather than by any present professions, how very anxious I am to
merit your approbation, and how highly I value the Charge which has been
confided to me. I have the honour to be; &c.

. (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Light Hon. George Canning,

Se. &e. Se.



2 SrerRA LEONE. (General.)

No. 2.

OMMUSSIONETS.Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's (

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, May 6, 1826.
I HEREWITH transmit to you, for your information, four Copies of

Papers, marked A. and B., relative to the Slave-trade, which have been pre-
sented to both Houses of Parliament by His Majesty’s Command, in the
course of the present Session. Iam, &c.

(Signed) GEORGE CANNING.
Eis Majesty's Commissioners.

 

No. 3.

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning..—(Received May 22.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, February 28, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to enclose herewith, the Copy of a Letter addressed
to me by the Commissioners of West African Enquiry, together with Copies
of myReply, and of the Documents with which they were furnished, in
accordance with their Application. I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. &e. &e.

 

First Enclosure in No. 3.

Commissioners ofWest African Enquiry to J. T. Williams, Esq.
Sia, Sierra Leone, February 14, 1826.

WE request the favour of you to direct that we may be furnished, from the Records of the
Mixed Commission Court, with a Statement shewing the numberof Slaves (whether men, women,
or children) captured; the number adjudicated; and the number condemned at Sierra Leone, in
‘each year; from the earliest period for which the same can be made out.

We have the honour to be, &c.
J. T. Williams, Esq, . (Signed) JAMES ROWAN.
° HENRY WELLINGTON.

 

Second Enclosure in No. 3.

J. T. Wilkams, Esq. to the Commissioners of West African Enquiry.

GENTLEMEN, Sierra Leone, February 15, 1826.
I HAVE to acknowledge the receipt of your Letter of yesterdays date, and in reply beg to

acquaint you, that I have instructed the Registrar of the Courts of Mixed Commission to fur-

nish you, as early as possible, with the Documents which you require. =
I have the honour to be, &c.

, (Signed) J. T. WILLIAMS.
diajor James Rowan, and Henry Wellington, Esq. ;

Third Enclosure (A) in No. 3.

Wh. Smith, Esq. to the Commissioners of West African Enquiry.

GENTLEMEN, . Sierra Leone, February 23, 1826.
IN accordance with the direetions of His Majesty's Junge of the Mixed Commissions, established

at this Place for the prevention of the illicit Traffick in Slaves, I have the honour herewith to send
you a Return of the number of Slaves captured, emancipated, and registered, with such other parti-
culars concerning. them, as appear by the Records in my Office, trom the Establishment of the
Courts of Mixed Commission up to the 6th day of February 1826, that being the date of the adju-
ication. of the last Vessel. I have the honour to be, &c.

- (Signed) WILLIAM SMITH.
Major James Rowan, and Henry Wellington, Esq. : ,



(General. }SiggRA Leong.
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No. 4. .

J. T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received May 22.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, March 10, 1826.
NOTWITHSTANDING the acknowledged zeal, vigilance and activity, of

His Majesty’s Squadron on this Coast, and the unremitting assiduity of its
Officers in the perfortnance of their duty, to endeavour to check the illicit
‘Traffick in Slaves ; and, although His Majesty’s Ships have lately captured
more Vessels concerned in the prosecution of this detestable Trade, in a
shorter space of time than, I believe, at any former period, since the esta-
Llishment of the Courts of Mixed Commission : still, and it is with a feeling
of painful regret I state it, no great diminution appears to have been the
consequence—it is still most flourishing.
Of sixteen Vessels taken during the last nine months, seven had taken their

Cargoes from Lagos, three from the River Calabar, two from Popo, and Parts
adjacent thereto, all which Places are deep in the Bights of Benin and Biafra;
and one from a Place called Manna, on the Windward Coast, and about 250
miles to leeward of this Colony : the Dutch Vessels “ Z” and “ La Venus,”
were bound to the River Bonny, and the “ Bey” intended taking her Cargo
on board from the Gallinas.

It would, therefore, appear evident from these facts, that the Rivers in the
Rights of Benin and Biatra, form. the principal sources of this Trade; and:
which is carried on to a great extent under the Flags of Spain, France,
Brazil and Holland; the latter, im most cases, being made the cover of
French property.

Whilst Misereants, so engaged, continue to foster by its means the worst
feelings of the Native Africans, by so powerfully exciting their cupidity, it
cannot be expected that any permanent, or extensive good, can be effected
in aincliorating their condition, or extending the blessings of civilization. It
is, however, amidst all this evil, matter of congratulation, that in the neigh-
bourhood of this Colony, there exists little, if any, remains of the Slave-trade.
The River Sherbro’ was, at one period, a principal Emporium for Slaves;
but the policy of the late much-lamented Governor, Major-General Turner,
gave a deep, and I hope, a death-blow to any-further proceedings of that
nature there.
The Havannah is the only Port from which Vessels under the Spanish

Flag clear out for Africa. Whether from the just remonstrances of the British
Government, or otherwise, they now clear out, under the pretence of legiti-
mate Commerce, for the Islands of St. Thomas and Princes; which Islands,
from their contiguity to the Bights of Benin and Biafra, greatly facilitate the
carrying their real object, that of Slaving, into effect.

It has also come to my knowledge, that such Vessels as get off the Coast
with safety, land their Slaves at the back of the Island, and then return into
the Port of the Havannah in ballast.
Bahia is the principal Port from which Vessels under the Brazilian Flag

are cleared out for a Slaving-voyage to Molembo ; but, in every Case which
has ot late come before the Court of Mixed Commission for adjudication, it
has been most satisfactorily proved, that their Cargoes had been shipped from
Lagos: false Logs, and Journals of their Voyages being regularly made out,
as if from the Port they swear they came from, and this, of necessity,
induces a system of prevarication, and of the grossest perjury.
The vigilance and activity: of our Cruizers have been the means of making

the Slavers extremely cautious in their proceedings. Until the day of depar-
ture, although every preparation for the reception of their Victims is
made, not a Slave is embarked; and when that dots take place, it is distress-
ing to reflect on the number which is thus taken on board. The poor
Wretches may literally be said to be stowed in. bulk, The consequence is,
(either from contagious disease getting among them, or the length of time
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before they arrive at their Place of destination, the Brazilian Vessels being
generally very dull sailers,) that the number of deaths which occur, and
the squalid, diseased and deplorable state of the Survivors, when landed, are
shocking to humanity.

I purpose making the Cases under the Netherlands Flag, the subject of a
Separate Despatch. I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.

The Right Hon. George Canning,
&c. &e. &e.

 

No. 5.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, November 10, 1825.

IN consequence of the protracted illness of one Clerk, and the resignation
of another, we were deprived of assistance daring a peried of three
Months, and by the departure of one of these Individuals on leave to England,
the Commissioners’ Office was left without a Writer,
We were, therefore, induced to remove Mr. Bidwell from his Situation of

First Clerk of the Registry, to do duty under the Commissioners, with leave
to draw the full Salary of Second Writer; and we also engaged a young Gen-
tleman (Mr. Bouverie) who had lately: arrived from England as another
Writer, with the half Salary of the First.
We sincerely hope, Sir, that these temporary arrangements will meet witl:

your entire approbation. I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) G. RENDALL.,
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. &e. &e.

 

No. 6.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2.)
~

Sr, Sterra Leone, January 10, 1826. _

1 HAVE the. honour to enclose, herewith, Abstracts of the Proceedings in
the several Courts of Mixed Commission established in this Colony, during
the last Year.

There were three Cases adjudicated under the British and Spanish Mixed
Commission, all of them deemed Cases for condemnation, and the number of
Slaves emancipated amount to 579. , |

‘The number of Cases adjudicated under the British and Portuguese Mixed
Conimission was four, all which were condemned,and the number of Slaves
emancipated amount to 1020,

There were three Cases adjudicated in the British and Netherlands Mixed
Court of Justice ; no Slaves were on board any of them at the time of cap-
ture; but (falling under the several designations in the Additional Article to
the Treatv signed.at Brussels, the 25th of January, 1823) the Vessels and
their Cargoes were condemned,
The total number of Cases adjudged during the past Year will thus be

found to be 10, and the number of Slaves emancipated 1599. .
I have the honour to be, &c.

Sigaed G. RENDALL,
The Right Hon. George Canning, (rgnee) pA

&e. &c. &e.
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First. Enclosure in No. 6,

Abstract of Proceedings under the British and Spanish Alived Commission
at Sierra Leone, from the ist of January 1825, to the 1st of January

1820.

(No, 1.)—The Schooner ‘* Espanola,” under Spanish Colours, Francisco Ramon Roderiguez

Master, was capturedPY His Majesty's Ship ** Atholl," commanded by Captain James A. Mir.

ray, off the River Gallinas, on the 7th of March 1825, in Lati 5 a, ongitudray, of West ith 270 Slovee on board. March 1825, in Latitude 5.21. North, and Longitude

Part of the outward-bound Cargo of this Vessel was purchased at Charleston, viz. Tobacco, to

the amount of 1260 dollars. —

This Vessel was condemned on the 19th of March 1825, and ‘her Slaves were emancipated on

the same day.

(No, 2.)—The ‘* Segundu Gallega,” sailing under Spanish Colours, was captared by His

Majesty's Ship ‘¢ Maidstone,” Commodore Bullen, ©. B., on the 29th of Septeniber 1825, in

Latitude 6. 13, North, and Longicude 3, 18, East, with 25 Slaves oa board,

The Court condemned this Vessel and emancipated her Slaves on the 23d of November 1825.

(No. 3.)—His Majesty's Ship Brazen,” commended ‘by Captain Wikes, detained the

Schooner “ Clara,” otherwise ‘ Clarita,” Joze Morano, Master, sailing under Spanish Colours,

off Cape Mesurado, in Latitude 5. 15, North, and Longitude 10. 30, West, on the 4th of Novem-

ber 1825, with 36 Slaves on board. ‘These were emancipated, and the Vessel condemned on the

93d of November 1625. (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

 

Second Enclosure in No. 6.

Abstract of Proceedings under the British and Portuguese Mircd Commis-

sion at Sierra Leone, from the 1st of January 1825, to the ist of

January. 1626.

(No. 1.)—The Schooner ‘ Bella Eliza,’ wnder Brazilian Colours, Placido Jaze de Maio

Master, was captured by Ilis Majesty's Ship «* Banu,” G W. C, Courtenay, Eisq., Commander, on

the 23d of November 1524, in Latitude 2. 2. North, and Longitude 4. 42. Hast, with 37] Staves

on board (being three more than allowed by Passport,) 12 of whom died on their passage up to

this Place, She was turnished with a Royal Pa ‘spore from the Provisional Gevernment at Buhia

dated the ZIst of June (824. authorising a Slave-trading voyage to Mealensbo. ,

‘The Master. declared that he took the Slaves on board at Northern Melenibo, and when desired

to shew that Place upou the Chart, pointed to the Western Bank of the River Lagos, in Lati-

tudé 6. 10. North. / :

This Vessel was condemned, and her Slaves emancipated on the 3ist of Jaunary 1825,.

(No. 2.)~The Schooner “ Bom Fim,” sailing onder Brazilian Colours, and commanded by

Joaquim Joze de Britto Lima, was captured ‘by His Majesty’s Brig <‘Swinger,” Lieutenant Ed-

ward Stewart Clerkson, Commander,cn the 14th of January 1825, in Latitude 2, 20, North, and

Longitude 5.31. Bast, with 149 Slaves on board, 3 of whom died previous to adjudication, °

This Vessel was turnished with a Royal Passport, dated at Bahia, the 23d of August 1824

authorising a Slave-tracing voyage to Molembo. . ,

The Master acknowledged having shipped the Slaves ia Latitude 6. 16. North, and Longitude

3 TO. Fast.
* :

“Tue Vessel was condemae

(No. 3.)—On the 17th of July 1825, in Latitule 4, 0. North, and Longitude 4,4. East, [lis

Majesty's “Ship “‘ Esk.” W. J. Parchas, Reg. Commander, detained the Sunimaeca “* Bom Jesus das

Nauiganies,” sailing ueder the Brazilian Blaz, Joad Perciro, Master, with 230 Slaves on buard

(73 more than allowed by Passport) 13 of whom died @n their passage un to Sierra Leone. °

‘The Royal Passport given at Bahia, the 2ist of January 1825, allowed this Vessel to trade for

Slaves at the Ports of Molembo, with liberty to call at the Costa da Mina. .

This Vessel was condemned, aud the Slaves emancipated onthe 4th of September 1225,

(No. 4,)—The Brazilian Schooner * Uniao,”” Jozé Ramos Gomis, Master, arrived here on the

21st of October last, detained by His Majesiy’s Ship “Atholl,” Captain Murray, (His Majesty's

Ships “ Eek”? and ‘* Redwing”. in company) on the 9th of September 1825, in Latitude 2. 33.

Narth, and Longitade 4, 17. Bast, with 3fi Slaves on: board (being 66 more than allowed by

Passport, ) 112 of whom died on their passage up to this Place,

This Vessel was furnished with a Royal Passport, dated'ut Bahia, the 14th of July 1825, autho-

rising a Slave-trading voyage to the Ports of Molembo.

The Master stated that he shipped. the Slaves from the Riyer Lagos,

The Vessel was condemned, aud the Slaves emancipated on the 4th ‘of November 1825,

- (Signed) GEO. RENDALL,

d, and the Shives emancipated on the 19ih of March 1825,
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Third Enclosure in No. 6;

«tbstract of Proceedings in the British and’ Netherlands Mixed Court of
Justice at Sierra Leone, from the 1st of January 1825, to the 1st of
January 1826.

(No, 1.)—The Schooner ‘* Rey" was captured by His Majesty's Ship ‘ Maidstone,", Commodore
Bullen, C.B., on the 19th of May 1825, off the River Gallinas, sailing under the Netherlands
Flag, and commanded by William Woodsidé having no Slaves on board, but falling under the
several designations in the Additional Artiele to the Treaty signed at Brussels, the 25th. of
January 1823. .

This Vessel was condemned on the 29th of June 1825.

(No, 2 )—The Brig ‘* Z,” sailing under Dutch Colours, and commanded by Denis Kere Derne,
was captured off the-River Andony or Sombrero, on the 31st of July 18235, by His Majesty’s Ship
“© Maidstone,” Commodore Bullen, C. B. having no Slaves on board, but falling under the several
designations contained in the Additional Article to the Treaty, sigued. at Brussels, the 25th of
January 1823. -
The proof of illicit Traffick being clear, the Judges condemned the Vessel and Cargo on the 9th

of September 1825.

(No. 3 )—On-the Ist of September 1825, His Majesty’s Ship “¢ Atholl,” Captain Murray, cap-

tured the Netherlands Schooner ‘La Venus,” in Latitude 4.12. North, and Longitude 5. 33:

East, not having any Slaves on board, but falling under the several designations contained in the
Additional Article to the Treaty signed at Brussels, the 25th of January 1823,

This Case was so exactly similar to those of the © Bey’? and‘ Z,” that the Judges, without
hesitation, condemned the Vessel and Cargo on the Ist of November 1825.

(Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

 

No. 7.

_G, Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—-(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, January 12, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to acquaint you that Mr. John Tasker Williams
arrived in this Colony on the 5th instant, and having produced the Commis-
sion of His Most Gracious Majesty, appointing him Commissary Judge at
Sierra Leone, under the Treaties with Foreign Powers for the suppression of
illegal Slave- trade, we had the pleasure of introducing that Gentleman to the
Portuguese and Netherlands Commissioners, as well as to the Local Autho-

rities; and, upon the 10th instant, the several Courts of Mixed Commission
were duly opened, wherein the prescribed Oaths of Office were administered
by the Principal Magistrate otf the Place, (Mr. Acting Chief . Justice
Rendall,) to Mr. Williams, who was then regularly installed as His Majesty’s
Commissary Judge.
The Archives of the Correspondence of the Commissioners at Sierra Leone

will be delivered up to Mr. Williams at the earliest moment after the Pro-
ceedirgs of the Commissioners, ad interim, are duly recorded.

I have the honour to be, &e.
The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

&e. &e. &e.

 

No. 8.

J.T. Williams, Lsq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(ReceivedJuly 12.) »

Sir, Sierra, Leone, March30, 1826.

WITH reference to my Despatch of the 10th of March, on the subject of
the Slave-trade, generally, | now beg to enclose, as tending to corroborate
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some of the statements therein made, Copy of a List, given to me by
Captain Willes, of Vessels boarded by His Majesty’s Ship “ Brazen,” during
her late cruize.
The “ Feliz, Africano,”’—(the slaves for which were said to be ready for

embarkation, at the moment that might appear most favourable), is fitted for
the reception of 670 human beings. :
The “ Prince of Guinea” —(during the last visit of the @ Brazen” “at

“Whydah,” this Vessel had just arrived there from America for De Souza,
or Cacha as he is called on the Coast), a fine Brig, pierced for 16 guns,
carrying a long 24-pounder on a pivot, and six smaller guns at the side; she
was supposed to be better constructed for sailing than any Vessel out of
America—entirely new. The Master of her stated, that De Souza had
given him a very considerable.sum of money to build her, fit her out, and
Joad her; her Cargo was landing when the“ Brazen” left—The Master
further stated, that she was going to Bahia with palm-oil, for the purpose of
changing her Papers, when he would leave her. Captain Willes observed,
that he did not suppose any Ship-of-War on the Coast could come up with
her, and that there would, therefore, be but little chance of taking her, when
she commences Slaving, (for which purpose she is declared to have been
purchased and fitted,) unless during a calm, with Boats.—She will not take
less than from 500 to 600 Slaves.
The “ dctivo”~—(the last Vessel on this List), was detained and sent here

for adjudication by His Majesty’s Ship “ Atholl.”
I have the honour to be, &c.

_ (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&c. &e. &c.

 

Enclosure in No. 8.

Pesseis boarded by His Majesty's Ship “ Brazen.”

** BARBARITA"—Schooner, 65 tons, 19 men, | gun, P. Blanco, Master and Owner, from
Havannah, fitted for slaves; boarded by the ** Brazen,” off Quitta, 20th November 1823.

‘* Magico”’— Brigantine, 130 tons, 35 men, 5 guns, Inga, Master, from Havannah ; boarded of
Wiydah, 24th November 1825; fully fitted for slaves,

“* Eliza’’—Schooner, 85 tons, 25 men, from Saint Thomas, under Portuguese Colours, fitted for
slaves: boarded off Whydah,. 24th November,

** Feliz Ajricano’—Brig, 227 tons, 23 men, 2 guns, Antonio JoséGabao, Master, from Bahia,
ander Brazilian Colours; boarded off Whydab, 24th November, slaves ready t@ embark, lett her
at Whydah carly in February. ‘
* Bienfuisant’-—Brigantine, 69 tons, 12 men, Luzet, Master, from Rochelle, under French

Colours; boarded, off Whydah, 24th November, supposed to be Slaving.
“« diliance dos Nagoens’'—Brig, 16 meu, Luiz de Sylva, Master, from Bahia, under Brazilian

Colours; boarded off Whydah, likely to take in her. slaves at Litt Elmina or Popo¢ boarded
again off Whydali, 24th November; againat Little Elmina, 3d Pebruary, -

** Carlota?’ — Brigantine, 176 tous, 3U-men, 4 guns, José da Costa, Master, from Bahia; under
Brazilian, Colours; boarded Ist December, likely to také in slaves at Whydah.
“ Nova Brilliante’— Brig, 260 tons, 20 men, 2 guns, Antonio Alvo de Silva Porta, Master,,

from Bahia, under Brazilian Colours; boarded by the “ Brazen,” off Badagry, 28th December.
** Prince of Guinea’! —Brig, 260: tons, 17 men, 5 guns, from Philadelphia, under. American’

Colours ; Cargo said to be bought by De Souza, at Whydah; boarded there 30th December,
*¢ TL) Entrepreiante’—Brig, 216 tons, 18 men, 2 guns, from Bordeaux, Gassris, Master, under

French Colours ; Cargo consigned to De Souza ; boarded at Whydah 31st January,
, “ St, Juan —Ketch, 49 tons, 18 men, 2: guns, Maul. Dos Santos De. Costa, Master, under

Brazilian Colours, with a Passport to carry 125 slaves from Molembo; boarded off Ningo,
3d February. ;

* Caridade”’—Ketch,.106 tons, 21 men, 2 guns; José. de Santa Tarara, Master, under Brazilian
Colours ; fitted for slaves; boarded to windward of Accra, 5th February.

§* Active’ —Brig, 149:tons, 21 men, José Pinto, Master, under BrazilianColours; boarde! the
17th Nosember, off Accra, and séen between Badagry. and Porto Novo early in February |
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“No. 9.

J.T. Williams, Esq. to Mr. Sccretary Canning.-~~( Received July \2 )

Sir, Sterva Leone, April §, 1826.

I HAVE very considerable pleasure in communicating to you the return
to this Place, on the Ist instant, by the Government Steam Vessel ‘“ African,”
of his Honour D. M. Hamilton, Chief Judge of this Celony.

Mr. Hamilton immediately resamed his functions, as His Majesty’s Com-
missiover of Arbitration, in the Courts of Mixed Commission, and of Justice,
a circumstance which is to me most satisfactory, for several reasons, bat
particularly from the value | attach to the assistance, which his experience
will enable him to afford me, in Cases of doubt or difficulty.

. I have the honour to be, &c. .

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. Se. &e.

 

No. 10.

Mr. Secretary Canning to J. T. Williams, Esq.

Sir, Foreign Office, July 21, 1826,

I HAVE received your Despatch of the 5th of April, reporting that
Mr. Hamilton had arrived at Sierra Leone, and had taken upon himself the
functions of His Majesty’s Commissioner of Arbitration.

I am glad to take this opportunity of expressing my approbation of the
diligence, zeal, and good sense which you have shewn in the execution of
your duties, during the time in which you have acted as His Majesty’s Com-

 

missary Judge at Sierra Leone. Tam, &c,

J.T. Wiltiams, Esq. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

No. ll.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—
(Received Sept. 2.)

(Extract.) Sierra Leene, May 20, 1826.

WE have been honoured with your Despatch of the 23d of February,
enclosing a Communication from the Admiralty, with several. Letters and
Enclosures from Vice-Admiral Sir Lawrence Halsted, relative to the“ arrival
at Cuba of a Spanish Vessel, reported to have re-captured,.on the Coast of
Afriea, two Vessels concerned in the Slave-trade, wnich Vessels have been de-
tained by a British Cruizer, and were on their way to Sierra Leone for
adjudication.”
We instituted immediate enquiry, in order to gain any information that

might assist in elucidating this transaction.
The only Vessel that we could ascertain to be missing, was the Spanish

Brigantine “ Jsabedla,” detained by His Majesty’s Ship “* Redwing,” Captain
Clavering, in Old Calabar River, at the same time (6th October 1825), as
the Spanish Schooners “ Zeresa” and ‘* dna.” With the melancholy fate of
the “ Teresa,” you have already been acquainted, and the Cases of both
Vessels have been communicated to you by His. Majesty’s late Acting Com-
missioners, in their Despatches af the loth of January 1826, marked

Spain,”
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A few loose Papers were lodged in the Registry by Lieutenant Card, the
Officer who boarded the “ Isabella,” the material ones having been conveyed
away when the Vessel was deserted; and, as he had left Sierra Leone, no
further information could be obtained: we were, therefore, of necessity
obliged to defer our enquiries until the return of Captain Clavering.
The “ Redwing” having returned to Sierra Leone from a Cruize, a Letter

was addressed to Captain Clavering on the 4th of May on this subject; we
received his Reply on: the 13th, and of which we enclose a Copy.

Captain Clavering was also requested to furnish us with a List of the Officers
and crew placed by him on board the “ Isabella.” A Copy of this Document
we also beg leave to enclose for your information, and it is but justice to this
excellent Officer to observe, that the number appears fully adequate to the
duty.
Two Vessels are mentioned in Vice-Admiral Halsted’s Letter to the Ad-

miralty, but eur enquiries have been fruitless as to any other than the * Isa-
bella.” It is, however, notorious, that a most nefarious system is pursued on
the Coast of Africa by Vessels under the Flag of Spain.
One of their practices, as we have been given to understand, is to lay in

wait for other Slave-vessels, take possession when their lading is completed,
and transfer their cargoes.

It has come to our knowledge that the Netherlands Schooner “‘ La Venus,”
(condemned as Prize to His Majesty’s Ship “Atholl,” Captain Murray,) was
detained on her passage to Sierra Leone, by a Brig and Schooner off the Island
of St. Thomas, on the 9ih of September 1825.
We had no opportunity of conferring with the Party in charge of the Ne-

therlands Schooner ; but we have understood that, previous to boarding ‘« La
Venus,” the Brig telegraphed to the Schooner, when she hoisted a red Ensign
and pendant, bore up and fired a gun, shotted, at ‘La Venus ;” ‘La Venus”
then hoisted Dutch Colours, (not having any English on board,) the Schooner
then shewed Spanish Colours, and again fired; “‘ La Venus” then hove to,
and Mr. Hodder, whose charge she was under, was then obliged to go on
board the Schooner, where he was detained two hours, and improperly
treated. During this time the Brig closed, and the Prize Master was removed
from the Schooner on board of her. At noon Mr. Hodder was allowed to re-

turn, but with positive orders to keep between the Brig and Schooner. In
the night they separated. The Brig was called by the Captain the “Don
Pedro,” pierced for 22, but mounted only 16 or 18, guns, with a complement
of 88 men; painted black, with a white ribbon, sliding gunter royal masts,
and had on board, he believes, 600 Slaves. The men on board wanted the
Captain to take “ La Venus,” to which he would not agree.
The Schooner had 2 top-sails, 4 small guns, and a long one a midships oa

a pivot; does not recollect how she was painted ; both Vessels. were bound to
the Havannah. .

Another, and a very recent, instance has occurred. ‘The “ Metuno,” a
Brazitian Brigantine, detained by His Majesty’s Ship ‘ Esk,” Captain
Purchas, arrived here on the 2d instant, having had a rencontre on her pas-
sage with one of these Piratical Spanish Vessels, in which the Prize Master,
Mr. Crawford, appears to have acted with a great degree of spirit and firm-

ness. (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
D. M. HAMILTON,

The Right Hon. George Canning,
Se. Se. Se.
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First Enclosure in No. 11.

Captain Claveringto J. T. Williams, Esq.

‘Sir, His Majesty’s Sloop ‘« hedwing,” Sierra Leone, May 13, 1826,
~ IN compliance with your request, I readily proceed to give such information aslam possessed of

‘relative to the Spanish Brigantine Isabella,” detained by His Majesty’s Ship uader.my command
tin October last, which Vessel has been missing since the day of her parting company for Sierra
Leone, to which Port she was ordered for adjudication.
On the5th ef October 1825, the Boats were dispatched up the Qld Calabar River in quest of

‘Vessels concerned in illegally carrying on the Slave-trade. At day-light, on the 6th, a Schooner
‘and a Brigantine were discovéred coming down the River under sail, to whom the Boats immedi-
ately gave chase; on nearing them, both hoisted Spanish Colours ; the headmost (the Schooner)
wearing a broad pendant, opened a fire on the Boats, which was instantly returned, and, after a
‘short contest of about a quarter of an hour, the Boats succeeded in closing, boaiding, and carrying
‘the Schooner. The Crewof the Brigantine, seeing the fate oftheir comrade, took to their Boats,
‘and escaped amongst the Mangrove Bushes, carrying with them also the Papers of theVessel From
this circumstance we only know of her being called the ¢* Isabella,” from the verbal Communication
-of the Captain, Francisco Granelle, and the:Crew of the “ Theresa,” who had no hesitation in ace
knowledging that she was a Spaniard, belonging to Saint Jago de Cuba. ‘This was further cor-
roborated by some leose Letters found on board the Spanish Schooner ‘* Anna,” being No. 14 of
the Papers deposited in that Case in the Mixed Commission Court at Sierra Leone, which, if ne-
scessary to be produced, may be obtained at that Court.

At the time of capture the ‘* Isabella’ had on board 273 Slaves, aud the Theresa 248. The very
‘crowded state of the former induced me to remove 50 of them into this Ship, which were afters
wards put on beard the ‘* Anna,” another Spanish Schooner, which arrived in safety, and was
condemned at this: Port.

As the fate of the ‘* Theresa” is too well known, having been lost in a toruado, I shall confine
anyself to: stating, that the ‘Isabella’ parted company on the $th October fer Sierra Leone,
officered and manned as per accompanying List, which 1 trust will be found sufficiently ample te
prosecute such further enquiries as may lead to the detection of this ost abominable piracy,
‘Since the above period she has sever been heard of.
From an atteutive perusal of the Letters. transmitted by Vice-Admiral Sir Lawrence Halsted to

ithe Lords Commissioners of the Admiralty, 1 cannot but strongly suspect, that the Brigantine
therein mentioned, and called the « Juanita,” is the identical ** Isabella,” with the circumstance
only of her name changed, as the date of her arrival, the 29th of November, corresponds but too
well ‘with the time she ‘would have taken to perform that. voyage, namely, a period of ‘fifty-one
days. The non-appearance of the Officers and men leads me also to the melancholy and distressing
¢onclusion, that they must have been brought to an untimely end.

Having now given all the information that has come to my knowledge, I have only to add, that
no official Report was made of her loss whenI was‘last in Port, as it was then still within the
bounds of possibility that she might arrive
~ , I have the honour to be, &c.
John Tasker Williams, Esq. (Signed) D.C. CLAVERING.

P. S. Of the other Vessel, a Brig mentioned in Sir Lawrence Halsted’s Letter, I know nothing ,
further than that she could tiot be a Prize to any of His Majesty’s Squadron on this Station, as io
Portuguese Vessel had been detained at that time by the Squadron.

(Signed) D.C. €.
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No. 12.

| D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning..—(Received Oct. 17.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, Mugust 7, 1826.

I HAVE ‘the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Letter of the 6th
of May last, transmitting, for the information of Mr. Williams and myself,
four Copies of Papers, marked A. and B, relatiye to the Slave-trade,
which have been presented to both Houses of Parliament in the course of
the present Year. I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) D.M. HAMILTON.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. &ec. ‘&e.

 

No. 13.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning-—(Reeeived Oct. 17.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, August 12, 1826.

‘WITH the deepest sorrow I perform the melancholy duty of communi-
cating to you the loss of my much valued and esteemed Friend and Colleague,
Mr. Williams, His Majesty’s Commissary Judge. whose death took place
the day before yesterday, after his suffering, under a lingering illness, for
upwards ofthree Weeks.

During the short period of the residence of Mr. Williams in this Place,
this mild manners and amiable disposition obtained him the friendship of all
who knew him, and his loss has proved a source of universal regret.
By the death of Mr. Williams His Majesty has been deprived of the ser-

vices of a most valuable and zealous Officer, who was always anxious for the
proper discharge of the duties of the Offiee, with which His Majesty had
been graciously pleased to entrust him.
~ Mr. Smart, His Majesty’s Advocate, whe is at present administering the
Government of the Colony, this day, in the presence of the Chief Justice,

took the Oaths prescribed by the Act, intituled, “An Act to amend and con-.
solidate the Laws relating to the abolition of the Slave-trade,” and entered
on the duties of the Office of Commissary Judge to the several Commissions
established in this Colony for the prevention of illicit Slave-trade.

I have the honour to he, &e.
(Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.

The Right Hon. George Canning, ae
Se. &e. &c.

 

No. 14.

DBD. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.-—(Received Nov.2.)

Sir, , Sierra Leone, August 28, 1826.

IN my Despatch of the 12th instant, I had the honour to inform you
that, on that day, Mr. Smart, His Majesty’s Colonial Advocate, who was then
in the Administration of the Government of the Colony, had taken the Oaths
required, and entered on the duties of the Office of Commissary Judge, ad
interim, in the several Courts of Mixed Commission established at this Place,
for the prevention of illicit Traflick in Slaves, in the room of Mr. Williams,

ceased.
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I now, Sir, beg leave to inform you that, on the 22d instant, Major-Gene-
ral Sir Neil Campbell arrived here from England with a Commission under
the Great Seal, appointing him Captain-General and Governor-in-Chief over
this Colony and its Dependencies; and he has, in pursuance thereof, assamed
the Colonial Government, but has not yet taken upon himself the Ofiee of
Commissary Judge, nor doI think it probable he will during his present
stay here, as he purposes in a fow days proceeding to Cape Coast :—even were
‘he installed in the Office, he could not possibly, during the short interval heintends remaining in the Colony, be expected to pay any attention to theconcerns ot the Courts of Mixed Commission.

Whether the General means to leave the Colony, during his absence, ashas been heretofore the case, without any Commander-in-Chief, or whetherhe intends to take upon himselfto appointa Lieutenant-Governor, is a matteras yet, I believe, not determined. In the event of the former case, I shallimmediately, on his departure, assume the Office of Commissary Judge, andcail upon the Colonial Secretary to take upon himself the Situation of Com-missioner of Arbitration; and [ have no doubt but every thing will then goon ina proper manner. In the event of a Lieutenant-Governor being ap-pointed, and assuming the Office of Commissary Judge, though I fear in thatcase the business ot the Government must be attended to in preference tothe business of the Commissions, yet I beg to assure you, Sir, that no exertionshall be wanting on my part in the pertormance of the duties of theCourts,and to keep the business from getting into arrear.
There are two Cases at present before the Courts for adjudication, which,Tam sorry to say, have unavoidably lain over since the time of the lateCommissary Judge being taken ill: the short period that Mr. Smart was inthe Office, with the duties of the Government, precluded him from consider-ing those Cases, so as to form his Judgment on them.
I would most respectfully beg your opinion, whether, in the event of theabsence of both Foreign Commissioners, and of incapacity from temporary

illness on thepart of HisMajesty’s Comniissary Judge, or Commissioner ofArbitration, the Individual retaining his health cap legally constitute theCourt ot Mixed Commission.
I have the honour to be, &c.

- (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON,The Right Hon. George Canning,
Se. &e. = &e.

 

No. 15.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Nov. 14.)

Sir, - Sterra Leone, September 20, 1826,
UPON understanding that hisExcellency Sir Neil Campbell would be de-tained herelonger than I at first represented to you, in my Despatch of the28th Ultimo, in consequence of His Majesty’s Ship “ Live ly,” which broughthim out, and which was waiting to convey him to Cape Coast,havingput toSea in searchof a Pirate, I lost no time in addressing to him, through theColonial Secretary, a Letter, requesting him te make known to me, for yourinformation, whether it was his pleasure to take-.upon himself the Office ofCommissary Judge prior to his visit to the Gold Coast: a Copy of thisLetter, and of the Answer, I have herein enclosed for your information. Ineonsequence of this Correspondence his Excellency was sworn into Office onthe 30th of August, as Commissary Judge on the part of His Majesty, andcontinued in that Office till the th instant, during which ‘period one Casewas disposed of. On the 9th his Excellency departedforCape Coast, leavinga Commission with Licutenant-Colonel Lumley, ef the Royal AfricanCorps,
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appointing him Lieutenant-Governor, but with Instructions, I believe, only
to assume the Government in the event of circumstances requiring his so
doing. On Monday the 11th I, consequently, as Principal Magistrate of the
Colony, assumed the Office of Commissary Judge, and appointed Mr. Reffell,
the Colonial Secretary, Commissioner of Arbitration.

I beg leave to inform you, Sir, that two new Cases have been brought
before the Courts for adjudication since I last had the honour of addressing
you. In oneof these Cases the Vessel brought in is the “ Principe de
Guinea,” ander Brazilian Colours, mentioned in the late Mr. Williams’s Des-
patch of the 30th March last; she was captured after a severe action with a
‘Tender of His Majesty’s Ship ‘“ Maidstone,” commanded by Lieutenant
"Tucker of that Ship, in which many lives were lost: she bad on board pre-
vious to the action 609 Slaves, out of which two were killed and thirteen
drowned during the fight; and thirteen died and two were drowned on the
passage up; the remainder, 579 in number, arrived here in a healthy state,
except several that, I understand, were wounded in the Engagement. In the
other Case the Vessel brought in is called the “ Intrepida,’ and was cap-
tured under Spanish Colours ; she had on board when seized 290 Slaves, 56
of whom died in the passage up; the others. were landed here in a state of
miserable wretchedness from disease. The other Cases remaining in the

Courts to be finally disposed of are two—the first of which is that of the
“ Perpetuo Defensor,” captured under Brazilian Colours, with 366 Slaves
on board; she was given up by the Captors, in consequence of her having
been seized to the South of the Equator, but Mr. Macaulay, the then Acting
Governor, being of opinion the Slaves ought not to be allowed to leave the
Harbour, ordered the greatest part of them to be landed from one of the
Colonial Vessels. (to which they had been removed on their arrival, from
motives of humanity) and to be taken possession of; and disposed of, by the
Officers of the Colonial Government: the remaining part of the Slaves that
were left on board being ina stale of mutiny, the Claimant was obliged to land
to prevent bloodshed; Mr. Macaulay having threatened to order The King’s
Advocate to prosecute criminally any one attempting to coerce them. These
last were, in likemanner, disposed of by the Colonial Government: in conse-
quence a Claim has been made for costs and damages on behalf of the
Owners of the Vessei, which have been decreed by the Court, but the Amount

- has not yet been exactly settled. The remaining Case is that of the “ San
Benedicto,” under Brazilian Colours, seized by His Majesty’s Ship “Brazen,”
Captain Willes ; but as it was clearly proved that, though fitted for the Slave-
trade, she had not had a Slave on board during the present voyage, the
Court released her; but would not award demurrage, in consequence of her hav-
ing been seized out of the limits, allowed by the Treaty and Conventicn, tor Por-
tuguese Vessels to carry on the Slave-trade. This Case, like the last, is not
quite concluded; these two Jast Cases being Cases of restitution, have una-
voidably taken up a great deal of time, but Lam in hopesthat,’by thenext
Vessel sailing for England, I shall be able to transmit Reports of all the four
Cases herein mentioned. I have the honour to be, &c. .

(Signed) D. M. HAMILTON,
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. ec. &e.

- First Enclosure in No. 15.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to J. Reffell, Esq.

Sra, . Freetown, August 29, 1826.

THE business of the Courts of Mixed Commission established in this Colony for the preven-
tion of the illicit Traflick in Slaves, being at present at a stand, in consequence of the Vacancy of
the Office of Commissary Judge on the part of His Majesty, and understanding yesterday, -while-
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attending the Council, that bis Excellency the Governor was likely to remain longer than he atfirst supposed in the Colony, in consequence of the departure of His Majesty’s Ship ‘ Lively’ onacruize, T have, therefore, to request you will be pleased to call his Excellency’s attention to the54th Clause.of the Act of Parliament, passed in the 5th year of the reign of His present Majesty,intituled, An Act to amend and consolidate the Laws relating to the abolition of the Slave-trade,” and to the Regulations annexed to the ‘Treaties and Convention recited in the said Act ;and.T have farther to request you will be pleased to make known to me, for the information ofHis Majesty's Seeretary of State for Foreign Affairs, whether it is his pleasure, during his presenestay in the Colony, to take upon himself the Office of Commissary Judge.
Should his Excelleacy be pleased to signify his intention of assuming that Office, I will do my-self the honour of waiting on him in my capacity of Chief Justice, at any time (that my healthwill allow,) that he may be pleased to appoint, to administer to him the usual Oaths,

I have the honour tobe, &¢.
J. Reffeil, Esq. (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON,

 

Second Enclosure in No. 15.

J. Reffell, Esq. to D. M. Hamilton, Esq.

Sir, Secretary's Office, Sierra Leone, August 29, 1828.
T HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Letter of this Morning, relative tothe Vacancy of the Office of His Majesty’s Commissary Judge in the Courts ot Mixed Commissionestablished in this Colony, and, having’ submitted the same to his Excellency the Governor, toacquaint you that his Excellency is ready to take upon himself the duties of the said Office, inconformity to the Regulations aunexed to the Treaties and Convention recited in the 4th Clauseef the Act of Parliament passed in the 5th year of the reign of His present Majesty, and that his

Excellency is desirous of taking the usual Oaths of such Office, at the Government-House to-mor-row at Two o’Clock, at which hour his Excellency requests your attendance in your capacity ofChief Justice in order_to administer the same to him.
° I have the honour to be, &c.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. (Signed) J, REPFELL.

 

No. 16.

Joseph Plania, Jun. Esq. to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, October 31, 1826.
I AM directed by Mr. Secretary Canning to acquaint you, that you

may promote Mr. Magnus to the Situation of First Clerk to the British
Commissioners, and Mr. Bidwell to the Situation of Second Clerk, become
vacant by the promotion of Mr. Magnus. a

These Appointments are to date from the 5th of July last, with the Allow-
ances hitherto attached to those Situations, subject to the Regulations esta-
blished as to leave of absence. .
Mr. Canning has also considered the Representations which were made

to him, under your sanction, as to the inadequacy of Salary attached to
these Situations, and I have to authorise you, Im consequence, to -pay,
from the 5th of January next, to the Individual holding the Situation of
First Clerk, a Salary at the rate of £500 Year, and to the Individual holding
the Situation of Second Clerk, a Salary at the rate of £350 a Year; these
Allowances being subject to the existing Regulations as to leave of absence;
and I have further to authorise you to acquaint them, that, should their
conduct obtain the approbation of their Superiors, and their health require
a permanent retirement, at any time after a period of twelve years’ actual
service at their Post, Mr. Canning will be disposed to recommend them upon
such retirement, for a Pension to an amount not exceeding one half of the
Salary enjoyed by them in their Situation under the Commission,
Mr. Canning approves of the Arrangement, that the establishment of the

Clerks under the British Commissioners shall be entirely separate from
that of the Clerks under the Mixed British and Foreign Commissioners ; and
that the Appointment and Regulation of the Salary of the Clerks under the
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Mixed Commission should be vested in the British and Foreign Commis-
sioners jointly ; subject, as far as the British Commissioners are concerned, to
the final approval of His Majesty’s SecretaryofState.
Mr. Canning also approves, that, in the event of the death, or of the absence.

ofeither or both of the Clerks of the British Commissioners, you shall pro-
cure such temporary aid as the Colony may afford, until the Vacancy is
regularly filled up; in the first instance, by an Appointment by the Secretary
of State, in the other instance, by the return to his duties of the Clerk who
may have been absent.
The Allowance to be made for temporary assistance on those occasions

ic left to your discretion ; but you will take care, of course, that it shall not,
on any occasion, exceed the regular Salary attached to the Situation.

{ should suppose, that, in most cases, it will not be necessary that the tem-
porary Allowance should be placed on so high a scale.

Tam, &c.
Eis Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) JOSEPH PLANTA, Jun.

 

No. 17.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

(Extract) Foreign Office, November 25, 1826.

I HAVE received your Despatches up to the 20th of September last.
The subject of Mr. Hamilton’s Despatch, marked General, of the 28th of

August, having been referred for the opinion of His Majesty’s Law Officer,
The King’s Advocate has reported, that the Treaties, the Commission, and the
Provisions of the Act of Parliament for carrying the same into effect, as con-
solidated in the 5 Geo. IV. cap. 13, furnish the only safe guide for the exer-
cise of jurisdiction by the Members of the Mixed Commission Courts.

(Signed) GEORGE CANNING,
His Majesty's Commissioners.

 

No. 18.

Joscph Planta, Jun. Esq. to D. M. Hamilton, Esq.

Sir, Foreign Office, November 25, 1826.

MR. SECRETARY CANNING has received your Letter of the 12th
of August last, and I am directed to acquaint you, in answer, that. Mr. Can-
ning will have pleasure in recommending you for the Appointment which you
solicit, of His Majesty’s Commissary Judge in the Mixed Commission Court
at Sierra Leone.

In notifying to you this Appointment, I am directed by Mr. Canning to
explain to you the manner in which your future retirement will be regulated,
in consequence of your filling Situations of different rank in the Commission.
You are already aware of the Regulation, that no Pension can be granted

under the Commission, until the Person who may be permitted to retire
shall have completed, at Sierra Leone, in Appointments by The King, under
the Mixed Commission at that Place, a period of six years’ actual service.

If an Officer in the Mixed Commission, having served in an inferior
Situation, shall be promoted to a higher Post in that Commission, and shall
be permitted to retire, previously to his having completed three years’ actual
service, at Sierra Leone, in that higher Appointment, the said Officer shall
onlyreceive the Pension allotted to the lower Situation in the Commission.

If, however, the service of the said Officer, in the higher Situation, shall
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thave exceeded the term of three years, and his whole service under the Com-
mission the period of six years, and that he shall then be permitted
to retire, he shall receive the Pension ailotted to the higher Situation.

These Regulations wiil apply to your case; and, as it is intended that this
principle shall be acted upon as the general rule for Pensions to be granted for
services rendered in the Situations of Commissary Judge, Commissioner
of Arbitration, and of Registrar under the Mixed Commission, I am directed
to desire that you will deposit in the Archives of the Office at Sierra Leone,
a Duplicate, which is herewith sent to you, of this Letter.

 

Lam, &c.
D. M. Hamilton, Esq. (Signed) JOSEPH PLANTA, Jun.

No. 19. |

Joseph Planta, Jun, Esq. to William Smith, Esq.

Sir, “oreign Office, November 25, 1826.

MR. SECRETARY CANNING has received your Letter of the 14th of
August last, and J am directed, to acquaint you, in answer, that, Mr. Caaning
will recommend you for the Appointment which you solicit, of His Majesty's
CoummissionerofArbitration, inthe Mixed Commission Court at Sierra Leone,
which Situation has become vacant by the promotion of Mr. Hainilton to be
Ais Majesty’s Commissary Judge in that Court.

In respect to the Pension, which mayhereafter be granted to you, I have
to refer you to the Letter which, by Mr. Canning’s direction, I have, under
this date, addressed to Mr. D. M. Hamilton upon this subject, the Regula-
tions contained in which will be equally applicable to you both, in. your
respective Situations. .

Tam, &c.

Villkiam Smith, Esq. ‘(Signed ) JOSEPH PLANTA, Jux.
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No. 20.

Wiltiam Smith, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received May 22.)

Sir, | Sterra Leone, March 15, 1826.

I HAVE the honour, herewith, to transmit to youa certified Return, taken
from the Register in this Office, of the Number of Slaves emancipated from
the 5th day of January 1825, to the 5th day of January 1826.*
The total number registered amounts to 1701.
I deem it also my duty to forward a Return of the Number of Slaves landed

from the Spanish Brigantine, ‘‘ Ninfa Habanera,” amounting to 228.
These Slaves having been put on board the said Vessel, atter capture, by

the Caboceer of Popo, at the instance of the Captors, the Judges of the
British and Spanish Court of Mixed Commission did not decree their Eman-
eipation ; they were, however, delivered over to the Colonial Government.

I have the honour to be, &c.

Lhe Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) WM. SMITH.
&c. Se. Sc.

~

* Mem: This Enclosure contains the Names and Particulars of Emanci-
pation and Registry of Slaves, from No. 5037 to 6737, inclusive.

 

No. 21.

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sterra Leone, January 12, 1826,
I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch, dated

the 7th of October 1825, enclosing, for our information, Copies of two Letters
which had passed between the Foreign Office and the Colonial Department, on
the subject of filling up, ad interim, Vacancies which may occur in the
British Judgeships in the Mixed Commission at Sierra Leone.

T have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.
§e. &e. &e.
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No. 22.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Oct. 17.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, August 15, 1826.
1 HAVE the honour to enclose, herewith, a Return of the Slaves emanci-

pated by the Courts of Mixed Commission established in this Coluny, for the
prevention of illicit Traflick in Slaves, during the period trom the 5th of
January to the 5th of July, of the present Year.

_ By this Document you will observe that 1492 Slaves have been eman-
eipated by those Courts in that period.

I have the henour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.
&c. &e. &e.

Mem: The Enclosure contains the Names and Particulars of Emanci-
pation and Registry of Slaves, from No. 6738 to 8227, inclusive, amounting
to 1490 Slaves ; 2 having died before they were registered.

 

No. 23.

Soseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to William Reffell, Esq.

Sir, Foreign Office, November 25, 1826.

MR. SECRETARY CANNING has received your Letter of the 12th of
August, and I have the pleasure to acquaint you, by his direction, that Mr.
Canning will recommend youfor’ the Situation of Registrar to the Mixed
Commission Court at Sierra Leone, which Situation is become vacant by the
Appointment of Mr. William Smith to be His Majesty’s Commissioner of
Arbitration in that Court. ,
The Salary attached to this Situation is £1000. a Year, but it is diminished

by onehalf in those cases in which a Person holding the Appointment under
the Commission, enjoys at the same time any other Situation, with Salary or
Emolument under His Majesty’s Government.

If, at any peiiod, after six years’ actual service at Sierra Leone, in your
present Appointment under the Commission, you should be desirous of re-
tiring, the Secretary ofState will be disposed, upon due consideration of your
services, to recommend you for a Pension, not exceeding in amount the sum
of £500. a Year. Iam, &c.

William Reffell, Esq. (Signed) JOSEPH PLANTA, Jun.
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No. 24.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—{Received June 2.)

Str, Serra Leone, January 10, 1326.

I HAVE the honour to enclose, for your information, the Report of the
Case of the Spanish Schooner “ Segunda Gallega,” whereof Agustin Capera
was Master, brought in here for adjudication on the 31st of October last,
having been captured in Latitnde 6. 13. North, and Longitude 3. 18. East,
on the 29th of the previous Month, by His Majesty’s Ship ** Maidstone,”
Commodore Bullen, C. B., with 285 Staves on board, .
The Court passed Sentence of condemnation of the Vessel, and emancipated

the Slaves, on the 23d of November 1825.

I have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.
&e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 24.

Report ofthe Case of the Spanish Schooner “ Segunda Gallega,” Agustin
Capera, Master.

iPHIS Vessel arrived in the Harbour of Sierra Leone on the 31st of October 1825, with 276 .
Slaves on board, consis ing of 132 men, 26 women, 105 boys, and J9 girls, On the 2d of
November the Ship's Papeis were brought into Court, duly attested, by William Gray, Lieut. ofHis Majes: y’s Ship, «* Maidstone,’ Charles Bullen, C.B. Commodore, and Proceedings were com-menced in this Case ;. a Monition was prayed and issued, citing all Persons having any right, orpretended right, to the said Vessel and Slaves, to appear and make claim, which was afterwards re-turned certified as duly served. .
Ju Commodore Bullen’s Declaration it ts stated, that **on the 29th of September 1825, in orabout Latitude 6. 13. North, and Longitude 3. 18. East, he detained the Schooner ‘ Segunda

Gallega,” sailing under Spanish Colours, armed with t gun, 12 pounder, commanded by DhoCapero, with a ciew of 29 men and boys, who declared her to be bound from the RiverLagos
to the Havannab, having on board 292 Slaves, viz. 145 men, 20 women, 108 boyx, and 19 pirls,?

‘The Master in his examination, stared, that the Vessel, and the greatest part of the Slaves, be.longed to himself, and that he took possession of her in April last; that she is 3! tons burthen;that the present voyave began at the Havannah, but cannot say whether it would have ended atPorto Rico or the Hevannah 3 that 285 Slaves were taken on board during the voyage ; they wereall shipped at the River Lagos, and that none had died previous to Capture.
Antonio Roderiguez, S-eward of the said Vessel, in his Answers to the standing Interrogatories,confirms the Evidence of the Master,
The Case of illicit Slave-trade being thus clearly proved, and no Clatm having been made bythe Owner, the. Court passed Sentence of condemnation on the Vessel, and decreed the emanci-pation of the Slaves, on the 23d day of November 1825,

{Signed) GEO. RENDALL,
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| No. 25.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning—(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, January 10, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to enclose, for your information, the Report of ‘the
Case of the Spanish Schooner “ Clara,” otherwise “ Clarita,” detained by
His Majesty’s Ship ‘‘ Brazen,” Captain George Wicken Willes, off Cape Me-
surado, on the 4th of November 1825, with 36 slaves on board.
This Vessel was brought in here for Adjudication on the 15th of November

1825, and the proof of illicit Slave-trade being perfectly clear, she was con-
‘demned by the Court on the 25d of the same month, the{Emancipation of the
Slaves being decreed on the same day.

I have the honour to be, &c.
The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

&e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in Noe. 25.

Report of the Case of the Spanish Schooner “Clara,” otherwise “Clarita,
Jozdé Morano, Master. :

THIS Vessel was sent into the Port of Freetown on the 15th of November 1$25, by Captain
George W, Willes, with 36 slayes on board, consisting of 12 men, 9 women, 8 boys, 6 girls, and
| infant. .On the same day the Ship’s Papers, with the Declaration of the Captor, were lodged

in. the Registry Office, duly attested by Mr. J. Batt, Admiralty Mate of His Majesty’s Ship
* Brazen.” Ou the 16th of November, a Monition was prayed and issued, calling upon all Per-
sons having, or pretending to have, any right, title, or interest in the said Vessel and Cargo, to
appear and make claim, which was returned on the 23d, certified as having been duly served.”

Captain Willes, in his Declaration, states, that on the 4th of November 1825, ‘being in Latitude
5,44. North, and Longitude 1, 30. West, he fell in with and detained the Schooner ‘* Clarita,”’
Jo7é Morano, Acting Master, witha crew of 14men, armed with 1 gun and 20 muskets, and having
on board 36 slaves, together with some tobacco, spirits, and other articles.

Jozé Morano, the Master, in answer to the Standing Iuterrogatories, deposed, that the late
Master was the Owner; that upon his decease, on the |&th of September last, he appointed him-
self to the command off Grand Currow ; that the presént voyage began at the Havannah, and was
to have ended there, Gibraltar was the last clearing Port the Vessel sailed from; touclied at
‘Grand Currow, Teembo, and the Gallinas, on this Coast during the voyage; she was seized for
having slaves on board off Cape Mesurado; sailed under Spanish Colours ; her name was the
‘«¢ Clarita.” The present Cargo consists of 36 slaves, and 450 rolls of tobacco; 33-slaves were
taken on board at Teembo, from a man niamed Brown, and 3 at the Gallinas.

The Boatswain in his examination corroborates fully the evidence of the Master.
It appears by the Papers of this. Vessel, that. she cleared out from the Havannah with a Crew 6f

12 men, on the 22d of March 1825, for Gibraltar; that José Peres Munoz was then Master; that
m the 4th of July he appearedbeforethe Spanish Consul at Gibraltar, and obtairied a Certificate.
of having shipped.[5 men and boys, retaining only the Boatswain and | boy of the original Crew;
he cleared out, also_on the same dayforSt. Thomas’ and the Havaunah. ‘The whole of the Papers
found on board consist only of a Passport for the Vessel, (therein called the ‘* Clara,”) a List of
the Crew, printed rules to be ohserved by Masters and Officers of Spanish Vessels, a Mediter~
ranean Passport, and.a Bill of Health given at Gibraltar. :
The case of illicit. Traffick being clearly proved, and no Claim having been made on behalf of the

Owner or Master, the Court, without hesitation, pronounced Sentence of Condemnation on the said
Vessel, and decreed,the Emancipation of the Slaves on the 23d day of November 1825.

(Signed) .GEO, RENDALL.

 

No. 26.

G. Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, January 10, 1826.

T HAVE the honour to enclose, for your information, the Report. ot the
Case of the Spanish Schooner “ Zeresa,” whereof Francisco Granell was
Master.

;
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This Vessel was detained by His Majesty’s Ship “ Redwing,” D. C. Cla-
vering, Esq. Commander, in Old Calabar River, on the 6th of October 1825,
with 248 Slaves on board, 50 of whom, on account of her crowded state, were
put on board the Spanish Schooner “ Ana,” also detained by the “ Redwing.”
The “ Teresa” was upset in a _turnado on the 19th of October last, when all

on board perished, except 8 ofthe Prize Crew, 4. Spaniards, and 6 Slaves.
TheCourt, deeming the proofs.of illicit Slave-trade to be clear]y established,

pronounced that at the time of seizure the Schooner “ Teresa” was liable to
confiscation, and decreed the Emancipation of the surviving Slaves on the 3d
day of January 1826. I have the bonour to be, &e.
Lhe Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

Se. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 26,

Report of the Case of the Spanish Schooner « Teresa,” Francisco Granell,
Adfaster. |

UPON the 17th of Deeember 1825, the Papers of this Vessel were brought into Court by Lien-tenant Card, of His Majes’y’s Ship «© Redwing ” D. C. Clavering, Ksq. Commander, and dulyattested by him, On the same day, an Affidavit, made by Lieutenant Wilson and Thomas MacGowan, Exq., Admiralty Mate, both of His Majesty’s Ship « Redwing,” was filed, and was insubstance as follows; That, on the Sth of October last, by order of Captain Clavering, they tookcharge of the detainéd Schooner “ Teresa,” with 248 slaves on board, and accompanied His Ma-Jesty’s Ship «* Redwing” to the River Cameroons and Cape Formosa. ‘That said Schooner beingvery crowded, 50 slaves were removed into the Spanish Schooner ‘* 4na.;"" that on the 19th ofOctober last, at about 2. 30. a. m., being about half'a mile from the Ship, with nearly all sail set,the Schooner was suddenly laid on her béam-ends by a tornado, and almost immediately wentdown; that, by clinging to spars, these Deponents, with 8 of the Prize-Crew, 4 Spaniards, and6 Slaves, were rescued by the Boats of the Ship, after being 7 hours in the water; that 196 Slaves,4 of the Prize Crew, and 1 Spaniard, were unfortunately fost ; 6 slaves had died of fever and dy-sentery previous to this occurrence. ‘The usual Munition was prayed and issued on fhe 19th ofDeceniber, calling upon all Persons having, or pretending to have, any right in the SpanishSchooner ‘* Teresa” to appear and make due Claim ; it was returned on the 26th, certified ashaving been duly served.
‘The Declaration of the Captor, “Captain Douglas Charles Clavering, states, that on the 6th ofOctober 1825, the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship ** Redwing” detained the Schooner « Teresa” inthe Old Calabar River, in about Latitude 4. 35. North, and Longitude 8. 45. East’, with 248slaveson board, who «were counted in the presence of the Master and Mate of the said Vessel,A Certificate, signed “ D, C. Clavering, Commander,’ *« Francisco Granell,” and witnessed by«* Robert Card,‘ Lieutenant,” and “ William Armstrong, Surgeon,” was filed in Court on the 27thof December, It states, that Francisco Granell has petitioned to be landed at the nearest Port. in. consequence of sickness ‘and scurvy, which were increasing daily, ‘by living on salt provisions, andwhich Mr. Armstrong, fhe Surgeon of the Ship, confirms ; that, as the *- Teresa” was lost, it wasSupposed his presence as a Witness was no longer required ; that he freely and willingly (knowingthe seizure to lave been just) gave up all claim to indemnification tor her loss; that, in considera-tion of the above circumstances, Captain Clavering acceded to his request, and landed him at‘Priuces Island,

’ Pabio Fréxas, in his Answers to the Standing Interrogatories, states, that the Master, FranciscoGranell, took possession of the Vessel'at Saint Jago de Cuba, She was seized for having slaves onboard; sailed under Spanish Colours, The present voyage began at Saint Jago de Cuba, and wasto have-ended there; it was the last clearing Port, She anchored in ‘Cameroon and CalabarRi-vers, to tradefor Slaves; was armed withfour carronades, somemuskets, cutlasses and cartridges ;fired one carrounade and some muskets at the Boats; does not -know who gave the orders to do $0;247 slaves were taken on board, some ‘in the River Calabar, and the remainderin the Cameroons.By the Vessel’s Papers, it appears that the Schvoner « Teresa,” Francisco Granell, Master, of85 tons burthen, with a Crew of 23 men and boys, cleared out from Santiago de Cuba on the 4thof May 1825, with ageneral cargo, tor Princes’ Island,
The proofs of illicit Slave-trade being so clear, the Court pronounced, that, at the time ofseizure, the said Schooner Teresa” was illegally engayed in the Traffick of Slaves, and, as such,subject and liable to confiscation, and decreed the surviving slaves belonging to the said Schooner« Teresa” to be emancipated on‘the 3d day of January 1826,

(Signed) GEO. RENDALL &
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No. 27.

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, January 10, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to forward, for your information, the Report of the
Case of the Spanish Schooner, “ .4na,” detained off the River Cameroons
on the 11th of October 1825, by His Majesty’s Ship “ Redwing,” Douglas
C. Clavering, Esq. Commander, having on board at the time of the eapture
103 slaves.
This Vessel arrived in the Harbour of Freetown, on the 25th of November

last, with 130 slaves, 50 having been put on board from the “ Zeresa,” and
45 from the © Zsadbed/a,” and 68 out of the whole number having died on their
passage to this Place.
The engagement of this Vessel in the jllicit Traffick in Slaves being clearly

proved, the Court passed Sentence of Condemnation on the 3d of January
1826, and decreed the Emancipation of the surviving Slaves.

I have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) — GEO. RENDALL.
&e. Se. Xe.

 

Enclosure in No. 27.

Report of the Case of the Spanish Schooner © Ana,” Manoel Sierra, Master.

THE “ Ana’ arrived in Sierra Leone Harbour on the 25th of November 1825, ina wretched
condition, havinglost 68 slaves on the passage, as appears by the Affidavit of Mr. Taylor, Master
of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Redwing,” Douglas Charles Clavering, Esq., Commander; he deposes
that, on the Ith of October last, they detained, off the Cameroons, the Spanish Schooner ‘* Ana,”
with 107 slaves on board, that 50 slaves were pat on board said Schooner from the ‘f Teresa,”

and 45 from the “Isabella,” 2 other Prizes to His Majesty's Ship ‘* Redwing,” making in the
whole 202 slaves; that on the passage up 68 died, chiefly from dysentery; that no Medical Officer
was on board, but that Deponent atiministered medicine to the said slaves to the best of bis power,
and the greatest care and attention was paid to them. On the 26th of November, the Agent for
Captors prayed, that the slaves might be lander, whichthe Court immediately allowed, the follow-
ing number, viz. 50 men, 39 boys, 23 women, and18girls, makinga total of 130 slaves, were then
handed over to the Marshal ofthe saidCourt, and, ultimately, delivered by him to theChiet Super-
intendent of Liberated Africans. ‘Chere were no means of ascertaining the surviyors of the slaves
belonging to each, Vessel separately, as. no precaution had been taken-for that purpose.
"Phe declaration of the Captor, Captain Clavering, which was filed in Court on the {8th of

November, states, that on the Lith of October 1825, he detained the Spanish Schooner ** Ana”
off the RiverCameroons, in Latitude 3. 50. North, and Longitude 9. 2, East, having ‘on board
106 slaves, counted in the presence of the Mare, Francisco Carbonell (the Master having been
left on shore at Binbia.) .
On the Sch of December the Vessel’s Papers were brought into Court, and duly authenticated

by Air. Braund, Purser-of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Redwing.” ,
The Monition was prayed on the 16th of December, and returned as duly served on the 26th.
Francisco Carbonell, Second Captain, states,inbis examination, that the Master, ManoelSirra,

took possession of this Schooner at St. Jago de Cuba, She sailed under Spanish Colours, was
seized for having slaves on. board; the Schooner’s name is the ‘* Ana,’” she-is about.80 tons
burthen, hada Crew of 27 Officers and Mariners, exclusive of the Master.. The voyage began at
St. Jago de Cuba, and the Master said it was to have ended there, it was the last elearing* Port ;
touched at-Calabar to-trade for slaves; first saw Capturing Ship off Bimbia; was captured about
4 leagues off the River Gamerogns; was coming from Bimbia; .was armed with 4 guns, 5 mus-
kets, some cutlasses, powder, and a few balls; fred 2 guns atthe Boats; cannot say whogave
the order, as he was lying sick; does not know the Owner of the Vessel; 106 slaves were taken
on board at Bimbia; 2 died previous to capture.
The evidence given by Mariano Casa, the Roatswain of the Vessel, is the same in substance

with that of the Second Captain, except in. the number of slaves. said to have been taken on
hoard, The Boatswain states that only 990slaves were shipped at Bimbia.

‘The Papers of the Vessel shew that she cleared from Santiago de Cuba on the 8th of June
1825, with a general Cargo tor St. Thomas’, and a Crew of 25 men and boys commanded by
Manoel te Sierra. .

‘Phe proofs ot illicit Slave-trade being thus clearly established, the Court passed Sentence of
Condemnation against the Schooner ** Ana,” and decreed the Enancipation of the surviving. Slaves
‘on the 3d, day of January 1826. (Signed) GEO, RENDALL.
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No. 28.

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr, Secretary Canning —(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, January 10, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to enclose, for your information, a Report of the Case

of the Spanish Brigantine “ Minfa Habanera,” José Puiz y Miro, Master,

brought in here for adjudication on the 21st of December 1825, having been
detained on the 17th of November, off Accra, by His Majesty’s Ship

“ Brazen,” Captain George Wicken Willes, for having carried 50 Slaves

from Accra to Popoe: 231 Slaves were on shore at Popoe at the time of seizure,
which the Master acknowledged to be the Cargo belonging to the said
Brigantine.
The Cook belonging to the Vessel corroborated the evidence of the Master.
It being clearly proved that 50 Slaves had been shipped on board the

* Ninfa Habanera” during the present voyage, the Court felt no hesita-

tion in passing Sentence of Condemnativn of the Vessel, and gave it
as their opinion, that most of the Slaves that were brought from Popoe
to this Colony, did compose the Cargo belonging to that Vessel, but as
they were not on board at the time of capture, the Court could not deerce
their Emancipation. { have the honour tobe, &e.
The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

&c. &c. &e.

Enelosure in No. 28.

Report of the Case of the Spanish Brigantine “‘ Ninfa Habanera,” Jozé
Puiz y Miro, Master.

THIS Vessel arrived in the Harbour of Freetown on the 2ist of December -1825, with 223
slaves on board, consisting of 103 men, 70 women, 35 boys, and 20 girls,. On the same day the

Ship’s Papers, duly authenticated by Lieutenant Walker, of His Majeésty’s Ship ‘« Brazen,” toge-

ther. with the Declaration of the Captor, Captain G. W. Willes, were filed in the Registry of the
Court.
Vhe usual Monition was prayed and issued on the 22d of December, and.returned into Court on

the 30th, certified by the Marshal as having been duly served.
‘Phe. Declaration of Captain George Wicken Willes, commandingHisMajesty’s Ship ‘‘ Brazen,”

‘states, that he detained the Spanish Brigantine ** Ninfa Habanera, of the Havannah, off Accra,
son the 17th of November 1825, for having bad slaves on board for the purpose of illicit Traffick
during her present voyage; and further, that, on the’ 22d of November, he obtained. from
Little Popoe 231 slaves, being the cargo of the said Vessel, acknowledged a5 such by the Master.
.Jozé Puiz y Miro, aswell as the Caboceer and principal People of Popoe. .

The Master, Jozé Puiz y Miro, in answer to the standing Interrogatories, deposed, that the
Owner, Emecildo -Laureyro, who lives in the Havannah, appointed him to the command of the
Vessel on thé 31st of May last. She has been called the ‘* Ninfa-Habanera’’. for the two last
voyages, but was formerly called the ‘* Segunda Ligera’’ She is 150 tons barthen, had a Crew
of46;,Qfficers and Mariners; sailed ander Spanish Colours; was seized: for having carried 50
slaves from Accra to Popoe. The present voyaze commenced at the Havannah, and was to have
eaded there; it was her last clearing Port; anchored at Quittah, Popoe, and Accra; at the first
Place, to ascertaim her Longitude, at the two last, to trade for slaves; was captured off Accra on

the: 17th of November 1625;was armed with | twelve-pounder, on a pivot, and 5 carrona es, aleo
some muskets, cutlasses, powder aud shot. The slaves were put on board the Scheoner by the

Captain ofthe Man-ot-war. Fifty slaves were taken on board from the time they commeneed

trading:at Accra from the shore, and landed at Popoe; 21. men, 20 women, and 9 children, In
answer.te special Interrogatories, put by permission of the Court, he stated, that most of the s'aves

put.on board at Little Popoe were the same that he purchased for the Brigantine taken ; but some
of the healthy. ones were exchanged by the Caboceer of Popoe, with whom they were in charge, for

siekly qnes; they were all confined in one house, the men in irons, the wom n and children were
nor; they were in the actual possession of the second Pilot of the Brigantine; believes the Cabo-
ceersens. them on board, bat caniot be positive; the son of the Caboceer of Popoe and two.other
people of that Place were on board at the time of capture; they were landed at Little Popoe, He
purchased 50 slaves.at Accra from a Caboceer named Anerah. He lives nearer the Duteh Fort
than the, English ; the Brigantine lay equally distant from the Danish andthe Dutch Forts, out of
gun-shotof the English Fort; the 50 slaves were shipped ia. Ancrah’s Canoes; did not purchase
auyslavesfrom Mr. Hansen; made the bargain with Ancrah for the 50 slaves, who distributed
themonev among his friends; believes one is named Quarty Cudjoe, and knows that Ay; the
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brother of Ancrah, is another; the latter is Mr. Hansen’s head-man; part of the 50 slaves were
supplied by him; does not know if they were on Mr, Hansen’s account; Ay was with Ancrah
daily; was there when the agreement was made for the 59 slaves; went once to Mr. Hansen's
Honse to purchase a barrél of tar, and another time with a Spanish Captain to purchase a piece
of silk. Mr. Hansen did not recommend Ancrah to him, nor did he ever speak about slaves; does

not know if Mr. Hansen authorized the sale of the slaves, or whether the purchase was by bis

order, or on his account; Mr. Hansen did not send him to Ancrab, nor does he know if the slaves
were furnished by Mr. Hanson’s erders, :

Luiz de Seppe, the Cook ‘belonging to this Vessel, was also examined upon the Standing In-
terrogatories, aud corroburated the evidence of the Master.

The Vessel's Papers shew that she was fitted out at the Havannah, from whence she cleared
for Princes Island on the 14th of June 1825, witha general Cargoof dry goods, rum, tobacco, &c.
The fact of 50 slaves having been shipped on board the ‘* Ninfa Habanera” at Accra, during

the present voyage, and afterwards landed at Popoe, being clearly proved, the Court felt no. hesita-
‘tion, on the 3d of January 1826, in pronouncing Sentence of Condemnation against the Vessel, as
having been iNegally engaged in the Slave-trade at the{time of capture, but as it'was proved that
no slaves were actually on board the ‘Ninfa Habanera” when detained by His Majesty’s. Ship
«« Brazen,” and as no satisiactory evidence was given of the means by which the 23) slaves shipped
at Popoe were obtained by theCaptors, the Court could not decree their Emancipation; at the same
time expressing its opiuion, that most of the slaves brought to this Colony, in the said Brigantine
«* Ninfa Habanera,” did compose the Cargo belonging to that Vessel.

(Signed) GEO, RENDALL

 

No. 29.

His Majestys Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(ReceivedJune2.)

Sir, _ Sterra Leone, March 25, 1826.

HEREWITH we have the honour to transmit to you, a Report of the
Case of the Spanish Schooner “ Zberia,” detained by His Majesty’s Ship
“ Brazen,” Captain G. W. Willes,-on the 27th December 1825, for being
engaged in illicitly Trading in Slaves.

_ The Adjudication of the “ Iberia,” took place on the 21st instant, and as
the Trafliek in Slaves is by Treaty entirely prohibited to the Subjects of His
Catholick Majesty, and this Vessel having been actually found with 422 slaves
on board at the time of capture, no difficulty could arise regarding the
decision, and Sentence of Condemnation was, therefore, pronounced against
her. | We have the honour to be, &c.

. (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning, GEO. RENDALL.

&e. =&e. ge.

Enclosure in No. 29.

Report of the Case of the Spanish Schooner “TUberia”, Andres Insua,
Master. ,

THIS Vessel was captured by His Majesty's Ship ‘* Brazen,” Captain G. W. Willes, on the
27th day of December 1825, in Latitude 4. 23. North, and Longitude 3. 43, West, having, as he

states in his Declaration, 324 slaves on board, She arrived in this Harbour the 22d January
1826, and was immediately visited by the Surgeon of the Court, who recommended, that as the
slaves on board were in a very crowded state, and many. suffering from dysentery, as well as
15 cases of small-pox, and also many emaciated and debilitated, that those in a healthy state
should be allowed to be landed instantly, and those suffering from small-pox, dysentery, &e.
be kept on board, and the Vessel placed in quarantine, till such tine as the infection ceased, A
Petition was immediately made to the Court to land the healthy slaves, which was granted, and
the Vessel placed in quarantine for some days, owing to which the Papers in this Case were not
filed until the 28th January ; which having been done, a Monition was prayed for and granted on
the 31st, citing the Parties interested in the Case, to appear and shew cause why she should not‘be
condemned as lawiul Prize. mo,
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This Vessel, by the Papers found on hoard, of which there were only four, viz. Passport, List of
Crew, Countersign, ‘and Bill of Sale, declare her to have cleared out from Havannah on the
16th July 182, for the Island of Princes on the Coast of Africa, for legitimate Commerce, and
uot to trade for slaves ; and yet, on the 6th of October following, she is boarded by the Boats of
Ilis Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone,” while lying at anchor at Lagos, as appears by the endorsement
of the Boarding Officer on the back of her Papers. It is necessary to remark that, as no
Log, or aay other Papers or Writings than those above stated, were found on board of her, there
canbe no doubt but that they were destroyed. during the chase of the said Vessel, which oceup ed
40 hours, yet the Master declares, in his Examination, that no Papers, Letters, Writings or other
Documenss, which were on board the Vessel, when she took her departure from the last clearing

Port, and before capture, were burnt, torn, thrown overboard, destroyed, cancelled or concealed.
He further declares, that the present voyage began at the Havannah, and when his Cargo was
completed, it was to have ended there.—Havannah wag the last clearing Post previous to
capture. The Schooner anchored at Accra and Lagos; during the voyage in which she was
taken ; she anchored at Accra to purchase provisions, and at Lagos to trade, half of the
Cargo having been damaged from the length of time it had been on board; he was obliged
to purchase slaves, as he could not wait avy longer to get palm-oil and ivory, and those slaves
he took on board to sell along the Coast from Lagos to Accra, (he would have passed them
up by land, but a war between the King of Lagos and the King of Badaggery prevented his
doing so), and with the proceeds of thei he intended to purchase palm-oil, ivory, and other pro-
duce; he fucther declares, that 422 slaves were taken on boar« altogether, from. the time the

trading for them commenced to the completing of the Cargo, and that he is the sole Owner of
them, and of the Vessel, which last fact is corroborated by the Bill of Sale found on board, and

the former by Pedro Salvo, Carpenter of the suid Schooner, who, in every other material point,
corroborates the Master’s Declaration,

This Case presented no difficulty, the Treaty being plain and explicit, the Slave-trade to Spanish
Vessels being totally prohibited.—The Court did not hesitate in pronouncing the condemnation of
the said Schooner, and that 422 slaves were on board at the time of capture, 417 of whom were
decreed to be Emancipated, 5 having died before Adjudication.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
Sierra Leone, March 25, 1826. GEO. RENDALL.

 

No. 30.

D. M. Hamilton, Es7. to Joseph Planta Jun. Esq.—-(Received October 16.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, August, 15, 1826.
. _IN pursuance of the 75th Clause of the Act, passed in the 5th Year
-of the Reign ot His present Majesty, intituled An Act to amend and conso-
lidate the Laws relating to the Abolition of the Slave-trade ;” and, in
obedience to the Instructions received from Mr. Secretary Canning relative
to the same, I beg leave to enclose, in duplicate, a List or Return of all
Spanish Vessels which have been Adjudicated in the British and Spanish
Court of Mixed Commission established at this Place, from the 1st day
of January to the 30th day of June 1826, both days inclusive.

I have the honour to be, &e. .
J. Planta, Jun. Esq. (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.

&c. &e. §e.
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No, 31.

D. Ma. Hamilton, Esq.to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received October 17.)

(Extract.) , Sierra Leone, Mdugust 7, 1826.

MR. WILLIAMS being yet very ill, it therefore becomes my duty to
enclose, for your information, the Report of the Case of the Spanish Schooner
«© Nicanor,” whereof Jozé Le Grand was Master, captured by a Boat of His
Majesty’s Ship “‘ Maidstone,” on the 20th day of May last, off Whydah,
having onboard 174 slaves, one of whom jumped overboard and was drowned
rior to her arrival in this Harbour. She was bound, at the time of capture,

trom Little Popoe to the Havannah. The proof of illicit Slave-trade being
very clear and unequivocal, the Court pronounced Sentence of Condemnation
of the Vessel, and Emancipation of the Slaves on the 1st of July last.
Mr. Williams and myself think it our duty in this Case to call your at-

tention to the fact of the capture having been made by a Schooner acting as
a Tender to His Majesty’s Ship ‘ Maidstone ;” and we beg your Instructions
for our guidance in similar Cases.

The Right Hon. Geers Canning, (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.
&e &e. Ce

 

Enclosure in No. 31.

Report of the Case of the Spanish Schooner called the “ Nicanor,” whereof
Jozé Le Grand was Master,

THIS Vessel, with 173 slaves, all in good health, arrived in this Harbour on the 12th of June

Jast. On the day following, the Papers, with the Affidavit of Mr, Samuel Richardson, Admiralty-
Mate of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone,’’ commanded by Commodore Bullen, were brought into
Court, together with the Declaration of Lieutenaut William Tucker, of that Ship, in which he
certifies that ‘* being in the command of a Boat belonging to the said Ship, detsched to cruise
for the prevention of the illicit Traffick in Slaves, on the 20th day of May 1826, being off Whydah,
he detained the Schoouer named the ‘* Nicanor,” sailing under Spanish Colours, armed with |

~gun (12-pounder,) commanded by Jozé Le Grand, who declared her to be bound from Little
~'Popoe to the Havannah, with a Crew consisting of 19 men and J} boy, and having on board 174
slaves, all healthy; viz 58 men, 57 women, 36 boys, 22 girls and | infant’ He further cer-
tiffes, ‘ that the said Schooner appeared to be sea-worthy, and was supplied with a sufficient stock
cof water and provisions for the support of the said Negroes and Ciew on their destined voyage to
the Havannah.’ And he certifies ‘* the same to be given under bis hand on board the Boat of
His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone,” the 20th day of May 1826.” Mr. Richardson, the Admiralty-
Mate, in his Affidavit aforesaid, maketh oath, “ That on the 20th day of the month of May last,
being off Whydah, in @ Boat of His Majesty’s Ship “ Maidstone,” they seized and detained the

Ship or Vesssl called the ‘ Nicanor,” whereof Jozé Le Grand was Master, by reason that the
said Schooner was employed in the illicit Traffick in Slaves contrary to the existing Treaties

entered into with His Britannick Majesty and His Catholick Majesty The King of Spain,

By the ‘* Nicanor’s Papers, consisting of a Spanish Royal Passport (by which it appears she
cleared out for legitimate ‘Traffick only, at the Islands of Princes and St. Thomas on the Coast of
Africa,) a Mediterranean Pass, Role d’ Equipage and arother Document; it appears trom the
endorsements on them that prior to ber capture on the 20th of May, she was visited by His

Majesty’s Ship ‘* Brazen,” Captain Willes. off Cape St. Paul, on the i8th of April last, and
‘again by the same Ship, off Ningo, on the 26th of the same Month.

On the 20th of June, the usual Monition was prayed for and granted, calling uponall Persons
having, or pretending to have, any right, tide, or interest in the said Schooner and Slaves, to

appear and make claim, &c. which was afterwards returned certified to have been duly served, and

on the 22d day of the same Mouth, alter the examination of the aforesaid Jozé Le Grand had
been taken on the General Interrogatories, an Order of Court was made on the Petition of the
Captors, stating their apprehension of the slaves becoming sickly, by reason of the badness of the
weather, and the smallness of the Vessel for the landing of them, 173 in number,— | having
jemped overboard, and baving been thereby drowned, on her passage to this Place since the cap-~
ture. The Depositions of the Master and Cock, both clearly and uncquivecally es ablishing the
fact of illicit Slave-trading, the Court, ou the Ist of July, pronounced Condemnation of the Vessel
and Emancipation of the Slaves ’

Prior to the Judgment being given in this Case, the Commissioners, on enquiriug of Mr, Ri-
chardson, the Admiralty-Mate of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone,” ascertained that the Boat of.
the ‘« Maidstone,” said to have made this capture, was oue of ihe Boats of that Ship attached to

w decked Vesse!, a Schooner, called the ‘‘ Hope,” and a Tender to the ** Maidstone” Frigate,
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and which Mr, Richardson believes to be the properly of Commodore Bullen; her Crew consists
entirely of Persons belonging to His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone,” and she has been eruizing
alone after Slave-vessels, She chased the ** Nicanor” several hours prior to her being boarded by
the “« Maidstone’s * Boat. . She is commanded by Lient. Tucker, and parted company with the
“ Maidstone” off the Island of St. Thomas in the ‘beginning of May last.

(Signed) D. M. HAMILTON,

 

No. 32.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty’s Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, November 29, 1826.

I HAVE received your Despatch of this Series, marked Spain, of the 7th
of August last, in which you call my attention to the Case of the “ Micanor,”
captured and condemned for illegal Slave-trade.
The peculiarity of this Case was, that the Slave-trader was captured by a

Vessel acting under the command of Lieut. Tucker, as a Tender to His Ma-
jesty’s Ship “ Maidstone.”

‘On this point I have. to acquaint you, that, by a Communication from the
Admiralty, it appears that it would be contrary to all the Regulations of His.

- Majesty’s Naval Service, to consider the Tenders as in any way distinct from
the Ships to which they belong; and I have further to state to you, that it is
the opinion of His Majesty’s Law Officer that you have acted properly in the
Case referred to, and that you should continue to act on the same principle in
future Cases.

I have also to acquaint you, that, for the more fully carrying of this. princi-
ple into effect, the Lords of the Admiralty have given orders, that the re-
spective Officers commanding the Tenders in question should each be fur-_
nished with the signed Instructions required by the Treaties for the repres-~
sion of the Slave-trade, Iam, &e.
His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.
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No. 33.

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning—(ReceivedJune 2, 1826.)

Sir, ‘ Sierra Leone, November 21, 1825.

-] HAVE the honour to enclose, for your information, the Report of the

Case of the Brazilian Sumacca ** Bom Jesus dos Navigantes,” whereot Joad

Pereiro was Master, captured on the 17th of July last, by His Majesty’s Ship
“Esk,” W. J. Purchas, Esq. Commander, with 280 Slaves (being 73 more
than allowed by Passport) on board.
The British and Portuguese Commissary Judges agreeing perfectly in

opinion, that this Vessel had taken on board the Slaves to the Northward of
the Line, passed Sentence of Condemnation, and decreed the Emancipation.
of the Slaves, on the 14th of September last.

I have the honour to be, &e.
The Right Hon. George Canning (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

&e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in’ No 33.

Reportof the Case of the Brazilian Sumacca “ Bom Jesus dos Navigantes”,
, Joao Pereiro, Master.

THIS Vessel arrived in the Port of Freetown on the [3th of August 1825, with 267 slaves on

board, consisting of 106 men, 73 women, 40 boys, 27 girls, and 7 infants.

On the same day the Papers, duly authenticated, with the Declaration of the Captor, Captain

Purchas, of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Esk”, were brought into Court, and proceedings commenced
by the issue of a Monition, calling upon ail Persons having any right, or pretended right, to the
Vesse} and Cargo, to appear and make claim, which was afterwards returned certified as daly served,

Tt is stated in the Royal Passport given at Bahia, the 2tst day of January 1825, that this
Vessel is 824 tons, and carrying 22 men; that Antonio. Narciso is the Owner; that she was
bound to the Ports of Molembo, with the intention to call at Costa da Mina, and back to any
Ports in the Brazilian Empire; and that any number of slaves not exceeding 206 are permitted
at one time to be on board of her. .

Captain Purchas's Declaration states, that he detained the ** Bom Jesus dus Navigantes’’ on

the 17th day of July last, in or about Latitude 4, 0. North, and Longitude 4, 4. East; that she
.. was sailing under Brazilian or Insurgent Portuguese Colours, with a Crew of 20 men and boys,

1 ‘supercargo and 7 passengers, and having’ on board 289 slaves (being 73 more than allowed by
Passport) ; that these slaves consisted of 114 men, 80 women, 54 boys, 30 girls, and 7 infants,

Joao Pereiro, the Master, in answer to the standing Interrogatovies, deposed, that he took on
board the whole of the present cargo of slaves at Molembo; that he touched at Piccaniuny,
Elmina, Popoe, and Lagos, tor the purpose of purchasing provisions and a canoe; that he does
not uaderstand navigation. In answer to special] Interrogatories, he states, that Molembo and Onim
are different places; thinks Molembo is close to Benin; does not know the Latitude North or
South, or Longitude, where he took the slaves on board; slaves had been embarked 15 days when
the Vessel was captured; had been three days from Onim when captured; a Spanish Schooner

took all his corn and beans, which obliged him to go to Ouim, having no money at any other
Port; left his outward Cargo there; Spaniard boarded: them close to the land, when ie was
going to Molembo from Onim, but did not know the Latitude or Longitude; did not know the
day he arrived at or sailed from Molembo; left Onim for Molembo on tie 23th of May; was 8
days on the passage; uever purchased a slave at Onim, or in the Bight of Benin.

Gregorio Narciso, Cooper on board this Vessel, in answer to the standing Interrogatories

stated, that the Vessel went direct trom Bahia to Molembo, and touched at no other Port; that
the Slaves and the Canoe were purchased there. To the special Interrogatories, —Molembo and

Onuim are different places; does not know if Molembo is in the Bight of Benin, or the: Latitude
- North or South where the slaves were taken on board, or how many days the slaves had been
‘embarked, or bad been at Sea previous to capture; conld not tell why they were so ‘far to
the Northward ; stated that a Spanish Vessel took from them a part of their beans, corn, and
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farinha; went straight to Molembo, did not purchase provisions there, but after leaving Mo-
lembo they came close to the Bight of Benin to purchase beans, &c. there being none at Molembo.

Louis Ferrara, a seaman belonging to this Vessel, in his examination, stated, that the Vessel
touched at Elmina for water, at Popoe for wood, at Onim to land the whole of the tobacco, and at
Molembo to deliver the remainder of the cargo; that the whole of the slaves were taken on board at
Molembo.
An Affidavit of 3 of the slaves, found on board of this Vessel, was produced on the part of the

Captors, (the men having been sworn before the Registrar, aceording to the cnstom of their Coun-
try, to speak the fruth,) state, that they were all sold at a Place called. Aco to the Master of the
«* Bom Jesus dos Navigantes’? ; that Aeo is a Town in, the middle of a large Lake, fresh in the
rainy season, and salt in the dry season; that they were first put into Coromantin or Fantee
Canoes, manned by Fantee men, then into a Sloop Boat, which carried them across the har,
where the surf was great and the water broke very heavy, to the ‘* Bom Jesus dos Navigantes”;
that they never saw land from the time the Vessel sailed until after she was captured, atid that
‘they were only 5 days on board before the capture took place.

" Six more of the slaves were examined upon special Interrogatories pat by order oftheCourt ;
they all state that they were embarked at a Place called Aco, and that they were only 5 days on
board previous to the capture of the Vessel.
The Court having duly considered the fact of this Vessel being found so far to the Northward

of the Equator, the prevaricating testimony of the Master and two other Witnesses, with the pre-
fence of not knowing the Latitude of Molembo from whence the slaves were taken on board, the
proof afforded by the Log-books, and the concurring testimony of the slaves, did not hesitate to
pass Sentence of Condemnation of the Vessel, and decree the Emancipation of the Slaves, on the
14th of September 1825.| (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

 

No.- s4.

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(ReceivedJune 2, 1826.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, November 21, 1825.
I HAVE the honour to enclose, for your. information, the Report of the

Case of the Brazilian Sehooner ‘ Uniao,”-Jozé Ramos Gomis, Master, sent
into this Harbour for adjudication on the 21st of October last, having been
detained on the 9th of theprevious Month by His Majesty’s Ship “ Atholl,”
commanded by Captain James Arthur Murray, (His Majesty’s Ships “Esk”
and “ Redwing” in company), having‘on.board 361 slaves, all of which were
stated by the Master and Mate to have been taken on board from the River
Lagos, 112 ot which’ died on their passage up tu this Place.
Theproof of illicit Slave-trade being’so clear, (Lagos lying in about Lati-

tude 6..10, North), the Court passed Sentence of Condemnation on the Vessel,
and decreed the Emancipation of the surviving Slaves,.on the 4th of November
1825, I have the honour to be, &c,
Lhe Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

&c. &e. &e.

‘Enclosure in No. 34.

Report of the Case of the Braz‘tian Schooner “ Uniao,” Joxé Ramos Gomis,
Master.

THISVessel arrived in the Harbour of Freetown on the 2|st ot October 1825, with 249 Slaves
on board, consisting of 138 men, 25 women, 53 boys, and 33 girls; 112 having diéd since eap-
ture onthe passage up to this Port; as stated in the Affidavit of Mr. Rowe, Prize-Master; who
deposes that they died principally from small-pox aad dyseutery; that nd Surgeon was on board,
but that the greatest care was taken of them. Mr; Shower, the Surgeon attached to the Mixed
Commissions, visited the Vessel immediately on her arrival, and reparted 11 cases of sinall-pox,
and several of dysentery, then remaining. It was deemed expedient to place the. Vesselunder
Quarantine Regulations, and precautionary measures were taken in the landing of the slaves, by
which all contagion was happily avoided, On the same day the Ship's Papers were brought into
€oart.duly authenticated, with the Declaration of Captain JA. Murray, of His-Majesty’s *-Atbol,”
A. Monition was ixsued on the 22dof October, calling upon all Persons having, or pretending. to
have, any right or interest in the ‘* Uniao” and slaves, to appear and make’ claim, which -was re-
tarned on the 31st of October, certified as having been duly served.- an
_ By the Royal Passport, No. 16, dated at Bualiia, the 4th of July -1825, it- appears - that the
** Uniao” is of the burthen of 118 tons, and theretore authorized to carry any nutmber-of slaves
hot exceeding ‘295 at one time; that VincentedePaulo‘e:Silva was the Owner, and that she was
bound to the Ports of Mulembo, from whenceshe was to return to any ofthe Ports oftheEmpire,
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Captain Murray’s Declaration states, that, on the 9th of September 1825, being in or abont
Latitude 2. 33. North, Longitude 4. 17. East, he detained (His Majesty’s Ships ‘* Esk” and
“* Redwing” in company) the Schooner ‘* Uniao," sailing under Brazilian Colours, armed with
2 guns, six-pounders, commanded by Joseph Gomez, who declared her to be bound from Lagos

to Bahia, with a Crew consisting of 24 men and | boy, having on board 361 slaves, said to have
been taken on board at Lagos on the Istof September, viz: 217 men, 30 women, 80 boys, and 33

girls.
The Master, Joze Ramos Gomis, deposeth, that 364 slaves were taken on board the ‘ Uniao”

during the voyage, all of whom were shipped at the River Lagos. The Vessel was captured near
Princes Island. The Mate, Jozé da Rosa, in his Deposition, gives the same evidence. The Case
of illicit Slave-traffick being thus clearly proved, (the River Lagos being in about Latitude 6. 10.
North), the Court passed Sentence of Condemnation on the Vessel, and decreed the Emancipation
of the Slaves, upon the 4th day of November 1823. (Signed) GEV. RENDALL.

 

No. 35.

George Rendall, Esz.to Mr. Seeretary Canning.—{Received June 2.)

Srr, Sierra Leone, January 10, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to ericlose, for your information, a Report of the
Case of the Brizilian Brig “‘ Pagueta de Bahia,” Bento Francisco de Carvalho,
Master, detained by His Majesty’s Brig *‘ Swinger,” J. C. Giles, Acting
Lieutenant, Commander, off Accra, on the 22d of November 1825, with
386 Slaves on board, all of whom, the Master stated, were shipped at
Whydah. The Court passed Sentence of Condemnation of the Vessel, on
the 10th of January 1826, and decreed the Emancipation of the Slaves.

I have the honour to be, &c.
The Right Hen. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

&e. &e. &ec.

 

Enclosure in No. 35.

Report of the Case of the Brazilian Brig, “ Paqueta de Bahia,” Bento
Francisco de Carvatho, Master.

THISVessel arrived in Sierra Leone Harbour, on the 23d of December 1825> with 385
slaves on board, consisting of 145 men, 97 women, 79 boys, and 64 girls.

On the same day Mr. Burnett, the Prize Master, brought into the Registry the Declaration of
the Ceptors, and deposed that he boarded the Brig ‘* Paqueta de Bahia,” but found no Papers,
the same having been taken by the Spanish Schooner ‘‘ Matilda,” John Segrera, Master, as ap-
pears by a Certificate, signed by the Master and Mate of the said Brig, and annexed to Mr. Bur-
nett’s Deposition.
The Declaration of the Captor states, that His Majesty’s Brig ** Swinger,” J.C. Giles,

Acting Lieut. Commander, detained the Brazilian Brig ‘‘ Paqueta de Bahia,” on the 22d of No-
vember 1825, in Latitude 5. 15. North, and Longitude 0. 30. East, commanded by Bento Fran-
cisco de Carvalho, with 386 slaves on board, shipped at Whydah.

‘The Master, my answer to the standing Interrogatories, deposed, that Manoel Joaquim de
Almeida, the Supercargo, gave him the command of the Vessel at Molembo, about 8 months ago.
She sailed under Brazilian Colours; the name of the Vessel is the ‘* Paqueta de Bahia,” is
about 200 tons burthen, the preseut voyage began at Bahia, and was to have ended there, it
was the last clearing Port sailed from ; the Vessel anchored at Lagos and Molembo daring the
voyage, in which she was taken, and took on board at Molembo 388 slaves, of which he was
plundered by the Spanish Schooner ‘* Matilda,” as also of his Ship’s Papers, on his way from
Molembo to Babia. He then went to Whydah, where he took on board the present Cargo; that Joao
Victa Moreira and Manvel Jozé de Maghalaens, were the Owners of the said Vessel; Francisco
Felis de Sousa is the Lader of the slaves on board, Joao Victa Moreira Manoel Jozéde Maghalaens
himself, the first Pilot, and some of the Passengers are the Owners and Consignees of them;
says 387 slaves were taken on board, all of them at Whydah, | died previous to capture,

and Il since; he ordered the remaining Sbip’s Papers to be thrown overboard, when the
Man-of-War's Boats were about to board the Vessel. , ;

Braz Riberio de Moreira, the Doctor belonging to this Vessel, in his Answers to the standing
Interrogatories, confirmed the material points of the Master’s evidence,
The case of illicit ‘fraffick being thus clearly proved, and no Claim having been made, the Court

passed Sentence of Condemnation of the Vessel, and decreed the Eniancipation of the Slaves, on
the 10th of January 1826,

(Figned) GEO, RENDALL.
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No. 36.

Els Majesty's Commussioners to Mr. Secretary Canning—
(Recewed June 2.)

(Extract.) Sierra Leone, March 21, 1826.

WE. have been honoured with your Despatch of the 5th December last,
with Copy of a Note from the Marquis Palmella, announcing that His
Most Faithful Majesty had judged it proper to remove M. Altavilla from
the Office of Commissary Judge in the Mixed Court of Commission esta-
blished at this Place.
The Letter addressed to M. Altavilla by M. de Palmella, and which ac-

companied the said Despatch, was delivered into the hands of M. Altavilla on
the 10th of February, the day on which it was received.
We have been careful, Sir, in adopting such measures, conformably to

the Stipulations of the Convention, so that the Service, with which the
Commission is entrusted, will not suffer from the recall of M. Altavilla,

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning, GEO. RENDALL-

&c. &e. &e.

 

No. 37.

His Majesty’s Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning—
(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, March 21, 1826.

WE have the honour to acknowledge the receipt, on the 15th of last Month,

of your Despatch of the 12th of January last, with its several Enclosures,

aransinitted for our information and guidance, being Copies of a Corres-
pondence which has recently passed, upon the subject of a practice which has
prevailed on the part of the Authorities in Brazil, to grant permission to

Slave-vessels to touch at other Ports and Places than those which, by Treaty,
they are allowed to enter. .

These Documents are very gratifying to us, as they tend to lighten ina

considerable degree the difficulties that we might feel in the Adjudication of

Vessels detained for trafficking in slaves, and sailing under the Brazilian
Flag.

Tn a Case which is not yet decided, but which is now occupying the atten-

tion of the Court, and on which we shall bave the honour to report to you in

a few days, one of the grounds on which the Claimant founds his claim, is

the circumstance of the Brazils having been recognized as an Independent

State, or Kingdom, by Portugal. oo,

We hope soon to have the satisfaction to learn that the Lords Commis-
sioners of the Admiralty, will have issued Instructions to the Officers of His

Majesty's squadron on this Coast, in.accordance with the application from
your Department, because we are convinced their tendency will be most ma-
terially to cripple the facilities of the Parties interested in the furtherance of
this most abominable Tratfick.

We have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) JNO. TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning, GEO. RENDALL.

&e. | &e. &e.
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No. 38.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Seeretary Canning.—
(Received Sune 2.)

Srr, Serra Leone, March 21, 1826.

WE have had the honour to receive your Despatch of the 13th January, with
its Enclosures, being Copies of a Correspondence which has passed between

yourself and His Majesty's Consul at Bahia, on the subject of Charters which

had been offered to English Vessels, to proceed from that Port to Places in

Africa, North of the Line. We return thanks to you, Sir, for this com-

munication. _ ,
As the name ot the Brig, “ George and James,” appears in Mr. Consul

Pennell’s Despatch of the 5th of November 1825, it may not .be considered
irrelevant to make a few observations regarding this Vessel, inasmuch as they

will tend to shew how just is the view which was taken as to the object of the
Parties who employed her.
A Person of the name of Dollond, came out to the Coast of Atrica as

Master of the “ George and James,” then the property, or said to be so, of
Matthew Foster and Co. of London; he proceeded to Whydah, and there sold
the Vessel toa Mr. Ramsay, who was his first Mate. Ramsay takes her to
the Brazils, ships the Cargo stated in Mr. Consul Pennell’s Letter, and pro-
ceeds back again to Whydah, where a considerable portion of such Cargo was

distributed to several Vessels, which were, on that part of the Coast, trading
for Slaves.

It is supposed that De Souza, the notorious Portuguese Slave-trader, who for
so many Years has resided at Whydah and its vicinity, was the real Owner};

that he furnished Ramsay with the dollars with which the Vessel was pur-

chased, and that in reality, he (Ramsay) was only the nominal Owner, placed
in command of her by De Souza, to protect his property by givingafalse
colour to the transaction. Ramsay died shortly after the return from Brazil.
The Vessel was taken by His Majesty’s Ship ‘ Atholl,” at, or off, Whydah,

brought to Sierra Leone, tried under the Consolidated Stave-trade Abolition
~ Act, in the Court of Vice-Admiralty, and condemned under the 4th Section
~ of the said Act, the 17th day of October 1825.

We have the honour to be, &e.
(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.

The Right Hon. George Canning, GEO. RENDALL.
&e. &e. &c.

 

No.39.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—
(Received June 2.)

(Extract.) Sierra Leone, March 25, 1826.

WE have the honour to send you, enclosed, a Report of the Case of the
Brazilian Brigantine, “‘ Sam Joao Segunda Rosalia,’ Amara Jose da Silva,

_ Master, captured by His Majesty’s Ship “ Atholl,” Captain James Arthur
‘Murray, on the 28th November 1828, in Latitude 3.31. North, Longitude
0. 54. Kast, baving on board 258 Slaves.

This Vessel arrived at Sierra Leone. the 9th February, and was tried and
‘ondemned in the British and Portuguese Court of Mixed Commission on
the 21st instant..

Captain Murray, in his Declaration, states, that the Master acknowledged
the Slaves.to have been shipped at Lagos. This Man, unfortunately, died pre-
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vious to the arrival of the Vessel here. The Examinations, however, of some
of the most intelligent of the Slaves, proved satisfactorily, that Lagos was the
Place from whence they were shipped. For more minute particulars we beg
to refer you to the Report.!
' Itis distressing to us to have again to observe, that a system of the
grossest perjury prevails toa great extent, in the evidence given by many of
the Parties concerned in slave transactions, who are examined on the standing
Interrogatories. We feel this to be a most serious evil, and should be most
desirous to check its progress, were we satisfied as to the extent of our power
todoso. (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

§e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 39.

Report of the Case of the Brazilian Brigantine, “Sam Joao Segunda
Rosalia,” Amara Jose da Silva, Master.

THIS Vessel was detained by His Majesty's Ship ‘ Atholl,” Captain James Arthur Murray,
onthe 28th day of November 1825, who, in his Declaration states, that, being in or about Lati-
tude 3.31, North, Longitude 0. 54, East, he detained the Brigantine «Sam Joao Segunda
Rosalia,” sailing under Brazilian Colours, commanded by Amara Jose da Silva, who declared Ler
to be bound from Lagos to Bahia, with a Crew consisting of 13 men, 3 boys and 3 passengers,
and having on board 260 slaves, said to have been taken on board at Lagos.

This Vessel arrived here on the 9th February, after an unusually protracted passage of 65 days, -
when scarcely a hope of her safety remained, and it was dreaded that she had shared the same fate

as the unfortunate ‘ Teresa.” During this time 72 of the miserable beings on board died, princi-
pally, as is stated in an Affidavit of Mr. Richard Musgrove, the Midshipman in charge, “ from
want of food, the said Vessel being only provisioned for 30 days, aud that, after the greater part of
the provisions were out, they were put on an allowance of 3 a pint of farina, and 3 of a pint of
water per day.” : / me
A Monition was prayed for and granted on the 9th February, and on the same day, a Petition

was made to the Court, to be allowed to land the slaves, in consequence of their being much
reduced by famine and sickness, which was immediately acceded to, the Court feeling most anxious
to relieve, as far as lay in its power, the wretched sufferers,—and most miserable indeed was the
spectacle that presented itself on their being landed. ;

It appears that this Vessel cleared ont from Bahia for Molembo on a trading voyage for Slaves,
and her Passport is dated the 6th of May 1825. In this Document it is stated, that *¢ the said
Amara Joseph da Silva, Master, and Emanuel Francisco Moreira, Ownet, of the said Vessel, are
under an cbligation to enter solely such Ports on the Coast of Africa, where the Slave-tradeis
permitted,”-—yet, on the 23d of July 1825,.she was boarded by the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship

© Atholl,” at Lagos, trading—and also by the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship ‘‘ Maidstone,” on the
6th of October 1825, at the same Place; as appears by the Indorsements of the Boarding Officers,
on the back of the said Passport. . j
No Log was found on board at the time of capture; but it appears hy the Declaration of the

Captor, that the Master, Da Silva, acknowledged the Vessel was bound from Lagos to Bahia. This |

person died on the passage to Sierra Leone, otherwise there is just ground tor believing, that more
articulars of the proceeding in this illicit voyage, would have beenelicited. ;

The first Pilot and Supercargo, Pradencio Vidal de Albuquerque Vianna, and Manoel Gonsalves
Coelho, Boatswain, being examined, on the usual Interrogatories declare, that the voyage com-
menced at Bahia for Molembo, and that the Brigantine went to Lagos to repair a leak she had
sprung, and during her stay there, some trade was carried on by exchanging tobacco for cloths,

for the Molembo Market; from which Place she went direct to Molembo, in South Latitude,
where the Cargo of Slaves on board was shipped from the Shore. Prudencio Vidal de Albugnerque
Vianna also declared, that after leaving Molembo, both the Master and himself were attacked with
fever, and were confined to their beds; the secondMate, (the above-named Manoel Gonsalves

Coelho), then took charge of the Vessel, and he knew nothingabout Navigation, The day before
the Vessel was taken, was the first day he had been able to go on deck—and then, for the first

time, he took an obvervation, and found the Vessel was in 3.North Latitude, having then been
out 14 days, without any other proof of such being the fact than their own unsupported declara-
tions. Under these circumstances, 6 of the most intelligent slaves taken on board were exantined,
and they all declared, they were shipped at ‘© Eco,” which is the Native name for Lagos ;—one,
more intelligent than the rest, named Dalla, declared, ‘that, the name of .the Place where he
was shipped on board the aforesaid Brigantine, ‘‘is Eco.’ Heo is 9days march from Benin ;
knows Badaggery, and it-is 5 days march from Eco; that Eco is between Badaggery and

Benin; saw the Ship by which the Brigantine was taken, on the 7th day after. leavingEco, and
they were captured on the 9th day.—The whole of the slayes on board the captured Brigantine,
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were taken on board at Eco, and they were all shipped in one day; he also states, he lived at
Eco (Lagos) 3 Years ; and has been at Badaggery, from ‘Eco,’ which he knows well."

Prudencio Vidal de Albuquerque Vianna, being again examined as to the, Latitude and Longi-
tude of Molembo, that he stated that the slaves were shipped on board at, declared it to be in5 30.

South and 13, East of the meridian of London, but contumaciously refused to point out the place
upon the Chart, That this individual mast grossly perjured himself js beyond doubt. ‘This prac-
tice, which is whuch to be regretted, seems too frequently to obtain..

After having fully considered this Case, and taking into view that part of the Treaty which
sates, that ‘the proot of the legality of the voyage shall rest with the Cluimants of Vessels, when
taken to the Northward of the Line; and no such proof being exhibited, the suspicions cireum-
stance of no Log being on board, tu account for the Vessel’s course ayd-proceedings, together with
the Declarations of the Slaves, which lett not a doubt as to the Place of shipment :
The Court condemned the said Brigantine as lawful Prize, and as taken in’such illicit Traffick

by His Majesty's Ship “Atholl,” Captain J, A, Murray, and pronoynced 258 slaves to have beeu
taken ou board at the time of capture, and emancipated the survivors, amounting in number to
186,--72 having died before adjudication,

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
Sierra Leone, March 25, 1826, GEO, RENDALL.

 

No. 40.

Eis Majesty's Commissioners to Afr. Secretary Canning .—
(Leceived September 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, June 10, 1826,

WE have the honour to enclose an Abstract of the Case of the Sloop
“* Esperanca” Joa Babtiste Lopes. This Vessel, the burthen of which is
only 40 tons, was furnished with an Imperial Passport, authorizing her to
roceed from. Pernambuco to Molembo, for a Cargo ot Slaves,
She was detained in the River Benin on the 4th of March, by His Ma-

jesty’s Ship “Esk,” Captain William Jardine Purchas, and sent here for
adjudication.
On the sth of June she was condemned in the British and Portueuese

Court of Mixed Commission :—for the particulars, we beg your reference to
the Report. We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning, D. M. HAMILTON,

&e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 40,

Report in the Cuse of the Sloop “ Esperanca,” Joao Babtiste Lopes, Master,
sailing under Brazilian Colours.

THIS Vessel was detained by His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Esk," William Jardine Purchas EsCommander, on the 4th of March last, in Latitude 5. 43. North, Longitude 5, 25,East an
arrived in this Harbour on the 3d of May. ;
On the following day (the 4th) the Papers in this Case were delivered into the Registry by the

Prize-Master, Mr. George Herbert, a Midshipman of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Esk,” who, in his
Affidavit, declares, that the said Papers were received by Captain Purchas from the frst Pilot ot
the ‘* Esperanga.” On the same day the Court was petitioned that a Monition might issue, thePrayer of whic was granted. | . ,
On the 8th, an Affidavit of Mr. Richard Boroagh Crawford, Admiralty Mate of the «« Esk,”was filed, accounting for the absence of the Master of the « Esperanca.” He deposed, thatbeinin a Boat of His Majesty’s said Ship, be boarded the said Sloop iu the River Benin, and found hee

ia charge of Jozé Carneiro dos Santos, first Pilot, who informed the Deponent that the MasterJoao Baptiste Lopes, was on shore at a Place called Gato, purchasing slaves, ,
The Captor, in his Declaration, sets forth, that he detained the Sloop « Esperanca,”’ underBrazilian Colours, on the 4th of March 1826, being then at anchor in the River Bein com.manded by Jozé Baptiste Lopes, but who was then absent from the said Sloop; that JozéCarneiro

dos Saatos, the Pilot, stated to him, the Declarer, that the intended destination of the ** Esp °
ranga’? was froin Benin to Pernambuco; and. turther declared, that 36 slaves were landed heen
the Sloop, when the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship hove.in sight. ‘The Declaration. also states,thet 4 slaves were intercepted in the attempt of the Sloop’s Boat to land them, and brought backio her,
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The Monition was returned into the Registry, certified.as having been duly served, on the 22d.
On the &th of June the Case was adjudicated.
The acknowledgment of Jozé Carneiro dos Santos, the Pilot, in his examinationof the illegal

pursuit in which this Vessel was employed, a similar statement made by the Cabin-boy, Manuel Joa-
quim de Brito; and the fact of her having been found actually engaged in the Traffick in Slaves on a
part of the Coast of Africa, where the Slave-trade is not permitted to the Subjects of Phe Emperor of
Brazil, being clear and manifest; the Commissioners, without hesitation, condemmed her as lawful
Prize to the respective Governments.

Sentence of Condemnation was accordingly passed against her, and the slaves, 4 in number,

 

were decreed to be emancipated, (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
Sierra Leone, June 10, 1826, D. M. HAMILTON.

No. 41.

this Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning—(Received Sept. 2.)

Sre, Sierra Leone, June 10, 1826.

WE have the honour to transmit with this Despatch, for your information,
a Report of our Decision in the Case of the Brazilian Brigantine “ Metuno,”
Jozé Claudio Gomes, Master.

This Vessel was detained in the River Benin, on the 4th of March, and her
condemnation was decreed, and her slaves emancipated, on the 8th instant.

In a late Despatch we acquainted you that the “ Netuno,” on her passage
to Sierra Leone, had fallen in with, and being obstructed, had engaged a Brig
under the Spanish Flag.

In conformity with the intention we then expressed, we made particular
enquiry into the circumstances of this affair; and, in order, Sir, to put you
in full possession of the tacts, we deem it the better method to enclose Copy
ofaMemorandum which was made, at our request, by Mr. Crawford, the
Prize Master, and which contains, in addition to the detail, a particular de-
scription of the Brig. .
We certainly think that this young Officer deserves much credit for his

cool and determined conduct on this occasion, particularly when the very.
small number of which his crew consisted, and the manner in which the
Schooner was armed, as contrasted with the Pirate, be considered.
The escape was most fortunate; for had they succeeded in the detention,

the consequence, in all probability, would have been most disastrous.
One shot from the Brig penetrated the hull of the ‘“‘ Netuno,” and killed

one unfortunate female slave in the hold.
We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning, D. M. HAMILTON.

Se. &e. &e.

First Enclosure in No. 41.

Report of the Case of the Brigantine “ Netuno,” Jozé Claudio Gomes,
Master, sailing under Brazilian Colours.

THIS Vessel arrived in the River Sierra Leone on the 5th of May, under charge ot Mr.
Richard Borough Crawford, Admiralty-Mate of His Majesty’s Ship ‘« Esk,” having on board,
according to the Marshal's Report, 84 slaves. On the following day (the 6th) the Papers were
filed in Court, and on the same day a Monition was prayed and granted,
The Declaration of William Jardine Purchas, Esq., Commander of His Majesty’s Ship-of-

War “ Esk,” sets forth, that, on the 4th day of March 1826, he detained, in the River Benin, the

Brigantine “‘ Netuno,”’ (being at anchor there under Brazilian Colours,) Jozé Claudio Gomes,
Master, who declared that the said Brigantine was bound from the River Benin to Pernambuco,

The Captor further declares, that when the said Vessel was boarded, 72 slaves were tound on
board of her; and be further states, that the Brigantine was supplied with provisions and water
for 50 days, for the Negroes and Crew for the intended voyage. .
The Declaration also states, that on the appearance of. the Boats of the ** Esk,’? a number of

slaves in Canoes and in Boats were landed from the ‘* Netuno,” that one of the Beats so em-
ployed was intercepted in attempting to land, and brought back to the Brigantine; the Boat
contained 20 Negroes, viz; 1 woman and 19 boys and girls,
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Tt is also set forth in the Declaration, that a statement was made to the Captorby the afore«
named Jozé Claudio Gomes, that the number of slaves on board the Brigantine, when the Boats
of the * Esk” hove in sight, amounted to 150—59 of whom they suceeded in landing.
On the 8th, an Affidavit of Mr. Richard Borongh Crawford, the Officer in charge, was made

and filed, setting forth that 7 of the slaves had died on the passage, and that | had been killed in
the hold of the said Vessel on the 20th of March, (being then in Latitude 0. 5. North, Longitude
1, 2. East) by a shot from a Vessel, which is designated in the Affidavit as a piratical Brig,
The Monition was returned as duly served on the 22d, and the 29th of May was appointed for

the Adjudication ofthe Case, but the indisposition of His Majesty's Commissioner caused it to be
delayed until the Sth of June, when it tookplace.

Jozé Claudio Gomes, Master of the Brigantine “ Netuno,” in his Examination upon the In-
terrogatories, deposed, that Francis Jacinto Pereira, a resident of Fernambuco, is the Owner ofthe © Netano,” that she was provided with an Imperial Passport to carry slaves to Molembo
(under the usual restrictions and conditions ;) that he proceeded from Pernambuco to the RiverBenin, which was the only Place where he anchored during the voyage in which he was taken.
Francisco Pereira, the Deponent himself, the Pilot and the Boatswain were the Owners of theslaves. Himself had. 10 slaves, the Pilot 3 and the Boatswain 2, They were all taken on boardfrom the Shore at Bohee, in the River Benin. 158 slaves were taken on. board from the com-mencement of trading until the appearance of the Boats of the capturing Ship. When they werefount to be approaching, the Natives of Bohee came of in their Canoes, aad took as many ofihe slaves out of the Brigantine as they could, bat he knew not how many.
The testimony of Francisco Antonio Gomes, Cabin Boy, and Pedro Jozé Gomes, Cook, con-firmed, in most particulars, the previous Statement.
The slaves on board the Brigantine ‘© Netyno,” being thus, acknowledged to have been shippediu the River Benin, to the Northward of the Equator, the fact of illicit Traffick was ma nifest.Sentence of Condemnation was accordingly passed against her, and her slaves ‘were decreed to‘be emancipated, His Majesty’s Commissioners decided the number taken to be 92,

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS,Sierra Leone, June 10, 1826, D. M. HAMILTON,

 

Second Enclosure in No. 41.

Brazilian Vessel « Netuno,” of 75 Tons.

(Memo.) Sierra Leone, May 11, 1826,
The ‘* Netuno ‘was detained by the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship * Esk,” in the River ForeWooa, on the dih. and sailed trom thence on the 6th of Mareh, in comp uy with the BrazilianSloop ‘* Esperanza,” captured at the s..me time,
Sloop parted company in the night, in consequence of her superiority in sailing.Contrary winds endeavouring to get to the westward till March 20, when at 3 p.m. in Latitude1, 30. North, and Longitude 1. 31, Last, by account, observed a Vessel in the S. E., stand-ing towards us under all sail ; 3. 50:, Stranger fired two guns, prize hoistet an English Ensign;4., B.ig, 8. E. 2 miles, thought she was a Man of War. At 4. 50., Stranger } mile, tacked,stood towards her an.! shortened sail; at 5, observed Stranger shorten sail, and that she was notan English Man.of War,
At 5.10, filled, and in hoisting fore-top-mast studding sail, Stranger fired at ns, then no Coloursflyng, but immediately after hoisted French Ensign aud Pendant, -beat retreat with drum, andlowered 5 ports a-side, hove to for her a second time; Stranger, when within 40 or 50 yards,hove to, (used a boitswain’s call,) hailed Prize in English, and lowered a boat.At 5, 20. p.m, boat came alongside with the Captain and 4 men, who asked whether we hadslaves? also -everal other questions ia Spanish and broken English. ‘The Captain could notspeak French, and on my remarking it to an English Interpreter, one of his Boat’s-crew, ‘at thesame time observing that Brig was‘ not a French Man-of-War, he replied that she was, butthat the Captain was a Spaniard ; and on my further interrogating him, the Captain, who had pre-Niously used threateniig langiiage, both Spanish and English, repeatedly ordered me into hisBoat with Papers, &e. &e. 1 as often pointing to the Ensign, told him, Vessel was prize to anEnglish Man-ot-War, that I hadno Papers for him, neither would | go into his Boat, adcingagain that she was no: a French Mas:-of-War, and that he himself was a Spaniard. He, inamenacing manuér and tone, said, I ami a Spaniar! from the Havannah, Brig’ «°C. rolina 2” into‘the Boat inmediacely ; prusto, prunto, &e. &c., and concluded by ordering me ¢: be -ilent, and‘his men to board; [dared them at their peril, tod them to remain, and that the Papsrs should: béproduces. Now seeing the necessity of acting promptly, knowing with whom I had tu deal, andTesolving not tamely to give up my charge, I brought a brace o- pistols, the ouls smali arms inPrize, and supplied by the «Esk, and three distinct times asked tie Captain and Interpreter‘whether he stiil remained. etermined to have me in his Boat.with my Papers, &c., andfindinghim increase in‘abuse aud threatening language, I shot the Captain ani Bowman, and made thethe rem .inder-ofBoat’s-crew jump overboard; holding by the gunwale they repain-d theiy Boat,and pulled to their Vessel,

.the Pirate commenced firing 5 guns in the broadside, round and grape, returned by the Prizewithii from 30 te 5 yards; with one six-pounder carronade, round. shot and: cannister, from5. 30. till 7, 15 p.w., when, observed, Pirate’s Crew leave their gtns.and retreat forward; firedamongst them, Pirate. ceased firing and hauled her wind; her gang-way ports in one, and partof forecastle bulwark knocked down 3 we had at this time only.4 cartridges left,
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The ‘ Netuno’s” Crew are 6 in number, sheis armed with 2 six-pound carroaades, | brace ef

ships’ pistols, and 6 slave cutlasses; ‘she has sustained considerable damage in sails and rigging,

main-gaf wounded, trysail gaff shot away; also tack of fore-topsail, one shot between wind

and water. _ .

The slaves, 92 in aumber, were below during the contest, and fortunately escaped with only

1 woman killed, and one girl wounded.

" The Pirate brig is pierced for 20, and mounts 10 guns, has a top gallant forecastle, is-painted

with 2 white streaks to a billet head; ports true ap, the inside of which are painted red, a large

boat on booms, covered with tarpauling awning, and, from the noise and confusion duing the

contest, must have had a cargo of slaves. :
(Signed) R, B. CRAWFORD, Prize Master..

Admiralty Mate, His Majesty’s Ship *¢ Esk.”

 

No. 42.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. SecretaryCanning—(Received Sept. 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, June 10, 1826.

WE have the honour to enclose the Report of the Case of the Brazilian
Brig “ Activo.”—This Vessel was seized by His Majesty’s Ship “ Atholl,”

Captain James A.-Murray, on the Ist of February last, in Latitude

4. 24. South of the Equator, and Longitude 9. 37. West of London, and

brought into this Port for Adjudication on the 17th of the same Month,

with 164 slaves on board. Condemnation of the Vessel and Emancipation. of

the Slaves was prayed in the British and Portuguese Court of Mixed Com-

mission, on the plea of her having carried on an illicit Traffick in Slaves
to the North of the Equator, which plea was fully substantiated by proof,

but it was acknowledged by the Captors that she was seized to the South

of the Equator; and it appearing to us a Case exactly similar to that of
the “ Sinceridade,” the ‘principles of which have been so fully and ably

investigated and reported on by our Predecessors, and whose Decision in

that Case you were pleased to express your approbation of, we therefore

decreed the restoration of the Vessel and Slaves, and referred it to the

Registrar, to ascertain the amount of the costs, damages, and expences.

The Slaves in this Case quitted the Vessel a few days before the Adjudica-
tion took place ; it has been reported to us, that they revolted against. the Per-

sons who were on board, and forcibly seized the Boats, and came on Shore,
and they were taken possession of by Mr. Cole, the Collector of the Duties, on

the part of the Colonial Government. —

Mr. Lake, the Agent for the Captors, states, that. he applied to Mr.

Macaulay, the Acting Governor, on finding that the Coloniat Government

had taken possession of the Slaves, praying that they might be given

up to him; upon which Mr. Macaulay observed, that no Slaves could be
given up after being once landed in the Colony. It has, therefore, become a
question now, whether the Captor should be adjudged to pay the value of

‘those Slaves or not: the Proctor for the Claimant insists that the value

of the Slaves must be awarded, because it was through the Captors not

taking reasonable precaution that they mutinied and came on Shore. Mr.

Macaulay having left the Colony for the Gambia, almost immediately after
the revolt of these Slaves, we have had no communication with him

on the subject. We shall not fail, Sir, as soon as this Case is finally closed, to

make a further Report.on it.
We have the honour to be, &c. oo

- (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS,
The Right Hon. George Canning, D. M. HAMILTON.

&e. &c. &c.-
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Enclosure in No. 42.

Report of the Case of the “ Activo,” José Pinto de Araujo, Master.

THIS Vessel, under Brazilian Colours, being on her voyage to Pernambuco from Badagry in
the Bight of Benin, in Laritude 6, 20. North, and Longitude about.4, Hast, was captured on the
ist of February last, in Latitude 4. 24. South, and Longitude 9. 37. West, with 166 slaves
on board, by His Majesty's Ship © Atholl,” James A. Murray, Esq. Commander, and was sent
to this Place for Adjudication, where she arrived on the 17th day of February following, with 164
of those slaves ; to wit—!00 men, 20 women, 3i boys, and 13girls,all in-good health, except 7 of
them, who were suffering from wounds and diarrhoea ; the Master, 2 Cooks, and a Boy of her Crew,
were also sent in her. On the day following (the iSth)} the Ship’s Papers, an Affidavit of Lieatenant
Stephens, the Prize Master, and the Declaration of Captain James Murray, were brought into the
Court by Mr, Lake for Mr. Macaulay, the Agent and Proctor for the Captovs.
Among the Ship's Papers is a Royal Passport, (numbered 309) dated at Pernambuco, the 17th

of August 1825, granted to Jozé Carlos Marink da Silva Ferrao, President of the Province of
Pernambuce for His Imperial, Majesty.—It is stated in this Passport, ‘* that the Vessel called
“* Activo” is 149 tons burthen, aud carries 15 men; that Jozé Pinto de Araujo is the: Master, and
that Antonio de Oliveira, Jozé Antonio de Oliveira and Co. are the Owners; that they are Brazi-
lians, and Subjects of the Brazilian Empire; that she is bound for the Port of Molembo on the
Coast of Atrica, calling at Bahia and returning to Pernambuco; that the said Master and
Owners are under an obligation to enter solely such Ports on the Coast of Africa, where the
Slave-trade is permitted to the Subjects of Phe Emperor of Brazil.”"

Tn his Declaration, Captain Murray states, ‘* that, on this Ist day of February 1826, being ia
about Latitude 4, 24, South, and Longitude 9.37. West, he detained the Brig named the ‘* Activo,”
sailing under Brazilian Colours, commanded by Jozé Pinto, who declared her to be bound trom
Molembo to Pernambuco, with a Crew consisting of 17 men, 2 boys, and 1 Supercargo, and
having on board 166 slaves, said to be taken on board at Lagos, previous to the 9th of January
3826." The words underscored were apparently wriiten at another time, aod with diferent ink to
the other part of the Declaration He further states, ‘ that the said Vessel appeared to be
Sea-worthy, and was supplied with a sufficient stock of water and provisions for the support of
the said Negroes and Crew for their destined Voyage to Pernambuco ”

Hieuténant Stephens, in his Affidavit, deposes, ‘ that on the Ist day of February 1826, being
in Latitude 4, 24. South, and Longitude 9. 57. West, they seized and detained the Ship or Vessel
called the.‘‘ Activo,” whereof Jozé Pinto de Araujo was Master,” thereby corroborating on oath
the Declaration of Captain Murray, that the Vessel was seized to the South of the Kquator.

It was not till the 6th of Mareh following that Mr. Macaulay prayed the usual Monition,
which was decreed and issued on the 8th, two days afterwards; and, on’ the Ith ofMarch,
Antonio Jozé, the Cook, aud Marcellina d’Almeira, were brought in by the Captors, and
examined on the General Interrogatories, the Master being at that time too ill to attend to be
examined. Antonio Jozé, the Cook, swore positively to the slaves found on boardbeing purchased
and taken on board at Badagry, and although Marcelina d’Almeira did not positively depose the
same thing, yet the inference drawn trom his Examination Jeft no room to doubt but that
was the case; they both deposed to the ** Activo”’ being a Brazilian Vessel, and under Brazi-
Nian Colours,
On the 13tb of March a Claim was given in by Mr. Savage, the Pr. ccor of Jozé Pinto de

Araujo, the Master, for Francisco Antonio, an inhabitant and native of Pernambuco, for -the
said Brig, her tackle, apparel, furniture, goods, wares, merchandize, and 166 slaves, na-

' tives of Africa, and for the value of such slaves as had departed this life since the capture,
and for all costs, charges, |.usses, damages, demurrage, and expences’ that had arisen, or
should arise, by means of the capture and detention of the said Brig and her Cargo: and on
the same day, and at the same time, Mr, Savage brought into Court the Affidavit of ‘the saidJozé Pinto de Araujo, the Claimant, in which he deposes and saith, ‘* that he is a Subject ofHis Majesty The Emperor of Brazil, and was Master of the said Brig at the time of the capture
thereot.by His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Atholl,” James A. Marray, Commander; that the said Brig was
so captured on the Ist day of February last, in the proseeution of her ‘voyage from Moalembo
on the Coast of Africa, to Pernambuco in the Brazils, with a cargo consisting of 166 slaves
natives of Africa, and brought to Sierra’Leone ;"* and he further saith, “ that FranciscoAntonio,
of Pernambuco, a Subject of His Majesty The Emperor ot the Brazils was, at the time ofthe-said capture, and now is, the true, lawful, and sole Owner and Proprietor of ‘the. said? Brig** Activo,” her tackle, apparel, and furniture, and of the said cargo and slaves on board thesame ;"’ and he further. saith, “ that by the Certificate and Declaration of the Capturing
Ollicer, the said Brig was not found to the North of the Equator, nor had she been chased tromthe North betore being captured to the South ;” and be further saith, ‘* that the said Vessel and
Cargo are further protected, from the circunistance of the Kingdom ot the Brazils having been re.
cognized as. an Independent State or Kingdom by Portugal, through the mediation of Great
Britain, and therefore, that the Slave-voyage on which the said Vessel was bound, was not an in-tringement.ot the Law of the New Empire, nor against the Law of Nations °
On the same day the said Master, having recovered trom his indisposition, was brought in by

the Captors, and examin. d oa the General Interrogatories, He deposed, “* thar Franeiseo Antonio
de Oliveira, who lives at Pernambuco, was the sole Owner of the Brig at the time she was seized ;that 183 slaves were tahen on board, from the time the trading for them commenced to thetime of completing the cargo, and that they were all taken on board from the Shore at Molembo,
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in 5.30. South,and about 13°, Hast,"’ (and he pointed out on the Chart 5.30. South, and 11°. East,
as the place.)
On the 27th of March, 6 of the slaves were examined by order of the Court, whose testimony

clearly established the fact of their having been shipped on board at or near Badagry.
On the same day Mr. Savage brought iu the Certificate given by Captain. Murray, at the time

of capture, to Jozé Pinto de Araujo, which states, « that on the Ist day of February 1826, being
in about Latitude 4. 24 South, and Longitude 9. 57,West, he detained theBrig named the ‘ Ac-
tivo,” sailing ander Brazilian Colours, commanded by Jozé Pinto, who declared her to be bound
from Mo-embo to Pernambuco, with a Crew consisting of 17 men, 3 boys, and | Supercargo, and
having on board 166 slaves.” ‘

_ On the 12th of April the Court heard the Parties in this Case. Mr. Savage, for the Claimant;
cited the Case of the “ Sinceridade,” adjudicaced in this Court in the Year 1823, and argued that
the present Case was exactly similar in principle to that, anid therefore the Vessel and Slaves must
be restored as claimed, with costs and damages.

Mr, Lake, on the part of the Cap ors, stated nothing that had not before been strongly argued
in the Case of the “ Sinceridade,” reported in Class 8, of Papers presented to both Houses of

Parliament by Command of His Majesty, in 1824. He particularly insisted on the Treaty being
entered into for the purpose of preventing illicit Traffick in Slaves; that the trading in Slaves to
the North of the Equator was undoubtedly an illicit trading in slaves, which was clearly proved
to have been done in this Case; and that, therefore, by the spirit ot the Treaty, the Vessel oughe
‘to be condemned, and her Slaves emancipated,

On the 9th of May the Court proceeded to give Judgment, observing, that not the shadow of

a doubt existed but that this Vessel bad been engaged in an illicit Traffick in Slaves to the North
of che Equator, the proof of which fact was extremely clear,

Her two Log-books most distinetly shewed, by the courses and distances entered
she made the Coast of Africa in about 4, North Latitude.
An Endorsement of Captain Murray on the Royal Passport, uncontradietéd by the Claimant,

proved her to have been visited by that Officer in His Majesty's Ship’ Atholl” off Elmina, on the
11th of November 1825, aud to have been considerably out of the limits allowed by the Treaty,

and specified in the Royal Passport, where she had permission to carry on a Traffick in slaves.
The Depositions of the Cook, with those of the slaves, distinctly proved that the slaves were

shipped at Badagry, and the Deposition of Marcellina d’Almeira tended strongly to establish the
same fact. ‘Ine Master indeed uot only asserted, but most positively deposed on oath the con-
trary, but the Court was sorry to observe that no credit whatever could be given to his testimony.
His Proctor did not venture distinctly to aver that the slaves were shipped on board at the real
Molembo, which no doubt he would have done had there been any chance whatever of proving it.
‘The Court therefore felt no hesitation in pronuuncing that this Vessel had been engaged in the
illicit Traffick in slaves at Badagry, in 6. 20, North Latitude, contrary to the Convention between
Great Britain and Portugal, of the 2sth of July 1817, and that it would be the duty of the Com-
missioners to decree Condemnation of the Vessel and Emancipation of the Slaves; did not the
4th Article of the Instructions intervene, a Copy of which Instructions are furnished to every
British Ship of War employed to prevent the illicit Traffick in slaves, and form an integral part
of the said Convention. ‘his Article states, ‘* That no Portuguese Merchantman or Slave Ship
shall, on any pretence whatever, be detained, which shall be found near the Land or.ou the High
Seas, South of the Equator, unless aftera chase that shall have commenced North of the Equator,”
By the construction put by the Court on this Article in the Case of the ‘¢ Sinceridade,”’ the

right of visitation and search is limited on the partof the British to such Portuguese Vessels only
as shall be found to the North of the Equator, or to the South thereof, in the event of a chase
begun to the North. The fact that this Vessel was detained to the South of the Equator is ac-
knowledged by the Captors. It is distinctly alleged by Captain. Murray in his Declaration, and
Also in the Certificate he gave to the Master at the time of capture, and is as distinctly sworn to by
his Lieutenant; no mention by them is made of any chase began to the North af the Line,

The Claimant distinctly averred that the Vessel had not been chased from tbe North before
being captured to the South, which assertion was not attempted to be contradicted on the part
of the Captors, and must, therefore, be taken to be true.

‘The Commissioners expressed their opinion tirat this Case did not differ from that of the
«* Sinceridade,” the principles of which had been so fully and ably investigated by the late Mr.
Gregory and Mr, FitzGerald.
The Vessel and slaves were, therefore, decreed to be restored to the Claimant for the use of the

Owner and Proprietor thereof, with costs, damages, and expences, and referred it to the Regis~
irar, to ascertain the amount thereof, and report the same to the Commissioners. ‘

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS,
Sierra Leone, June 10, 1826. D. M. HAMILTON,
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No. 43.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Reesived October 7.)

(Extract.) Sierra Leone, July, 2,, 1826.

MR. WILLIAMS being too ill at présent to attend. to any. business, F beg

Teave. to enclose a Supplement of the Report of the Case of the Brazilian

Brig “ Aetivo,” Joze Pinto de Araujo, Master.
In the Letter of Mr. Williams and myself of the 10th ultimo, we had the

honour to state, that the slaves ou board this Vessel having revolted and

‘come on shore a few days before adjudication took place, were seized by the

Colonial Government, and that Mr. Macaulay, the Acting Governor, having

refused to give them up, it became a question whether the Captor should be

adjudged to pay the value of those slaves or not.

‘Upon mature consideration of all the circumstances of the Case, we came

to the conclusion, that the Claimant ought to be paid the value of his slaves,

unless his baving taken them on board to the North of the Equator should

be considered a bar thereto, and we therefore thought the giving him a

conditional Decree for their value, reserving the final decision of the Case

for the British and Brizilian ‘Governments, would be most equitable, and be

a means of again drawing the attention of those Governments to the incon-

gruity of the Convention in Cases similar to the present.

I beg leave to observe, that prior to our proceeding to Judgment in this

Case, we proposed to both Parties, for the purpose of securing the liberty of

the slaves, that they should enter into. an Agreement similar to the one

entered into by the Captor and Claimant inthe Case of the “ Singeridade ;”

but without effect.
I beg leave further to observe, in consequence of so very considerable a

‘time having intervened between the bringing the Case of this Vessel into

Court and the final decision of the same, that, with the exception of the

period from February 17th to March 6th last, while Mr. Rendall, the then

Acting Commissioner of Arbitration, and Mr. Macaulay, the Captor’s Agent,
were attending the late General Turner on the Sherbro’ Expedition, and of

the period from April the 23d to May the 9th, during which I was confined
to. my house with severe illness, every exertion was made by the Court to
bring the Case to a conclusion.

I conceive, Sir, I should be wanting in duty did [ not state for your in-
formation that this is the first Case that F am acquainted with of slaves re-
volting in this Harbour, that have been brought therein for adjudication,

‘either in the Courts of Mixed Commission or in the Court of Vice-Admiralty.

(Signed) D.M. HAMILTON.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

 §e. §e. &e:

 

Enclosure inNo. 43.

Supplemental Report of‘the Case of the Brig “ Activo,” Joze Pinto de
| Araujo, Master.

On the 26th day of May, the Registrar finished his Report on this Case (A.) in which he gave it
as his opinion that theClaimant was entitled to £55 for costs of suit; £256 2s, Sd. for special
datnages and expences; £9,983 Ibs. for the ‘otal loss of 166 slaves; and £150 for 5 » Cent. on

total of capital employed ; making altogether the sum of £11,098 17s. 8d.

On the 8th of Jane Mr Savage, the Claimant’s Proctor, prayed the Court to award to the
Claimant, the sums stated in the said Report to be due to him, for the unlawful seizure and deten-
‘tion of the said Vessel, and for the total loss ot 163 slaves.—Mr. Lake, the Proctor of Captain
Murray, the Captor, prayed the Court not to award the sum of £9,983 15s, for the loss of the
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slanes, inasmuch, as the said slaves. mutinied and: rose. upon. the Grew in charge of the said Brig
<* activo,” and forcibly made their way to the Share; and were afterwards takenchargeof by the
Collector of Duties by the order of the Acting Governor.—TheCourt directed that the circumstances,
of the escape of thesaidslaves. from the said Brig should be more particularly detailed and brought.
before it; before it proceeded to make its award on the Registrar's Report; in pursuanceof which.
the Parties bronght in and filed: various Papers relative to the aforesaid circumstances, and on. the

_ Ist day ofJuly tho said Papers were read in Court, to wit-—the Affidavit of Mr. Lake, the Capter’s
Proctor, (B), wherein, among other matters, he deposeth and saith, * that on or about the 4th
day of April last, Lieutenant Robert Lee Stephens, of His Majesty’s Ship “ Atholl,” and: Prize-
Master on board the Brig « Activo,” received a written order from Captain William Fitz William
Owen, of His Majesty’s Ship’ © Leven." to leave the said Brig ‘‘ Activo,” and. proceed on board
His Majesty's Ship Romney,” for a passage to England, at the same time taking the Prize
Crew:on board His Majesty’s Ship «‘Leven.””—That in consequence thereof this Deponent sent on
board the said Brig ““Activo,” 6 men to take charge of the Vessel and Slaves; that on the 29th
day of April last, this Deponent did consider, for the benefit of the Captors, to call upon the Proctor
for the Claimant to take charge of the said Brig and. Slaves, by forwarding to Claimant’s Prector
the following Letter te wit: —

Sr, {l) Water-Street, 29th April 1826.
ON behalf of the Captors of the Brig ** Activo,” Louis Pinto de Araujo, Master, I beg leave

to, deliver you up the said Brig and Slaves on board, and I-beg you will let me know as soon as
possible when you will take charge of ber and the slaves. An early answer willoblige,

Tremain &c.
(Signed) JOHN DEAN LAKE, tor Captors,

Wm. Henry Savage, Esq. Proctor for Claimants,

«* That thereupon and in answer thereto Deponent received from Claiarant’s Proctor the
c following Letter te wit :—-

Sir, (2.)° 29th April 1826,
IN reply to. yours of this date, notifying on. the part of the Captors, that. you beg leave to

deliver up the Portuguese Brig ‘< Activo,’’ and the slaves on board 3 I have to state that I shall
‘as early as possible. lay your Letter before the Judges of the Mixed Commission, but that until
that Court restores, in form,the said Vessel and Slaves, the Claimant cannot interfere with her or
consider himself responsible either for ber safety or the custody of the. slaves,

L am,. &e<
J. DoLake, Esq. Proctor for Captors. (Signed) W. H. SAVAGE.
© That on the same day Deponent forwarded to Claimant's Prector the following Letter, to wit :—

Siz, (3.) , Water-Street, 29th April 1826.
I BEG leave to. acquaint you, that on behalf of the Captors, I am willing to enter into the same

arrangement as regards ‘the slaves on. board the “' Activo,” as was done in the recent Case of. the
** Sinceridade,” J, G. da, Rocha, Master. Iremain, &e,
Wn.H.Savage, Esq. (Signed) JOHN DEAN’ LAKE,

‘* And.receixed in Answer the following Letter and Enclosure tawit ;—
Sir, (4,) 29th April: '826.

I ENCLOSE you a Copy of a Letter I have just received from His Honour the Acting
‘Governor.

And I beg to refer you to that part of the Regulations for the Mixed Commission, which directs
Is. to be paid for every day for each slave on board for the period Vesselis detained, and'to press
on you to victual the said slaves, (as J understand the Captors have for some time done), as it is
notorious that such victualling cannot here cost 1s. each. .

If, however, you have any difficulty in so doing J am willing: immediately to sign with youa
Petition to the Court to allow the slaves to be landed, provided that such landing shall not affect’
the rights of the Claimant, and those otherwise concerned iu them,

, I have the honour to be, &c.
J.D. Lake, Esq. (Signed) W.H, SAVAGE,

Sir, (5.) Government House, April 29, 1826,
MR. COLE, the Collector, having-reported to-me that there are wo provisions on board the

Brazilian Brig, for the Slaves; that in consequence they have become very riotous, and 2 of
them have come ov Shore, I have to desire you will take immediate steps for supplying these
unfortunate people with sufficient provisions. . Tam, &e.
W. H. Savage, Fsq. (Signed) K, MACAULAY, Acting Governor,

*« That, during the said 29th and 30th days of April, and. Ist-day of May. last, the said slaves.
growingimpatient at not being landed, and having;: as. this Deponent verily believes, bees ine.
formed (by what means your Deponent knoweth not) there was no likelihood of their being emane.
cipated, did, by force and arms, escape-from the said Brig ** Activo,” and land in this: Colony ;
that, on their landing in this Colony, they were immediately. seized by the Acting Collector: of
Duties; that this Deponent applied personally to his Honour the Acting Governor for permission
to replace the said Slaves on board the said-Brig ‘* Activo,’” which permission his Honour the Acting
Governor refysed:to.grant, on the ground that they could not be dealt with as Slaves, being at
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Jarge in this Colony; that this Deponent hath used all the diligence in his power to keep the said
slaves in the state they were brought in for adjudication, and none of the said slaves cameon
‘Shore with this Deponent’'s sanction or knowledge, save and except 6 slaves, who, after being
‘examined by the Court, were sately placed on board again. Andfurther, that this Deponent
having given rotice to the Claimant's Proctor that he, on bebalf. of the Captors, declined pro-
ceeding any futher in the said Cause, did discontinue, on the 29th day of April last, to provision
the said Slaves.” The Affidavit of William Henry Savage, Claimant's Proctor, (C) corroborating
‘so much of the Affidavit of Mr. Lake as relates to the Correspondence between Mr. Lake and
him, was atso read; also the Affidavit of Mr. ‘thomas Cole, Acting Collector of Duties, and As-

sistant Superintendent of Liberated Africans (D), wherein he deposeth and saith, ‘* that, on or

about the 29th and following day of the month of April last, he, this Deponent, (whose:Officeis
situated contiguous to the Sea} saw a number of black persons in a Boat pulling from the said
Brig towards the Publick Watering-Place of this Colony, where they landed; and, whilst standing
‘on the Beach, he, this Deponent, sent one of t-eClerks employed in the Liberated African Depart-
ment, to ascertain who and what they were, when he understood that they had forcibly made their
escape from the said Brig, where they had been confined without a sufficient quantity of tood
being issued for their subsistence; that shortly afterwards he, this Deponent, reported the circum-
stance to Mr. Keffell, the Colonial Secretary and Chief Superintendent of Liberated Africans, in
the absence of his Honour the Acting Governor, (who hai not reached Town from his Country
residence), who directed this Deponent to take charge of and safely keep the said persons who
had so escaped on shore; that on the Deponent afterwards waiting on his Honour the Acting
Governor, with the Colonial Secretary, who reported what had been done in this Case, the said
Deponent received a verbal order from his Honour the Acting Governor, to treat the said persons
who had thus escaped, and were then on shore, in the same light and manner as emancipated Ne-
groes, and that, ia consequence, the said persons were so dealt with aceordingly.”’
The Letter from the said Mr, Thomas Cole to the Registrar (2), stating the landing of the

slaves, and his taking charge of them, was also read; the Affidavits of George Springle, the
Shipkeeper (F), and Robert Leigh, his Assistaut (G), were also read, setting torth the circum-
stances of the revolt and escape of the slaves. The Affidavic and Petition of Joze Pinto de
Araujo (H), stating that the slaves had quitted the Ve-sel, was likewise read; and lastly, the
Affidavit of Joze Pinto de Araujo and Furtunato Mina (1) were read, who make oath and say,
** That at the time the said Brig was brought into this Harbour for adjudication, by His Ma-
jesty’s Ship of War « Atholl,” James Arthur Murray, Commander, the Deponents, one other
African, and a lad, were all the persons of the'said Brig’s original Crew on board as aforesaid who
were brought up in the said Brig; that the remainder of the Crew, that is to say, the Pilot,
Boatswain, Clerk, and 15 Sailors, were taken on board the Atholl,” and Deponents believe left
this Colony in the said Vessel, aud that they never did again join the said Brig, after being taken
out of her on the night of the day the said Vessel was so as aforesaid detained; that he, the said
Master, was sick, without necessary provision, and did therefore come on Shore as soon as possible
after’ the arrival of the said Vessel in this Harbour, and more especially to be ready at all times
to communicate with bis Prector relative to prosecuting the Claim for the said Vessel; and that
he the said Master never had any command nor controul over the said Vessel or the slaves on
board, and that he was always obliged to conform to the orders and regulations of the Prize-
Master antil be came on Shore. And the said Furtunato further gays, that to his own personal
‘knowledge the Master nor any one of the Crew of the said Brig had not any contraul over the
“said Vessel and the slaves on board after her arrival in this Port, nor since capture, And that
this Deponent and another man alone continued always on board, the lad before-mentioned having
quitted the Vessel. soon after her arrival here, and the other man, an African, when the slaves got
on Shore. And Deponents turther say, that the means to controul the said slaves were never in
their possession or power, by reason of the Crew aforesaid having been taken away by the Cap-
turing Vessel, and retained as part of ber Crew.’*

Whereupon the Commissioners absolutely and, unconditionally confirmed so much of the Re-
gistrar’s Report, ashe stated his opinion the Claimant was entitled to, for costs of suit and special
damages and expences occasioned to the said Brig by detention ; but, for the reasons setforth in
the Decree (K), only conditionally confirmed the remainder of the said Report, that is ta say,
they only confirmed the same, in the event of the British and Brazilian Governments agreeing and
declaring that the same ought to be confirmed, according to the true intent and meaning of the
Convention between Great Britain and Portugal for preventing illicit Traffick in Slaves, but not
otherwise, (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON,

(A.)—Registrar’s Report of Costs, Damages, and Expences.
To the trusty and well-beloved the Commissary-Judges, named in the Mixed Commission

established at Sierra Leone.

WHEREAS by your Decree ef the 9th day of May 1826, yott pronounced the Brig Ac-
tivo, Cargo and Slaves to have belonged as claimed, and decreed the same to be restored to
the Claimant for the use of the Qwner and Proprietor thereof, with costs, damages, and expences,
and referred the consideration of such costs, damages, and expences to your Registrar, aad that,
he should report the amount thereof. Now I do most hombly report, that, having received an.
Account of the same, brought in on behalf of the Claimant, and having tuken the same, together,
withwhat was urged by the Agents of the Parties on both sides, into consideration, I am of opinion
that the Claimaht is entitled, under your Decree, to the several sums mentioned in the Schedule
hereunto annexed, _All which is humbly submitted by

May 26, 1826. - (Signed) WM. SMITH,Registrar,
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. & }s.i df #£. [os y¢2
£55 Os. {Claimed as Costs of Suit.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties “oy ey 55 | 9] 0

First, Special Damages and Expences ocecasioned
to the Brigby detention.

£25 Gs, [Claimed for a Jolly-boat,
Allowed by Proetor tor Captors to have been

broken up by their orders, The boat is stated
to have been at the time of detention in an un-
sound state, although she was used after Brig’s

arrival in this Harbour. I therefore allow the
sum of £12. for this Claim -£18 being the
lowestamount a Boat answering the same pur-
pose could be purchased for here ; the difference
I deduct for wear and tear of the one destroyed -/|/ 12] Of Of «© | «|

£12 Os. {Claimed for caulking Brig’s long Boat. a . ;
Allowed by agreement between both Parties - 3] 0; OF « | ee} ee

£75 0s. (Claimed fora new cable of 12 inch 80 fathoms long,
and an anchor lost by the Captors off the Island o1
Bannanas.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties -| 75 | OF OF ee | eet ce

£12 12s, [Claimed for 2 coils of new rope on board at the
time of deteution, but now missing, and which do

_ not appear to have been used for the Brig -l 12) 321 0 ee co | ee

#8 8s. [Claimed for 2 bolts of canvass, 4 being on board at
the time of detention, and 2 only now remaining.

£18 0s. |Claimed for 6 bolts of duck, used or made away
with by the Captors.

The Procror for Captersis not willing to allow the
above 2 charges, but brings no proof that those
articles were not on board at the time of Brig's
detention; while the Proctor for Claimant pro-
duces in proof the Affidavits of the Master and
Cook, the latter of whom swears he saw them
eut up by the Captors. I therefore allow the sum
charged, the canvass and duck being new- -| 26]. 8] Of], | «et

£20 Os. [Claimed for } lower, | top-mast, and 1 top-gallant
steering sails,

Allowed by agreement between: both Parties, de-
ducting one-third for new - - - -H 131 6] SI] ce | cet ve

#4 6s, |Claimed for loss of log lines, fishing lines, twine /
to make and repair sails, and cotton twist. /

Allowed by agreement between both Parties -} 3.) 16) OO} « | ee] «

£3 0s. Claimed for 2 muskets and 4 cutlasses.
I allow 20s, each for the muskets, and 2s. 6. each

for the cutlasses - - - - ~ 2/107 0 “ rol “

£35 0s. |Claimed for casks supposed to have been burnt, as
the hoops are still on board, ;

Allowed by agreement between both Parties -| JO; Of Of “ [ey «

£12 10s. [Claimed for 100 gallons of aquadente, used by the
: Captors, at 5s, per gallon.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties - 61) 5] 0 cod ced ee

£2 10s. Claimed for 15 gallons of vinegar used by the ,
Captors.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties - 21) 0] OU vce | od ee

£8 Os, [Claimed for a cask of palm-oil used by the Slaves ,
and others since detention.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties, 30]
gallons at Qs. pergallon: oss - -| 31 of oO «oti lee:

£6 5s, Claimed.fora cask of olive-oil (25 yallons) not ,
now to be found on board.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties ~| 41 OF OF cf J eet o@

Carried forward — - £1 174 | 7] 8il 55] of ©
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£10 Os.

£30 0s.

£20 Os.

£60 Os.

£1 15s.

£588 0s.

(£66 Os.

£10,167 10s,

£450 Qs.

Brought forward — -
Claimed for woading and watering Brig for Sea.
Allowed by agreement between both Parties -

Claimed for property belonging to the Master,

or destroyed by Captors.
I do not allow this charge, as I conceive the Mas-

ter to have been very neglectful in almost aban-
doning the Brig, and thereby not taking due
care of his own property - - - -

Claimed to replace cabin stores for Sea - -

Claimed for provisioning Brig for Sea.
Allowed by agreement between both Parties -

Claimed for use of a Canoe, 7 days at 5s. per diem.
This charge is made in consequence of the Boat of

the Brig being at present uaserviceable—which
I allow - - - - - - -

SECONDLY,—

Claimed for demurrage, from the Ist of February
to the 9th ot May 1826 (98 days at £6. per day)
detained Brig being 149 tons burthen per Pass-
port.

Allowed by agreement between both Parties -

Claimed for 1} additional day’s demurrage, being
from the period of the Sentence of Restitution

' to the closing of the Case
Allowed by agreement between both Parties -

No charge made under the Head of the Tnirp
Item.

FourRTHLY,—
Claimed for the total loss of 166 slaves, value at

lars each, each dollar being eqnal to 4s. 1d.
British sterling money; the slaves were on
board when the Brig was detained and brought to
Sierra Leone for Adjudication, have been restored
by decree of Court, bat are not now on board.

163 slaves having been proved to be the number
that eseaped from the Brig, and that the
value of each slave, at the Place of destination,
is 254 mil reas, equal at 800 reas per dollar to
3172 dollars; therefore, deducting the 172 dol-
Jars for chaiges and commission on the sale of
each slave, I allow the sum charged for each of
the 163 slaves, being in conformity with the Sth
Article of the Regulations for the Mixed Com-
mission, annexed to the Convention between
His Majesty and His Most Faithful Majesty The
King of Portugal, signed at London, 28th July
1817—163 at 300 dol. (4s. Id.) each, £61 5s.

SixTaty,—

Claimed for 5 per cent. on total of capital em-
employed, valued at £9000.

This estimate I consider as greatly exceeding the
amount of money employed. On referring to an
Invoice of a similar cargo on board of a Vessel
bronght in here for Adjudication, as is stated to
hive been on board the «* Active,” and the De-
claration of the Master, that the principal arti-
cles of his outward cargo consisted of 2100 rolls
of tabacco and 12 pipes of aquadente, which, to-
gether with the value of the Brig, I estimate
the whole at £3060, and have allowed upon
that sum 5 per cent. in accordance with the 8th
Article of the Convention, as stated in the last
charge - - - - -

which is stated to have been used, taken away,

the Place of destination (Pernambuco) 200 dol-|
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   £11098  17   May 26, 1926.
(Signed) WM. SMITH.
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(B.)\— Affidavit of the Captor’s Proctor.

APPEARED personally John Dean Lake, of Freetown, in the said Colony, Proctor, on behalf
of Captain James Arthur Murray, and the Officers and Crew of His Majesty’s Ship ** Atholl,”
who, being duly sworn, deposeth and saith, that on or about the 16th day of February last, the said
Brig ‘* Activo,” with 165 slaves on board, arrived in this Harbour, having been detained by His
Majesty's Ship ‘* Atholl” for being engaged in the illicit Traffick in slaves, in charge ot Lieute-
nant Robert Lee Stephens of that Ship; that on the day after her arrival, the Papers and Doeu-
ments were lodged in the Registry of ihe above Court; that there came up as Witnesses, in the
‘said Case, the Portuguese Master, Lonis Pinto de Araujo, thefirst. and second Cook, and a Boy,

all belonging to the said Brig; that about 8 days after the said Brig’s arrival in this Port, the
Master, Joze Pinto de Araujo, with one of the Cooks, proceeded to the Shore, from whence he
refused to return; that the Deponent, in companywith the said Lieutenant Robert Lee Stephens,
proceeded to the House where the said Master, Louis Pinto de Araujo, was residing; that the said
Lieutenant requested the said Master, Louis Pinto de Araujo, to proceed on board the said Brig,
when the said Master, Louis Pinto de Araujo, in this Deponent’s hearing, told the said Lieute-
nant ‘that he had nothing more to do with the said Brig “* Activo,” as she was detained against
his will;’’ that the Deponent asked the said Master, Louis Pinto de Araujo, if he would give his

consent for the said slaves to be landed, which the said Master declined, on the grounds of his
having nothing more to do with the said Brig «* Activo ;” that at the requestof the said Master,
his private property was sent on Shore to him; that on or about the 4th day of April last, the
said Lieutenant Robert Lee Stephens received awritten order from Captain WilliamFitz-William
Owen, of His Majesty’s Ship « Leven,” to leave the said Brig ** Activo,” and proceed on board
His Majesty’s Ship ‘¢ Romney” for a passage to England, at the same time taking the Prize Crew
on board of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Leven ;”’ that in consequence thereof, this Deponent sent on
board the said Brig ‘* Activo”’ 6 men to take charge of the Vessel and Slaves; that on the 29th

- day of April last this Deponent did consider, for the benefit of the Captors, to call upon the Proc-
tor for the Claimant to take charge of the sail Brig and Slaves, by forwarding the Letter
marked (1); that thereupon Deponent received from Claimant’s Proctor the Letter marked (2)
in Answer thereto; that on the same day this Deponent forwarded to the Claimant’s Proctor the
Letter marked (3), and received in Answer the Letter marked (4) with its Enclosure (5); that
during the said 29th and 30th days of April, and 1st. day of May last, the said slaves, growing
impatient at not being landed, and baving, as this Deponeut verily believes, been informed, by
what means your Deponent knoweth not, there was no likelihood of their being emancipated, did
by force and arms escape from the said Brig ‘* Activo,’”? and land in this Colowy, as may be seen
by two Affidavits of the Shipkeepers filed in the Registry of this Court; that on their landing in
this Colony they were immediatelyseized by the Acting Collector of Duties, as may be seen by
the Affidavit marked (D); that this Deponent applied personally to his Honour the Acting
Governor, for permission to replace the said slaves on board the said Brig ** Activo,”’ which per-
mission his Houour the Acting Governor refused to grant, on the grounds that they could not be
dealt with as slaves, being at large in this Colony; that this Deponent hath used all the diligence
in his power to keep the said slaves in the state they were brought in for Adjudication, and that
none of the said slaves came on Shere with this Deponent’s sanction or knowledge, save and
except 6 slaves, who, after being examined by the Court, were safely placed on board again ; and
further, that this Deponent having given notice to the Claimant’s Proctor that he,. on behalf of
the Captors, declined proceeding any further in the said Cause, did discontinue on the 29th day
of April last to provision the said slaves, (Signed) JOHN DEAN LAKE.

Sworn before me, this 12th June 1826, -
(Signed) Ww. Sariru, Registrar.

The Sub-Enclosures 1 to 5, are contained in the ‘¢ Supplemental Report of the Case.”

(C.)\—Afidavit of the Claimant’s Proctor.

PERSONALLYappeared William Henry Savage, who, being duly sworn, maketh oath, and saith
that he has read the Affidavit of John Dean Lake, Proctor in this Cause (Brig “* Activo”),on behalf
of the Captors; that the allusions made to this Deponent, as Proctor for Claimants in the said
Cause, are true; that the Letter (1) was received by this Deponent, and the Letter (2) is the
Answer thereto ; that the Letter (3) this Deponent does not recollect receiving, but the purport
of the said Letter was-communicated to him, the Deponent, verbally, to the best cf his knowledge
“and belief; that the Letter (4) with the Enclosure (5) were sent to the said. Jobn Dean Lake,
as Proctor aforesaid, by this Deponent.. (Signed) W. H. SAVAGE,
Sworn before me, this 12th day of June 1826,

(Signed) Wa. Smiru, Registrar,

The Sub-Enclosures 1 to 5, are contained in the “ Supplemental Report of the Case.”

(D.)—Afidavit of the Acting Collector of Dutiés.

APPEARED personally Thomas Cole, Esquire, Acting Collector of Duties in and for the
Colony of Sierra Leone, and Assistant Chief Superintendent ot Liberated Africans in and for the
same, who, being duly sworn, deposeth and saith, that on or about the 29th and following day of
the month of April last, he, this Deponent, (whose Office is situated contiguous to the Sea), saw  
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a number-of black persons in a Boat pulling from the said Brig (“‘Activo") towards the Publick
Watering-place of this Colony, where they landed, and whilst standing on the Beach he, this
‘Deponent, sent one of the Clerks employed in the Liberated African Department, to ascertain who
and what they were, when he understood they had forcibly made their escape trom the said Brig,
where they had been confined without a sufficient quantity of tood being issued for their subsist-
ence; that shortly afterwards le, this Deponent, reported the circumstance to Mr. Reftell, the
‘Colonial Secretary and Chief Superintendent of Liberated Africans, in the absence of his Honour
‘the Acting Governor, (who had not reached 'fownfrom his Country residence), who directed this

,

Deponent to take charge of and sately keep the said persons who had so escaped on Shore; that on
‘the Deponent afterwards waiting on his Honour the Acting Governor, with the Colonial Secretary,
who reported what had been done in this Case, the said Deponeut received a verbal order from bis
Honour the Acting Governor, to treat the said persons, who had thus escaped and were then on
‘Shore, in the same light and manner, as Emancipated Negroes, and that in consequence the said
persons were-so dealt with accordingly, (Signed) THOS. COLL.
‘Sworn before me, this 13th day of June 1826,

(Signed) Wa. Smiru, Registrar.

(E.)}—The Acting Collector of Duties to the Registrar.
‘Srm, Sierra Leone, May 2d, 1826,

1 HAVE the honour to acquaint you, fhat 163 slaves, brought into this Harbour in the Portu-
‘gnese Brig ‘* 4fctivo,” have made their escape from that Vessel, and thatI have, as Collector of
this Port, taken charge of the said slaves. . I have the honour to be, &c.
Wm, Smith, Esq. (Signed) THOS. COLE,

 

(F.)—Afidavit of George Springle, Mariner.
‘PERSONALLY appeared, George Springle, of Sierra Leone, Mariner, who, being duly sworn,

-deposeth and saith, that, on the 6th day of March last; by order of Mr John Dean Lake, (on
‘behalf of the Captors), he, this Deponent, went’ on board and took charge of the detained Brig
“© Activo,” J.P. de Araujo, Master, with a Cargo of Slaves, in the capacity of Ship-Keeper,
‘the said Brig laying at anchor in the Harbour of Sierra Leone; that there likewise went on board
said Vessel 5 men to assist ‘this Deponent, besides 2 men who were on board, being part of the
original Portuguese Crew, making in all’& men, that on Friday the 28th of April last, the said
slaves became very riotous and disorderly, and expressed, by signs and gestures, to this Deponent,
that, if they were-not allowed to go on shore, they would jump overboard; that in consequence
of this threat, Deponent armed himself and the Crew, and stationed the Crew in different parts ofthe said Brig during the whole of Friday night ; that, on the ‘following day, no provisions being-on board for the said slaves, Deponent came'on Shore to apply for some, giving orders to the mandeft in charge nut to allow any person to quit the Brig; that, as this Deponeut was going downto the Beach to return on boafd, he saw 21 of the said slaves landing themselves from the Brig ;
that he immediately proceeded on board, and found the Long-bout, which was made fastasternalongside, with about 70 slaves in her; that himselfand the Crew threatened to fire into the Boat
if they did not come out-of her; thar, on this, a number of the slayes threatened, as before statedto throw this Deponent and the Crew overboard; that this Deponent was afraid to make use ofhis arms, it -being his firm belief that, if he had, himself and the Crew would immediately havebeen overpowered and murdered; and that, in the inean_ time, the said Slaves who were in theLong-Boat pushed from the Vessel and guined the Shore; that about 6 o’clock in the eveningof the same day, a quantity of rice and pailm-oil came ov board for the use of the said slaves;that, when supper was prepared for them, they refused it, alleging© that they would not eat untilallowed to go on Shore ;" that on the whole of Sunday the 30th, they still refused their provisionsbut appeared to this Deponent more moderate and less riotous; that, to prevent their getting theLong-boat, Deponent anchored her about a cable's length from the said Vessel, and hoisted theJally-boat up to the stern of the said Brig; that at day-light, on the morning of the Ist instantthe said Slaves armed themselves with pieces of iron hoops, billets of wood, and old knives, stolenfrom the Cabin, headed by six of the most powerful, who bad heretofore acted in the capacity ofBoatswains, and had assisted in checking the former disturbances; that part of- them proceededtolower down the Jolly-boat, whilst the rest, armed as before stated, defended them 3 that, having.yot the Jolly-boac in the water, 4 of the said Slaves went and brought the Long-boat alongside, intowhich they all got, and proceeded for the Shore. (Signed) GEORGE SPRINGLE.
Sworn before we this 4th day of May 1826,

(Signed) Wa. Smiru, Registrar,

(G.)—Afidavit of Bob Leigh, Mariner.
.PERSONALLY appeared, Bob Leigh, a native Mariner, who, being duly sworn, deposethcand saith, that he is employed to assist in taking care of the Brix © Active” and Slaves; that, onFriday the 28th of April last, the Slaves acted in a most riotous mauner; that in consequencehe, this Deponent, was underarms for the whole of the night; that on Saturday the 29th ot Aprilabout 12 o’clock in the forenoon, the said slaves armed themselves with bludgeons, pieces of rope,iron hoops, &c., and seized'upon aBoat, (belonging to the Shore), which was laying asternofthe said Brig, and the Long-boat of the said Brig, 21 Slaves getting into the formeraud about 70in the latter; that.on this Deponent going to them to get them out of the Boat, they held uptheir bludgeons, whilst others drew their knives across tlfeir thfoats, and then pointed to the
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water; that Deponent verily believes if he had struck one, himself and the Crew would have
been instantly murdered; that the said ‘Slaves-reached the Shore in safety; that, on Saturday
evening, the Slaves remaining on board refused to eat their supper, and that they ate nothing on
‘Sunday; that on the morning of the Ist instant, about gun-fire, the remaining slaves again
armed themselves, and proceeded to seize upon theBoats, menacing every one who opposed them;
that he, this Deponent, was so alarmed, and thinking his lite in danger, tan out to the jib-boom
end, and hailed a Government Sloop laying near for assistance, which did not arrive until the said
‘Slaves had got on shore, (Signed) BOB LEIGH, bis x Mark,
Sworn before me this 4th day of May 1826.

(Signed) Ww. Smirx, Registrar,

 

(H.)—Afidavit and Petition of Joze Pinto de Araujo, Master.
PERSONALLY appeared, Joze Pinto de Araujo, who, being duly sworn, maketh oath -and‘saith, that the circumstances stated in the within Petition (1) are ia every respect true to thisDeponent’s knowledge and beliet, and that the annexed Paper Writing, marked (2), this Depo-

nent believes to be of the hand-writing of the Proctor for Captors, and was delivered unto this
Deponent by the Proctor of this Deponent as being received by him from the saidProctor. .

(Signed) JOZE PINTO DE ARAUIO
Sivorn this 9th day of May 1826, before me,

(Signed) Wx. Smirn, Registrar.

 

(1.)—Petition of Jose Pinto de Araujo, Master,Sheweth, ;
THAT your Petitioner’s Proctor hath put into the hands of your Petitioner the a

Letter,* by which your Petitioner is apprised that the Captors of the said Brig
proceeding in the Cause,

That your Petitioner is informed, and does believe that noattention i
duties of the said Brig “ Activo,” in pumping and cleaning her as usual!

That the whole of the slaves on board have quitted the said Brig
that your Petitioner knows not by whose means or by whose orders.

’ That the ground tackling ot the said Brig, from ber long laying in this Harbonr,from the severe winds which occasionally blow at this Season in tornadoes.Wherefore your Petitioner most humbly prays your Honourable Court to appoint such earlyday, as to your Honours may seem fit, whereon to pronounce Judgment in the said Cause, andthereby enable your Petitioner to know in what manner to proceed with the said Brig for the benefitof those concerned therein, And your Petitioner, as in duty bound, will everpray,(Signed) JOQZE PINTO DE ARAUJO.
#* See the « Supplemental Report ”* (ly) :

ccompanying
forbear any further

$ now paid to the ordinary

. and are now on Shore, but

is liable to part,

 

{J.)—Afiidavit of the. Master and Cook, and Petition ‘of Proctor for
Claimants.

PERSONALLY appeared Jozé Pinto de Araujo, Master of the said Brig ‘* Activo,”: aid Fur-tunado Mina, Cook of the said Vessel, who, being duly sworn, make oath and say, that at the timethe said Brig was brought into this Harbour for Adjudication, by His Majesty's Ship-of-War«© Atholl,” James Arhur Murray, Commander, the Deponents, one other African, and a lad, wereall the Persons of the said Brig’s original ‘Crew on board as aforesaid, who were brought up inthe said Brigs that the remainder of the Crew, (that is to say,) the Pilot, Boatswain, Clerk and15 sailors were taken on board the « Atholl,” and Deponents believe, left this Colony in the saidVessel, and that they never did again join the said Brig after being taken out of her on: thenightof the day the said Vessel was so as atoresaid detained; that he, the said Master, was sick withoutnecessary provision, and did therefore come on Shote as soon as possible after the arrival of thesaid Vessel in this Harbour, and more especially to be ready at all tinies to communicate with hisProctor relative to prosecuting the Claim for the said Vesse » and that he, the said Master, neverhad any command nor controul over the said Vessel or the Slaves on board, and that he wasalways obliged to conform to the Orders and Regulations of the Prize-Master, until he came onShore; and the said Fortunado further says, that to bis own personal knowledge the Master, norany one of the Crew ot the said Brig, had not any controul over the said Vessel and the Slaves onboard after hér arrival in this Port, ner since capture; and that this Deponent and anotherman alone continued always on board, the lad before-mentioned having quitted the Vessel soonafter her arrival here, and the other man, an African, when the slaves got on shore. And De.ponents further say that the means to eontroul the said slaves were never in their possession otpower, by reason of the Crew aforesaid having been taken away by the capturing Vessel, and re-eect as att of her Crowe (Signed) JOZE PINTO DE ARAUJO,.
.

.

I iSwore before me this 10th day of June 1826, FURTUNADO x MINA,(Signed) Wm, Smiru, Registrar, mark, .  
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Petition ofthe Proctor, on behalf of the Claimant ofthe Brig “ Active.”

- Sheweth,
‘THAT in proof that the escape of the slaves from the said Brig {* Activo,”’ and in proof that

‘no means were in the power of him, the said Master, by his Crew, to prevent the same, your

Petitioner most humbly prays that the annexed Affidavit may be filed and receive the consideration

of your Honourable Court.
ad your Petitioner, as in duty bound, will ever pray.

June 10th, 13826. (Signed) W. H. SAVAGE.

 

(K.)—Decree of the Commissioners.

THIS day, in pursuance of the directions of the Court of the 8th day of the month of June last,
*€ that the proof of the Circumstance of the escape of the 163 Slaves from the said Brig (** detive")
should be more particularly detailed, and brought before it, together with all Correspondence and
Communications that had taken place between the Proctors in the Cayse, and His Majesty’s Colonial
Authorities, on the subject of the said Slaves, supported by Affidavits; '’ the following Documents
relative to the same were brought in and filed in the Registry of the said Court, and were this day
read,—to wit :—

Ist,—The Affidavit of John Dean Lake, the Proctor for the Captor, sworn, June 12, 1826,
2d. —The Affidavit of William Henry Savage, the Proctor for the Claimant, sworn, June 12, 1826,
3rd.—Letter from Jobu Dean Lake to Williams Henry Savage, dated, April 29, 1826,
4th.—Letter from William Henry Savage to John Dean Lake, dated, same day.
5th.—Letter from John Dean Lake to William Henry Savage, dated, same day.
“6th.— Letter from William Henry Savage to John Dean Lake, dated, same day.
‘7th.—Letter from K. Macaulay, Acting Governor, to William Henry Savage, dated, same day.
&th.—Affidavit ot Thomas Cole, Acting Collector, sworn, June 13, 1826.

The following Documents, relative to the same subject, were also this day read, viz. :—

Ist —The Letter of Mr. Thomas Cole, Acting Collector, to the Registrar of this Court, dated
May 2, 1826. | ,

2d.—Affidavit of George Springle, sworn, May 4, 1826,
3d.—Affidavit of Robert Lee, sworn May 4, 1826.
4th. —Petition andAffidavit of Jozé Pinto de Araujo, the Master, sworn May 9, 1826, enclos-

ing Duplicate of Letter aforesaid, ftom John Dean Lake to W. H. Savage, of the 29th of April
1826.
The Report ot the Registrar being also read, the said Commissioners confirmed so much of the

same, as the Registrar therein stated his opinion the Claimantwasentitled to, for Costs of Suit
~and Special Damages avd Expences occasioned to the said Brig by detention, and in pursuance
~ thereof, the said Commissioners did award and decree that James Arthur Murray, Esquire, the

Captor in this Case, do pay to the said Jozé Pinto de Araujo, the Claimant, or to his lawful

Attorney or Attornies, for Sis usé, absolutely and unconditionally, ‘the sum of £256. 2s. 8d

sterling money of Great Britain, for the said Costs ef Suit, and tor Special Damages and Px-
pences occasioned to the said Brig hy her detention, . °

And notwithstanding it appeared to the Commissioners by the Affidavits, and other Documents
this day read, that the loss of the slaves might, in some measure, have been caused by the neglect
of the Captor or his Agent, who had the charge aud possession of them, and also. of the said
Brig, in consequence of his not furnishing them with food on the 29th day of April last yet the

Conimissioners could not believe or conclude this to have been either the principalor the sole

cause of the said Slaves leaving the Vessel, afid coming on Shore; and although the Commis-
sioners would not attempt to justify the mode in which the Clainiant bad been deprived of his
slaves, nor, the conduct of the Captor or his Agent, in not taking proper precaution to prevent
those slaves leaving the Vessel, nevertheless, they conceived themselves bound to declare their
opinion, that the absolute and unconditional confirming the whole of the Registrar’s Report
would be contrary to the principles of equity, and would, in point of fact, be rewarding the
Claimant, not only for a breach of the Convention between Great Britain and Portugal for the

prevention of the ilicie Slave-trade, but for a breach of the Laws of his own Country
The Commissioners, at the same time that they considered the illegal conductof the Captor

in making this seizure to the South of the Equator, in direct opposilion to his Instructions cold
not lose sight of conduct much more illegal on the part of the Claimant, in carrying on the Slave.
trade to the North of the Equator, contrary to the Licence granted him in his Passport by. the
Authorities of the Brazilian Government, and in defianceof the Convention atoresaid end otth
Laws of Portugal and Brazil. . ° °
The Commissioners having further considered that, by the Convention aforesaid,’ there}

no Appeal. from their Judgment in this Case, and having also considered it to be most desirable
that sume,additional Measures should be adopted by the British and Brazilian Governments, for the
prevention of such glaring violations of the Convention as the present, have, therefore, in the ho e
that this Case may particularly call forth the sttention of both Governments only conditionally
cqnfirmed the remaining part of the Registrar's Report; and, therefore, the‘said Commissioners
did turther: award and decree that the said James Arthur Murray, Esq. ‘the Captor in this
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Case, do pay to the said Jozé Pinto de Araujo, the Claimant, or his lawful Attorney or Attornies, for
‘his use, the sum of £654 sterling money of Great Britain, tor the demurrageof the said Brig,
provided the British andBrazilian Governments agree and declare that the said sum ought to be
so paid, according to the true intent and meaning of the said Convention between Great
Britain and Portugal for the prevention of illi¢it-Slave-trade, but not otherwise.
And the said Commissioners did further award and decree, that the said James Arthur

‘Murray, Esq. do pay to the said Jozé Pinto de Araujo, or his lawful Attorney or Attornies, for
his use, the further sumof £9,983 15s, sterling money ot Great Britain, for the total loss of 163 slaves,
rovided, as before, that the British and Brazilian Governments agree and declare, that the said sum

ought to be'so paid, according to the true intent and meaning of the Convention aforesaid, but,
not otherwise. : : :
And the said Commissioners did further award and decree that the said James Arthur

Murray, Esq, do pay to the said Juzé Pinto de Araujo, or his lawful Attorney or Attotnies, for
his use, the further sum of £150, sterling money of Great Britain, being.for Interest on the.
‘estimated Capital empleyed in the purchase and maintenance of her Cargo, provided,as before,
that the British and Brazilian Governments agree and declare that the said sum ought to be so paid,
according to the true intent and meaning of the Convention aforesaid, but uot otherwise.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS

let July 1826. . D. M. HAMILTON,

No. 44.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq.to Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. (Received Oct. 16.)

Sr, Sterra Leone, August 15, 1826.

IN pursuance ofthe 75th Clause of the Act, passed in the 5th Year of the
Reign of His present Majesty, intituled “ An Act to amend and consolidate
the Laws relating to the Abolition of the Slave-trade ;” and in obedience to
the Instructions received from Mr. Secretary Canning relative to the same,
I beg leave to enclose a List or Return of all the Cases of Portuguese Vessels
which have been adjudicated in the British and Portuguese Courts of Mixed
Commission established at this Place, from the 1st day of January to the
30th day of June 1826, both days inclusive.

Ihave the honour to be,&e.
Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON,

&e. §. §.
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No. 45.

D. M.. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Nov..14.)

Sir,. Sierra Leone, September 20, 1826.

I BEG leave to enclose Copy of a Letter to me from Mr. Smith,
the Registrar of the Courts of Mixed Commission, pointing out an error in
favour of the British Government, in his Report of Costs and Damages in
the Case of the Brig ‘“* 4ectivo,” reported to you by His Majesty’s late Com-
-missary Judge and myself, under date the 10th of June last, a Supplement to
which Report was subsequently transmitted by me, under date of the
25th of July following.

I most respectfully beg to assure you, Sir, that not only the Registrar, but
the British Commissioners, labour under the greatest difficulties in procuring
data whereon to found their Judgment of the amount of Costs and Damages
that ought to be awarded in Cases of the Restitution of Portuguese and Bra-
zilian Vessels.

I should not be doing justice to my feelings, were I not to state to
you the steady and unremitting support I have experienced from Mr. Smith
the Registrar, in the performance of the duties of the Mixed Commis-
sions, since the death of my Friend and Colleague, Mr. Williams, and I
beg most respectfully to recommend him as a most zealous and active
Oilicer.
The error mentioned in his Letter, so far as it applies to the “ Perpetuo

Defensor,” can be easily altered, that Case not being yet finally settled.
I have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. Geogre Canning. _ (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.
&e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 45.

William Smith, Esq. to D. M. Hamilton, Esq.

Sir, Sierra Leone, September 13, 1826.

IN the recent Case of the Brazilian Brig ** Activo,” which was restored to the Claimant by
Decree of the British and Portuguese Court of Mixed Commission, on the 9th May 1826,
the Court referred the consideration of the Costs, Damages, and Expences oceasiuned to the said
Brig by detention, to the Registrar, and that he should report the amount thereof. On
the 26th of the same Month I made the Report accordingly, after having taken every possible
means in my power to ascertain the correctness of the different Charges, before I submitted
them to the Court for its Award thereon, - : ,
Ou referring to the said Report, I find that 14,000 reis, or [7 Spanish dollars, calculating

the Jatter to be worth 800 reis, is the amount I have allowed, as being the sum payable for

duties, charges and commission, collectively, on the importation and sale of each slave into Brazil,
At the time I made that Report, I conscientiously believed, from the best information 1 could

obtain, that that sum was the full-amount paid, and it was not until a few days since, on
ierusing the Correspondence with Foreign Powers, relating to ‘the Slave-trade, 1825,
1826, Class B, presented to both Houses of Parliament by Command of His Majesty, 1826,
and which arrived in His Majesty’s Ship ‘‘ North Star,” from Mr, Canning, on the 4th of
Avgust last, that I perceived in Mr, Vice Consul Follett’s Letter to Mr. Canning, dated Bahia,
25th January 1825, that the duties payable on the importation there of each slave are 22,000 reis,
a sum considerably above what 1, in my Report in the Case of the ‘ Activo,” allowed,
without charges or commission: and 1 consider it my duty to enter into this explanation,
in the hope that you, Sir, will make a representation to Mr. Canning on the subject, as
there is a discrepancy in the amount of the same charge, in the Accounts of the “ Perpetuo
Defensor” and ‘ Activo” which appears to me to require it,

I further beg to state that you, Sir, being fully aware of the difficulties in this Colony which
the Registrar has to contend with, to ascertain the truth of. the charges made, in Cases whera
Restitution is decreed, will, I am convinced, make every favourable allowance, for errors which
will unavoidably happen, as in the‘‘ Activo’s’” Case, and that. you will acquit me ofpartiality,
either to Captors or Claimants, in the performance of my publick duties,

Ihave the honour to be, &c.
D. M. Hamilton, Esq. (Signed) WM. SMITH.



62 Sipgna Leone, (Portugal and Brazil.)

No. 46.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received December 22.)

(Extract.) Sterra Leone, October 12, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to transmit, herewith, the Report of the Case of the
Brazilian Brig “ Perpetuo Defensor,” whereot Antonio Mauricio de Men-
donca was Master : she was seized by His Majesty’s Ship “‘ Maidstone,” Com-
modore Bullen, on the 18th of April last, on her Voyage, as stated by the
Master, from Molembo (o Rio Janeiro, but, as proved to the Court, from
Badagry, in 6.18. North Latitude, to Rio Janeiro, with a Cargo of 424 Slaves.
This seizure was made to the South of the Equator, and in sightof the Island
of Anna Bona.
On her arrival at Sierra Leone, on the 23d of May following, the slaves on

board were found to be in a most wretched state of suffering, from being
afflicted with diarrhoea, dysentery and small pox, and it was deemed requi-
site, to prevent the introduction of the latter disease into the Colony, to
place her under Quarantine; and in consequence of the representations of
Commodore Bullen, and of the advice of the Colonial Surgeon, the sick and
healthy slaves were separated from each other, and the latter put on board
one of the Government Colonial Vessels, then lying unemployed in the
Harbour; this was done by order of the Colonial Council, the Acting Go-
vernor being absent at the time in the River Gambia.

‘The cause of seizure, as alleged by the Captor, viz: the having a British
subject confined on board as a stave, was not considered by the Court suffi-
cient to bring the Case within its jurisdiction, and the Captor was requested
to:proceed in the usual manner for a breach of the Convention, but this he
declined doing, and voluntarily restored both the Vessel and Slaves to the
Master.
The Master not being satisfied with only receiving back his Vessel and

Slaves, claimed from the Court, Costs, Damages and Expences, caused by the
detention, and called on the Captor, by Monition, to proceed to Judgment
in the Case; several Witnesses were therefore examined, who clearly proved
the slaves had been taken on board at Badagry in North Latitude, upon
which the:Commissioners (the Claimant having been deprived of his slaves
through the intervention of the Colonial Government), thought it would be
most eligible in every respect to adjudicate the Cause on the sameprinciples
as they had decided that of the “ Activo,” and therefore, as in that Case, gave
the Claimant only a conditional Decree for the Value of the Slaves, and the
greater part of the Demurrage, and awarded him, unconditionally, so much
as to enable him to pay the expences he had incurred while the Cause was
depending, and to refit and victual his Vessel for a Voyage to Rio Janeiro.

I have the honour, herewith, to transmit, for your information, theCopies
of 3 Decrees made in this Case, one of which is a final one.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.
&e. Se. &c.

 

First Enclosure in No. 46.

Report of the Case of the Brazilian Brig “ Perpetuo Defensor,” Antonio
Mauricio de Mendonca, Master.

THIS Brig, which was seized by His Majesty’s Ship © Maidstone” on the 18th of April last
to the South of the Equator, arrived in the Harbour of Sierra Leone on the 23d day of May,and was immediately put under Quarantine by the proper Offiecr, in consequence of her having
‘several cases of s:nail pox on board. The Acting Governor of the Colony, Mr, Macaulay, beingat that time ab-ent on a visit to the Settlement in the River Gambia, the ColonialCouncil con-sidering the wretched and diseased state the slaves were iv, ordered, from motives of hamanitythe healthy to be separated from the sick, the former to be put on board a Government Colonial
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Vessel at that time lying unemployed in the Harbour, to be kept there during the time they should
femain under Quarantine, and a considerable number were in consequence immediately removed,
with the assistance of Commodore Bullen, to that Vessel.
No proceedings, however, were taken in the Case till the 3d of June, when the Ship’s Papers,

with the Affidavit of Lieutenant Lyall of the «‘ Maidstone,” were brought into Court, and also
the Declaration of Commodore Bullen, the Captor, in which he sets forth, ** thaton the 18th day
of April 1826, being off the Island of Anna Bona, he detained the Brig ‘* Perpetuo Defensor,”
Sailing under Brazilian Colours, commanded by Antonia Mauricio de Mendonga, who declared her
to be bound trom Molembo to Rio Janeiro, with a Crew consisting of 54 men and boys, and
having on board 424 slaves, who all respectively declared, by the assistance of an Interpreter,
that they were taken on board at Badagry, in 6. 18, North Latitude, about 12 or 14
days before seizure ; that soon after boarding and examining the said Vessel, a person of the name
of Cackau, confined as a slave on board thereof, did claim from the Officer employed, British

_ protection as being a British Subject then and there held in slavery, and which protection’ was
immediately granted by him the said Charles Bullen, by detaining the said Brig ‘‘ Perpetuo De-
féensor,’’ and sending ber up to Sierra Leone, to answer for detaining a British Subject on board
as a slave; that the said Vessel appeared to be perfectly seaworthy, and was supplied with a sulfi-
cient quantity of water and previsions for the support of the said Crew and Slaves on their des-
tined voyage to Rio Janeiro, but that no Log-of any description bad been found or produced by
the Master, with the exception of the false one from Molembo.” This Declaration is dated the
18th of April 1826, om hoard His Majesty's Ship ‘* Maidstone” off Anna Bona.

Lieutenant Lyall in his Affidavit sets forth, ‘* that Commodore Bullen being duly authorized
and empowered, according to the provisions of the Additional Convention to the Treaty between

His Britannick Majesty and His Most Faithful Majesty, to make seizure of Vessels under Portu-
guese Colours engaged in the Slave-trade, on the 18th day of April last, being off the Island of

’ Anna Bona, they seized and detained the Brig or Vessel called ‘« Perpetuo Defensor,’’ whereof An-
tonio Mauticio de Mendonga was Master, by reason that the said Brig bad on board confined, as

in slavery, a person declaring himself to be a British Subject, aud claiming British protection.”
In the Royal Passport, No. 498, one of the Ship's Papers, dated 29th of December 1825, it is

: . 12 : - .
stated ‘‘that the “Perpetuo Defensor” of 212 y= tons, and carrying 54 men, Antonio Mau-

ricio deMendonga, Master, and Joao Alvez da Silva Porto, Owner, Subjects of the Empire, is
bound to the Port of Bahia, and from thence to Cabinda, on the Western Coast of Africa, from

whence she is to return to Rio de Janeiro; that the said Master and Owner are under an
obligation to enter solely such Ports of the Coast of Africa, where the Slave-trade is permitted
to the Subjects of the Empire." On the same day (the 3d of June) an Affidavit of Edward Jef-.
freys, Surgeon of His Majesty’s Ship <‘ Maidstone,” was also brought into Court, wherein he
deposed ‘* that he professionally attended a person of the name of Cacow, who was confined as a
slave on board. the ‘‘ Perpetuo Defensor ;” that the said Cacow was removed from the said Brig’
on board His Majesty’s Ship ‘‘ Maidstone’ for better attendance, where he expired on the 27th
day of May last." Ou the consideration of these Documents by the Court, it was intimated to
Mr. Lake, the Proctor of Commodore Bullen, that unless he proceeded against the said Vessel
and Slaves for illicit Slave-trade, in conformity to the Additional Convention to the Treaty be-
tween Great Britain and Portugal, for the prevention ot illicit Traffick in Slaves, the Court could
not take cognizance of the Case: upon which intimation be refused to proceed further, and on
the 13th of June offered to deliver up the Brig and Slaves to the Claimant’s Proctor, Mr. Savage.
On the 26th of June a Petition of the said Mr, Savage, supported by his Affidavit, was brouglit
into Court, alleging, that be had received from Mr. Lake, the Proctor of Commodore Bullen, the
Seizor, a written Communication, informing him, Mr, Savage, that he, Mr, Lake, on behalf of
Commodore Bullen,-was ready to deliver to the Master the said Brig and Staves on board, and
requesting him, Mr. Savage, to take immediate steps for taking charge of the said Vessel and.
Slaves; it was further alleged in the said Petition, that he, Mr. Savage, bad endeavoured to
obtain permission to communicate with the said Master, then on board the said Vessel, but, in
consequence of her being under strict Quarantine, he had not been able to do so, since the time
of receiving instructions from the said Master to act as Proctor on his behalf, which was prior to
his receiving the Communication from Mr. Lake as atoresaid ; wherefore he prayed that the cause
of the said Brig might not suffer by reason that through the said Quarantine he was withheld
from communicating with the Master of her. ’
On the 2ist day of Sune the Master of the Brig was released from Quarantine, and allowed to

come on Shore, and on the 23d Mr. Savage brought into Court the Petition of the said Master,
praying to be allowed to-file his Claim, which was granted, and he, at the seme time, brought in

the Claim, with an Affidavit in support of it; ov the same day be brought iv the written Com-
munication before-mentioned, from Mr. Lake to himself, wherein the former offers to give up the
Brig and. Slaves; also. a Petition, praying a Monition against the Captor, calling on him to
proceed to. Adjudication, which was. granted. and issued on the same day. The Claim is «© of,
Antonio Mauricio de Mendonga, the Master of the said Brig, a Subject ot His Imperial Majesty
The: Emperor of the Brazils, for the said Ship, her tackle, apparel and furniture, goods, wares and
merchandize, and 424Africans, or so many as were on board thereof at the time of capture thereof,

by His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone,” Commodore Charles Bullen, C. B. Commander, and for the

value of such slaves as may have departed this life since the said capture, as the sole property of
Joao Alvez da Silva Porto, au inhabitant of Rio Janeiro, as protected by the Treaty or Conven-
tion between. His: Britannick Majesty and His Most Faithful Majesty The King of Portugal, dated
the 28th July 1817; and for all costs, charges, losses, damages, demurrage and expences as have
arisen,-or shall or may arise, by means of the capture aud detentionof the said Brig, and her Cargo,
the 424 Africans aforesaid.’* In the Affidavit in supportof the same, the said. Antonio Mauricio ds
Mendonga deposed to the truth of the matters and things contained in the said Claim, and al
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further. deposed, that the said seizure took place on the 18th day of Aprillast, in the prosecu-
tion of the Voyage.of the said Brig from Molembo, on the Coast of Africa, to Rio ‘Jangiro, in
the Brazils, and was brought to Sierra Leone;” he further deposed, * that ever since his arrival in
Sierra Leone he had been detained on board the said Brig, by reason of her having been placed
under Quarantine until the 2ist day of June now past, and that he, the Deponent, bad not before
any opportunity to proceed in his business, and in the Claim for the said Brig and the Cargo’ and
Slaves ou board; that at the time the said Brig was detained as aforesaid, the Island of Anna
Bona was about 8 miles distant, the said Brig being then to the South of the Equator, and in
full view of the said Island.”
On the 25th ot June, Mr, Macanlay, the Acting Governor, arrived from the River Gambia,

and on the 26th, the Master, Antonio Mauricio de Menidonea, was produced, sworn and examined
on the general Interrogatories, but nothing came ont in his examination material for the Captors;
he swore that 473 slaves were taken on board at Molembo from the shore, and that 49 died
previous to capture. :
On the 27th of June, the Court was informed, by command of the Acting Governor, that the

said Brig was released from the Quarantine Regulations, and that the Government of the Colony
would noi previde or ration the slaves after that day. On the 29th, the Court received aLetter
from the Colonial Secretary, stating, “ that by command of the Acting Governor, he enclosed,
for the information of the Court, a Letter addressed to him by the Prize Master of the « Per-
petuo Defensor,” Mr. Tollervey (an Officer of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maidstone’), and drew the
attention of the Court to the 32d Section of the Act of the 5th of George the 4th, Cap. 113, and
requested to. know whether the Commissioners considered that Claim to be applicable to the
Court of British and Portuguese Mixed Commission, and if so, to express the Acting Governor's
desire that the Court would be pleased to give the unecessary instructions for carrying the same
into effect.” In the Enclosure it is stated by. Mr. Tollervey, that ‘* he having received directions
from Mr. Lake, the Proctor for Commodore Bullen, to give up to the Portuguese Claimants the
slaves in the << Perpetuo Defensor” and the « Susan,” Colonial Brig, on their claiming them on
to-morrow (the 29th of June), that he therefore deemed it. his duty to acquaint the Colonial
Secretary, that from strong symptoms of discontent and anger manifested by the slaves to-day
(the 28th), on some Person on the part of the Claimants attempting to take their number in his
absence, and the clamorous manner iu which he was surrounded on his return, that the “* Susan’’
would not he sate on. his leaving her and the ** Perpetuo Defensor’’ to-morrow (the 29th),” /
_In the course of the day of the 29th of June, theActing Governor, and the Commissioners met,

when the former observed, ‘¢ that he conceived the slaves on board the © Susan” had obtained their
freedom by being on board a British Government Vessel,” to which the Commissioners answered,
** that they thought otherwise,” and pointed ont to him the construction they put on .the Act
of Parliament in question, and the Treaties and Convention-therein recited, and on the day
following addressed a Letter to the Colonial Secretary, stating, ‘‘that in. their-opinion the Clause
of the Act in question did not apply to the Court of the British and Portuguese Mixed Commission.”
On the3th of June, Mr. Savage, the Claimant’s Proctor, addressed a written Communication

to the Conrt, with several Enélosures, in. consequence,as he states, of the Communication frem
. thé Acting Governor to the Commissioners; he sets forth “ that on the 27th of June, the Seizor’s,
Proctor addressed to him a Letter as follows, containing an Enclosure, to wit;

oe Str, ‘ Sierra Leone, June 27; 1826,
“I beg leave to énclose you a Copy of a Letter I have just received trom Mr. Cole, the Col-

eetor aud Quarantine Master, respecting the support hitherto supplied the slaves on board the
*f Perpetuo Defensor” and ‘ Susan,” and I beg leave to remind you, that there are noprovisions
now on board the Vessels, and to press upon your attention the urgency of yourvictualling ‘the
said slaves, — ‘Ihave the honour to be, &e,
WH. Savage, Esq. (Signed) ‘JOHN DEAN LAKE, for Commodore Bullen, C,B,’

*¢ The Enclosure is as follows’:

* Sir, : “ Sierra Leone, June 27, 1826,
* THE Colonial Surgeon having reported to the Government that the contagious disease has

totally disappeared from among the slaves on board the ¢ Perpetuo ‘Defensor? and << Susan,” and
should, in consequence, be released from Quarantine, I am conimanded to give you notice, that
the support of these people (hitherto furnished by me) will be discontinued as svon as-I receive
instructions from his Honouy the Acting Governor to carry the recommendation of the Surgeon
into effect, ‘lam, &e.

“+ John Dean Lake, Esq. (Signed)  ‘ THOMAS. COLE, Colr, and Quarantine Master?

*« Aud to which he made immediate Reply, declining to provision the slaves, for the reasons therein
alleged.—'The Reply was as follows:

« Siz,, * Sierra Leone, 27th June 1826.
JN reply to your’s of this date, Iam requested by the Claimant, to say, that the ‘* Perpetuo.

Defensor,” had when seized, provisions adequate to the full supply of the Africans, the Cargo of.
the said Vessel during the voyage; that her having been seized and brqught to this Place, has
consumed a period far beyond than necessary for the completion of the voyage, and if, therefore,
the provisions are expended it can’ arise solely from this causé; and not through any omission or
fault of the Claimant,. . a,
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*I must inform you the Claimant is without the pecuniary means of procuring them food for
thei: subsistence. The Seizors, or their Agent, therefore are called upon, for the cause of humanity
iu this Case, either to Petition the Colonial Government to provision them, or do it themselves,

leaving the Costs thereof to after consideration. _ *Thbave the honour to be, &c.

John Dean Lake, Esq. (Signed) W.H. SAVAGE.

** As in fact, from there being no Mercantile Communication in this Colony with any Portu-
guese House, it was found impossible to raise money to effect such an object, as subsisting the
slaves (upwards of 300 in number), without a guarantee; the Registrar of the Court having,
however, since he, Mr. Savage, wrote the last Letter, distinctly stated to him, that the Judges of
the Court did consider the Claimant bound to support the slaves, and that, if not fed, should any
thing arise to cause a deterioration of their number, it would fall on the Claimant,he resolved to
become guarantee for the supplies, to prevent any unfortunate result during the uncertainty exist-
ing, and gave directions that they should be provided tor accordingly, and on the 28th instant,
provisions were sent on board both Vessels, which, however, he had some difficulty in getting
received. On the same day he wrote the following Letter, to the Proctor of the Seizor, to inform
him of his intentions : ,

© Sir, * Sierra Leone, 28th June 1826.

“I BEG leave to acquaint you that I have received directions from the Claimant in the Case,
of the Brig ‘‘ Perpetuo Detensor,"to supply the Africans on board with provisions, as well as
those also on board His Majesty’s Colonial Brig «* Susan,” which I shall endeavour to carry into
effect immediately ; but I have most distinctly to state, that the supply of the latter will only be
‘continued until the sitting of the Court, when the sense of the Court will be taken thereon, as
the Claimant considers those People who have been so removed, while Vessel, was in charge of
Captor,in the light of Persons landed in British Territory, and who will, therefore, claim every pyi-

__vilege the said removal may entitle them to.
* Lam also to inform you, that the Claimant is himself personally unable, from severe indisposi-

tion, to look after the Vessel, and that all his Officers have been removed by the Captor, but he will

endeavour to engage an Officer this day, whom, if engaged, shall proceed on board to-morrow
morning,

‘The removal of the European part of the Crew of the “‘ Perpetuo Defetisor,” except two men
and the Master, makes it almost impossible to expect that the slaves may be prevented from doing
as they think fit, and, therefore,] must most pariicularly press on you, that, for the interest of
the Seizor, the Officer and men put on board by the Seizor, may remain to assist in keeping the
slaves on board until the final Judgment of the Couit shall be given.

‘1 have the honour to be, &c.
§ John Dean Lake, Esq. . (Signed) *‘W. H. SAVAGE.’

‘In writing the Letter of the 27th, and thereby distinctly stating, the Claimant did not possess
the means to supply the slaves with provisions, he considered that the future support of the slaves
would have been arranged under the authority of the 32d Section of the Act of the Sth George the
4th, Cap. 113, (this is the same Clause referred to by the Acting Governor in his Letter to the
Court). that during the ‘ Perpetuo Detensor’s” having been in charge of the Seizors upwards of
240 slaves were removed to the Colonial Brig ‘* Susan,” and on bis mentioning this to the Acting
Governor, he most positively stated to him, that whatever might be the Decree of the Court

those Persons could not, nor would he as Governor permit, that they should be put back into the.
*€ Perpetuo Defensor” as slayes, the Acting’ Governor having also distinctly stated to him, that.
provided those slaves, or any other, were restored by Decree, -he would not permit them to be
victualled or watered from this Colony, it therefore becamea positive fact that the slaves from tlie
moment they are brought in here, the Claimant cannot advantage by any Decree of Restitution,.
so as to effect their removal; that their being at once allowed to land, must only facilitate the
proceedings, and ought not, he humbly conceived, debar the Claimant from indemnitication.
©The circumstance of theslaves having been taken out of irons and permitted at large-in the

Vessel, the intercourse held with the liberated Africans who have been employed about them,
their seeing others who bad been detained as slaves going on Shore, has tended to createa feeling
of insubordination which, if it is manifested, the present slender Crew of the ‘‘ Perpetuo Defensor *
must be unable to repress :—ten persons only of the original Crew of 54 having been suffered to
remain by the Scizor, present additional reasons imperatively requiring the landing of the slaves,
without injury to the interest of thé Claimant.
An Affidavit of the Master of the said Brig, ig support of many of the Allegations contained

in the aforesaid Communication from Mr. Savage to the Court, was brought into Court at the same
time. : .
’ On. the same day, the 30th, was brought in the Affidavit of John B. Garel, who therein sets
forth, ‘* that on the 28th day of the present Mouth, he was requested by William Henry Savage;
to proceed on board the Brig ‘¢ Perpetuo Defensor,” and His Majesty’s Colonial Brig «* Susan,”
and to take with him rice as provisions for the slaves on board those Vessels, and to see they
wete generally supplied with every thing. necessary ;—-that he did therefure take 20cwt. of
rice, and on the same day proceed on board, and has ever since continued to supply the said slaves
-with rice, salt and palm-oil, and on this day, by the further direction of the said W. H. Savage, is
supplying them with fresh beef, and attending to see them furnished with water; that when he
first went on board the ‘‘ Perpetuo Defensor” there was only a Quarter-Master_ in charge on
board, Deponent asked him to be permitted to count the number of slaves, provided the said
Quarter-Master could not tell the number; that the said Quarter-Master said, that he could nog
‘gell the number, and therefore he, Deponent, began to count them, and got to about 50, when:a

' Slack man, who told this Deponent he belonged to the * Maidstone’’ Frigate, spoke to the slaves
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in their own language, as this Deponent believes; the slaves on being so spoken to began to shew
signs of displeasure, and mixed ‘themselves so with the others, that Deponent could not count
them; that on taking the said provisions the first time on board, could not induceany person,
either on board the said Brig or the Brig ‘* Susan,” to take charge of the said provisions, but

that Deponent had been suffered to leave the rice on board the ‘* Susan,’’ and issues the same every
morning,’
On the Ist of July, while the Commissioners were sitting, adjudicating some other Cases, the

Chief Justice was called on by Mr. Saino, the Acting King’s Advocate, and Doctor Barry. Deputy
Inspector of Hospitals, who produced an Affidavit of the before-mentioned John Tollervey, of His
Majesty's Ship ‘* Maidstone,” who therein deposed, ‘* that 91 Natives of Africa were then
confined on board a Vessel in the Harbour, called the “ Perpctuo Defensor,” and, as he, the De-
ponent, verily believed, were intended to be carried away from the Port of Freetown for the pur-
pose ot being dealt with as slaves,” and, on this Evidence, insisted they were entitled to a Writ of-

Habeas Corpus; this was, however, denied by the Chief Justice, who stated to those Gentlemen
the reasons why he could not issue any such Process. Notwithstanding this refusal, Mr. Samo
sent, on the 3d instant, a written Application to the Chief Justice, under dare ot the 2d, enclosing
a Letter to him from Dr. Barry, and the same Affidavit of Mr. Tolleryey, and again paying a Writ
of Habeas Corpus. On the 4th of July, by appointment, the Chief Justice heard Mr. Samo and

Dr. Barry on the part of the slaves, and examined on oath every person they thoughe proper to
bring as a Witness in the Case, the principal one of whom was Mr, Ferguson, the Surgeon of the
Royal African Colonial Corps. Dr, Barry acknowledged that he himself had never been on board
the Vessel. Mr. Savage, the Claimant’s Proctor, with the Claimant himself, were also heard, and
two Affidavits of their’s, sworn before a Justice of the Peace, allowed to be read in evidence, when
the Chief Justice again refused to grant the Writ of Habeas Corpus, and gave his reasons for.such
refusal. This matter was heard in the presence of His Majesty’s late Commissary Judge, the
Clerk of the Crown, and Mr. Tollervey, the Prize-Master, in addition to the Persons before men-
tone. The Copies of the Documents in this Case, certified trom the Crown Office, are sent with
this Report, : :
On the following day, the 5th of July, the slaves on board the “ Susan” Colonial Brig were,

by order of the Acting. Governor, taken.possession of by Mr. Cole, the Collector of Duties, and
landed and disposed of, without either the knowledge or consent of the Court, in the same manner:
as those have been that have been adjudged ta be emancipated by the Couris of Mixed Commis-
sion; aud on the 6th of July the slaves on board the ‘ Perpetuo Defensor,” 88 in number, being
in a state of insubordination, were landed by the Claimant’s Proctor, and, by order of the Acting
Governor, received and disposed of by Mr. Cole, as the others had been that were landed the day
betore from the ‘* Susan.” This was also done without either the knowledge or consent of the

ourt. :

Mr, Lake, the Seizor’s Proctor, about this time petitioned the Court to have 4 black Seamen
and four of the Slaves examined gn Special Interrogatories, which Mr, Savage, on the part of the.
Claimant, objected to; first, because there was no Portuguese Commissioner in the said. Court ;
secondly, because the Regulations did not point out any such mode for ascertaining the facts of
any Case; and, thirdly, because the People to be examined had not the dread either of temporal
punishment, or religious obligations, to speak the truth, and that, being persons not speaking an’
‘Buropean. language, it was impossible to make them understand the questions put through anIn-
terpreter, who must also be a liberated African;. equally ignorant.

‘To the first objection‘of Mr. Savage it was answered, ‘that it was neither the fault of the British
Government or the-Eritish Commissioners that there was no Portuguese Commissioner, and that
if tke Gourt, in the absence of the Foreign Commissioners, could legally condemn and release
Vessels, they could also: do any other act for which the Court was constituted, and could therefore
order the Examination of the Seamen and Slaves of any Vessel before the Court.’* To the second
objectiau',-it was answered, ‘that it had been an undeviating practice of the Courts of Mixed Com.
mission, “since their establishment, to examine: not only the Master aud two or three of the ptin-
cipak Persons on board the detaincd Vessel, but also others of the Cres, also the Slaves, and any
one else, by whose examination truth -was. likely to be elicited.” ‘To the third objection, it wag
answered, ‘‘ that.it contained assertions the truth of which must be ascertained at the time of Oxide.
mination, except that which states the ignorance generally of the liberated Africans, which is not
true, as it is notorious that many of them had resided some time in the Colony, and were persons
ot some intelligence, and might be procured by Mr. Savage as Interpreters, if he chose.’ The
prayer of Mr. Lake’s Petition was tuerefure granted, and he this day produced Jose da Costa,
Manoel Nogera, Antonio Mozambique, and Juan, Seamen of the Brig, who, ‘being duly sworn,
deposed, cach and severally, “ that they shipped on board the “ Perpetuo Defensor,” at RioJaneiro ;
that Angola is the name of the first Land they made, coming out trom whence they weit to
Awbrise ;”” and Jose Costa, for himself, deposed, “that they there landed some Cargo; that they
then went to Cabinda for a mast, and trom Cabinda to Onim, and from thence to Badagry; saith
there was no trading carried on, the Slaves on board her baving beeu purchased for ter by the
Brig ‘* Brillianie,” and were lying ready for her at Badagry, which is the Place the Slaves
were shipped at.” Aud Manoel Nogera, for hiniself, deposed, ** that, from Ambrise they went
to Cabiuda, and from Cabinda they went to Onim and Badagry; that there was no trading care
tied on; the Slaves were parchased by a Brig called the ‘* Brilliante,” and were lying ready at
Badagry, which isthe Place thé Slaves were shipped at; knows it to be Badagry trom having
heard the Officers say so, and from his having made a voyage once before to Onin, and this Place
being’ close to it.” And Antonio Mosamnbique, for himselt deposed, * that from Ambrise thewent.lo Cabinda, «nd trom Cabinda to Badagry; that there was no trading carried on, the Slaves
on board the ** Perpetuo Defensur” having been pyrchased for ber by another Brig, called the
se Brilliante,” and were lying tor her at Badagry, which is the name of the Place the Slaves were
shipped at.” And the said Juan, for himself, deposed, that, from Ambrise they went to Cabinda,
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and frony Cabinda to Badagry;. no trade was made for the Slaves at Badagry; the Slaves were
purchased. for the “ Perpetuo Detensor” by another Brig, but he does not know her name; they
were lying ready for her at Badayry, where they were taken on board.” -
On the 8th of July a Communication was made by Mr. Savage to the Court, setting forth that

** under a persuasion that it was his duty to make the Commissioners acquainted with every cirs°
cumstance us early as possible, which might afterwards come before the Court, he had to state;
that, from the riotous conduct-of the Slaves on board the £¢ Perpetuo Defensor,” and the slender
Crew. of the Vessel, rendered itabsolutely necessary, to preserve ‘life, that the Slaves should be
put on Shore; and that, in the evening of the 6th, he catised-the whole, 88 in number, to be
landed, when they were immediately taken charge of by ‘Thomas Cole, Esq., Collector and Acting
Superintendent of Liberated Africans, and that he should duly authenticate the said facts.”
On the 11th day of July, Ogoopooloo, Adoo, Alaconday, and Agarree, 4 of the Slaves that

had belonged to the Cargo of the ‘* Perpetuo Defensor,” were produced, sworn, and examined, on
the Special Interrogatories, by permission of the Court, who, each aid severally, clearly deposed
to the fact of their having been shipped at Badagry. , .
‘On the day following, the 12th, Mr. Savage alleged in a Petition brought in by him, together

with 2 Affidavits, ‘« that he having been consulted by the Master of the said Brig, on the proceed-
ings towards the slaves left on board the «* Perpetuo Detensor,”-who were in a state of riot on
the 6th instant, occasioned as he, Mr. Savage, was informed, by the circumstance of the slaves
finding they were detained when the others on board the ‘* Susan”? were landed; and as the said
Master declared through his Messenger to him, Mr. Savage, that his life, and the life of his men
were in danger, he, Mr. Savage, therefore, gave it as his opinion, they should be landed, and the
circumstances brought before the Court; that therefore they were on the 6th day ot July landed, .
in number 88, and delivered to,the Colonial Government, whereupon he prayed the two before- —
mentioned Affidavite. should be admitted as evidence in the Cause.” The two Affidavits were sworn:
betore the Registrar on the same day, (the 12th) the first of which is that of the Acting Master,

_ Bento Francisco de Carvalho, who was hired in consequence of thé illness of the Master, whe
deposed ‘* that on the 29th of June last, he, the Deponent, was engaged to praceed on board, and
take charge of the Brig ‘* Perpetuo Defensor,” by reason that Antonio Mauricio de Mendonga,
the Master, was ill and unable to do so, which Deponent accordingly did; that the slaves on.
buard were comparatively peaceable until the day those who had been previously taken from the
** Perpetuo Defensor,” and put on board His Majesty's Colonial Brig <Susaw’’ were removed
to the Shore: on that day Deponent saw a Canoe, which he believed to be one employed for thé
purpose of landing the slaves from the “* Susan,’ manned with 3 Kroomen, come alongside the
** Perpetuo Defensor,” when Deponent asked them, through a hired labourer, for what purpose
they were come, and they answered, that a white man had sent them to wait there, that whi.
the Canoe was so alongside, this Deponent saw several persons on board the ** Susan,” standing
up so as to be in full view of the slaves on board the * Perpetuo Defensor,” making signs co-
them, the said slaves, by violent gestures, passing their fingers across their throats, taking billets
of wood and other things, and pretending to strike, all which was seen by the slaves on board
the © Perpetuo Defeusor;" Deponent, by threats to the Kroomen in the Canoe, made them shove
off; that the Housa-inan belonging to the ‘* Maidstone,” by the name ot Martin, was repeatedly,
during that day, heard hailing, aad talking to the siaves on board the Perpetuo Defeusor ”
from the ** Susan,” whieh gestures, sigus, and speaking, this Deponent believes was for the pur-
pose of inviting the slaves on board the ‘ Perpetuo Defensor” to acts ofviolence,for the purposé
of their getting on Shore ; that during the remainder of that day and the night, this Depowent
found, with the Crew on board, a great difficulty in keeping the slaves in order, the next day they
at first declared they would not eat, as they wished to go on Shore, that they touk by force tne
fresh meat that was brought off afterwards, and conimenced. cooking the whole; this Deponene
remonstrated with them, telling them they should use it at two meals, but they said ne, they
wonld finish it at once, as they were determined ‘to get on Shore before night; after they had
finished their meal the whole of the slaves came aft, women, men, and children, and told Depos
nent they would go on Shore; Deponent understands-a smattering of their language, his péople
did the same, some went and lowered the Boat down that was astern; this Deponent did all-he
could to persuade them, by signs, and-talking to them, to induce them to be quiet, and they would
not hear; the slaves armed themselves. with cannon shot, sticks, and other things they could fiud
on the deck, and threatened violence to Deponent and the two white men on board; on the
lowering of the Boat two slaves got into her; this Deponent, however, made his people begin tu
hoist the Boat, when the 2 slaves got on board again; ‘during all this time Deponent saw
persons on board the ** Susan’! by signs encouraging the aets of the slaves; Deponent was
alarmed for his life at the resolute behaviour of the slaves, and made signs to them tu spare hiut
and his Crew, while he hoisted the colours as a signal of distress, and fired a gun, The slaves on
having this explained, sat down around the Cabin, and Deponeut made the signal for assistance,
and seut away a man with the Boat, to.go inform the Master of his perilous situation. -This
Deponent called out fur assistance to the Officer on board the « Susan,” but he vot into his Boat:and went on Shore, aud did not come to Deponeut’s assistance: ‘That Deporent therefore firiding
it was out of his power to coutroul the slaves, without resorling to most violent means, after cousuliing with the:Proctor of the said Master, landed the said slaves.” oe
And Deponent farther deposed, ** that at the time he took charge of the.said Vessel, the Slaves

were allat large, that himself and two white men, and six men of colour, were all the persons on
board since Deponent-has joined the said Brig, and that himself and the said Crew were not ableto keep them in subjection, especially as they, this Deponent believes, were excited to riot bywhat wag said to them by Martin and others.” :
The other Affidavit is of Bento Jose de Carvalho, who deposed ‘*that he was one of the Crewof the said Vessel, and was on board wlien she was captured by His Majesty’s Ship <* Maidé

“stoue,"!. Commodore Charles Bullen, C,.B, Commander, and-has continued on board ever‘since’;  
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hat at the time of capture all the men slaves were in irons, and weré then released by the orders

of the said Commander, given in the hearing of this Deponent on board the said Vessel; that

during the time the said Vessel was lying in this Harbour, and while ip the possession of the Officer

audMen of the *¢.Maidstone,” this Deponent saw an European. come alongside in a Boat, whospoke

to the British Officer in charge, and soon after the greater part of the said slaves were taken from

the said Brig ** Perpetua Defensor,” and carried on board the Colonial Brig ‘* Susan ;”’ that

this Deponent is certain that neither the Portaguese Master, or any of bis Crew, had. any thing

to do with the removal of the said slaves ;. that on the 29th day of June last, the Acting Master,

Bento, came on board, and took charge of the ‘* Perpetuo Defensor ;”” that from that time until

the slaves were landed from the ‘* Susan,” and which by reason of being-near to, was seen by the.
slaves on board the ‘* Perpetuo Defensor,” there was no very particular insubordination among
the said slaves. The day the said slaves were landed from the ‘¢ Susan,” they then came aft, and

demanded to be put on Shore in the same manner. A Canoe came alongside the ‘* Perpetuo De-

tensor,” during the time the slaves were landing trom the ‘ Susan,” this Deponent does not know

whereit came from, it was manned by 3 Kroomen; while said Canve was alongside, heard a

dlack Sailor, whom this Deponent knows to belong to the ‘* Maidstene,” talking tz the slaves on

board the ‘* Perpetao Detensor,” from the “Susan,” and by the signs he made, this Deponent
believes that he was persuading the slaves of the “‘ Perpetuo Defensor,” to get into that Canoe,

and goon Shore; this Canoe was, however, forced away by Captain Bento. The slaves continued
during the day dissatisfied, and on the following morning, after the landing of the slaves from the

«« Susan,” the slaves on board the ‘‘ Perpetuo Defénsor,” having had their breakfasts came att,

and being armed with sticks, billets of wood, cannon shot, and other things, demanded to be put

on Shore; some of them lowered down the Boat astern, and two of the slaves got into it, but
they were got hack, The Acting Master then tried to-persuade them to abstain from violence,

I . og

and promised to see what the Authorities on Shore would do for them, and having pacified them a
Jittle, the Acting Master made signals ofdistress -by firing a gun, and hoisting the Colours ; that
‘said Acting Master ordered Deponent to go and inform the Proctor for the Wessel of his dan-

gerous situation, which Deponent did, and soon atter the slaves were landed, and delivered to the
Authorities of this Colony.. This Deponent saw several persons on board the ‘* Susan on the
same day, making signs to the slaves‘on board the ‘¢ Perpetuo Defensor,” and, as this Deponent
believes, encouraging them to-acts of violence; that Deponent is persuaded that if the said slaves
avere not landed, that they would have effected the same by force, and that he was ia fear for his
dife and the lives of the Acting Master and Crew; that the Crew only consisted of 9 persons, that
theslaves were at large, and therefore the said Crew were not able to keep themin subjection.”
Nofurther proceedings took place in the Cause until the 17th instant, when Mr. Lake, the

Proctor for the Captor, brought in an Affidavit made on the [3th instant, by Captain D. C.
-Clavering, of His Majesty's Ship «‘ Redwing.’ Captain Clavering deposed, ‘ that on or about
‘the 8th day of January last, a Brig, under Brazilian Colours,-cailed the ‘‘ Nova Brilliante,” was
boarded off Elmina by the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship ‘‘ Redwing; ” thac the same Brig was again
boarded by a Boat of the said Ship in the latter end of February, off Badagry ; and again in the
datter Place, on the 7th of March last.” -‘This Affidavit corroborates the testimony of the 4 sea-
men to the point of the Brig ‘* Brilliante” having been at Badagry as stated by them on or,about
the time the ** Perpetuo Defensor’? was there. .

~ Ou the Ist of August, Mr. Lake, the Proctor for the Captor, after stating, first, ‘* that the
Vessel and Slaves had been given up to the Claimant since the early part of June last ;"* secondly,
*¢ that the said Vessel and Slaves had been received by the Claimants ;” and thirdly, -*‘ that since
the 7th day of Jaly no Documents of any kind whatever bad been filed by the Claimant in the said
use,”prayed the Court would be pleased to dismiss the Captors, and not let chem suffer for the

‘neglect of the Claimantsor their Agents. This Petition was rejected, on the ground that the
délay was gnavoidable in consequence of the severe illness of the Commissary Judge, independent
wfother-circumstances, and also that Mr. Lake had made assertions in his Petition which were
not facts.; the first of which, that states ‘* the Vessel and Slaves were given up to the Claimants since
-the early part of June last,” is contradicted in. Mr. Tollervey’s Letter to the Colonial Secretary on
the 28th-of June, wherein he states, “‘ he bad received Instructions from Mr. Lake, the Proctor .
for Commodore Bullen, to give up to the- Portuguese Claimants the Slaves in the ‘* Perpetuo De-
feusor * and the *¢ Susan, '*Colonial Brig, on their claiming them the next day,” and Mr. Tol-
Jervey dates this Letter on board the said Brig ‘* Perpetao Defensor” The third assertion, ** that
since thé 7th day of July last, no. Document of any kind wnatever had been filed by the Claimant
‘in the. said Case,’’ is contradicted by the Records of the Court, whereby Mr. Lake would have seen,

jad heapplied-at: the Registry Office, which be ought to have done, that two Documents had

beeb brought in by Mr. Savage since the 7th of July, viz: one on the &th, and the:other on the
12th of that Month. . , .
_The Commissioner of -Arbitration, however, in the hope of facilitating the Canse, sat on the

ay following but one, when (both Parties having agreed to consider him alone to constitute a

couipetent Court,) after the claint aud proofs in the Case were read, he admitted the said Claim for

eost$, damages and expeiices incurred in consequence of the seizure of the said Brig and Cargo,

and referred it to the Registrar to ascertain the amount thereof, and report the same to. the Court.

On the 23d of August, Mr. Savage brought into Court 2 Affidavits respecting a charge that”

bad been brought before the Acting King’s Advocate,respecting the slaves on board the ** Perpetuo
Defensor.” ‘The first of these Affidavits is that of John Garel, who deposed, ‘* that. on the 6th

day of July last, daring the time that this Deponent was executing the office of providing the
slaves on board with provisions on behalf of the Claimant of the said Brig, that he was desired

by William Heory Savage, the Proctot on behalf of the said Claimant, to attend at 3 o’clock of
the same day, at the House of the Acting King's Advocate, the said Proctor informing this De-
pouent that the Acting Governor had: desired: the said Crown Officer to inquire into’a charge
made against this Deponent respecting the said slaves ;. that, the Deponent and Proctor attended
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accordingly at the house of the said Acting King’s Advocate, when an Officer, belonging, as De-
ponent was informed, tothe ‘ Maidstone”? Ship-of-War, made a charge against this Deponent,
that he had been the means cf preventing the escape of the slaves on board the ‘ Perpetuo De-
fensot ;”’ that the said charge was fully gone into before the said Aeting King’s Advecate, and
dismissedas unsupported by evidence; and Deponent farther says, that this Deponent was then
informed by. the said Acting King’s Advocate, that his Honour the Acting Governor had requested
it should be. stated to this Deponent, that if this Deponent at all interfered to prevent the escape
of the slaves, or to keep them on board, that he would be proceeded against according to law5
in the otber Affidavit, William Henry Savage, the Claimants’ Proctor, deposed, © that on the 6th
day of July last, he was informed by his Honour the Acting Governor, the Honourable Kenneth
Macanlay, that iv consequence of a complaint made to him, he desired that John Garel should
attend the Acting King’s Advocste at 3 o’clock, to have the said charge inquired into; that De-
ponent therefore gave such notice to the said John Garel, and with him attended the Office of the
Acting King’s Advocate; that acharge was srought against him, the said John Garel, for assist-
ing the Portuguese in charge of the said Brig Perpetuo Defensor” to prevent the slaves from
escaping from the said Brig, and to keep them iu confinement on board the said Brig ; that Deponent
stated that he had sent orders to the Acting Master to prevent any one from leaving the said Brig
who were considered part of the Cargo, and therefore that any: message delivered by the said John
Garel, to that tenour and meaning was according to bis Instructions; that the said Acting King’s
Advocate then stated, that he had it in command to state, that if John Garel, or any other person
belonging to the Colony, employed about the said Brig or not, were to prevent the said slaves from
leaving the said Brig, or to keep them on board, were aiding and assisting, they would be prose~
cuted. ‘These Affidavits were not answered by the Proctor for the Captor, till after the Registrar
had made his Report of the amount of costs, damages atid expences, which was on the 29th of Au-
gust, in consequence, as was stated by Mr. Lake, of his not knowing Mr. Savage had filed the said
Affidavits, till he saw it mentioned in the Registrar's Report, he therefore brought in two Afiidavits
on the 6th day of September, in answer to thein,—in the first of which he, the said John Dean

‘ Lake, deposed, “‘ that on the 6th day of July jast, at or about 4 o’elock in the Afternoon, he, this
Deponent, being at Government House, in conversation with his Flonour the Acting Governor,
did see Mr. William Henry Savage enter the said House and inform his said Honour the Acting
Governor that he, Mr. Savage, had come to the decision of landing a number of slaves that were
on board the said Brig, and to abide the decision of the Court of Mixed Commission 3 that at the
time this: Deponent clearly and distinctly heard the said Mr. Savage express to his Honour the
Acting Governor, that although he, Mr. Savage, had come to the decision of landing the said
slaves, yet he liad means in his power, or on board the said Vessel, to coerce the sais slaves should
he deem it expedient, and that he would take the chanceofbeing paid the value of the whole of the
said slaves, or no part thereof.
“ That the said slaves were landed on the same evening by the direction and under the super-

intendence of the said Mr. William Henry Savage.” In the other of these Affidavits the Ho-
nourable Kenneth Macaulay deposed, ‘* tnat he had read the betore-mentioned Affidavit of Mr,
Lake, the Proctor in the said, Cause, and had found that the several circumstances therein stated
to have taken place; to be tnily alleged.”

In reply to these Affidavits, on the }Ith of September following, Mr. Savage brought in-an
Affidavit made by him, in. which he deposed, “ that during the period that there existed some
uncertainty respecting the feeding-ot the slaves on board the ** Perpetuo Defensor” and the
Colonial, Brig ‘* Susan,” this Deponent waited on his Honour the Acting’ Governor of
the Colony (Mr Macaulay), and in conversation respecting the said slaves, his Honour declared
unto this. Deponent, ¢ that even if the Court of Mixed Commission were to restore Claimant the
slaves, it would be impossible for Claimant to carry them away in slavery, as in his capacity of
Acting Governor, he would not permit the said Vessel to procure provisions or water in this
Colony for the use of the said slaves ;’ that the person employed in supplying provisions
was brought up before the Acting King’s Advocate, to answer for his conduct relative to the
using some means to prevent the escape of the slaves, and charges of cruelty had also been made
against the Acting Master, on which was founded a motion for a Writ of Habeas Corpus
to remove the said slaves from on board the ‘* Perpetao Defensor,” Deponent could not, there~
fore, venture to advise the adoption of any coercive measures towards the'said slaves, so as to
keep them in subordination,for fear. of incurring the displeasure of -his Honour the Acting
Governor, and involving the Acting Master and Crew, and also this Deponent, in a criminal
prosecution. And this Deponent having had represented unto him the very outrageous manner the.
slaves were acting, after they had seen their fellows landed from the ‘* Susan,’ both towards: the
Acting Master and the slender Crew-on board, did, therefore, to prevent any fatal consequence;.
either to the Crew. or Slaves, and which Deponent had every reason to believe would take place
if the said slaves were not permitted to be landed, and also taking into consideration. the
aforesaid Declaration of his Honour the Acting Governor, and the several circumstances before
mentioned, did advise the Claimant'to give way to necessity, and consent to the landing the sdid
slaves, and that the Claimant having consented, this Deponent, on or about the: &h day of July,
did wait on his Honour the Acting Governor, and state to his Honour that Claimant bad come to
the resolution of letting the said slaves be landed, and that this Deponent did, therefore, concert
measures tocatty the same into effect before the closé of that day, being pressed thereto by the
Acting Master and Crew, who further declared unto this Deponent their fears for their personal
satety were so great that, unless the said slaves were landed before night, they, the said Acting
Master and Crew, would quit the Vessel.” , : ,

After’ this a delayof several days took place before the Court could further consider’ this Case;
in congéquence of the intervening of the Quarter Sessions, at which the Commissioners had to
attend, and which was of much longerduration than is commonly the case. .
On the 26th of September, the Court having maturely considered the Report of the Registrar,

ordered the same to be referred back to that Officer to be amended, by striking out, under the
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head of Special Damages and Expences, £256, being of opivion that the said sum was claimed.

for expences which the amount allowed for demurrage would cover. The Court turthey directed

that in lieu of the sum of £225, allowed by the Registrar for the Interest of the supposedCapital

employed, which includes the value of the Brig, that the Interest be allowed on the amountof

the purchase and maintenance of the Cargo, which the Court conceived meant the purchase and

maintenance of the slaves only, reckoning the value of the slaves and their maint:nance al the

cost-price in the Brazils, of the goods with whith the slaves were purchase, and the means of

their maintenance procured, in manner following, viz: 4°3 slaves slipped on board, according

to the Master’s statement, at £4 each, according to the Leeward price, and 2d, Britizh sterling per

head, per diem, for the maintenance of each slave, that being about the rate of maintenance of the
liberated Africans when first landed in this Colony.
On the 28th of September the Registrar brought in the amended Report, wherein he

stated his opinion that the Claimant was entitled to, first, £79, for special costs, damages,

and expences occasioned to the Brig by detention ; secondly, £1430 for demurrage, from April
. 20 *

the 18th to the 26th of August at £11 a day, the Brig being 212,55 tons burthen; thirdly,

£122 10s. for subsisting the slaves from the 29th of June to the Gth of July, at Is. per day for
each slave; fourthly, 79.716,000 reis for the total loss of 3fi4 slaves, at 219,000 reis each,
(under the fitth head no Claim was made); sixthly, £102 9s Sd. for 5 per cgnt on the amount
_of the Capital employed in the purchase and maintenance of the Cargo, amounting in the whole
to £1,733 19s. Sd. and 79,716,000 reis. oS

After the Report was read, Mr. Lake, the Proctor for the Captor, prayed the Court that the
said Report might be further amended by allowing for the total loss of 276 slaves only, instead
of 364, by reason of the Claimant’s Proctor having taken upon himself to land the 88 slaves
from the ‘* Perpetuo Defensor,” there having been no necessity for his so doing, and insisted

that there had been no violence manifested on the part of the slaves to warrant their having been
put en Shore, nor were they at that time in a state of revolt; but as the Court were of opinion
that the revolt and violence manifested by.the slaves bad been clearly proved by the Affidavits
filed for that purpose, the allegations in which had not been atrempted to be refuted but by the
simple assertion of Mr. Lake, which assertion did not accord with what had been said in
the Letter to the Colonial Secretary, by Mr ‘ollervey, the Prize Master; and as it had also
been distinctly proved by the Affidavits of Messrs. Savage aud Garel, that ie was the determina-
tion of the Colonial Government wot to allow any one to controul the said slaves from leaving the
Vessel if they pleased, which although said to be answered by Mr. Macaulay, the Governor, and
Mr. Lake, the Captor’s Proctor, yet not one of the assertions in those Alidavits were even de-

nied by them in their Affidavits, but only fresh matter alleged, stating that Mr. Savage had

asserted he had the means in his power, or on board, of coercing the slaves if he chose it:
the Court, therefore, being fully satished that the Claimant, Antonio Mauricio de Mendonga, was
obliged to submit to circumstances, and being also of opinion that, if the +laves had not béen ex-
cited to insubordination by Mariin and o.tiers, there would have been no ryelt, and conse-
quently no necessity toland then, refused the prayer of Mr. Lake. ‘The Court then confirmed
unconditionally the sum allowed by the Repistrar for Costs of Suit, and for Specigl Damages

and Expences occasioned to the said Brig by detention, amounting to £79; the Court also con-
firmed unconditionallythe sum allowed by him, for provisiouing the slaves from the 29th of June
to the 6thday of July last, amounting to the sum of £122 10s, and it having been represented
and proved to the satisfaction of the Court, that the said Ship would be unable to proceed to Sea,
unless the Master could raise a further sum of £150, by the Court giving a further unconditional

award for that sum, the Commissioners, therefere, did also unconditionally confirm so much of
the sum allowed by the Registrar in the said Report, for demurrage, as amounts to £'50, making
in the whole an unconditional award for £351 10s for costs of suit, special damages and
expences, provisioning the slaves, and for part of the demurrage.
And the Commissioners being fully convinced that the Claimant in this Case had carried

on an illicit Traffick in Slaves during the present voyage, inasmuch as it had been clearly

proved that Slaves taken on board this Vessel were shipped from Badagry in 6. 26. North.

of the Equator, in direct defiance of the Additicnal Convention to the Treaty made between
Great Britain and Portugal in the Year of our Lord 1817, for the prevention of illicit Traffick in

Slaves; and the Commissioners, theretore, having deemed it just and equitable that the Case

should be adjudicated on-the same principles as the Case of the Brig * Active,” whereot Jozé

Pinto de Araujo was Master, which Case was lately before the Court, inasmuch as Commodore
Bullen, the Captor, could not be awareofthe decision in that Case at the time he made the pre-
sent seizure; and the Commissioners being of opinion, as in that Case, that the absolute-and ‘un-

conditional confirming the whole of the amended Report would be contrary to. the principles of

equity, and would in point of fact be rewarding the Claimant, not ordy tor a breach of the Con-
vention betweenGreat Britain and Portugal for the prevention of the illicit Traffick inSlaves

b& also for a breach of the Laws of his own Country ; and the Commissioners having considered
is this Case, as -in the former, that, by the Convention aforesaid, there is no appeal from their
Judgment, and also that it was most desirable that some additional measure should be adopted by
the British and Brazilian.Governments, tor the prevention of such glaring violations of the Con«

ventiun asthe present and that ofthe “* Activo ;”’ and in the hope that this Case may, in addition

to the ather, particularly call ferxth the attention of both Governments, have, theretore, -ouly
covfirmed the remuining part ofthe said Report, in the event of the British and Brazilian Go-
vernments agreeing end declaring the same ought to be coufirmed, according to the true jatent
and meaning of the Convention aforesaid, but not otherwise. - _

(Signed) D, M. HAMILTON.
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Second Enclosure in No. 46.

Decree of the Mixed Commission, 3d August 1826,

Portuguese Brig * Perpetuo Defensor,’ Antonio Mauricio de Mendonga,Master.
THE Proctors for Captor and Claimant having petitioned the Court to appoint an early day

for the hearing of the Parties in the above Cause; His Britannick Majesty’s Commissioner otArbitration, sat this day for the purpose of furthering the Proceedings in this Case, thé Proctorson each side agreeing to consider His Britannick Majesty's Commissioner of Arbitration, sittingby himself, in the unavoidable absence of His Britannick Majesty’s Commissary Judge fromsevere illness, as a full and competent Court. . .
The said Commissioner of Ar¥itration, haying heard the Claim and Proofs read, and the Proctors

on both sides thereon, admitted the Claim for Costs, Damages and Expences incurred, in conse-
quence of the Seizure of the said Brig and Cargo, and referred it to the Registrar to ascertain theamount thereof, and report the same to the Court,

Third Enclosure in No. 46.

Decreeof the Mixed Commission, 26th September 1826.

Portuguese Brig ‘ Perpetuo Defensor,” Antonio Mauricio De Mendonga, Master;
THIS day the Court, atter hearing the Report of the Registrar read, and the Proctors on bothsides on the same, ordered the said Report to be referred back to the Registrar to be amended bystriking out, under the bead of Special Damages and Expences, the following sums: yiz :—~

‘£22 Qs. Amount of Baker’s bill for 80 days.
22 Us. Amount of Butcher's bill for 80 days.
60 @s. To purchase provisions for Crew of 19 persons for a Voyage from hence to Rio Janeiro,

a supposed Voyage of 60 days.
20 0s. To purchase Cabin stores.
13 Os. For wooding and watering.

19 10, }Fer advance to Seamen hired here:97 10s. .
the Commissioners being of opinion the said sums are expences, which the amount allowedfor demurrage covers, ‘The Commissioners further directed that in lieu of the sum of£225 allowed
by the Registrar for the interest of the supposed Capital emp'oyed, which includes the value ofthe Brig, that the interest be allowed on the amount of the purchase and maintenance of theCargo, which the Commissioners conceive means the purchase and maintenance of the slaves
only, reckoning the value of the slaves, and their maintenance at the cost price in the Brazils of
the goods with which the slaves were purchased, and the means of their maintenance, procured inmanner following, viz, :—473 slaves shipped ou board according to the Master's Statement, atan average of £4each, according to the Leeward price, and two-pence, British sterling, per headper diem for the maintenance of each slave, that being about the rate of Maintenance of the libe-
rated Africans when first landed in this Colony, which appears to the Court to be a fair rate,

Fourth Enclosure in No. 46.

Decree ofthe Mixed Commission, 28th September 1826.

Portuguese Brig ‘* Perpetuo Defensor,’ Autenio Mauricio de Mendonca, Master.
THE -Registrar’s Report, amended, as ordered by the Court on the 26th day of this instantmonth of September, being brought in and read, and Proctors on both sides being heard an the

same, the Commissioners confirmed, unconditionally, so much of the said Report as the Registrar
therein set forth tlre Claimant was entitled to for costs of suit, and for Special Damages and
Yixpences occasioned to the said Brig by detention, amounting to £79; they also confirmed un-
conditionally so much more of the said Report as the Registrarstated the Claimant entitled to forprovisioning the slaves, trom the 29th of June to the 6th day of July last, amounting to the sum
of £122 i0s.; and it having been represented and proved to the satisfaction of the Court, that
the said Ship would be anable to proceed to Sea, unless the Master could raise a further sum of
£150, by the Court giving a further unconditional award for that sum 3 the Commissioners there-fore did also wnconditiouaily confirm so mach of the sum allowed by the Registrar in the saidReport tor demarrage as amounts te £150. ‘Whereupon the Commissioners did award and decree
that Charles Bullen, Esquire, the Captor in this Case, do pay te the said Antonio Mauricio de
Mendonca, or his lawful Attorney or Arttornies, for his use, unconditionally, the before mentionedsums, amounting in the whole ta £351 10s. being for costs of suit, special damages and expences,provisioning of the slaves and for part of the demurrage as aforesaid. a
And the Commissioners having stated their conviction, that the Claimant in this Case had carriedon an illicit ‘Trafick in Slaves during the present Voyage, inasmuch as it hadbeen clearly provedthat the slaves taken on board this Vessel were shipped from Badagry, in 6. 26. North of theEquator, and 2. 52. Longitude East of Greenwich, in direct, defiance of theConventionmade

betyreen Gregt Britain ‘and Portugal, in the Year of our Lord 18172 for the prevention of illicit
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Traffick in Slaves; and the Commissioners, therefore, deeming it just and equitable that this Case
should be adjudicated on the same principles as the Case of the Brig ‘ Activo,” whereof Juzé Pinto
de Araujo, was Master, which Case was lately before this Court, inasmuch as the said Charles
Bullen, Esquire, could not be aware of the decision in that Case at the time he made the present
Seizure, and the Commissioners being of opinion, as in that Case, that the absolute and uncondi-
tional confirming the whole of the amended Report, would be contrary to the principles of equity,
and would, in point of fact, be rewarding the Claimant, not only for a breach of the Convention,
between Great Britain and Portugal, for the prevention of the illicit Tyaifick in Slaves, but also for
a breach of the Laws of his own Country; and the Commissioners having considered in this Case,
as in the former, that by the Convention aforesaid, there is no appeal from their Judgment, and
also that it is most desirable that some additional measure should be adopted by the British and
Brazilian Governments for the. prevention of such glaring violations of the Convention xs the
present, and that of the ‘ Activo,” and in the hope that this Case may in addition to the other,
particularly call forth the attention of both Governments, have, therefore, only conditionally con-
firmed the remaining part of the amended Report; and therefore the Commissioners did further
award and decree that the said Charles Bullen, Esq., the Captor in this Case, do pay to the
said Antonio. Mauricio de Mendonga, or his lawful Attorney or Attornies, for his use, the sum of
#1,280 for the remainder of the amount of demurrage of the said Brig, provided the British and
Brazilian Governments agree. and declare that the said sum ought to be so paid according to the
true intent and meaning of the Convention aforesaid, but not otherwise.
And the said Commissioners did further award and decree that the said Charles Bullen, Esq.,

do pay to the said Antonio Mauricio de Mendonga, or his lawful Attorney or Attornies, for his
use, the further sum of 79,716,000 reis, for the total loss of 364 slaves, provided, as before, that
the British and Brazilian Governments agree and declare that the same ought to be so paid
according to the true intent and meaning of the Convention aforesaid, but not otherwise.
And the said Commissioners did further award and decree that the said Charles Bullen, Esq.,

do pay to the said Antonio Mauricio de Mendonea, or his lawful Attorney or Attornies, for his use,
the further sum of £102 9s, 8d. being for the interest on the estimated capital employed in the
purchase. aud maintenance of. the Cargo of slaves, provided, as before, the British and Brazilian
Governments agree and declare that the said sum ought to be so paid, according to the true intent
and meaning uf the Convention aforesaid, but not otherwise,

 

No. 47.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 30, 1826.

YOUR several Despatches up to the 12th of October, marked Portugal,
have been duly received.
~In reference to the Despatches containing Reports of the Cases of the

Ships “ Activo” and “ Perpetuo Defensor,” I have to refer you to the Case
of the “ Sinceridade,” adjudged by you in the Year 1823, and to the Decla-
ration which, in that Case, was made to His Most Faithful M ajesty by the
British Government, through The King’s Envoy: that, on the one hand, no
Compensation can, in equity, be due to Traders for losses sustained by them
in Cases of Traffick carried on under circumstances which constitute illegal
Trade ; whilst, on the other hand, no Condemnation of a Vessel ought to
take place when thecapture is made at a Spot not absolutely within the Boun-
dary prescribed for Capture by the Treaties.

This Declaration was not objected to by the Portuguese Government, and
the principle of it, therefore, may be considered to be fully admitted.
As the Cases of Brazilian Vessels charged with illicit Slave Trade must be

adjudged under the Compacts and Agreements with Portugal, until some further
and special Convention shall be entered into upon the subject between the
Countries of Great Britain and Brazil, there is at present no clear course for
you to pursue, in regard to Brazilian Vessels, other than to act upon the spirit
of the Compacts and Agreements with Portugal.
In regard to those Slaves who, under circumstances of illegal shipment, but

unwarranted capture, shall actually have been brought to Adjudication, I have
to acquaint you, that the principle on which the Court acted in the “Perpetuo
Defensor,” in decreeing such Slaves to be restored to the Master, for the use
of the Claimant, was correct. But if special Cases should oceur, in which
the Court should be prevented, by unforeseen circumstances, fram makin
such a Decree, or should be required to make any special disposition of such
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Slaves, it must use its discretion as to what may be right to be done. The
Court cannot, with propriety, condemn them, or make an Order for their
Emancipation. The only expedient seems to be, that the Slaves should be
placed under the superintendence of the Local Government by some Condi-
tional Order. But this again will be subject to the Instructions which you
may receive on the objection which has occurred in the Case of the “ Activo”
and “Perpetuo Defensor,” on which I shall probably have, shortly, to instruct
you farther. Iam, &c.

(Signed) GEORGE CANNING.
His Majesty's Commissioners.
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No. 48.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, March 13, 1826.

WITH reference to the Treaty with the Netherlands for the Prevention
‘of Slave-trade, I have to acquaint you, that, by a Communication this day
received from the Admiralty, it appears that the Instructions referred to in
the said Treaty, have been issued to the following Ships and Vessels of His
Majesty’s Navy :

Names. Guns. - Commanders.

Flussar voc ceccceees AO. 2... G. Harris.
Brasen coccveccaces - 26...... G. W. Willes.
PYIMTOSE oo cece eae 18..... . Oct. V. Vernon.
fledwing. occ. cceeees 18 ...... D. C. Clavering.
Dispatch ....6. 0. 18...... Robt. W. Parsons.
EBerret veceswees 10...... Wm. Hobson.
Conflict G. Vow... Ye... Lieut. J. Chrystie.

And that the Instructions, which had heen issued to His Majesty’s Ships
“« Pyramus,” “ Ariadne,” “ Bann,” “ Victor,” fiingdove,” and “ Grecian,”
have been recalled, and cancelled. Tam, &c.
Eis Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

 

No. 49.

John Tasker Wilkams, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.-—(Received May 22.)

Sia, Seerra Leone, February 15, 1826.
I HAVE the honour to transmit, herewith, a Report of the Case of the

Dutch Schooner “ Hoop,” belonging to St. Eustatius, Jacob Walters, Master.
She was detained, off Manna, on the 3d January, by a Boat of His Majesty’s
Ship “ Maidstone,” Commodore Bullen, and brought into Sierra Leone.
This Case caine on for Adjudication in the British and Netherlands Court

of Mixed Commission on the 23d of January, and was proved to come so
clearly under almost all the Provisions of the Additional Article to the Treaty
between His Majesty and His Majesty The King of the Netherlands, signed
at Brussels, the 25th of January 1823, that I do not feel myself justified in
trespassing on your time by any detail of particulars, but beg to refer you to
the Report. I have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.
The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. &e. &e.

Enclosure in No, 49.

Report of the Caseof the Dutch Schooner “ Hoop,” Jacob Walters, Master.

THIS Vessel was detained on the 3d of January 1826, off Manna, by a Boat of His Majesty’s
Ship ‘* Maidstone” (Commodore Bullen, C,B,) under the command of Lieutenant WilliamGray,
of the same Ship.
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The Declaration of Commedore Bullen states, that: the Boat of His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Maid-
stone,” under the: command of Lieutenant Gray, being between the River Gallinas-and Manna,

and off Shore about 20 miles, detained the “* Huop,” sailing under Dutch Colours, belonging to

St. Eustatius, not having slaves on board, but falling under several-of thedesignations of the

Additional Articles to the Treaty with the Netherlands, of the 4th May 1818, signed at Brussels

on the 25th day of January 1823, viz:
Having been found within: the limits particularly specified in the aforementioned Treaty, and

hovering about the said River Gallivas and Manna.
Having. her hatches fitted with opengratings, instead: of being fitted with close hatches, as

usual in Merchant Vessels. ;
Having spare plank, numbered, ent and fitted, for readily laying a slave, or moveable, deck.
‘Having on board shackles, bolts and hand-cuffs, contained in casks, to appearance, atfirst

sight, part of the Cargo tor trade, being similarly packed to bread, beef, &c.
Having on board a greater number of water-casks, and many of them filled, more by far than

réquisite for the consumption of the Crew, as a Merchant-Vessel, and’ no Certificate produced by

the Master from the Custom-House at which he cleared out, stating that sufficient security had

been given by the Owners that such casks should only be used for the reception of palm-oil.

Having on board a quantity of mess kids.
- Having on board large boilers, and also a great quantity of rice, the whole far beyond any

robable requisite for the use of her Crew as a Merchant-Vessel, and no Manifest produced by

the Master that the rice was part of the Cargo for trade.
The Papers and necessary Affidavits were delivered into the Registry on the 9th of January

1$26, and a Monition was prayed tor and issued on the ith, citing the Parties interested in the

Cause to appear, in proper time, before the Court; which Monition was returned to the Registry

on the 19th,
This Schooner, when taken, had only 4 Papers on board, viz: her Passport, Clearance,

Muster-roll and Log. Her Passport, granted by the Governor of St. Eustatius, “‘ W. A. Vou

' Spengler,’ on the 23d of November 1825, states: her to be the property of John Hill, a Na-

turalized Sabject of The King of Holland, residing in St. Eustatius. There is a Special Clause ia

thebody of the said Passport, that it should hold ‘* good for 12 Months for general navigation,

excepting on the Coast of Guinea. (‘* Goed voor twaalf Maanden our overal te navigeren

uitgezonderd op de Kust van Guinea *’)

Her Clearance, signed by J. Verscheur, the Collector at St. Eustatius, on the 23d: of November

1925, states her to have cleared out with @ Cargo for exportation for the Coast of Brazil, and

her Log, ia positive contradiction, proves her to have come direct to the Coast of Afcica, which

‘she had made 2 days only previous to capture.
‘The Master, Mate and Steward, on their Examination, deposed, that the Schooner in ques-

tion, and Cargo laden on board of her, were the property of the said Joha Hill, that their object

ia coming to the Coast of Africa was to trade for palm-oil and ivory, and totally devied all

knowledge of the facts stated by the Captors, with the exception of the acknowledgment, that

the Vessel was fitted with open gratings. The Master further deposed, that Instructions from

the Owner for his future guidance had been sent to the Gallinas, to await his arrival there.

Under these conflicting circumstances, the Court decreed a- Commission of ‘Jaspection and

Survey to issue to the Marshal, and two other respectable Persons to proceed on board thesaid
Schooner ‘‘ Hoop,” and to report thereon.

Their Report confirmed, in every material point, the Declaration of theCaptor,

No Claimants appeared fur the Vessel, and no doubt existing in the minds of the Commissioners

as to the illegality of the Voyage in which the said Schooner ‘* Hoop” was engaged when taken,

Sentence of Condemnation was passed against her, and-she was accordingly condemned as lawiul

Prize to the Crowns of Great Britain and Holland.

 

Sierra Leone, February 15, 1826. JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS,

No. 50.

J.T. Withams, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—{Received May 22.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, March 20, 1826.

WITH the present Despatch, I have the honour to transmit to you a

Report of the Adjudication of the Schooner ‘‘ 4mable Claudina,” Claudio

Picaluga, Master, sailing under Dutch Colours. She was detained by His

Majesty’s Ship “Atholl,” off the Castle of St. George d’Elmina, on the 12th of

November 1825, and sent here to be tried before the British and Netherlands

Mixed Court of Justice, by which Court she was condemned on the 6th of ©

February last, for having been concerned in illegally trafficking in Slaves. _

L-also forward, herewith, the Report of the Case of the Brig “ Charles,”

Louis L’Oiseau, Master, sailing under the same Flag, which Vessel arrived ia
this Harbour on the 21st January, having been captured by His Majesty's

Brig-ot-War, “ Conflict,” Lieutenant Joha Chrystie, Commander, off Duke's
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‘Town, in Old Calabar River, on the 22d of December last; she is reported
to be of 190 tons burthen, and is stated to have had on board, when taken,
265 Slaves; the trial of this Vessel took place on the 15th instant, and she
was condemned as Jawful Prize. ;

It is, indeed, matter of great regret to me, to have to report to you, Sir,
‘that this banefu! traffick appears to have assumed a novel feature, and which,
until it be checked, must of certainty tend most materially to increase
the misery inflicted on the wretched population of this ill-fated Country.
‘The Slave-trade is now carried on to a much greater extent than has been
hitherto known, under cloak of the Flag of His Majesty. The King of the
Netherlands. ;
During the last 8 Months, no less than 7 Vessels have been brought in

by His Majesty’s Squadron tor Adjudication, viz: the Bey? “Z;? La
Venus 3" “ Hoop 3” “ Amable Claudina 3? “ Charles 3” and “ Vogel ;” 6
of these Vessels were furnished with Papers from the Colonial Authorities at
Saint Eustatius, and one at Curacao.
The 3 first Cases were decided previous to my arrival; the circumstances

which were developed in each of them, elucidated so clearly the object they
had in view,.as to leave no doubt on the minds of the Judges, as to the
illegality of the pursuits in which the Parties connected with these Vessels
were concerned.
For the particulars of the “ Hoop,” I beg to refer you to my Despatch,

and Report ot the 15th of February.
There are certain points connected with the “ Amable Claudina” and the

“* Charles,” more particularly the former, which I deem it my duty to sub-
Tit to you. ,
Had it not been for the application which was made to Captain Murray,

by the Authorities of His Netherlands Majesty’s Government on the Gold
Coast, I humbly conceive his power would not have been competent to any
interferenee with any Vessel, bearing that Flag, under the walls of their
principal Settlement. The peculiar circumstances of this transaction, called
upon as he was by them to act, would, however, have rendered this obser-
vation on my part needless, did F not consider it to be my duty to commu- -
nicate to you all such matters connected with this branch of the Publick Ser-
vice, as may come to my knowledge. It would appear that the view which
the Governor of Elmina took of this matter was, that the Moiety of the
Proceeds of the “ Amable Claudina” did, of right, belong to his particular
Government on the Gold Coast, and, acting upon this impression, he wrote a
Letter on the subject to His Netherlands Majesty’s Judge. A_ translated
Copy of this Letter was handed to me by Mr. Bonnouvrié, which I have
deemed it’ best to forward to you, tn order to guard against any observations
that may, by possibility, be made; not that I anticipate any such, for the
Vessel having been sent to this Court for Adjudication, the disposition of
the Proeeeds is so clearly provided for, as to leave no room for discussion.

{also transmit a Copy of Mr. Breggen Paauw’s Letter to Captain Murray,
with the Affidavit of the latter, as well as the Affidavit of LieutenantCaiger,.
who took possession of the Schooner.
As all these Cases seem to bear a similar stamp, I have further thought

it right to send you a Copy of the Licence granted by the Governor of St.
Eustatius to the Persons concerned in the “ AmableClaudina.” .

These Licences are evidently obtained (and that for the purpose of at-
tempting to delude), by Parties who are not at all connected as regards the
Person or the Property, with the Flag under which they endeavour to cloak
their nefarious purposes. oe

The 2 Vessels, the « Bey” and the “Hoop” are, doubtless, American
Property ; the Owners naturalized at St. Eustatius. Two others, the “ Z.”
and “ Venus,” are French; the Owners and Consignees being MessieursSaubot, Joubert, and Co. of Martinique, Half the Cargo of the ‘‘ Amable
Claudina,” was French Property belonging: to Persons at Bordeaux; and theconnection of the “ Charies” with Guadaloupe,” renders her property, tpsay the least of it, doubtful.
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I have thought it to be my duty to communicate with my Colleague, Mr.

Bonnouvrié, on the nature of these Proceedings, and he has assured me, that he

has made strong representations to his Government on the subject; these, I

hope, may. have.a beneficial influence, and that His NetherlandsMajesty
may be pleased -to direct the Governors of his Colonies to exercise greater

caution, as to the Parties to whom such Licences are granted.
I cannot conclude my observations on this Case, without expressing my

extreme regret, after the sense, you, Sir, had expressed of the Affair of
the “ Rosalia,” and. others, that a similar line of proceeding should
have been followed in the present instance; and that such measures- should
have been adopted to influence the re-shipment of the slaves in the “ Amable
Claudina,” at, or near, to Popoe. I thought it necessary to communicate ver-
bally with Commodore Bullen on this subject, and should have done so offi-
cially, had T not felt a delicacy, arising from the fear that I might be consi-
dered as overstepping the line of duty which has been marked out
for me.
The principal peculiarity in the Case of the “ Charles,” is, that she is the

only Vessel of the late number under the Dutch Flag that has been taken
with slaves on board, She also sailed under a Licence from the Governor of
St. Eustatius, as appeared by the concealed Papers which were found on ~
board. Amongst the French Papers which were first produced, there was

‘one, dated at “ Pointe a Pitre, Guadaloupe,” 24th April 1825, only 3 days
previous to the date of a similar Document at Saint Eustatius; it states her
to be “ Le Brick L’Eugene,” Commandé par Le Sieur Louis Guion, Appar--
tenant 4 Monsieur Victor Rancé, allant au Grand Cabotage.” For the further
circumstances of this Case, I beg your reference to the Report.

I find one Document among the Papers of the “ Charles,” a Copy ofwhich
I think of importance to send to you; it is a Receipt for the largesum of600
dollars, received by “ 'T. G. Groebe,” the Government Secretary at. St.
Eustatius, for renewing the Register and Muster-roll, and for obtaining
Security for 2000 dollars, which Security, it appears, by other Documents,
was given that she should not be illicitly employed in the Slave-trade.
The last Vessel in the List, which I have given in the preceding part of

this Letter, “ The Vogel,” arrived here on the 11th instant, she was taken. off
Grand Carrow, by a Boat of His Majesty’s Ship “ Brazen,” Captain Willes,
on the 22d of January last, on the plea of being fitted out for the Slave-trade.
The Court wili have to take this Case into consideration in a few days, when I
shall have the honour to make my Report to you upon it.

I fear there may have been the appearance of a neglectful delay in some
of my Communications, but this has been caused by circumstances, which
I regret, but not by myself; they are such as, I trust, maynot again occur,
and I have, therefore, Sir, to pray your indulgence. -

I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) JOHN. TASKER WILLIAMS,

The Right Hon. George Canning, -
&c. &e. &e.

First Enclosure in No. 50.

Report of the Case of the “ Amable Claudina,” Claudio Picaluga, Master,
captured under Netherlands Colours.

THE «* Amable Claudina,”" 4 Schooner of the burthen of 85 tons, of which Clandio Picalaga
‘was Master, was taken possession ‘of in the Roadstead of St. George. d’Elmina, by Lieutenatit

Caiger; acting. under orders from Captain James Arthur Murray, of His Majesty’s Ship *¢ Atholl,”
on the. 12th day of November 1825. ‘
The Declaration of Captain Murray sets forth, that on. the day specified, being off Elmina

Custte, he detained the Schooner ‘‘ Amable Claudina,’’ sailing under Duteb Colours, commaniléd

by Claudio Picaluga, whodeclared her to’be bound fiom Bordeaux to the Coast of Africa, én the
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ground of her having on board2moveable,or slave-deck, apen gratings,and being fitted for the
reception of slaves ; that she was supplied ‘with an‘ extraordinary number of water-cusks for a
‘Cargo of Slaves, and also.oa the plea of-her having had slaves on board during the Voyage
which she yas then prosecuting, being in contradiction to the. Explanatory and Additional Arti-
les to the Treaty of the tth May 1818, between His Majesty aud His Majesty The King of the
Netherlands, signed at Brussels the 25th January 1823.
His Majesty's Ship <«‘ Atholl’ having arrived at Sierra Leone (previous to the ** Amable Clau-

dina,”) and representations having been made that His Majesty’s service required her early de-
parture to another Station, the Captor's Proctor petitioned the Court to be allowedtofile the
Papers, which was granted ; and the said Papers, together with Captain Marray's Affidavit, were
lodged inthe Registry on the 3d January 1826. :
Gn thé tith January, an‘Affidavic of Captain Murray was filed in Court, having attached to

it a Letter delivered to him, the said Captain Murray, and thus addressed, “To the Captain of
His Britannick Majesty’s Ship of War, just arrived in Cape CoastRoads.”

This Letter was from J. C. Vander Breggen Paauw, as second in command at Elmiea Castle.
“I¢ was daied ** Elmina Castle, | 1th November 1825,” and states, that in consequence of the
‘Governor, Major Last, being very ill, the management of the Publick Service devolved ‘upon the
Writer ; and informing the Commander of [is Britannick Majesty’s Ship, that a Schooner, under
Dateh Colours, came to anchor in those (Elmina) Roads that morning ; that from her Papers
aad other circumstances, he had every reason to suspect that she was engaged in the Slave-trade,
Mr. Breggen Paauw further expressed it to be his sincere wish, as well as his duty, to put a

~top to this detestable Traffick ; and his hope, that the Commander of his said Britannick Majesty'sShip would examine the Vessel. oo
It was iu consequence of this Letter, that Captain Murray proceeded te Elmina, and caused

possession to be taken of the Schooner ‘« Amable Clandina,”" on the grounds which have been
‘previously stated in his Declaration, and sent her for Adjudication to the British and Netherlands
Mixed Court of Justice at this Place
On the same day (the lith of January) a Menition was prayed, and issued accordingly. /
‘Claudio Picaluga, the Master, in his examination on the Interrogatories, states himself co be

a Genoese by nirth ; that bis Place of residence is Curagao; that he is a Naturalized SabjectofThe
‘King of Holland; that he purchased the Schuoner ‘ Amable Claudina” at Curacao, of which be
is the sole Owner, and half Owner of the Cargo, the other Moiety being the ‘property of Jose
Giovanni Zangrogi and of Chichiola Fraucischo, of Bordeaux; and that the said Schooner sails
nader a Liceuce from Paulus ReeloffCaniz’Laar, Governor of Curacao, dated the 6th of October
1824, oo :
* ‘That the present voyage of the said Vessel commenced from Bordeaux, whence she was destined
to La Guayra He states ** that it was his tention to go to La Guayra; but, «hen he got to
Sea, he altered his mind, and camete the €oasi of Atrica.’? He first touched at Teneriffe, to re-
pair some damage the Vessel s masts had sustained : but it must be here remarked, that one of the
Mates (George Buglass) positively swears, that it was for the purpose of obtaining ‘* a greater
number of men.” "Thence he proceeded direct to the Coast, anchored first at: Popoe, professing it
‘to be his intention te trade in palm-oil, ivory, &e. This the Mate aforesaid directly contradicts,and states it tobe his belief <‘ that the object was to procure slaves.** . Noi finding the -uccess orfacility he expected at this Place, he proceeded to Durch Accra, where he says he landed doubloons,“#6tie vale of 2000 dollars, to exchange for dolfars ; ‘that having so landed this sum, he was un-
abie to get the dollars in return, but was forced to take slaves to the number of 32. He acknow-
ledges himself to be the Qwner of the Slaves, but that it was not his intention to take themtotheWest Indies ; and that be ianded them at Papoe. ‘Lhe aforenamed George Buglaxs, (and this iscorroborated byother evidence), on the contrary, declares, ‘* that the slaves were only landed there{at Little Elmina, near to Popse,) for security, three hostages having been taken on board forthem, who were delivered up when the slaves weredemanded, and reshipped by the Captors.? Thenamber they, and thea, sent on bourd was 34, beiugtwo more than is.statedby the Master. :.
On the 20th of January, a Claim, through a Proctor of ihe Court, on the part of Claudio Pica-

luga, was made for the restoration of the said Schooner, her apparel, tackie, and farnicure, hercargo, and for the value of 32 slaves, as the sole property of hiaself, a Naturalized Subject of HisMajesty The King of the Netherlands, an Inhabitant of Curacoa, and a Native of Genoa ; and oftwo Naturalized Frenchmen, Natives of Old Spain, residing at Bordeaux, and as-protected bythe Treaty or Convention between His Britannick Majestyand His Majesty The King-of the Ne- :therlands, dated May 4, 1818; and for all costs, losses, charges, damages, demurrage and ex-pences, arising from the capture aud detention of the said Vessel aud her Cargo,
The 6th of Febraary was fixed upon for the decision of the Court upon this Case; and, havingdeliberated with His Netherlands Majesty's Judge on all its points, and finding that berLicence,which is exactly in the same form as that of the « Hoop” (granted by W A. ¥on Spengler), onwhich Vessel I bad lately the honour to Report, having the same restricting Clause as to tladiag onthe Coast ofAfrica; and aiso finding that her Passport and Custom-House Clearance fromBordeaux,her Muster-Roll, which is given under the Seal and Signature of tie Dutch Cousul, H. Ne Houy,resident ther. ; the Manitest of her Cargo, her Bills of Ladisig, all declaring her destination to beto La Guayra ; and finding, that, instead wf prgceeding 10 such he: Place of destination, she wasfound ca the Coastof Africa, the only Place which her Licence forbade, with no vther reasonassigned by the Master of the said Vessel for such deviation than, that, on going out to Sea, hehad changed his mind;” and it being tur.ber elicited, by the Examiuations ot the. Masterand-other Petsyns belonging tothe Schooner, that Slaves had actually been on board dutingthis par-ticdlar vi-yage: -
‘The Court was angnimously ofqpinion that the Vessel had evidently been engaged in.a-Traffickwhich,was illegal,andthereforecoudemned. thesaidSchooner ** Amable Claudina” and her CargoajlawtelPrizetpHig Majesty'sShip.*«Atholl,” and the respective Governments, ,
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Tt appearing that the slaves, 34 in number, had been caused to be put on board at Little Elmina,

near Popoe, by the instigation and influenceof the Captors, a proceeding contrary to the Provisions

of the Treaty, and to the Instructions of His Majesty’s Govérnment, The Court could not decree

their emancipation, but they were delivered over to the charge of theGovernment ot this Colony.

Sierra Leone, March 10, 1826. (Signed) JOHNTASKER WILLIAMS.

 

Second Enclosure in Ne. 50. (Translation.)

Fhe Governorof Elmina to The Netherlands Commissioner.

Siz, | St. George de la Mina, November 14, 1825.

‘J TAKE the opportunity at hand to inform you, tbat on the 1 ith of this Month, there came to

an-anchor here under the Netherlands Flag, the Schooner ‘ L’Amable Claudina,” Claudio Pica-

luga, Master, and finding, on examination, that her Papers were not in good order, andit appear-

ing out of several circumstances, that she was engaged in the illicit Traffick in Slaves, I found

myself ander the necessity of detaining the Vessel, and to declare her a Prize.

‘A few hours afterwards an English Man-of-War arrived off bere, and being without sufficient

means to secure the Prize, I found myself constrained to give her up to the said EnglishMan-of-

War, in order to be brought before the Mixed Commission Court at Sierra Leone for trial.

In the mean time J inform you, that I sent one of my Officers, Mr. Vander Breggen Paauw, on

board the ‘* Amable Clandina” as Prize Master, by whom the said Vessel was given up to the

before-mentioned Man-of-War, together with the sum of 18,000£.which were found in the cabin,

according toan accepted Receipt. © ,

‘The just half of this Prize belongs to the Netherlands Governmentupon the Coast of Guinea;

the other half becomes in favour of the English Man-of-War,the ‘* Atholl." So IT trust to your

zeal, that care shall be taken of the half of the money which was found on board the “ Amable

Claudina,” and more will probably be found in the said Vessel ; also tor the amount which the

« Amable Claudina” and Cargo will produce at the Publick Auction,

Aud TE expect the amount by the first convenient opportunity that will belong to this Govern-

ment on the Coast. : ,

“The Knightof the Order of the Belgic Lion,Major and Commander, A. T. of the Nether-

Jands Possessions on the Coast of Guinea. | (Signed). F. LAST.

P.S,—-All the Papers belonging to the Vessel are given into the handsof tlie English Captaia,

Murray. . . (Signed) FL.

Mons. E. P, G. Bonnouvrié,

 

Third Enclosure in No..50. (Translation.)

The Commanding Officer at Elmina to Captain Murray.

‘Six, Elmina Castle, November 1}, 1825.

YN consequence of The Chevalier Last being very ill, the management of the Publick Service

having devolved upon me, I have the honour to inform you that a Schooner, under Dutch Colours,

came to anchor in these Roads this Morning, and that from her Papers and other circumstances,

I have every reason to suspect she is engaged in the Slave-trade.

As it is no less my sincere wish, than it is my duty, to do all J can to puta stop td this detestable

Traffick, I take the liberty to acquaint you herewith, hoping you will examine the. Vessel. I have

detained the Master and some of the Crew on Shore, and shall do my utmost to prevent her

escape from here. . J have the honour to be, &e.

The Captain of H. B. M. Ship-of-War, (Signed): 1. C. VANDER BREGGEN PAAUW,

Cape Coast Rouds, , Second in Command.

 

Fourth Enclosure in No. 50.

Affidavit of Captain Murray.

PERSONALLY appeared James Arthur Murray, Esq., Captain of ‘His Majesty's Ship

“Atholl,” who, being duly sworn, maketh oath and saith, that the Letter hereunto anuexed, dated

*¢ ElminaCastle, bth November 1825, signed J. C. Vander Breggen Paanw, Second in Com-

mand,’, and addressed to ‘‘ To the Captain of H. B. M. Ship-of-War just arrived in Cape Coast

Roads,” was sent to this. Deponent as Captain of the Ship-of-War just avrived:in Cape.Coast.

Roads, andiis, as this Deponent verily believes, in. the hand-writing of the said J. C. Vander

Breggen Faauw, Second in Command at Elmina Castle, and is now delivered up by this Depo-

nent withoutanyaddition; alteration, or subduction whatever,except the Indorsementof ‘*Lecter

fromElmina,” written on the back. ; __. (Signed). -JAMES A,.MURRAY,

Sworn-betore me, at: Free Town, Sierra Leone, this 11th day of January’ 1826.
(Signed) ‘Wn. Smitu, Registrar :
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Fifth Enclosure in No. 50.

Affidavit of Lieutenant Caiger.:
APPEARED personally, Herbert Caiger, Esq. First Lieutenant of His Majesty’s Ship

** Atholl,” Captain James Arthur Murray, who, being duly sworn, deposeth and saith, that on
the 12th day of November last, being of Elmina Castle, on the Western Coust of Africa, by
order of the said Captain James Arthur Murray, he, this Deponent,: boarded and took possession
of the Netherlands Schooner ‘* Amable Claudina,” whereof Claudio Picaluga, was Master, by
reason that the safd Schooner was employed in the illegal Traffck in Slaves, contrary to the
Additional Article of the Treaty entered into between His Britannick Majesty and His Majesty
The King of the Netherlands. And this Deponent further saith, that at the time of going on
board the said Schooner ‘« Amable Claudina,” the said Claudio Picaluga, the Maste , was on Shore
at Elmina Castle, with a Boat’s Crew of 4 men 3 that the said Schooner was under the command
and charge of the Chief Mate; that no Boat whatsoever from the Shore had had any communica-
tion with the said Schooner, and that she was not in charge of any Officer or Person sent oft
board by the Commandant of Elmina Castle. (Signed) H. CAIGER.
Sworn before me, this 3d day of January 1826,

(Signed) Wa. Smiru, Registrar.

 

Sixth Enclosure in No. 50. (Translation)

Licence of the * Amable Claudina.”
Most Serene, Most Illustrious, Tilustrious, High and Well Born, Well Born, Venerable,

Estimable, Sapient, Prudent, Emperors, Kings, Republicks, Princes, Dukes, Counts,
Barons, Burgomasters, Aldermen, Councillors, as also Judges, Officers, Justices and Go--
vernors of all good Towns and Fortresses, who shail see these Presents, or shall hear them
read, Greeting,

WE, Paulus Roelof, Cantz’Laar, Knight of the Order of the Netherlands Lion, Rear Admiralin the Service of His Majesty The King of the Netherlands, Governor of Curagoa, and the Depend-
ent Islands Bonaire and Aruba, and Commander-in-Chief of the Land and Sea Forces there
stationed, &e. &e. &e. notify: that Claudio Picaluga, is Mastérof the Schooner, called s¢ AmableClaudina,” of50 tons burthen, belonging to himself, a Subjectof His Majesty The King of theNetherlands, and Inbabitant of this Island: and being desirous to give encouragement to the
before named Master, we entreat all the above mentioned, and every one of them, to whom theMaster alluded fo shall come with his Vessel and the goods laden in her, to be pleased to give thebefore named Master a friendly reception and proper treatment, allowing him in bis passage, uponhis paying the customary tolls and imposts, to navigate, passand frequent the Ports and Rivers,with the view of transacting his business, where and when he shall think proper, which favour we
are willing to retarn.

Given under our hand and the Seal of the Government, at Curaeoa, the 6th of October 1824>the llth Year of ‘His Majesty’s Reign.
To be in force for 12 Months for the purpose of Navigating all Seas, except those of the.Coast of Guinea. (Signed) CANLZLAAR,

|By. order of His Excellency, (Signed) Wat. Princ.
(indorsed), Seen at Bordeaux, the 16thAugust 1825,
Consul for the Netherlands (Signed) H. N. Hovy.

Seen the 10th September 1825, Santa Cruz, in the Isleof Teneriffe, by A. Benurr.
J, Voss,

 

Seventh Enclosure in No. 50.

Report of the Case of the Netherlands Brig “Charles,” Louis L’ Oiseau,
Master.

THIS Vessel arrived here on the 2ist of January 1826, having 243 slaves on board, 265having been captured in her, and 22 having died during the passage to Sierra Leone.
The Deglaration of the Captor, Lieutenant. John Chrystie, commanding His Majesty’s. Gan-Brig “* Conflict,” sets forth, that being up the River of Old Calabar, he seized and detained theBrig «Charles, sailing under Dutch Colouts, whereof Louis L’Oiseau, was Master, omthe ¥9thday of December 1825, by reason that the said Vessel was employed in the ‘Iraffick in Shives,contrary tothe Treaty entered into between His Majesty and His Majesty The King of theNetherlands, : "
On the 23d day of January, the Papers in this Case were daly filed, together with thé Afidavitof Mr. Henry Pryce Deschamps, Admiralty Mate of His Majesty's Brig «* Conflict;” and Prize-Master of the << Charles,” which statés, that the Papers, Writings.and Documents, markedfroniNo. 16 to No. 20, inclusive (being a set of French Papers for the said Brig under the name of« L'Eugene,”) were delivered up to bim ‘by the Master of the said Brig; that he examined aWriting-Desk, which he found concealed in the Cabin of the said Brig, and-found secreted inadrawer thereof, the Papers, Writings and Documents (No.1 to No, 15), being the Dutch Papers of
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the said Brig under the nameof the ‘ Charles,” although told by the Master at the tithe of bis

delivering up the first Papers, that there were no others on board. oe .

A Monition was prayed for and issued on the 28th January, citing the Parties interested in the

Cause to appear.
The Erench -Papers found on board this Vessel, call her “ L’Eugene,” commanded by Louis

Guion, belonging to M. "Victor Rancé, of Pointe a Pitre, and are dated at Pointe &Pitre, Guada-

loupe, as follow, viz :—
27th October 1824.

Register ........ eee e cee c cece een wees perc beeen ce bene

Passport 2.0.0.eeeeeeesees ee eecereee ee eeeeeee Le eeeeee 27th October —-

Role d’Equipage .........-+- lees en edstusdecaceseeee 24th April 1825.

Invoice, signed Victor Rancé 2.20...cececerereerenceones 25th April —_

Custom-House Clearance from Pointed Pitve ......-.+6--6s 26th April —

while the Dutch Papers found concealed on board, declare her to be the <* Charles,”’ commanded

by Louis L’Oiseau, has her Clearance trom Saint Thomas. dated 231 ‘April 1825, her Invoice (cor;

responding in every particular with the one said to’ be made at Pointe A Pitre, and in the sanie

hand-writing), dated also at Saint Thomas, on the 24th April 1825>signed by T. B. Andrize

and.Co.-for the account and risk of Louis L’Qisean, and the Master-R sll Clearance for Rio Janeiro,

and Passport, are dated at Saint Hustatius, the 27th A pril 1825,

It is, therefore, evident that the French Papers must be gross forgeries, it being out of all pro-

bability that she could clear out from Pointe d Pitre, on the 26th April, and have her Muster-

Roll Clearance for Rio Janeiro and Passport from Saint Eustatius, the next day.

The Second Master, Jean Rouxel, in his examination on the Standing Interrogatories, stated,

that she was seized for having slaves and Dutch Papers and Colours on board ; that her name‘is|

the “ Charles,” but he believed she had also’been called L’Eugene,” as he saw French Papers

with that name in them on board of her; that he-saw them, tor the first time, when she was

lying in Calabar River, where also the French Flag was-first hoisted, and that the French Flag

was flying when she was examined by the Man of War by which she was taken. He further

stated, that the present Voyage commenced at St. Thomas, but he did not know where it was to

have ended, St. Bustatius he declared to be the last clearing Port the Brig sailed from, previous

to ‘capture, and that she went there to procure Netherlands Papers; from which Port she went:

direct to Calabar to procure her Cargo of Slaves, 267 of whom were on board when the Brig was

taken, and he believed the Master (Louis L’Qiseau) to have been the sole-Owner of the Brig and

Slaves at the time they were seized.
Thomas Gense, Seaman on board, depesed, on the same Interrogatories, ‘* that the Brig was

seized.for having Slaves and French Papers and Colours, and Dutch Papers and Colours on board,

but that she sailed under Dutch Colours, and he-onlyknew the Brig by the name of ‘* L’Eugene ;""

that the present Voyage began at St. Thomas, but he did not know where it was to have ended;

St, Eustatius was the last clearing Port she sailed from previous to capture, where the Dutch

Papers were procured ; and that she went to Calabar River to trade for slaves, but he could not.

tell the number that were taken on ‘board ;” he further declared his belief, ‘that the Master was

the sole Owner of the Brig and Slaves at the time they were seized ”

It appeared by the evidence of Liudor, a Cabin- Boy, ‘ that this is the second Voyage in which

‘the Brig has been employed in carrying on an illicit Traffick in Slaves, the first Cargo having been

-safely delivered at Surinam, that the present Voyage commenced at St. Thomas, and was to have

-ended there, after delivering the present Cargo, at Surimam.”’

The Declarations of Jean Rouxel, | homas Ganse, and Lindor, the production ofthe fraudu-.

lent, if not felonious, French Papers, the concealment of the Dutch Papers, added to the fact of

the slaves having been found on board; all these circumstances combined, made this Case so very

clear, that the Court had no difficulty in condemuing her as a lawful Prize, taken by His Majesty’s

Brig ‘* Conflict,” Lieutenant John Chrystie, Commander,-and pronounced 265 slaves to have been

-on board at the time of capture, 22 of whom had died before Adjudication, and the remainder, in

number 243, were emancipated,

Sierra Leone, March 20, 1826. (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.

ne

Eighth Enclosure in No. 50.

Captain Louis L’ Oiseau, Brig “ Charles.”

April 27, 1825,—Renewing Register and Muster Roll and amount paid for

* ebtaining Security for 2000 Spanish dollars .....-++.teeeee 600 Sp. dolls.

Rd. Payment,
rr. G. GROEBE.

 

. No. 51.

Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.— (Received June 2, 1826.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, dugusi 20, 1825.

J HAVE the honour to acquaint you, that Z. P. G. Bannouvrié, Esq.

His Netherlands Majesty’s Commissary Judge, arrived in this Colony on the.

George
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15th instant, and that this Gentleman has entered upon the duties of hisOffice in the British and Netherlands Mixed Court of Justice,
I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed ) GEO. RENDALL.The Right Hon. George Canning,
Se. &c. &e.

 

No. 52,

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2» 1826.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, November 21, 1825.
I HAVE the honour to enclose, for your information, a Report of the Caseof the Netherlands Schooner “ Bey,” William Woodside, Master, brought inhere on the 23d ofMay last for Adjudication, having been detained on the19th of the same Month off the River Gallinas, by His Majesty’s Ship “ Maid-stone,” Commodore Bullen, on suspicion of being engaged in theillicit Slave-trade, and falling under the several designations of the Additional Article to theTreaty signed at Brussels on the 25th of January 1823.
The Court were of opinion that sufficient proof of the illegal engagement inthe Slave-trade had been afforded, and therefore passed Sentence of Con-demnation on the Vessel and Cargo on the 29th day of June.IT cannot allow this Case to pass without noticing to you, Sir, what ap-peared evident, from the various proofs which were afforded, that the Nether-lands Flag and Papers had in this instance been obtained for the purpose offraudulently covering other property. The Vessel was American built, and,by the names of the Master and Crew on the Muster-Roll, it would appearthey were Americans, or Englishmen.
The Second Mate, an American, was perfectly ignorant of the Dutch lan-guage, and stated that he did not know to what Countries the Crew respec-tively belonged. He appeared much astonished when he was informed thatthe Ship's Passport contained a Clause which forbade trading on the Coast ofGuinea. I have the honour to be, &e.
~ (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.The Right Hon. George Canning,

. &e. Se. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 62.

Report of the Case of the Netherlands Schooner “ Bey,” William ood-side, Master. .

THIS Vessel arrived in the Harbour of Sierra Leone on the 23d of May Is i
; di ‘

, day last, but owing t. th
changes in the Commissions at that period, the Proceedings were not regularly commenced until
the 13th of June, upon whith day the Ship's Papers were bronght into theRegistry, and duly
attested by George A. Nixon, Masier’s Mate of His Majesty’s Ship «* Maidstone.”' The usual Meonition was issued on the 14th, calling upon all Persons having, or pretending to
have, any right, title, or interest in the Schooner Bey,” to ‘ i ireturned on the22d of June as duly served, % “ppear and make claim, whick was
Commodore Bullen’sDeclaration States, that this Vessel was detained off the Ri i

=
.

r : !

the 19th of May 1825, being under Dutch: Colours, armed with } gun, 13-poundesWwaon
Woodside, Master, who being absent on Shore, William Wolper, the Commanding Officer
declaredher tobe bound froma Eustatius to the Gallinas with a Crew of li men, having no
slaves on board, but fa ing under several desio ati f th itional Article s} ,

Sele, an the weeJanuasy 1893, Signations of the Additional Article signed at Brus-,_ ‘The Papers of the Vessel consist of a Roll of the Crew, a Bill of Sal j ry Aand another to Navigate the Vessel for ]2Months y + Place exceptanetheCon st of
Guinea, andare all dated in the Month of October 1824, at St. Eustati : ase

: The Depositions of’ all the Witnesses exami: ined, viz.: the Second MatSteward, shew that this Vessel was fitted at §
he wailed” 8

; . nd tht..Eustatius, from whence she sailed to the € ast ofoast of
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Africa direct, where she touched at Garraway, Grand Sestos, Cape Mount, Manna and Gallinas,
to trade, that she was seized at anchor 5 miles off Gallinas, had one Passenger taken on board at
Manna, Johannes Dahl,a Danish Mariner, that the Master, who is a Naturalized Dutchman, was
the Owner; Vessel’s Clearance and Log Book burnt at Manna by accident ; has 30 bags of rice
taken on board on the Coast; the Seaman states that. part was taken on board at St. Eustatius ;
has 34 water-vasks, some filled at St. Eustatius, others on the Coast; plank cut to fit the masts and

pumps ; Cargo sold to differeat Persons on the Coast. The return Carge was to have been palm
oil and camwood; it wes vot to have been slaves, to their knowledge. The Second Mate and
Steward state, that Black Men were earried as passengers from one part of the Coast to another,
which the Seaman denies, :
The Deposition of Johannes Dahl shews, that he embarked as a passenger on board this Vessel

at Manna, 2 months and a half previous to his Examination; is certain that 60 or 70 bags of
rice, each weighing about 150Ibs. were lauded at Manna and Gallinas ; thinks there were more.
coppers with steamers that would cook for 100 Negroes or Slaves; Vessel has carried Black Pas-
sengers, cannot swear they were free o1 Slaves,
A Commission of Survey was prayed on the part of the Captors, and granted on the 21st of

June. The Report of the Coimmissioners was filed on the 27th, the substance being as follows:
that the Schooner “ Bey’ is 60 tous adnieasurement; length on deck 60 feet 2 inches; extreme
breadtli 18 feet 2 inches ; one suit of sails complete ; no goods, wares, or merchandize on board;
armed with | long traversing 12-pounder gun in complete order; 2 brace of. pistols, 6 cutlasses
and 2 muskets; | quarter barrel powder, 40 cases of canister shot, 45 roand shot and a small
quantity of laugridge; 30 hogsheads of water stowed in the hold, containing about 2,000 gal-
lons; 3 e~pty puncheons and 2 barrels on deck, capable of containing about 400 gallons more,
The casks in the hold are stowed so as to form nearly a platform of themselves.

In the after part of the hold a platform, 6 feet by 10 feet 2 inches, was laid. Spare beams anal
planks fitted to the kold, by which they extended the platform 16 feet 5 inches in length, with the
whole breadth of the hold; there were not boards enough to form a complete platform, but they
found some pieces cut to fit the fore part of the Vessel, and when cut to fit the foremast. The height
between the shifting platform and the deck was 3 feet | inch; found on board 11 buckets and
4 mess-kids ; boilers divided into 4 parts, and with 2 steamers, capable of holding 3/4 gallons; an
oven for baking with range in front; found 37 bags of Carolina rice, containing 82 cwt.
From the Evidence, the Ship’s Papers, and the Report of the Commissioners of Survey, the

Court were of opinion that this Vessel was, at the time of her detention, within the limits spe-
cified in the Additional Article to the Treaty, concluded at the-Hague the 4th day of May 1818,
between His Majesty and The King of the Netherlands, signed at Brussels, the 25th of January
1623, and that in her outfit and equipment she fell within the 3d, Sth, 6th, Sth and 9th Designa-
tions therein mentioned, In addition to this primdfacie Evidence of the Vessel’s employment in
the Slave-trade, the Court duly considered the other suspicious circumstances under which she was
found, viz: being at anchor off one of the most notorious Slave Factories on the Coast of Africa,
when the Licence of Navigation expressly forbade any approach to the Coast of Guinea; landing
large quantities of rice at Manna and Gallinas, part of which had been brought from ‘St. Ensta~
tins, and part bought on the Coast; filling the casks with water on the Coast, although the
Second Mate declared that palm oil was to have been part of return Cargo; having no Log
Book kept either by the Master or two Mates; and further, that no satisfactory Evidence was
offered on tbe part of the Owner or Master that this Vessel was otherwise legally emptoyed at
the time of detention. :
The Court, therefore, passed Sentence of Condemnation of the Vessel and Cargo, on the 29th

day of June 1825. (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.

 

No. 53.

George Rendall, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received June 2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, November 21, 1825.

1 HAVE the honour to enclose, for your inforination, the Report of the
Case of the Netherlands Brig ‘Z,” Denis K. Derne, Master, brought in
here for Adjudication on the 17th of August last, having been detained on
the 3ist of July previous, by His Majesty’s Ship “ Maidstone,” Commodore -
Bullen, off the River Sombrero, or Andony, not having any Slaves on board,
but being fitted and equipped for the Slave-trade. :
The proot in this Case being fully established, the British and Nether-

lands Commissary Judges passed Sentence of Condemnation ofthe Vessel,.
on the 9th of September 1825. coe oo,

I beg leave to remark, that I conceive this Case bears great similarity to
that of the “ Bey,” and is more fully developed by the discovery of Slave
Irons and Coppers. The Master was Naturalized at Saint Eustatius, in
April last, and in the Month of July he arrived on this Coast with a tull.
Cargo under Duteh Colours, It is evident that French property is ¢o-
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-vered in this Case, and shews with what facility: false Papers. can.be procured.
at the Island of Saint Eustatius.

I propose forwarding with the General Report of the State of the Slave-
trade, Translations of the Private Letters and Papers.found on board this.

Vessel, as 1 hope they will prove the means of throwing some light on these
nefarious transactions. I have the honour to be, &e.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.
§e. &e.  &e.

Enclosure in No. 53.

“Report of the Case of the Netherlands Brig “Z," Denis. K. Derne,
- , Master.

THIS Vessel arrived at ‘Sierra Leone the 17th day of August last, and the Sbip’s Papers duly
autlienticated, with Commodore Bullen’s Declaration, were bronght into Court the same day. A
Monitionwas issued ow the 20th of August, calling upon all Persons having, or pretending to have,
any Claim in the Brig “ Z.” to’appear and establish the same;. this was returned as duly served on

the 29th.- :
_ The Declaration of Commodore Builen states, that on the 31st of July 1825, off the River
Sombrero or Andony, he detained the Brig “Z.” sailing underDutch Colours, armed with 2 long

sixtpounder guns, 4 eighteen-pounder carronades, 2 swivels, 16 muskets, and 12 swords, com-
‘manded by Denis Kerne Derne, who declared her to be bound from St. Thomas to the River An-

dony, belonging to:Sain' Eustatius, with a Crew of 23 men and boys, not having ou board slaves,
but falling under the several designations of the Additional Article signed at Brussels the 25th of
Jannary 1823. :
The Papers of the Vessel consist of aLicense of Navigation for. 12 Months,to any Place except

‘ upan the Coast of Guinea, and a Passport given by the Governor of the Island of Saint Eustatius,
in April 1825, A Muster-roil; List of Cargo, and Clearance, dated at Saint ‘Thomas the 25t.
of May 1825. : There are also. numerous French Letters, Private Papers, &c.
‘Yhe Master's Deporition states, that he was born at Brest, but naturalized at Saint Eustatius

in Aprildast. Took. possession of the Vessel about 18 or 20 months since at Martinique; she
was built at Nantes, has a Jarge interest in the Vessel and Cargo; she was seized upon pretence
ot be ng engaged in the Slave-trade; sailed ander Dutch Colours ; had a French Flag on board,
it was on board because she sailed under the Fre:ch Flag formerly; has been called the “ Z,"*
since April last, was formerly the ‘‘ Pauline and Amanda.’’? The Voyage began at Saint Thomas
and was to have ended there;-was captured in 3. 30. North, and 6. East; bought the Vessel at
Martinique from the French Government at Publick Auction; paid 6000 dollars for her; Vessel
and Cargo were both ivsured for this Voyage in Paris, at a premium of 23 per Cent,
~ The’ Depositions of the Surgeon, Boatswain and Cabin-cook, are alike in substance with that of
the Master. 7
Three Affidavits, made by Edward Franklin, Lieutenant of His Majesty’s Ship ** Maid-

stone” and Prize-Master of the Brig «* Z,"” were filed in this Case; the first on the 6th Septem-
ber 1825;“stating that on the 26th of August Deponent found &6 slave-irons on board the Brig
“« Z,” which had been concealed below; the second states, that, on the 7th of September, the
same Deponent found 76 slave-irons, in addition to the 86 before mentioned, and that they were
concealed under thé powder in the hold; the third Affidavit states, that, on the 10th of Septem-
ber, Mr. Franklin discovered, in the after-part of the Brig “ Z,” a set of coppers capable of con-
taining from90 to $00 gallons,

A, Commission of. luspection and Survey was prayed and issued on the 6th of September, and
returned sas duly performed on the Sth. ‘The Commissioners report that the hatches of the Brig
“« Z’’ are fitted with open gratings, that she has spare plank more than sufficient to form a second

or moveable deck; beams fitted with rabbits and grooves for reeviving the same; that they found
&0 pair of shackless.as yell as a considerablenumber of iron balts ; from+10 to. 5 tons of water
in casks, butts, puncheons, and hogsheads, 51 mess kids, from 2 to 3 gallons each ; 16 buckets of
2 gallons each; 6 poupoo tubs ; boilers unreasonably large for the tonnage ‘ofthe Vessel; from

30. to'40 bags of rice, as ‘nearly as they could ascertain, mixed with* calavances in *bulk :-
also sumie casks nf calavances5 4 twelve-pound carronades, 2 long nine-pounders, sundry small arms
and cutlasses, with a considerable quantity of powder and shotofall descriptions,
.The.Court-were of opinion that this Vessel was, at the time of capture, within, the specified

limits, and that in her equipment and outfit, she‘fell within 8 of the Designations named iu the Ad-
ditional Article to the Treaty, signed at’ Brussels on the 25th of January 1823; viz :—the Ist
3d, 4th, Sth, 6th, 7th, 8th, and 9d: and as no evidence was offeredon- the part of the: Master
and Owner that the Vessel. was legally employed at the time of her detention; the Court passed
Sentence of Condenmation on the Vessel and Cargo, on the 9th day of September 1825.

: (Signed) GEO. RENDALL.
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No. 54.

George Rendall, Esq.toMr. Secretary Canning—(ReceivedJune 2, 1826.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, November 25, 1825.

I HAVE the honour to enclose, herewith, a Report of the Case of the

Netherlands Schooner “ La Venus,” André Desbarbes, Master, detained on

the ist of September off Cape Formosa, by His Majesty’s Ship “ Atholl,”

Captain James Arthur Murray, having no slaves on beard, but falling

under the several designations contained in the Additional Article to the

Treaty signed at Brussels the 25th of January.1823, and sent in here for
Adjudication on the 23d of September 1525.

The proof of this: Vessel’s engagement in the illegal Traffick of Slaves
being clearly established, the British and Netherlands Judges condemned

the Vessel and Cargo on the 1st of November 1825.
I fee! it my duty to observe, that this is another Case wherewith I con-

ceive. the Netherlands Flag has been made a cover for French property,

a practice which I expect will be found to have been of long and frequent

occurrence, although it has escaped the vigilant notice of our Cruizersuntil

lately. J have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) GFO. RENDALL.
&e. §e. Se. .

 

Enclosure in No. 54.

Report of the Case of the Netherlands Schooner “ La Venus,” Andre Des-
barbes, Master.

THIS Vessel was brought into this Port on the 23d of September 1825 but owing to the

absence of the Agent and Proctor for Captors, the Papers were not produced in Court until the
12th of Octeber, upon which day Mr Hodder, Admiralty Mate, delivered them, duly attested, to-

gether with the Declaration of the Captor, into the hands of the Registrar, by whom they were

duly fled. A Monition was issued, citing all persons having any right or interest in the Schooner
**La Venus” and Cargo, to appear and make claim; this was returned certified as having been

daly served. a
The Declaration of the Captor, Captain James Arthur Murray, commanding His Majesty’s

Ship ‘** Atholl,” states, «‘ that on the Ist day of September last, being in Latitude 4. 12. North,

and Longitude, 5,33. East, he detained the Schooner ‘* La Venus” sailing under Dutch, Colours,
armed with 4 six-pounder guns, commanded by André Desbarbes, who declared “her to be bound
from St. Thomas, West Indies, to the Coast, with a Crew consisting of 27 men”
The Third Mate, in answer to the standing Interrogatories, states, ‘that the Master’s

name is Desbarbes, that M. Saubot appointed him to the Conmanid at St, Thomas in June

last; does not know upon what pretence the Vessel was seized ; sailed under Dutch. Colours,
hada French Flag on board; does not know for what reason Voyage began at St. Thomas,
does not know where it was to have ended; touched at no Places during the Voyage ; Ves~-"
sel was seized off Cape Formosa on the Ist of September, was steering for Princes Island,
hauled clase on a wind, because they were afraid Capturing Ship was a Pirate.’ In answer
to special Interrogatories put by order of the Court, states, ‘‘ the hatches of ‘‘La Venus”
to be close, like common Merchant Vessels, has two bulk-heads, one.to part off the cabin
und the other the torecastle from the hold; some plank on board, cannot say what quantity, or
tor what purpose it was to be applied; does not know if there are any shackles, bolts, hand-
cuffs, or shackle-rivets on board; has « tier of water-casks, cannot state the number or quantity;
does not know if there is a Custom- House Clearance for the same; there are mess-tubs and kids

onboard; does not know the number ; does not know if any large. coppers or boilers are on board,
nor if any means of making more than one cooking place; bas seen only two or three casks of
rice, there may be more; some flour, does not know what quantity ; cannot say whether the re-
turn Cargo was to have been slaves or not; cannot say for what purpose the articles be has stated
to be on board were intended; does not know what Cargo ‘* La Venus” carried off the last Voyage.”
Carl F, Schmeidcke, a Mariner, in his Answers: ‘to the standing Interrogatories, gives. the exact
substance of the Third Mate’s Evidence, but differs in some of his Answers to the special Inter-
rogatories as ‘that he has seen 6 or 8 planks marked; a dozen shackles on board ; that there are
a great many watér-casks all full; has seen abont 20 mess-kids, and four large tubs with covers ;
there 1s a great quantity of rice; believes from what he saw on board that the return Cargo was
to have been slaves; believes the articles he has stated to be on board must have been: intended
for the use of slaves; heard from the people that the last Cargo was slaves; a Commission of



86 Srerra Leone. (Netherlands )

Survey was issued on the 17th of October, and the Report of the Commissioners filed on the? Ist ;
they state that the main hatch of “* La Venus’ is open with loose irou bars to fix on the same;
that there is on board a quantity of plank, numbered, cut, and fitted to form a moveable deck ;
that they found 131 pair 6f shackles or irons, with about 500 forelocks and 19 padlocks,evi-
dently intended for slave chains;complete.tier-of water-casks, fore and aft, all nearly filled ; they
found 40 mess-kids, 14 buckets, 2 large mess-tubs, 6 poopoo-tubs, and large quantity of wooden-
spoons; one large copper-boiler of 120 galtons, in addition to the usual cooking apparatusofthe
Crew; also 2 tons of rice and a small quantity of calavances.” Tirey state that the Vessel has
the appearance of being fitted out for the Slave-trade, :

The Court came to the conclusion, that the Schooner, ‘‘I.a Venus’ was at.the time of her de-
tentivn by His Majesty's Ship ‘* Atholl,” Captain James Arthur Murray, withia the’ limits spe-
cified in the Additional Article to the Treaty, signed at Brussels the 25th of January 1823, and
that in her outfit and equipment she came under the 3d, 4th, 5th, 6th, 7th, 8th, and 9th de-
signatious therein contained, and as no exculpatory evidence was offered on Wehalf of the Owner
or Master, the Court passed Sentence of Condemnation on the said Schooner ‘* La Venus’ and
her Cargo, upon the Ist day of November 1825. (Signed) GEO RENDALL.

 

No. 55.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, July 8, 1826.

I SEND to you, for the mformation of yourselves, and of the other Gen-
tlemen composing the Board of Commission whereof you are Members, the
accompanying Copy of a Note, which I have received from His Netherland
Mayesty’s Chargé d’Affaires at this Court; by which it appears, that the Ne-
therlands Brig-of-War “ Panther”, destined for the West Indies, will be
furnished with a Copy-of the Treaty of the 4th May 1818, and of the Docu-
ments annexed thereto, for the suppression of the Traffick in Slaves.

 

Tam, &c.

His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

> Enclosure in No. 55.

M. Dedel to Mr. Secretary Canning.

Bryanston-Square,le 4 Juillet 1826.

LE Soussigné, Ministre Plénipotentiaire de 8.M{ Le Roi des Pays Bas, alhonneur de s’acquitter
des. Ordzes. qu'il vient de. recevoir «le.sa Cour, en portant 4 la connaissance de'Son Excellence
My, Canning Premier Secrétaire d’Etat pour les Aflaires Etrangéres, que le Brick des Pays Bas
«* de Panter,’ de 106 hommes d’équipage et de.18 piéces de canon, comimandé par le Capitaine-
Lieutenant Buys, et qui avait ordre de pariir le ler Juillet pour les Indes Occidentales; sera
pourve d'un exemplaire du Traité:du4 Mai 1818, et de tous les autres Docninens, qui sont rela-
tifs Ala répression du Commerce-des Esclaves. Le Soussigné, &c.

4 Son Excellence M, Canning, W. G. DEDEL.
&e. &e. &e.

(Trauslation.) Bryanston- Square, July 4, 1826.

THE Undersigned, Minister Plenipotentiary of His Majesty The King. of the Netherlands,

has the honour, in compliance with the Orders which he has received from-his Court, to inform.
his: Excellency Mr. Canning, Principal Secretary of State for. Foreign Affairs, that the Ne«
therlands Brig ‘* de Panter,”’ with a crew ot 106 men, and 18 pieces .of cannon, commanded-by
Captain- Lieutenant Buys, orderedto sail on the Ist July for.the West Indies, will be furnished

with:a Copy of the Treaty.ot the 4th May 1818. and ofall.the. other Documents relative to the
suppression of the Slave-trade, The, Undersigned,&c.
His Excellency Mr. Canning, (Signed) W.G. DEDEL.

. Bey. $e, $e. ‘
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No. 56.

J.T. Williams, Esq.to Mr. Secrétary Canning.—-(Received July 12.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, April 4, 1826.

i HAVE the honour to, forward, herewith, a Report of the Case ofthe
Schooner “ Vogel,” Jean Blais, Master, tried and condemned in the British
aud Netherlands Court of Justice, as Prize to His Majesty’s Ship “‘ Brazen,”
Captain G. W. Willes, on the 31st of last Month.

‘Fhe fact of the abuse of the Flag of His Majesty The King of Holland, to
cover the illicit practices of the Slave Dealers of other Nations, is so noto-
riously évident in this Case, that I have considered it to be myduty to forward,
with the Report on it, a greater number of Documents than I should think
it proper to trouble you with in ordinary Cases ; it having occurred to me,
that they miay be useful, should you be pleased to consider it. expedient, to
communicate with the Government of His Majesty The King of the. Nether-
lands on the subject of the Proceedings of the Colonial Authorities at St.
Eustatius ; for certainly the manner in which these Licences have been
granted, as it would appear to every Applicant, evinces but little care
for the respect and dignity’ of their National Flag.
The facility with which business of this description is effected atSt.Eusta-

tius, will appear by the following’ brief Statement: ae
Jean’ Blais was at the Island of St. Thomas on the 22d July 1825, where

he appears to have made his arrangements, and to have proceeded: immedi-
ately to St. Kustatius ; for, in a few days after, we find him a Nataralized
Subject of The’ King’ of Holland, as appears by his Certificate of Naturaliza-
tion, dated 28th July 1825. ,
On the 4th of August he purchases the American Schooner “ Gallant,” (a

matter which it is to be presumed, had been previously arranged at. St:
Thonias) for 2,250 pieces of eight, and. changes. her name’tothat of the
“Vogel.” Under the latter name a Licence is granted to heron the follow-
ing day, to sail under the Netherlands Flag.

These’ Documeuts aré all authenticated and signed by the Governor,
*“W. A. Van Spengler.” oo,
On the same day (5th August) she clears out, in ballast, to return back to.

St. Thomas. 7 '
On the 17th September she clears out at the Custom-House, at St.

‘Phomias, for Princes Island, onthe Coast of Africa. / ;
_ Among. the French Papers is an: 4cte de Francisation, dated. Pointe &
Pitre, Guadaloupe, 18th October 1823, for the Schooner “ Z’Oiseau,”:be-
longing'to Monsieur Lafosse of that Place. The “ Vogel” has the samésig--
nifrcation, but could not be the same Vessel, the former being stated to be’
upwards of 80 tons, the latter only about 52.

Notwithstanding this her Role d’Equipage 1s, dated at Pointe & Pitre, as
well also as an Invoice of Goods shipped on board ‘“ L’Oiseau” (signed
J. Lafosse, consigning the same, amounting to 8567 dollars, to Jean Blais)
on the 17th September 1825; and her Custom-House Clearance from. Gua-
daloupe to Princes Island, is dated the following day (18th September).
These Papers, I should conclude, must either be. spurious,orthey must be

improperly obtained. The Role d’Equipage is dated the’same day as the |
Clearance from St. Thomas (the 17th), and it would be indeed out of the
scope-ofpossibility, that these two matters should have been transacted, in
the two Islands, on the same day; and equally improbable that the Vessel.
could reach Guadaloupe, so as to clearout from Pointe & Pitre on the 18th.
I have reason tobelieve,from every thing I can Jearn, that in the system

now followed:in this branch of the Slave-trade, there is a combinationofthe
interests‘of Parties, some of which are resident at Guadaloupe, Martinique,  
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‘St. Thomas, and St. Eustatius. At the first Place is J, Lafosse, at the second
a Monsieur Jean Delluc, and at St. Thomas Messrs. Ogereau et Dubois ; and
that there must be some Dutch Subjects concerned, at least in some instances,
will 1 think scarcely admit of doubi; for in one of the Letters found on board
the “ Vogel,” dated at Tradetown, I find the’ following expression: “ Jirai
done & Surinam ; veuillez y preparer vos ordres,” [I will go then to Surinam ;
be so good as.to prepare your Orders there.]

There is one Document, Copy of which I send verbatim. It is a Note
addressed by Jean Blais to Joseph Tricon, the First Mate, and which proves
distinctly the pursuit in which he was engaged. The articles which
he directs to be sent on Shore, as the return to the King of the Place, for
une génisse, (an heifer) are goods paid for the price of a Slave; what the exact
nominal value would be at Cape Mount I have had no means of learning, but
I have ascertained that, according to the prices of Merchandize in this Colony,
the amount would be from 8 to 10 pounds.

I have the honour to be, &c.
(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.

Lhe Right Hon. George Canning,
&e. | Se. &e.

 

First Enclosure in No. 56.

“Report in the Case of the “Vogel,” Jean Blais, Master, sailing under
Dutch Colours.

THE Schooner ¢ Vogel,’ was detained off Grand Currow, on the Windward Coast, on the
22d day of January last, by Lieutenant Paldwin Wake Walker, in command ofa Boat belonging
to His Majesty’s Ship ** Brazen,” G. W. Willes, Esq. Commander. :
The Declaration of Captain. Willes, sets forth, that in additi-n to the Dutch Papers found

on board the ‘Vogel ” the Master had ou his person a_ set of French Papers calling her
** L’Oiscau ;" ‘that the said Schooner was fitted for a Slaving Voyage,inasmuch as she had a
Jarge number of water casks stowed in-ber hold, and a greater quantity of rice than necessary
for a Trading Vessel’s Crew; it appearing that 3600lbs. had been put on board when she com~
amenced her Voyage. ee .
The Papers in this Case, consisting of French Papers from Guagalonpe, and Dutch ‘Papers

from Saint Eustatius, (a Schedule of the most important of which accompanies this,) were duly

filed:on the |8th-ot March, together with the requisite Affidavits :
A Monition was prayed for on the 20th, which was regularly served and returned on the 29th.
Joseph Tricon, the First Mate, who was in Command of the Vessel, whén she was detained

deposeth, in his Examination‘on the lInterrogatories, tha the Master, Jean Blais, took possession’
of the Schooner at Saint Eustatius; that she has been called the © Vogel,” about 7 Months,
previous to which she was called the “Gallant,” and sailed under American Colours: that. the
Crew were all hired and shipped at St. 'f homas, by the Master, to come to the Coast of Africa
for a Cargo of Slaves ; he further d-poseth, that the Voyage began at St. Theinas; and was to.
have ended-at Surinam, where the Cargo of Slaves were to have been landed, bat he knew not to
whom consigned; that the Schoouer sailed direct from Saint Thomas to the Coast: of Africa
and anchored at Cape Mount to trade tor Slaves; at this place the Maser, Jean Blais landed
the. principal part of the Cargo of Merchandize, an-] remained on Shore, sending hin, the Depo-
nent, in command of the Schooner to Grand Currow, to purchase pain-oil and rice, while he,
the Master, continued at, Cape Mount to purchase slaves ;_ he also stares his beli:f, that the paling
vil and rice he was ordered to purchase, were for the purpose of feeding the slaves,

This man further deposeth, that there were 2 seis of Papers on board, one Dutch and the
other French, that the Master gave hiw the French Papers when at Cape Mount, and instructed
him to shew them in the event of his being boarded by an English Mau-of-War, and the Dutch
Papers should he meet a French Vessel of War; he also told him to call the Crew aft, and give
them directions to support hiw: in this Deelaration; that when the Schooner was taken he had
the Dutch Papers in his pocket, and the French-Papers were in his birth. , ‘
The foregoing Evidence was confirmed in all its material peints, by the Deposition of Henry”

Walliams, aNativeof Riga, and a Seaman onboard the said Schooner, who stated he knew les
before she wascalled the ‘Vogel,’”? and that she was, previous to this, named the * Gallant of
Baltimore.” ‘ , an , _
Thé Ship's Papers, and other Documents and Letters found on board. this Vessel, manifested

evidently the’ clandestine views of the Parties coucerned in the Voyage: she was; when detained
avithin the limits prescribed in the Treaty between His Majesty and His Majesty The King of the
Netherlands, signed at Brussels, the 25th January 1823, The Master, Jean Blais, the better
to carry his illegal purpose into effect, had located himself at one of the principal and most noto-
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sious Slave Factories on the Windward Coast; at this Place he landed nearly the whole of his

Cargo, without shipping a single article of produce in return.

In the Declaration of Joseph Tricon, the First Mate, he hesitated not in acknowledging the

_ object of the Master of the * Vogel” to have been the Traffick in Slaves, and he also declared

his belief, that the palm-oil and rice, which he was employed to purchase, were for the. purpose

of feeding the slaves, Amouyst the Papers are 2 Invuices; in C. No. 3, the 3d Entry is 3600)bs.

ot rice, whilst in No. 4. falsified by the Master, the rice is omitted, together with its value, 180

dollars, and yet the total amounts are made to correspond; in addition to this quantity, there

was also found, amongst the Ship’s Papers, a Receipt tor 360 dollars, given for 5 tons of rice,

{suld for Cash, and not a transaciion in Barter,) to Captain Blais, of Cape Mount, by Jobn

Smith, Master of the “ James Dunsmure,”’ supposed to be a Liverpool trader.

‘The nature of the private Letters found on board, which, though so written as evidently to

attempt to disguise and mislead, is, in several instances, so clear, as to shew the intent of the

Partics. In the Letter of Instructions, trom Blais to Tricon, he writes, ‘‘ I have learnt, from good

authority, that, if met on the Coastof Africa by the English Cruizers, the Netherlands Flag will not

excuse us. 1 therefore direct. you to be very careful, when any Ship appears that you may suspect,

to run from her if it be possible.” .

In fine, the manner of her equipment and outfit, the circumstance of her being found on the

Coast of Africa, in direct contradiction to the preventive Clause, in the Licence granted to navigate

under the Dutch Flag, from the Colonial Authorities at Saint .Bustatius, and ‘every circumstance

connected with the Case, leading to the decided conclusion, that the object in view was the illicit

Traffick in Slaves.
The British and Netherlands Judges, perfectly coinciding in opinion, (and no-claim or explana-

tion being made or offered by any Person ou account of the Parties interested), without hesitation

condemned the said Schooner “ Vogel,” taken by His Majesty’s Ship ‘ Brazen,”’ Captain G. W.

Willes, as lawful Prize to their respective Governments. ,

Sentence of Condemnation was accordingly passed against her in the British and Netherlahds

Court of Justice on the 3lst day of March 1826.

SierraLeone, April 4, 1826. (Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS,

 

Second Enclosure in No. 56.

Schedule of Papersfound on board the Schooner “ Vogel.”

DurcH Papers.

(A 1.)—CERTIFICATE of Naturalization of Jean Blais, dated St. Eustatius, 28th July 1825,

signed by the Governor of that Island, W. A. Van Spengler.

{A2.)—A Bill of Sale from Frederick A. Reynolds, Owner of the American Schooner

“Gallant,” to Jean Blais, of St, Eustatius, 2,250 pieces of eight, dated 4th of

August 1825, signed W. A. Van Spengler.

(A 3.)—Licence to Jean Blais to navigate the Schooner ‘* Vogel’ under the Netherlands Flag,

with Petition to carry guns; and Licence granted, stating that security had been

given for 5,000 guilders, that he should not be employed in the Slave-trade, dated

5th August 1825, signed W. A Van Spengler,

(A 4.)—Muster Roll, dated 5th August 1825, signed W. A. Van Spengler.

(A 5.)—Custom Clearance for the ** Vogel” in Ballast from St. Eustatius to St. Thomas, same

date.

Dawiso Papers.
( B.)—Clearance from Custom House at St. Thomas for Princes Island, on the Coast of Africa,

dated 17th.September 1825. :

Frencu Papers. . /

(C 1.)—Acte de Francisation, dated Pointe& Pitre, Guadaloupe, 18th October 1823, for ‘the

Schoouer “ L' Oiseau,” belonging to Monsieur J. La Fosse, of that Place.

(C 2.)—Role d’ Equipage, dated at Pointea Pitre, Guadaloupe, 17th September 1825, /

(C 3.)—Invoice of Cargo shipped on board “* L’Oiseau,” consigned to. the Master, dated

at Pointead Pitre, 17th September 1825, and signed J. Lafosse—amount 8,567 dollars.

(C 4.).—An Invoice, similar to No. 3, with the exception of the third Entry, viz :—~6 tierces of

rice, 3600ibs. i80dol., which is partially erased, and Sc. Thomas introduced instead of

Pointe a Pitre, and it is signed by J. Blais, instead of J. Lafosse, the date is the same.

{C5.)—Custom House Clearance from Guadaloupe, dated 18th September 1825, for the Island

of Princes, on the Coast of Africa. .

{C 6.)—Copy of a Letter from Jean Blais, at Cape Mount, to Joseph Tricon; no date.

 

Enslosure (A 1.) in No. 56, (Translation:)

Certificate of Naturalization of Jean Blais.

WE, William Augustus Van Spengler, -Colonel and Sea-Captain in the Service of His

Majesty the King of the Netherlands, Governor of The Islands of St. Eustatius, 5t. Martin, and

- Saba, Commander-in-Chief of the Land and Sea Forces in this-Island, &c. &c. &c., authenticate
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and certify, bythese presents, to every one whom it may concern, that Jean Blais, a Native
of Bordeaux, in France, has this day taken, in oui hands, the roper Oath of Allegiance
to His Majesty; wherefore we entreat every one who may be shewn these presents,to consider the
betore mentioned Jean Blais, as a Subject of His Majesty, and to let him enjoy the right and the
privileges belonging to him on that account, In faith of which these presents have been signed
by us the Governor and Secretary of this Island, and confirmed by means of the seal of this
Colony.

St. Eustatius, the 28th July 1825, the 12th Year of His Majesty's Reign.
(Signed) W. A. V. SPENGLER,

By His Order, (Signed) T. G. Grogs, Sec.

Enclosure (A 2.) in No. 56. (Translation.)

Bill of Sale of the Schooner “ Gallant.”

WE, William Augustus Van Spengler, Colonel and Sea Captain in the Service of His Majesty
The King of the Netherlands, Governor of the Islands of St, Eustatius, St. Martin and Saba, Com-

mander-in-Chief of His Majesty’s Land and Sea Forces in those Islands, &e: &c. &c.

Notify and acknowlcdge the personal appearance betore us of Mr. Frederick A. Reynolds,
Owner of the American Schooner the ‘* Gallant,” now lying in this Roadstead, who declared to
have privately sold, and in virtue of these presents, transfers to, and in favour of, Mr. Jean
Blais; Citizen of this Island, the above Schooner, ‘ Gallant,” with her masts, sails, rigging,

~ anchors, cables, and other appurtenances, and to have done so ia consideration of 2,250 pieces of
eight, which he, Deponent, acknowledges to have already received without the deduction of a
farthing, promising to guaranty the Schoouer ‘ Gallant,” with her appurtenances, to the pur-
chaser, the above-mentioned Jean Blais, against all claims and demands, either implied or expressed.

Tn attestation of which, these presents have been signed by us the Governor and Secretary of this
Island, and also by the Deponent, and confirmed with the Seal of this Colony at St. Eustatius, the
4th of August 1825, (Signed) W. A VAN SPENGLER.}

(Signed) Frepenicx a Reynoups. Tl. G. GROEBE, Secretary,

Enclosure (A 3.) in No. 56. (Translation.)

Petition of Jean Blais to carry Guns on board the “ Vogel,” and Licence to
Navigate.

To His Excellency Mr. WA. Van Spengler, Governor of the Islands of St. Eustatius, St.

Martin, and Saba, Commander-in-Chief ot His Majesty's Land and Seu Forces in the same, &c.

Jean Blais, a Citizen of this Island, submits, with the highest respect,

THAT Memorialist has this day purchased in thisTownaSchooner called “De Vogel,” (proved
by.the deed of sale certified by the Colonial Secretary), which, agreeably to the Right of Citizen-
ship, which he has procured, he is desirous to place under the protection of the Netherlands Flag,
and to obtain from your Excellency the requisite Sea- papers, in order thereby to advance the in-
rests of his commercial pursuits.

That the Pirates, who are cruizing everywhere, make it incumbent on all Commanders of
Ships to provide themselves with arms, to be able in case of an attack to oppose it. For these
reasons Memorialist addresses to your Excellency the hamble Petition, fo authorise bim to keep on
board: his Schooner the arms which he found there, consisting of 2 pieces of ordnance, six-
pounders, 12 muskets, and 6 sabres, together with the necessary proportion of ammunition, soli-
citing from his Excellency a favourable Reply to his Memorial.
St, Eustatius, August 4, 1825. (Signed) JN. BLAIS,
The Governor of this and the Dependent Islands having seen the above Petition of Jean Blais,

Citizen of this Island, has thought proper and resolved to grant the prayer of Memorialist, and it
is hereby granted, in permitting him to carry on board. his Schooner ‘* De Vogel” 2 pieces of
eannon, being six- pounders, also 12 muskets aud 6 sabres, together with the necessary proportion
ofammunition, upon the express condition of his giving, in addition to what js usual, an extraor-
dinary and sufficient security of 5,000 guilders, Netherlands currency, not to employ the Vessel
above mentioned in carrying on the prohibited Slave-trade, or to make an improper use of her
armament,

Given under our hand and the Seal of the Government, at St, Eustatiis, August 5th 1825,
being the 12th Year of His Majesty’s Reign.

(Signed) W,. A. V. SPENGLER.

MOST-Serene, Most Illustrious, Serene, High and Well-born, Most Noble, Honourable, Esti-
‘wable, Wise and Pradent, Emperors, Kings, Republicks, Princes, Dukes, Counts, Barons,
Burgomasters, Aldermen, Conncillors, as also Judges, Officers, Justices, and Governors of all
good Towns and Fortresses, who shall see these Presents, or shall bear them read,Greeting,
WE, William Augustus Van Spengler, Colonel and Sea Captain, m the service of His

Mujesty The King of the Netherlands, Governor of the Islands of St. Eustatius, St,Martin,



Srcrra Leone. (Netherlands.) 91

‘and Saba, &c, &c. make known, That Jean Blais is Master of the Schooner called ‘*De Vogel,”

of 5] Z tons burthen, the property of Mr, Jean Blais, a Subject of His Majesty The King

of the Netherlands, and an Inhabitant of this Island; and being inclined to encourage the honest

industry of the above Ship-Master, we beseech all the before-mentioned Personages, and each of

ahem in particular, in all the Places at which the above Ship Master may arrive with his Vessel.

and her Cargo, to be pleased to receive the above-named Master in a friendly manner; and to give

him good treatment, allowing him, on his paying the usual tolls and imposts, when he shall come

into theirHarbours, Rivers, or Verritory, to pass, navigate, and frequent them, in whatever nian-

ner be may have occasion, for the purpose of transacting his business, which favour we will gladly
return, : ;

Given under our Hand, and under the Seal of the Government of St, Eustatius, August 5, 1829,

the 12th Year of His Majesty’s Reign.
To be in force for a twelvemonth, with the view of enabling him to navigate all Seas excepting

those on the Coast of Guinea (Signed) WILLIAM AUGUSTUS VAN SPENGLER.

Verified by Order, By his Order,

(Signed) P. Venscaven, Book-Keeper-General, T. G, GROEBE, Secretary.

ad interiny,

Enclosure (A 4.) in No. 56. (Translation.)

Muster-Roll of the Schooner “ De Vogel.”
MUSTER-ROLL kept on board the Schooner “* De Vogel,’ under the Netherlands Flag,

lying ia this Harbour, ready to sail, the Crew having been engaged by the Master at such

Monthly Wages as are set down against the Name of each ; and the Laws respecting the obe-

dience to be paid by each of them to the Master, or to the Person placed over them, being
herewith confirmed.

  

Dollars.

Master - - - - Jean Blais - - -

Steersman - - - Josh. Tricon - - - 89

Steersman’s Mate - - Francis Boulanger - - 25

Boatswain - - - Anty.Losan - - - 20

Timmerman - - - Gabillard . . - 20
Sailor - - - - Pierre Moquet - - 15

Ditto - - - - Jn. Tomas - - » 45

Ditto - = - - André Cristofle - -~ 45
Ditto - - - - Pierre Bodouin - - 15
Ditto - - - - Antoine Ferere - - 15
Ditto - - - ~’ Joseph Ardisson = = - 15
Ditto - - - - Nicolas Lament - - 45
Ditto - - ” - Jean Francois - i
Cook - - - ~ Jean Baptiste - -
Butler - - - - Augustin - - - 15

Boy - - - » Jean Louis - ~ - Jo

Registered at St. Eustatius, Aug. 5, 1625. (Signed) W. A. V. SPENGLER,
(Signed) Jean Brats, Owner. ‘I. G. GROEBE, Secretary.

Enclosure (A 5.) in No. 56. (Transkation.)

Custom House Clearancefor the “ Vogel”from Eustatius.

CAPTAIN Jean Blais, of the Dutch Schooner ‘* Vogel,’ bound for St. Thomas in ballast.

St Eustatius, August 5, 1825. (Signed) J, VERSCHUUR,

Anchorage Ps, 4, (Signed) R. Mitcnett. Acting Commissioner for Clearances,

 

Enclosure (B.) in No. 56.

Custom House Clearance for the © Vogel”from St. Thomas's,

CAPTAIN J. Blais, of St. Eustatius, with the Schooner ‘* Vogel,” of 52 tons burthen, intend
to sail to Princes Island and the Coast of Africa, and has laden, dry goods and provisions.

PASSES FREE,

Si, Thomas's Royal Custom House, September 17, 1823. (Signed) NESNENOUEM..

 

Enclosure (C 1.) in No. 56. (Translation)

Act of Francisation of the Schooner L’ Oiseau.

In the Name of the KING.

WE the Intendant of Guadaloupe and its Dependencies, declare that Mr, J, Lafosse, Ship-owner,
domiciliated at Pointe 4 Pitre, is Proprietor (1) of the Ship “* L’Oiseau,”” belonging to Pointed

(1) To express ifhe is sole Proprietor, or conjointly with others, whose names and abode must be designated.
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Pitre, and built in America, as has been certified, tat Schooner has two masts and-one deck,
being 61 feet in length fromi stem to stern, 19 feet 3 inches in the greatest breadth, and 6 feet,

: : . wos . 53 : . a
7 inches in height between decks; that it is of 80 7a tons, having been gauged according to the

mannerprescribed by the Law of the 12th Nivose, of the Year 2, (2) which is (3) a Schooner, that it
has (4) no gallery on the fovecastle; that the Ownerof the said Ship has tulfilled the accustomed
forms prescribed by the Law of the 27th Vendimiaire, Year 2, to prove that it is French properry ;
that the Declarations, Oaths, Bails, and Securities prescribed by the sail Law, have been observed
and exeeuted on the 18th October 1823, and rezistered, No. 35, in the Register of the Customs,
where the said Proprietorresides, therefore he has a right to sail” under the French Flag. We
command, in consequence, the Commanders of the Ships of the Kingdom, and all Publick Fane-
tionaries, to acknowledge the Vessel as French, and to cause it to enjoy all the Privileges belong-
ing to Ships of the Kingdom, the Proprietor being obliged to conform to the Laws, and to take
out the Licence and Commission prescribed.

The Governor and Administrator of Guadaloupe
Delivered the 18th October 1823. { and Dependencies, for the King,

(Signed) JACOB.

The Director General of Domains and Customs,
Registered and delivered at the Custom
House in the Harbour of Pointed }
Pitre, the 18th October 1823. (Signed) -P. Dr ua Cuavarenis.

Received for the Duty of the present In-
strument the sum of entered in . vase 8 , 1 .the Register of Receipts, No. 281.— The Treasurer, (Signed) NavaILier.

48 Francs 61) Cents

Register of the Greffier, folio 4, No. 27.
Registered under No. 70, in the Orice (Signed) Le Comm, Hexmirer.

of Armaments.

(2) This blank is intended to insert the depth of the hold if the Ship has only one deck, conformably with Article IX
ofthe Law. :

3) To express here its description, as a Brig, Schooner, &c.
(4) That it has one or none.

 

Enclosure (C 2.) in'No. 56. (Translation.)

Role d’Equipage of the Schooner “ L’ Oiseau.”

YEAR. 18235. The 17th of the Month of September
No. 52. ARMING, No. DISARMING.

GUADALOUPE.
QUARTER OF POINTE A PITRE.

> (Armament of the Month.)

THE. SCHOONER “ L’OISEAU.”
ROLL of the Crew of the said Schooner, of the burthen of 80 = Tons,

armed with 2 Cannons, belonging to Mr. Jean Lafosse, and commanded
by Jean Blais, going on the great Coasting Trade.

 

  

 

 
 

Description.
Movements. {Names and Surnames.| Places of Birth. Rank. Pay perAge. |Height.! Hair. | Month.

Blais, Jean - - {Europe - - [Captain - -[ 27 “« B. 200F,Tricon - = ~ “e Second.- - {| 27 “ B. 150
Blanc, Pascal - «6 Lieutenant - | 33 id B. 100
Frangois - - = (St. Maloes - |Mate- - -| 26 fe Cc, 90Rosignol - - - |Havre - - Carpenter - | 35 fe B, 80Michael, Jacques {Youlon - ~ [Steward- ~| 23 “ B, 80
Frangois, Joseph iCuragoa~ - [€ook < - 24 se B. 89Marius - - - |Marseilles ~- Sailor =< .{ 24 ee B. 70
Figarau - - - {Porto Rico - “ 30 fe B, se
Schmit - - - [St. Thomas - “e 25 fe fe «eManuel = - - India = -- “e 22 “e “e “e{0jé -<.-.e “e «c se ‘e &e “co
William + - ~- St. Thomas - “s 23 “ “ ecAndre- - + = [Germany - “e 25 ee ‘e «ePitzen = - ~ iCuragoa- - “ 21 «e “ «e

; St. Bartho-Jacque +. iF lemew } “ ‘56 i “ “6       
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WR, the undersigned, Owner and Captain of the Schooner **L’Oiseau,” acknowledge the present

Roll to be a true one, conaining 16 Persons, whom we have engaged to sail on the great coasting

trade, during a year, we giving security to produce them at the expiration of that period, ani to

observe towards them, during that voyage, the Laws of the Kingdom.

Done at Pointe 4 Pitre, Guadaloupe, 17th of the Month of September 1825,

(Signed) J. LAFOSSE. (Signed). JEAN BLAIS.

The 16 Persons, named in the present Roll, having been seen by me, Under Commissary,

charged with the Departinent of Privateering, and with the Detail of the Classes: and of Marine,

Captain Jean Blais obtained permission to employ them for the great Coasting Trade, on the

conditions stated in the security as above, and we enjoin him to transmit bis Roll of the Crew to

the Officer of the Classes, or any other Overseer in the Service of the Administration of the Ma-

rine, in the Harbour in which he may arrive ; on the margin of which Roll, or in the corners, he

shall be bound to specify the deserters, the persons dead, and disembarked, and to insert therein

the date ; and if he augments or replaces such Persons in the Harbours to which he may put in,

he shall cause thera to be added to the end ot his Roll, from date to date; .we command himalso

not to pass or repass any Passengers without presenting them to us, and making mention of them

at the bottom of the present Roll, all which being subject to the penalties ordained by the Ordi-

mances of the Mariné.
Done at Pointe 4 Pitre, on the Day, Month and Year above set forth. ‘

(Signed) A. R. Sine.

Seen on departure, Basse Terre, Pointe & Pitre, 17th September 1625.

 

(Signed) CuronpDiTHi.

Seen on departure for Princes Island, Coast of Africa, Basse Terre, 18th September 1825,
(Signed). Sn, SEGAULT.

Enclosure (C 3.) in No. 56. (Translation, )

Invoice of Merchandize put on Board the Schooner “ L’Oiseau,” Captain
Blais, and consigued to him, to wit :—

   

: Dols. Cents.

1158 Gallons of Rum .......- ceee on eaeeneee peeveseeccees at 36 Cents. 436| 883

80 Barrels of Powder of 2515 ..........e0000+-2- 2000T6 at 25 500 |—

6 Vierces of Rice ........... weer cameneeeenee 3600. at 5 180 | —

220 Muskets ......00...--..000. ween eae ee reeee at 5 Dol. 1100 |—
110 Bars of [ron of 15 to 161b........ wectecceceszeee 3600 at 6 Cents. 216|/—

220 Kettles .. 0... ccc cee ce cece cere eecretcercee 1820 at 8 105| 60

220 Ruffles at 25 p dozen occ ee ete ere recent . 45| 84

220 Cases of Gin, at 24 16...ee eee cece cece sceeneee 495 |—

220 Pieces Guinea Blue ..........006 eveeeee wees we sceeeee at 4 Dol 380 |—

220 Ditto ditto White....... eee ecueceee ce cceveceecrce at 3 660|—
220 Ditto ditto Limeneas 2... 0.0...ce cca ee eens at 33 770| —

3309 Kills to be divided into 220 pieces Nicanes ......---- eee 377| 26
220 Pieces Chacelats 2.0... 0... ccc cect ee eee ee eeeteeeee at 3% vid |—
220 Handkerchiels, Romales 15 in the piece ...... Ore eee at 2 - 440 | —

22) Ditto - - Kermitches 10 ditto .......-.--- . at 2 440|—

220 Ditto. - - Blue - TO ditto LL ceeeewees at 2 440 |—
220 Ditto - - Madrasses, Red and Ulue, assorted ........ at 19 360 | —
45 Pieces of striped Silk of 20 yardsto be divided into small pieces isd | —
10 Dozen Razors 20... 0. cece een ere eee ee tee eeeneeee at 4 40) —
9 Ditto ditto oooeeeeeecc wereeaes seeneees .- at 35 ‘ 29) 25

20 Ditto Padlocks Joc...cececeeeeeeeeeweeteeeesenes 26)—

1 Barrel of Blints co... cae ee eee ce cece wees we weaenee 1 1} —

2524 Pounds of Tobacco 2.0.0...000 eeeeeeee cen eaeee .-. at 63 Cents. 164} 6

2AU MArrors 0.eeeceecena eee e eeeeeenee at 84 R.p.doz. 19 [ 47

60 Bundles of Necklaces aud small Necklaces in form of a pipe r 16 aT

: x626 | 36

EXPENCES,

Doties oo... eee eeeee bese ce een eseeneeeewes weaees veeeeeeeecees, 100] —
Lixpences of Negives for sewing the Bales ......... sosescsecevecesan, 20 | —

8746 [36

. Pointe & Pitre, 17th September 1825. (Signed) J. LAFOSSE,

Enclosure (C 4.) in No. 56.
AN Invoice similar to the above, with the exception of the 3d Entry, viz: 6 Tierees of Rice,

“whiehis partiallyerased,of Saint Thomas being introduced instead of Pointe a Pitre, and of its
being signed by J. Blais instead of J, Lafosse.  
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Enclosure (C’5.) in No. 56. (Translation )

Custom-House Clearancefrom Guadaloupe of the Schooner * L’Oiseau.”
Extract from the Register of Declarations of the Departures of Ships,

THIS day, the 18th of the Month of September 1825, appeared at thisOffice Mr. Jean Blais,
Captain of the Schooner ‘ L’Oiseau,”’ of Pointe a Pitre, of the burthen of 809gtons, armed

with 2 cannons, manned by a crew of 16 men,belonging to Mr. JeanLafosse, whohas declared
that the Vessel is going to the Isle of Princes, Coast of Afriea, and that she is laden. with what
follows, to wit :—. .
* Ten hogsheads of rum, 80 barrels of powder, 6 tierces of rum, 220 muskets, 110 bars of iron,
220 aes of gin, 2,50016 of tobacco, i2bales, 8 cases of different dry merchandizeand hard-
ware, 220 iron kettles, a barrel-of flints, besides the private effects of the Crew: nothing more;
submitting to the penalties enacted by the Ordinances.

Done in the said Office on the Day and Year above-written. The Receiver ofDeclarations,one in the sai ce on the Day (Bice) Been.

 

Enclosure (C 6.) in No. 56. (Translation.) _

Jean Blais to Joseph Tricon.
Fataer in Law,

LE ROL is within a league of the Ship, I have, therefore, been to bis house, andaftermanythings said, according to custom, we came to an arrangement ; he told me that he was to give me aheifer, and that he wishes for the following articles, without being able to make any deductionwhatsoever, to wit.:—
.One gun, | padlock, | mirror, 8 measures of powder, of the same form as the one thatwill bebrought to you, 12 heads of tobacco, | ruffle, 48 handkerchiefs, as he observed to me, like thehandkerchiet which you have, ! pen-knife, 2 gallons of rum, without water, | razor, | largekettle, }-bar of iron, vr. 12, a bunch of necklaces,

And when he receives that, he has promised to give me something else, which will be a Calf.; , I salute you, .
; (Signed) BEAIS.

T await your answer to obey it. Le Roi begs you to make him a present of a bottle of wine.He has only 5 slaves—those whom he shewed me were good ones.

 

No. 57.
lig Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—-{Received Sept.2.)

Sir, Sierra Leone, June A, 1826,
WE have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch of the13th of March last, communicating to us the names of' several Ships andVesselsof His Majesty’s Navy, to which the Instruetions referred to in theTreaty with His Netherlands Majesty for the prevention of Slave-trade, havebecn issued. We have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) JOHN TASKER WILLIAMS.The Right Hon. George Canning, D.M. HAMILTON,&e. &e. &e.

No. 58.
D.M. Hamilton, Esq. to Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq.—(Received Oct. 16.)

Siz, _ Sterra Leone, August 15, 1826.
IN pursuance of the 75th Clause of the Act, passed in the 5th Year of theReign of His present Majesty, intituled “An Act to amend and consolidatethe Laws relating to the Abolition of the Slave-trade,” and in obedience tothe Instructions received from Mr. Secretary Canning, relative to the same,I beg leave to enclose, in Duplicate, a List or Return of all the Cases ofNetherlands Vessels which have been Adjudicated in the British and Nether-lands Mixed Court of Justice established at this Place, from the 1st ofJanuary to the 30th day of June 1826; both days inclusive,
- I have the honour to be, &e.

Joseph Planta. Sun. Esq. (Signed) D.M. HAMILTON.Ce &. — &e.
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aCG SIERRA TLBONE. (Netherlands. )

No. 59.

D. M. Hamilton, Esq. to Air. Secretary Canning.—(Received Oct. 28.)

Sir, “Sierra Leone, August 26, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch, dated
the 8th July last, with its Enclosure, containing, for His Majesty’s Commis-
siouers, the information that the Netherlands Brig-of-War “ Panther,” des-
tined for the West Indies, will be furnished with a Copy of the Treaty of the
4th of May 1818, and the Documents annexed thereto, for the suppression of
the Tratlick in Slaves

: I have the honour to be, &e.
: (Signed) D. M. HAMILTON.

Lhe Right Hon. George Canning,
Se. &c. &c.

 

No. 60.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 5, 1826.
T HAVE to acquaint you, for your information, and that of the other

Gentlemen composing the Mixed Board of Commission, of which you are
Members, that it appears, by a Communication from the Admiralty, under
date of the 25th ult. that the Instructions, referred to in the Treaty betweenGreat Britain and the Netherlands, for the suppression of the Slave-trade,have been issued to the following Ships and Vessels of His Majesty's Navy:

Names. Guns. Commanders.
Drtid eee ve AB cece cee Lieut. Chambers.

| North Star...... 28.....44. Capt. Arabin.
. Seylla vececccoes 18......+-. Wm. Hobson.
- Pyladesy..... 0645 18........ G. V. Jackson.
And that those Instructions have been recalled and cancelled, which had _been issued to His Majesty’s Ships “ Hussar,” “ Dartmouth,” “ Dispatch,”“ Kerret,” and Swinger.”

Tam, &e.
(Signed) GEORGE CANNING.Llis Majesty's Commissioners.
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HAVANNAH.

 

No.61.

iisMajesty’s Commissioners to My.Secretary Canning.—(ReceivedMarch 9.)

Sir, Havannah, January 1, 1826.

WE have the honour to enclose the Return required by the 75th Clause of

the Act 5th George IV. Cap. 113.
We have the honour to be, &c.

. (Signed) H. T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, — W. S. MACLEAY.
&e. &e. &c.

 

Enclosure in No. 61.

Half-Yearly Report of Cases adjudicated by the Miaed Commission at the

 

 

Havannah.

_|Whether PropertyCon-
Date of Decretal part vf demned has beensold

: 2: Sent hether Lonve -
DateofSeizure.| Property Seized. SEIZOR. Sentence. Fone ee or Res. OF atepaid,andin

titution. whose handsthePro-
ceeds remain.

(The Brigantine,
[|. Tackle,&c.have

. . | been sold, no-
{ Spanish Brig-)| (Lieut. Edw. thing remaining

: antine “s Isa- | Smith, com- unsold. TheBri-

Oct. 5, 1925/2 22" with 10.412 manding His >/Oct. 17, 1825'Forfeiture....|2 tish moiety of
| Negroes on i B.M.Schoo- \ thenet proceeds
j board; no ner * Lion’. j has been re-

other Cargo. mitted to His
Majesty’s Secre-
tary of State for

L Foreign Affairs.     
(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.

Havannah, January 1, 1826. W. S. MACLEAY.

 

No. 62.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr, SecretaryCanning .—(ReceivedMarch9.)

Sin, - Havannah, January 18, 1826.

IN a conversation, lately, with the French Consul-General, upon the
subject of the Slave-trade, he, informed us, andat our request had the goodness



98 Havannan.

to furnish us with a Copy ofaCommunication which he had received from
the French Consul at Santiago de Cuba, respecting the re-capture, by a Spanish
Slave Ship, of some Prizes which had been taken by His Majesty’s Cruizers
on the Coast of Africa. A report has reached us, that the British Crews of
the Prizes had been murdered by the Spaniards, and in the hope that it may
be of some use in the investigation of this atrocious affair, we have the
honour to enclose a Copy and Translation of the Communication referred to.

We have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.
The Right Hon. George Cunning, W. 8. MACLEAY.

Sec. Se. —-&e. -

 

Enclosure in No. 62,

The French Consul at Santiago to the French Consul-General,

Monsieur le Consul Général, Santiago de Cuba, le 14 Décembre, 1825,
LA Frégate de S. M. B. ** L'Isis” appartenant & la Station de la Jamaique est entrée dans ce

Port avanthier, :
Je ne doute pas que sa Mission, qui dailleurs est restée fort secrate, ye soit relative a un acte de

Piraterie commis recemment sur la Céte WAfrique par un Négrier Espagnol appartenant a ce Port,
et nommé le “* Gavilan” ou le « Feliz,” Capitaine Zagarra, armé de [4 canons, lequel a enlevé
deux Batimens Négriers pris par les Anglais, l'un Espagnol appartenant aussi au Port de Santiago,
et Pautre Portugais, et en a attaqué un troisiéme qui s'est échappé.

Aprés cette eapture le Capitaine Zagarra s’empara de tous les Nagres du BAtiment Portugais, et
yenvoya avec ce méme Bariment les éyuipages Anglais, et vint débarquer les Esclaves sur cette
Cote, ct entra ensuite ici ainsi que sa prise le 28 du Mois dernier, comme venant de St. Thomas;
les Armateurs se sont hatés de faire repartir les deux BAtimens.
Mon principal motif pour vous douner ces détails est, que pendant les Pirateries le «* Gavilan” a

arboré la famme et le Pavillon Frangais, ce qui pourrait avoir donné lienx 4 des méprises ou
4 de faux rapports; mais je sais que les équipages renvoyés abord du Batiment Portugais n’y ont
pas &é tromués.

Je ferai le méme rapport 4 son Excellence le Ministre des Affaires Etrangéres.
J'ai thouneur, &c. &e.

(Sigué) S. DANNERY.
P.S. Du 15 Décembre. J'ai tout lieu de croire queles Autorités dici se sont bornées a nierd'aVoir eu connaissance des Pirateries du « Gavilan,” non plus du débarquement des Esclaves.

Mons, Angeluci, Consul-Général de France ala Havane. (Signé) 8. D.

———

: (Translation,)
Mr. Consun Genenat, Santiago de Cuba, December 14, 1825.

HIS Britannick Majesty’s Ship *¢ Isis,” attached to the Jamaica Station, entered this Port theday before yesterday. . .I have no doubt ot her Mission, which has, however, been kept very secret, having relation toan act of Piracy, recently committed on the Coast of Africa by a Spanish Slaver belonging to thisPort, and named the “* Gavilan,” alias the « Feliz,” Captain Zagarra, mounting 14 guns; whichShip has captured 2 Slave-traders that had been taken by the English; the one a Spanish Vesselbelonging likewise to the Port of Santiago, and the other a Portuguese, besides attacking a third,which made her escape.
After this Capture, Captain Zagarra, having taken possession of all the Negroes of the Portu-guese Vessel and dismissed the English Crews in her,sailed for this Coast in order ta land theSlaves, and finally entered here with his prizes, on the 28th ult, as if coming from St. Thomas;the Persons who fitted out the Ship have been in haste to send back to Sea the 2 Vessels taken, ;My principal motive in giving you these details is, that during her acts of Piracy, the ** Gavilan”hoisted the French Penusnt and Flag, a circumstance which might have given rise to mistakes orfalse reports; but I kuow that the Crews discharged on board of the Portuguese Vessel have notbeen deceived by it.
i shall make the same report to his Excellency the Minister of Foreign Affairs,

: I have the bonour to be, &c. a
Signed S. DANNERP.S. December 15. I have every reason to believe that the Anreoities of this DeRYconfined themselves to a denial of having any knowledgeof the Piracics of the <« Gavilan,” or of

‘the lauding of the slaves. (Signed) , S. D.
MM, Angéluci, Consul-General of France at the Havannah.
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No. 63.

His Majesty's Commissioners:to Mr:Secretary Cunning.--( ReceivedApril3.)

Str, Havannah, February 22, 1826.

THE Spanish Brigantine “ Magico,” was brought into this ‘Port on the
26th ult. by His Majesty’s Schooner “ Union,” Lieut. A. B. Lowe, Com-
mander, having been captured on the 22d with 179 Negroes on board.

The Mixed Commission could not in this Case proceed, as directed by
Treaty, to receive the Depositions of the Master and some of the Crew of the
Prize, the whole of them having escaped on Shore before she was taken
possession of by the ‘* Union ;” it was, therefore, judged necessary by the
Court to summon the Officers of the latter for the purpose of corroborating,
and, as far as was practicable, affording legal proof of the Statement made by
the Commander, in his Affidavit, and in his Declaration of the state of the
Prize at the time of capture ; and also that the Commander himself should be
requested to appear again, in order that he might be further examined
respecting the inhuman conduct stated by him to have been observed by the
Crew of the “ Magico” towards the unfortunate Negroes.

_ Lieut. Lowe and two of his Officers were accordingly examined, and their
Depositions, together with the Ship’s Papers, which most fortunately were
all found on board, placing beyond the possibility of a doubt both the iden-
tity of the Vessel, and the fact that she had been engaged in the illicit
Traffick in Slaves, no further delay was considered necessary, and Sentence of
Condemnation was pronounced on the 31st ultimo.
By these Depositions and Papers,it appears that the “ Magico,” of which

Don Joze Inza was Master and ostensible Owner, sailed from.hence on the
26th June 1825, for the Coast of Africa, where she arrived on the 16th
August. She remained on the Coast until the 8th December, when she
again sailed on her return from Grand Popoe; on the 20th of January
she was fallen in with and chased by His Majesty’s Schooner “ Union,” and
having been brought to action in the course of the 21st, she was finally run
a-shore by the Crew on the Morning of the 22d, near a point on the
North side ofthis Island, called Manati, and shortly after taken possession
of by the “ Union.” The Crew previously escaped to land -with, it is
supposed, about 200 of the Negroes, and raany of the latter that remained -
were found severely wounded, some were hanging on at different parts of the
Vessel, and from 20 to 30 of their dead bodies were seen in the Sea; all this
being evidently the result of the endeavours employed to force them to jump
overboard and-swim to Shore. ‘The Crew even carried their burbarity so far
as to leave a lighted match in the powder magazine.
A Copy of the Declaration made by Lieut. Lowe of the state of the

Prize at the time of capture; an Abstract of the Evidence taken; and
Translations of the Sentence of Cendemnation, and the Correspondence
which passed between the Captain-General and the Mixed Commission,
in the course of the Proceedings in this Case, are enclosed.

In their Sentence the Court have, in forcible terms, drawn the attention
of the Captain-General to the inhuman conduct of the Crew of the “ Ma-
gicd,” suggesting the expediency of apprehending and punishing the Delin-
quents, as well as of collecting the Negroes who had been landed by them,

and who are, as well as those found on board, fully entitled to the benefit of
Emancipation. :
Of the 179 Negroes found on board at the time of capture, 3 died before

disembarkation, and 1 immediately after, leaving the number. emanci-
pated 175. One of these, after his Certificate of Emancipation had been
made out, was stolen while under the charge of the Person who had been
named by the Captain-General to receive’ them from the Captor. The
Mixed Commission did not fail to apprize his Excellency of this cir-
“cumstance, and we understand, that the most effectual measures have been
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adopted for the recovery of ihe Negro, the whole of the guard of soldiers
that was placed over them, and two other individuals, being now in prison as
implicated in the transaction. .
The “ Magico” is the Vessel respecting which a long Correspondence

with the Captain-General, was reported last Year, and the result ot her
present Voyage, similar in ‘every respect to the former one, which was
then under discussion, is thebesc justification of the strong assertions which
His Majesty’s Commissary Judge ventured to make to you in those Despatches.

I have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE,
The Right Hon. George Canning, W, S. MACLEAY.

&e. Se. &e.

 

First Enclosure in No. 63.

Declaration of Lieutenant Lowe.

T, A. B. LOWE, Lientenant and Commander of His Britannick Majesty's Schooner ‘‘ Union,”
hereby declare, that on this 22d day of January 1826, being then in or about Latitude 2], 20.
North, and Longitude 76. 40. West, I detained the Brigantine ‘* Magico;” sailing under Spanisl:
-Colonrs, armed with 3 guns, nine-pounders, commanded by who declared her to be
-boand from to with a-Crew consisting of men, boys, supercargo,

passengers whose names, as declared by them respectively, are inserted in a List at foot
chereof, aud having 179 slaves, said.to be taken on board at on the day of
aud are.enumerated as follows :—

 

Healthy. Sickly.

Men - - - - 64 2 | Through Wounds,

Women - - 20 3 | Ditto.

~ | Boys - + = - 40 i | Ditto,

Girls - - - - 48 1 | Ditto,

1 do further declare, that the said Brigantine appeared to be seaworthy, and was supplied with
a sufficient stock of water and provisions for the said Negroes end Crew on their voyage to her
supposed destination near Havannah,

I do further declare, that I chased her from the 2Uth to the 22d of January 1826, when she ran
a-shore, some where near Manati, on the North-side of Cuba, and landed, to the best of ray opinion,
at least 200 slaves, before I took possession of her; at which time the whole of the Crew deserted
her by going on Shore, and were assisted by the Inhabitants, in my gpinien, in landing the said
slaves; also, that when on the Bahama Bank, on the 2Ist of January, I brought her to action,
in consequence of firing at His Majesty's Schooner “‘ Union,” which lasted for better than half
an hour, when she made all sail away, but still continued firing now and then from ber stern
Chasers, Jtis with regret that Iam in duty bound to mention the barbarity of ber Crew towards
those unhappy creatures, the said Negroes, having actually cut several of those slaves for the in-
-tention, I suppose, of making them jump overboard; to the best of my opinion, I saw 20, or 30
Negroes drowned alongside, laying at-the bottom, and what is still more horrid to the feelings of
-a Christian, when she was taken possession of there was a lighted match found in her Magazine
-of Powder, and very probably, had it remained there for a few minutes longer, the whole of
sthose unhappy Negroes would have been blown up.

(Signed) A. B. LOWE, Lieutenant and Commander.
sWitess, W. W. Wurre, Mate. -

A, Hanpzxson Brown, Surgeon:
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Second Enclosure in No. 63.

Abstract of the Evidence in the Case of the Spanish Brigantine * Magico.”

LIEUTENANT ALEXANDER B. LOWE, declared in his Affidavit, that he had ceptured
this Brigaatine in Latitude 21. 20 North, Longitude 76. 40. West, with 179 Negroes on board,
and that be had found a tin case with the name “ Magico"’ marked upon it, containing the
regular Papers issued at this Port of Havannah, in the Month of June 1825, authorizing that

Vessel to proceed to the Island of Saint Thomas, on the Coast of Africa, for the purpose of

trading in Articles of lawful Commerce, but expressly prohibiting her from engaging in the Slave-
trade. A Log-Book kept by the Mate Sanchez, was likewise found on board, together with bis
Commission granted by Admiral Gaston, and several other Papers of little importance, all of
which were produced. Lieutenant Lowe added, that he had not given to the Master of the Bri-
gantine the Certificate, as directed by Trewty, because there was no such Maste
indeed any White Person whatever, at the time of the capture,
Upon a subsequent examination, Lieutenant Lowe deposed, that the Declaration of the state of

the Vessel at the time of Capture was drawn up after a form, which had been given to him for
that purpose, and that the blanks in it had not been filled up, because no Master or Crew had
been found on board; that it was from the freshness of the wounds, the parts of the body in
which they were received, and the several dead Lodies which he saw in the Sea, that he had inferred

what he stated in the said Declaration, namely, that in the precipitate fight of the Crew they
had forced many of the Negroes to throw themselves overboard, in the hope that they would

swim a-shore, but that he was not in possession ot any facts to confirm bis opinion; that from
the number ot Negroes he saw en Shore, he judged that they amounted to about 200, and that
they were joined by several White Persons who had been, previously to the landing of the Negroes,
near to two Huts, apparently of Fishermen: that he did not himself see the lighted match in the
Powder Magazine, but that it was shewn to him by one of his Sailors who found it there.
Mr. George William White, Mate of the “ Union,” deposed, that the Brigantine was seen

by the ‘ Union” on the 20th January, and immediately chased; that she was brought
to action on the 2Ist, and at length captured on the 22d, near the Point Manati, after
having been run a-shore, the Crew and many Negroes having succeeded in reaching the
land before the Schooner could come up; that he was ordered by his Commanding Officer
to go on board the Brigantine, in which he found no White Person whatever, buta con-
siderable number of Negroes, sone of them wounded and several hanging on at different parts of
the Vessel, from whence he inferred that they had forcibly been driven over-board= and this cun-
jecture was confirmed by the circumstance of several deadbodies being seen at the bottom where
the Brigantine was aground. ‘That the Negroes in danger were immediately taken on board, and
those wounded afforded every assistance; that the Ship’s Papers were taken possession of and
delivered over to the Commanding Officer; that the Negroes were numbered; and the Vessel
having been got off, she proceeded to Sea under the command of the Deponent, as Prize Officer,
and arrived at the Port of Havannah on the Evening of the 26th; that immediately atter he
boarded the Prize, he ordered the Powder Magazine to be searched, and that a Sailor, named Ben-
jamin Phillips, brought up to him a match still lighted, which was found in the same,

Mr. George Crisp Dowers, Midshipman, serving on board the “* Union ” deposed to the cir-
cumstance of the capture of the “* Magico”’ in the same terms as the last Witness; that he was
not ordered on board the Prize until the evening of the day on which she was captured, from
which time he remained in her until she arrived at the Port of Havannab, on the 26th ot January,

ron board, nor

 

Third Enclosure in No. 63. (Translation.)

Sentence of the Mixed Commission in the Case of the “ Magico.”

THE Proceedings having been duly considered in this Cause, respecting the detention,
effected on the Coasts-of this Island, by the English Schooner of War, named the Union,”

- Alexander B. Lowe, Lieutenant in the Royal British Navy, Commander, of the Brigantine
(Magico) with a Cargo of 179 African Negroes actually on board at the time of the capture3 in
which, although no Depositions have been received from Individuals belonging to the saidcap-
tured Vessel, because they all fled a-shore with a part of the same Cargo, it is proved, in a
manner which admits not of doubt, by all the principal Documents which were taken. and have
been presented to the Commission, that the aloresaid Vessel is the Spanish Brigantine known by
the name of *« Magico,” D. Joze Inza, Master anid Supercargo, dispatched by the Department of
the Commandant of ‘* Matricula” of this Port, in the Month of June last Year, for tne African
Island of St. Thomas, and of which D. Pedro Sanchez was Mate, as appears by the Log-book
upon her outward voyage, and upon her retutn up to the 20th to the 21st of the Month, which
is now concluding, when the English Schooner of War began to chase her; proceeding, as is the
practice in these Cases, briefly and summarily, the truth being ascertained, and. good faith
observed, and considering, that, in the above-mentioned Documents, there is sufficient ground for
the final determination, it is declared to be well and legally etfected, the capture of the aforesaid
Vessel, and of the 179 Negroes found on board, and that the former is subject and liable to con=
fiscation, together with her tackle, apparel, and whatever may. be. contained therein, with the.
exception of the afuresaid Negroes, who remain free {rom all slavery and captivity. It is accord-  



102 PIaAvANNAH.

Vessel and whatever belongs to her, a valuation

be made thereof by the principal Masters of the Royal Arsenal, jipon their previously swearing

faithfully to perform this duty, the proper official application being made for this purpose, and

that thesame be exposed to publick auction betore the Royal Notary, Don JozeRafael de Meza,

and be disposed.of to the highest bidder, at the Auction Room of Don An‘onio Galea, in order

that theproceeds may be applied to the benefit of the two Governnyents, the said Vessel being for

the present placed in deposit with Don Jayme Andreu, who shall likewise take the proper oath,

recciving the same by formal inventory, And with respect to the Negroes, it is directed that

their Certificate of Emancipation be given to them, as soon as they shall be landed, by DonRafael

Gonzales Barvanca, Deputy Secretary, who is hereby appointed to perform that duty; for which

purpose an Official Letter, with a certified Copyof this Sentence, shall be addressed to his Eix-

cellency the Governor and Captain General. requesting that he may be pleased to name a Person

jn whom he has confidence, to receive and take charge of them, until his Excellency shall dispose

of them as he may thirk proper, in conformity to the ‘realy

This Mixed Commission cannot pass over in silence the horrible conduct observed by the Crew

of the Brigantine towards the unhappy Negroes, forcing them, by wounds, to throw themselves

jnto the Sea, in order to escape from the English Schooner of War which was probably the cause

of some of them being drowned, whose dea-| bodies were seen at the bottom where the former ran

a-shore: aud being persuaded that the well kuown zeal and love of justice of his Excellency will

induce him te pursue the perpetrators of such an execrable crime, and a'so to cause theNegroes,

dispersed and straggling on Shove, to be collected, ou the ground that they, too, should be in-

cluded in the benefit of Emancipation; it is. hereby directed, that a cerlified’ and entire Copy of

the Proceedings be made out for the purpose of being transmitted, separately, to his Excellency,

as svon as the whole shall be concluded, in order that he may be pleased to proceed, with regard

to those peints, conformably to Law.

ingly directed, that, with respect to the said

 

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS,
H. T. KILBEE.

Havannah, January 31, 1826. RAFAKL GONZALEZ, Secretary.

Fourth Enclosure in No, 63. (Translation.)

The Mixed Commission to the Caplain- General.

Mosr Exce,tent Sir, Havannah, February 1, 1826.

BY the accompanying certified Copy, your Excellency will be apprized of the final Sentence

pronounced by this Mixed Commission in the Cause respecting the Capture of the Spanish

Brigantine ‘‘ Magico,” with a Cargo of African Negroes, by the English Schooncr-of-War

“© Union." In consequence.thereof, the said Negroes are to be delivered up'to the person whom

your Excellency shall appoint, in order that they may be disposed of as you shall think proper,

in conformityto the Treaty ; and as the Commission have to assign to each Negro his Certificate

of Emancipation, as has been done in the former Cases, they request that your Excellency will be

pleased to communicate to them the natne of the said Person, as soon as he shall be appointed, in

order that rhey may proceed in the performance of that duty.

At the same.time, your Excellency will observe the reservation made by the Commission

to transmit to you an entire Copy of the Proceedings jor the purposes which are stated, and

which shall be dane as soon as they are-concluded,
God preserve, &e. &c.

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS,
His Excellency the Captain- General, H. T. KILBEE,

Fitth Enclosure in No. 63. (Translation.)

The Captain-General to the Mixed Commission.

Most Excettent Sir, ann GENTLEMEN, Ravannah, February 2, 1826.

‘1 HAVE received, with your Official Letter, the Copy of the final Sentence, pronounced by the

Mixed Commission, in the Cause relative to the Capture of the Spanish Brigantine** Magico,”

with a Cargo of bozal Negroes, by the English Schooner of War ‘* Union ;” 1 have taken the
whole into due consideration,atl under.this «day's. date I have named Dou Canuto Diez to receive
the Negroes and to dispose of them in the same manner as the others, conformably to the Treaty;
authorizing him likewise to proceed to the performanceof the other. Act relative to the Certifi-

eates of Emancipation, which are to be made out by the Mixed Commission, as was done in the
two formér similar Cases, .

_ As soon as | shall receive the Copy of the Proceedings, ] will take the proper steps, in con-
formity to the Treaty and.to justice, against the perpetrators.of the outrage committed when the
above-mentioned Brigantine ‘‘ Magico” ran-a-sbore: . .
oe : . God preserve, &c. &c.

His Excellency the Intendant, and the other (Signed) FRANC® DION? VIVES,
Members of the Mixed Commission,
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Sixth Enclosure in No. 63. {Translation.}

The Mixed Commission to the Captain- General.

Most Iixcentewr Srr, Havannah, February 3, 1826.

IN consequence of what we stated to your Excellency at the conclusion of our Official Letter of
the ist instanr, in which was enclosed a certified Copy of the Sentence pronounced iu the Cause,

respecting the Capture.of the ‘* Magico 3” we now transmit to your Excellency a certiGed Copy of
the Proceedings up to that state of the Case, in order that you may be pleased to adopt the mea-

sures which you shall judge advisable. God. preserve your Excellency, &c, &c.

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS.
His Excellency the Captain-General, Ij. T. RILBEE,

 

 

Seventh Enclosure in No, 63. (Translation.)

The Mixed Commission to the Captain- General.

Most Excetzenr Sir, Havannah, February 6, 1826.

THE Mixed Commission have concluded, by means of a Person of trust appointed by them, the
act of assigning to the ‘‘ bozal’? Negroes belonging to the Brigantine ‘* Magico,” which was cap-
tured by the Schooner of War © Union,” their respective Certificates of Emancipation, which
were not delivered into their hands for the same reason that they were withheld in former Cases ;
and we now transmit them to your Excellency for the purposes stated in those Cases,

Althongh the number of Negioes captured was 179, only 174 Certificates have been assigned,
3 of the Negroes having died on beard the Brigantine before the disembarkation, according to the
Report made to the Commission by the Commander of the English Schooner, which is preserved
amongst the other Proceedings in the Cause; and another having been stated to have died, by Don
Canuto Diez, after they had been placed under his charge, of which it is probable that he will

have made a Report to your Excellency.
Upon this occasion it has likewise been endeavoured to ascertain the ties of relationship that

might exist, amongst any of the said Negroes; and it having been discovered that such ties did exist
in some Cases, the same has been noted down in the margin of their respective Certificates, for

our Excellency’s intormation,
The Mixed Commission cannot avoid taking this opportunity toinform your Excellency, that

their Secretary has communicated to them that Don-Canuto, Diez had verbally stated to him, at

about half-past two o’clock yesterday, that, after the List of the Negroes had been made out, and

their Certificates assigned to them, he found that the one numbered 11 was missing, and. it was in-

ferred that he had been stolen on the morning of the same day; and this being altogether a most

scandalous action, the Commission trust that your Excellency will employ all your zeal in, the
matter until the perpetrator be discovered, and the Negro restored to the liberty which he had

already obtained, and of which it has been attempted to deprive him.
God preserve your Excellency.

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINIELOS,
His Excellency ihe Captain- General. H, T. KILBEE,

 

Eighth Enclosure 1m No. 63. (Translation.)

The Captain- General to the Mixed Commission.

Most Exceitentr Sir, anD GENTLEMEN, Havannah, February 9, 1826. .

BY your Official Letter of the 6th instant, 1 have been duly apprized that the Mixed Com-

mission has concluded the act of assiguing to.the ‘ bozal”? Negroes of the Brigantine ‘ Magico,””

which was captured by the Schooner-of- War ‘* Union,” their, respective Certificates of Emancipa-

tion, which Certificates were not delivered juto their hands for the same reason that they were

withheld in former cases, and you, therefore, transmit them to me. I have been likewise

apprized, that, although the number of Negrues captured was 179, Certificates .of Emancipation

have been assigned to only 175, because3 died on board the Brigantine betore the disembarkation,

according to the Report made to the Commission by the Commander. of the English ‘Schooner,

which is preserved amongst the other Proceedings in the Cause; and before the List of fhe rest

was made out, Don Canuto Diez reported to me the death of another, all being at the time’under

his charge, . . ce ;

Your determination appears to me to be very proper, regarding the investigation of the family

ties which migh?exist among the Negroes, which are noted dows in the margin of the said “Cer-

Uficates for my information, oo :

With respect to what you state to me relating to the. loss of No. I I, who, after his description

was taken, was stolen, the Captain of the District of San Lazaro isproceeding in, the necessary

summary. investigation for the purpose of discovering the author or wathors of this crime, who
shall be punished according to Law. Goi preserve, &e. Ke.

His Excellency the Intendant, and the other (Signedy  FRANC9. DIONY. VIVES,
Members of the Mixed Commission.  
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No. 64.

HisMajesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.-- (ReceivedApril2i.)

Sir, Havannah, February 22, 1826.

ON the Joth instant, the Portuguese Brig “ durora de Cabo,” Joaquim

Francisco Flores, Master, sailed for Angola, on the Coast of Africa, and on

the 19th, the Spanish Brigantine “ Xerwes,” and the Schooners “ Pautita”

and “ Hortensia,” Ramon Gonzales, Antonio Ferrer, and Vicente Gomez,

Masters, sailed for St. Thomas and Princes Islands on the sameCoast.

On the 18th instant, the Spanish Schooner “ Proserpina,” Jose Antonio

Barrera, Master, arrived here professedly from the Danish Island of St.

Thomas, but really from the Coast of Africa, with a Cargo of 85 Negroes,

which she landed near Cabanas ; this Vessel was fitted out at Cadiz. ~

It is reported that the Spanish Schooner “ Teagenes” lias landed 200 Ne-

groes on the South side of the Island, but she bas not yet entered this Port.
~ We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.

Lhe Right Hon. George Canning, W. S. MACLEAY.
&c. &e. &e.

 

No. 65.

His Majestys CommissionerstoMr. Secretary Canning.— (RecewedMay 19.)

Sir, Havannah, March 16, 1826.

THE enclosed Translation of a Letter from the Captain-General to the

Mixed Commission, is the only Communication which has-vet been received

from his Excellency, respecting the Representation made to him upon the

cruel conduct of the Crew of the “ Magico,” towards the Negroes belonging

to that Vessel.
~ His Excellency has not yet informed the Commission of the result of the

measures which he had adopted for the recovery of the emancipated slave,

reported in our Despatch of the 22d Ultimo, to have been stolen from the

place in which the Cargo of the “ Magico” had been deposited by his order.
We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, W.S. MACLEAY.
&e &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 65. (Translation )

The Captain- General to the MixedCommission.

Most Excettent Sir, anp GENTLEMEN, Havannah, February 28, 18261.

IN-conformity with the opinion which the Auditor of War has given me, J have directed the

Authorities of this Island to adopt the necessary steps for the apprehension of the Individuals

composing the Crew of the Brigantine ‘* Magico,’ which arrived on these Coasts with a

Cargo of Atrican Negroes,
;

] have likewise transmitted to the Commandant of the Naval Forces, on this Station, a Copy of

the Documents which you forwarded to me in your Official Letter of the 3d instant, from the con-
sideration, that to the Naval Department belongs the cognizance of the crimes committed on
board the aforesaid Brigantine.

- And finally, ] have transmitted likewise a certified Copy of the Proceedings to- his Excellency
the Minister of State, that all that bas occurred with respect to the said Vessel may reach‘the

knowledge of the King, myMaster, in order that His Majesty may be pleased to resolve what may
be His Royal Pleasure. All which I state to yon in reply to your Letter above referred to.

God preserve you many Years. (Signed) -FRANC®, DION®. VIVES.
His Hacetlency the Intendant, und the other ,

Members of the Mixed Commission.
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Nu. 66.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning—(ReceivedMay 19.)

Sir, Havannah, March 23, 1826.

ON the 9th instant, His Majesty’s Schooner “ Speedwell,” Lieutenant

_ James C. Bennett, Commander, arrived here with a Cargo of Negroes belong-

ing to the Spanish Brigantine “ Orestes;” which Vessel had run aground
near the Grass-cut-Keys, on the Bahama Bank, where she was found by the

Speedwell,” on the 5th instant, the Negroes being still on board in a very

wretched state, from want of water and provisions, but the whole of the Crew
having landed on one of the Keys. Finding it impossible to get the
“ Orestes” off, Lieutenznt Bennett took the Negroes on board his own
Vessel, together with the Master, the Mate and a Passenger, not having room
for any more of the Crew. The Master died shortly after he was taken on
board the ** Speedwell.” .
The Mixed Commission, having received the Affidavit of Lieutenant Ben-

nett, and the Depositions of the Mate and Passenger of the “ Orestes,” pro-
nounced a Decree on the 15th instant, emancipatingthe Slaves and condemn-
ing the Vessel, should she or any part of her ever be saved.

The Brigantine “ Orestes,” Don Joze Ramon Mutio, Master, sailed from
this Port on the 20th of July 1825, for the Coast of Africa, where she arrived
in the Mouth of September, and remained till the 10th of January, on which
day she received on board 284 or 285 Negroes, and immediately set sail on her
return to this Island. In the last days of February, she was chased by 2
British Schooners, from which, however, she escaped, but shortly after ran
aground near Grass-cut-Keys. After 2 days the Crew made a raft, all the
Boats,itappears, having been lost, and proceeded to one of the Keys, leaving
the Negroes on board: they had been 3 days in this situation when the
“* Speedwell” appeared, and took possession of the “ Orestes.”
We have the honour to enclose an Abstract of the Evidence, anda Trans-

lation of the Decree of the Court.
Of the original: number of Negroes received on board on the Coast of

Africa, 22 according to one Witness, and 25 according to the other, died on
the passage, previously to the day on which the “ Orestes” ran aground ; but
heither of them was able to state how many were alive when she was taken
possession of by the ‘ Speedwell,” both agreeing that several had been
drowned in consequence of the great quantity of water which had entered the
hold after the Vessel had struck. ,

According to Lieutenant Bennett’s statement, many of the unfortunate
‘Negroes must have died for want of proper provisions and of water, with-
out which they had been for some days. He states, that there were 233 on
board, besides several dead bodies, when he first visited the ‘“ Orestes,” of
which number 4 were drowned in the surf in attempting to get from the
wreck into one of the Boats; 2 died on a Key on which they had been
landed, previously to their being conveyed on board the “ Speedwell,” which
lay at a considerable distance; 10 of those who had been alive on the evening
of the capture were. found dead on board the “ Orestes” on the following
morning; 10 died on board the * Speedwell,” and 212 were handed. over to
the Person appointed by the Captain-General to receive them. Certificates of
the deaths were presented to the Mixed Commission by Lieuteuant Bennett.

In the 3 last Cases that have been decided by the Court, M. Pinillos has
acted as Spanish Commissary Judge, and we havegreat satisfaction in stating,
that, throughout the whole of the proceedings, he has manifested thesame
conciliatory disposition, and the same desire to act up to the spirit of the
‘Preaty, which ‘had in all the previous Cases, as has been reported to you, uni-
formly marked the eonduct of the Spanish Members of this Mixed Com-

_ mission.  
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By a Memorandum, endorsed on the Papers of the ‘4 Orestes,” it appears,
that she had been visited by one of HisMajesty's Cruizers on the Coast of
Africa. Similar Memorandums have been found upon the Papers of other
Vessels condemned by the Mixed Com mission; and we have reason tobelieve
that many, perhaps the greater number, of the Slave Vessels that land their
Cargoes on the Coasts of this Island, have been boardedby Boats belonging to
British Ships-of-War on the Coast of Africa, but were not detained, as they
had pot Negroes actually on board at the time, although there could be no
doubt that their sole object in being there was to engage in the Slave-trade. It
is the practice of those Vessels to wait till their Cargoes are ready, and then
ship them at once and set sail immediately. The Mateof the ‘ Orestes
stated, that her whole Cargo, amounting to 285, was shipped in 3 hours. It is
obvious, therefore, that the greatest benefit would result from the adoption, by
His Catholick Majesty, of an Article similar to the Additional Article of the
25th January 1823, to the Slave-trade Treaty between Fis Majesty and The
King of The Netherlands; by which the Cruizers are authorized to detain,
and the Mixed Commission to condemn, Vessels found under precisely the
same circumstances, as the Sparish Vesscls here referred to, which have so
often been enabled to elude the vigilance of His Majesty's Vessels-of-War,

We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.
Lhe Right Hon. George Canning, W.S. MACLEAY.

&c. &e. —&e.

 

First Enclosure in No. 66.

_ Extract of the Evidence in the Case of the Brigantine “ Orestes.”

LI EUT. BENNETT stated, in his Afgdavit, and in his Declaration,pe the state of the Prize at
the time of the capture, that he found the Brigantine -« Orestes,’” on the 5th, of March, aground in
Latitude 23. 40 North, and Longitude 77, 20. West, oft the Grass-Cut Keys, on the Great Ba-
bama Bank, with 239 Negroes on board, the Crew having landed on one of the Keys; that the
Negroes were in a very exhausted state, having been lefe several days without water, and that
many had died; that the Master, who, with the rest of the Crew, was onone of the Keys, delivered
up to him 6 Papers, which were produced, and proved to be the regular Ship's Papers issued, at
this Port of Havannah in the Month of July 1825; that finding it impossible to vet the ‘* Orestes”?
of the Reef, be took the Negroes out and put them on board the Schooner under his command,
together with the Master of the « Orestes,”” Don Joze Ramon Ratio, (who died shortly after), |
the Mate and a Passenger; and that the very crowded state of his Schooner precluding the possi-~
bility of receiving on board the remainder of the Crew (30 Individuals), be left them on the Key
on which he found them, supplying them with a sufficient quantity of provisions and water.

Charles Pourrailly deposed, that he was a Native of France, and engaged in Commerce; thathe knew the Brigantine « Orestes,” having sailed in her as a passenger; that the Captain was
D. Joze Ramon Musio, who died lately, but that be is not aware who the Owner was; that, onthe 9th of January last, he sailed in her from Ayudo, on the Coast of Africa, without any other
extraordinary occurrence happening, except that of having been chased hy two English Schooners,until the 28th of #ebruary, when the ‘© Orestes” grounded near Grass-Kevs, being then out of
sight of the Schooners; that they remained in this siruation two days, at the expiration of which
they formed a Raft, on which all the white People on beard were conveyed to one of the Keys, theNegroes being left in the Vessel; that three days after, an English Schooner. of War appeared insight, the Conmander of which cane in his Boat to where the Crew was, and having learnt whathad appened, and having received trom the Master, Mutio, certain Papers, trausferred the Ne-groes on board his Schooner, together with the said Master, the Marte, and the Deponent, andbrought chem into this Port of Havannab. the Master having died the day after the captare; that:284 Neproes were taken on board on the Coast of Atrica, of which number ¥ died previous. tothe Vessel grounding; bat that Le could not say how many there were at the time of the cap-ture, several having been drowned in the hold, in consequence of the «reat quantity of waterwhick entered atter that misfortune; that the “Orestes” had no other Cargo- but the. Negroes ;that the Papers which were given up by the Master were the regular Ship’s Papers, and upontheir being shewn to the Witness he immediately recopnized them.

Salvador Estolt deposed, that le was a Native of Catalonia, that he was Mate of the Brigan-tine “ Orestes,” of.which the late D. Joze Ramou Matic, was Master, and D. Ventura Zagonera,Owner, as this Deponent infers trom his being the Persou who dispatched her in this Port; thatjhe entered on buard the said Vessel, as Second Mate, on the 16th of July 1825, and that on the20th ofthe sameMonth, she set sail trom this Port of Havannah for the Coast of Africa » wherethey arrived without accident towards the close of September ; that they remained in the Road of
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Ayudo until the 10th of January last, on which 285 slaves were embarked on board the ‘¢ Ovestes.”

with which they immediately set sail tor this Island; that no accident happened during the Voyage

unti] the 28th of February, when, after having been chased for two days by two English Schaoners,

from which they had escaped; the Vessel grounded near Grass Keys; on the Bahama Bank; that

they remained there without leaving her for two days, at the end of which they made a Raft, on

which the whole Crew proceeded to a neighbouring Key, leaving the Cargo of Negroes on board;

that three days after an English Schooner of War appeared in sight, the Commanderofwhich came

to the Key on which they were, in his Boat, and having been informed of what had happened, he

transferred the Cargo of Negroes, the Captain of the ‘* Orestes,’ D, Joze amon Mutio, a Pas-~

senger, Don Carlos, whose Surname he does not know, and this Deponent, on board his Schooner,

and set sail for the Port of Havannah, the said Mutio having died one or two days after the Capture;

that during the Voyage, up to the day on which the Vessel ran aground, 25 Negroes had died, and

that Deponent heard that several others had been drowned inthe hold, the number of which he did

not learn, and that consequently he could not say exactly how many there were at the time of the

Capture; that the ‘ Orestes” had no other Cargo but the Negroes; that she had not been brought

into this Port, because it was impossible to get her off from the place where she was aground ;

that the Ship's Papers were delivered up to the English Commander; and those presented to the

Courtby the latter having been shewn to bim, he immediately recognized them and said that they

belonged to the ‘‘ Orestes.”

 

Second Enclosure in No. 66. (Translation.)

Sentence ofthe Mixed Commission in the Case of the Brigantine “ Orestes.”

THE merits of this Cause having been taken into consideration, it is declared to be a good and

Jawtul Prize, that made by the English Schooner-of- War ‘* Speedwel!,” commanded by James C.

Bennett, Esq. Lieutenant of the Royal Navy of His Gritannick Majesty, of the Spanish Brigan-

tine named the “ Orestes,” with a Cargo of 238 African Negroes, according to the Certificate of

the Captor, relative to the state of the Vessel at the time of the capture; respecting which number

the two Individuals belonging to the Crew of thé ‘* Orestes," who have been examined, have not

been able to afford any information, as they say that they do not know how many were drowned

in the hold, in consequence of the great quantity of water which entered when‘aground, as she

was upon Grass-Cat Keys, on the Bahama Bank, where the said Vessel was abandoned, it having

been found inipossible to get her off and set her afloat. The Negroes are consequently declared

to be free from all slavery and captivity, to the number of 212, to which the Cargo has been

reduced, aud which are already disembarked .by order of his Excellency the Caprain- General,

under the charge of Don Felipe Rodriguez, and are placed in one of the Barraconeés outside

the walls of this City, 26 having died subsequently to the capture, as appears by the Report made

by the aforesaid Captor to the Mixed Commission, and annexed to the other Documents belonging

to this Cause. Let the proper Certificate of Emancipation be given to thera by the Deputy Secre-

tary, who is named for that purpose; and with respect to the said Brigantine ‘* Orestes,” which

remained aground on the Key where she was found, it is declared from this moment, that if she

or any part of ‘her be saved, the same is subject and liable to confiscation, in order that, being

sold at publick auction, the proceeds may be applied to thebenefifof the two Governments, ob-

serving, in that case, Ure necessary formalities tor this purpose ; aid let-a Certified Copy of this

Sentence, with a proper Official Letter, be addressed to his Excellency the Captaiu-General, in

order that he may be apprized of the same, which is likewise to be notified to the Captor.

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS,
BH. T. KILBEL.

Havannah, March 15,. 1826. . RAFAEL GONZALEZ, Deputy Secretary:

 

No. 67.

His Majesty’s Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received May21.)

Sir, Ffavannah, March 11, 1826.

WE have the honour to inform you, that Captain Hobson, of His Majesty’s

Sloop: “ Ferrett,” brought into this Port, on the 15th ultimo, the Spanish

Schooner “ Fingal;’ which he had detained on the 3d, with a Cargo of 58

Negroes.
Sentence of Condemnation was pronounced by the Mixed Commissionon

the .20th ultimo. ,

The Schooner “ Fingal,” of which Don Dionisio Urquijo was Master and

ostensible Owner, sailed from this Port on the ist of February 1825, for the

Island.ot St. Thomas, on the Coast of Africa; where, however, she did not.

touch, but proceeded:to Cape Mounton the Continent. She remained there

for several Montlis, and; at length, set sail on her return to this Island, on the
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1st January of the present Year. The Master and two of the Crew, who were
examined, stated, that the Schooner did not take on board any Negroes on
the Coast of Africa, but that, 17 days after their departure, they fell in with a
French Brig, which obliged them to receive on board 61. In relating thts
improbable story, the Witnesses differed in some not immaterial points, but
it is rendered altogether unworthy of belief by the fact, that in the Log-
book there is a Note inserted (which, though attempted to be blotted out, is
plainly visible) of the death of a Negro on a day prior to that on which che
Brig was said to have been fallen in with ; and also by the total omission in
the Log-book, in which, however, many other Vessels are stated to have been
seen, of all mention of any such Brig, the meeting with which, it was pecu-
arly the interest of the Master to have noted down in the most expheit terms,
as upon it he pretended to found his justification for the yiolation of the Laws
of his Country in having Negroes on board his Vessel. No other event of
importance is said to have happened in the Voyage until she ran aground
near Salt Key; two days after which she was taken possession ofby the
Boats of His Majesty’s Sloop “ Ferrett,” the Negroes haying been previously
landed on a small neighbouring Key, but as they were placed under the charge
of3 of the Crew, and were fully admitted by the Master and the other Wit-
nesses, to belong to the Vessel, and to have been removed for the purpose of
concealment from the English, the Court, without hesitation, came to a De-
cision that the Vessel stiould be condemned and the Slaves emancipated.
We have the honour to enclose an Abstract of the lividence, and a Trans-

lation of the Sentence of the Court. 7
The “ Fingal” was not reported to you among the Departures for the Coast

of Africa last Year, because, in the daily lists published in theNewspapers,
she was stated to have sailed for New Orleans.

We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.
. 8S. MACLEAY.The Right Hon. George Canning,

Se. Se. &c.

 

~ First Enclosure in No. 67.

Abstract of the Evidence in the Case of the Spanish Schooner *Fingal.”

CAPTAIN HOPSON stated, in his Affidavit, and in his Declaration, of the state of the Prize
at the time of the capture, that he had detained this Schooner on the 3d ot February, in Latitude
22.12. North, and Longitude 75. 46. West, with 58 Negroes on board, exclusive of a female
infant that was born the day after the capture, and lived only a few days; that he found the
Schooner aground and the Negroes on shore on a small uninhabited Key, in the charge of 3 of the
Crew, the Officer who went on board having been conducted to the place of their concealment by
the Master, who fully admitted them to be his Cargo; and that he received from the said Officer,
and now produced, 5 Documents which were delivered up by the Master, and which proved to bethe regular Ship’s Papers, issued at this Port of Havannah in the Month of Jaunary 1825, and
authorizing the ** Relampago”* to proceed to the Island of Saint Thomas, ov the Coast.of Africa,
for the purpose: of ‘trading in. articles of lawful Commerce, but expressly prohibiting her fram
engaging in the Slave-trade.

Dionisio Urquijo deposed, that he was a Native of Bilbao; that he was Master and Owner ofthe Schooner “ Bingal,’? in which he sailed from the Port of Havannah, ou che Ist February1825, for the Island of Saine Thomas, for the purpose of engaging in Lawful Commerce, but thathe never touched at it, having, when in sight thereof, been informed, by a Portuguese Vessel, thathe wold not find any of the articles of which he was in want 3 that consequently ke proceededto the Coast of Africa, amiin the vicinity of Cabomonte, he contracted with: the Negroes of theCountry the exchange of bis Cargo for palm-oil, logwood, rice, and ivory, which articles werenever delivered to him, +JIthough he waited for them for the period of eight Months and a halfwith the exception ofa small quantity of logwood, with which he determined to return, with theloss of almost the who'e of his Carge, which le bad previously handed over to tke said Negroes ;that he accordingly set sail for this Port on the Ist January of this Year, and 17 days alter hisdeparture he fell in with a French Brig laden with slaves, the Captain ot which, after askinetorsome provisions, which could not be afforded to him, sent on board the Schooner. 61 Negroeswhich the Deponent, from matives of humanity, could not avoid receiving, being told that if he didnot, they would be thrown into the Sea; that the French Brig then departed, having previously
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thrown ovethoard a swivel gun and various other arms that were in the Schooner; that the

Deponent continued his voyage with the Negroes and ran aground near Salt Key on the Ist or 2a

of February, and that on the 3d, 3 boats of an English Brig-of-War, which was in sight, approached,

when the Negroes were landed on a small neighbouring Key for the purpose of concealing them

from the English, and also of lightening the Vessel, 3 of the Crew being left in charge of them ;

that apon the arrival of the English boars they discovered the Negroes, and again brought them

on board the Schooner of which they tovk-possession, and ultimately brought her into the Port

of Havannah-; that the Negroes at the time of the capture amounted to 58, and that his inten-

tion was to bring them to Havannah. and relate what had happened with the Frenck Brig; that

there was no other cargo on board at the time of the capture, and that the Papers which he

delivered up were the only ones he bad on board.

Florencio Sugasti, a Native of Biscay, deposed, that Dionisio Urquije was Master‘of the

Schooner “ Fingal,” but that he did not know who was the Owner; that the Depouent belonged

to the Spanish Schooner * Clara,” which was wrecked on the Coast of Africa, when he and 5

others of the Crew requested to be received on board the ‘* Fingal” as passengers, and that

during the voyage he acted as Mate, but without any pay whatever.

‘That about the 3lst of December last, they set sail from the Coast of Africa, with a small

cargo of palm-oil and logwood, and 17 or 18 days after they fell in with a French Brig, laden

with slaves, the Captain of which asked for alittle rice, which was refused, and then foreibly put

on board 61 Negroes, and went away, after throwing over-board the gun and some small arms that

were in the ‘ Fingal; °* that they continued their voyage, and on the Jst or 2d of February,

yan a-ground near Salt Key, 2 days after which 3 English armed Boats, belonging to a Brig-of-

War in sight, appeared, when the Negroes were landed apon one of the siuall Keys, in order to

conceal them from the English, and to lighten the Vessel, but were shortly after discovered upon

the arrival of the Boats, by which they were again embarked on board the Schooner, of which

the English took possession, and ultimately brought her into the Port of Havannah; that the

number of the Negroes at the time of the capture was 58, 3 of the 61 having died during the

voyage, and that there was no other cargo on board the Schooner at the time of the capture, the

logwood having beea thrown overboard when she grounded.

Benito Vasquez, a Native of Malaga, deposed, that Dionisio Urquijo, was Master of the

Schooner “ Fingal,’* and that he did not know the Owner; that he was received on board her, -on

the Coast of Africa, as a passenger, but that the Boatswain having been drowned he acted daring

the voyage in his place ; that after he had been on board ber about 3 Months they set sail on the

2st of January of the present Year, with a Cargo of logwood; that 17 days after they fell in

with a French Brig laden with slaves, of which 61 were put on board the Schooner, the French Cap-

tain saying, that he had not provisions enongh for them; that the latter then left them, first taking

on board his Brig a swivel gun and other arms belonging to the ‘‘ Fingal; ” that this Schooner

continued her voyage, and ran a-ground on some Keys, near the Coast of the Island of Cuba, 2

days after which 3 English armed Boats came up, and again put on board the Schooner the

Negroes who had been landed on one of the Keys, for the purpose of lightening her; that the

English then took possession of the Vessel, and brought her to the Port of Eavannah; that at

the time of the capture 58 of the Negroes were alive, 3 having died during the Voyage, and that

there was no other cargo on board, the logwood having been thrown into the Sea to lighten the

Vessel.

Second Enclosure in No. 67. (Translation )

Sentence of the Mixed Commission in the Case of the Schooner “ Fingal.”

THE merits of this Cause having been taken into consideration, andparticularly it being oh

served, that it is noted down in the Log-Book on the 16th of January, a date prior to that when the

Master, andthe two other Individuals who have been examined, assert that ‘the 61 Negroes were

received from a French Brig, that a full grown Negro had died; this being clearly and distinerly

visible, notwithstanding the attempt made toblotont the circumstance, by drawing several strokes ofa

pet across it, as was also done in the case of two other Negroes who died subsequently, and no men-

tion whatever being made throughout the whole Log-book, of having fallen in with the aforesaid

French Brig, as is done with other Vessels that were seen on different days, it is hereby declared to be

goodand lawful Prize, that made by His Britaunick Majesty’s Brig ‘‘Ferrett,” William Hobson, Esq.

Commander, of the Spanish Merchant Schooner named Fingal,” D. Dionisio Urguijo, Master,

with a cargo of 58 African Negroes, viz: 41 males and 17 females, one of the latter having been

delivered of a female infant the day alter the capture; and that the said Schooner, her tackle,

apparel, and whatever may be contained therein, are subject and liable to confiscation, with the

exception of the aforesaid Negroes, who- are declared to. be free from all slavery. and captivity.

With respect to the condemned Vessel, and whatever belongs to her, let a valuation be made

thereof by the Principal Masters of this Roval Arsenal, who shall swear faithfully to perform this

duty, in order that the same may be exposed to publick auction for the term requiredbyLaw, and

‘he disposed of to the highest bidder, at the Auction Room-of Don Antonio Galea, before the

Notary, D. Joze Rafael de Meza, the proceeds being for the benefit. of the two Governments,

and let the said Vessel be for the present placed in deposic with D. Jayme Andreu, who sball

‘likewise take the proper Oath, receiving the same by formal inventory ; and with respect to the

‘Negroes, let their Certificate of Emancipation be given to them by the Deputy Secretary, who is
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hereby appointed to perform that duty, for which purpose let an Official Letter be addressed
to his Excellency the Captain-General, requesting him tobe pleased to name a Person in whom
he has confidence, to receive and take charge of them, until his Excellency shall dispose of them
as he may think proper, in conformity with the letter and spirit of the Treaty; and when his Ex-
célleacy shall have selected the said Person, it shall be uotified to the Captor to deliver the
Negroes up to him, and the Schooner to the Depositary, communicating to him now a certified
Copy of this Sentence, of which the Master, D. Dionisio Urquijo, shall also be apprized.

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DBE PINILLOS,
, H. T. KILBEE.

Havannah, February 20, 1826. RAFAEL GONZALUHS, Deputy Secretary.

 

No. 68.

His Majesty's Commassioners to Mr.Secretary Canning.-- (ReceivedMay 21.)

Sir, Havannah, March 11, 1826.

ON the 26th ult. the Spanish Brig “ Currutaco,” D. Juan Coll, and the
Schooner “ Hseudera,” D. Juan Tornella, Master, sailed from hence,
the former for St. Thomas, and the latter for Princes Island, on the Coast of
Africa.
We have heard that the French Frigate “ 4ntigone” has captured a Slave-

vessel of the same Nation, with upwards of 100 Negroes on board, not far
from Santiago de Cuba. We have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) H. I. KILBEE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, W. S. MACLEAY.

&e. &c. &e.

 

No. 69.

Lis Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Seeretary Canning. —
~ (Received Tune 12.)

Sir, Havannah, April 15, 1826,

WE have the honour to enclose a Translation of a Letter addressed
by the Captain-General to the Mixed Commission, and of the Reply of
the latter, upon the subject of a Royal Order, issued by His Catholick
Majesty, for the more effectual suppression of the illicit Slave-trade, car-
ried on with this Island, which has been published in the Official Journal.

In this Royal Order, it is expressly stated, that The King has adopted
_ Additional Measures, in consequence of the remonstrances of the British
Minister at Madrid, although He himself does not consider those already
taken to be inadequate to their object. It is directed that every Vessel
from the Coast of Africa, shall, upon her arrival, deliver up her Log-book to
be examined ; and should there be any reason to suspect her of having been
engaged in the Slave-trade, that the Captain-General, who alone is to take
cognizance of such Causes, shall proceed to the investigation of the Case, and
the punishment of the Delinquents. Persons of all classes are authorized to
denounce Transactions of illicit Slave-trade, but no reward is offered to the
Informer, unless he be a Slave, in which case he instantly becomes free;
the Purchaser of illegally imported Negroes being subject to a fine of
200 dollars for each. ‘The Clergy are directed to impress upon their Flocks
that the carrying on the Slave-trade, since it has been prohibited by The
King, is a moral offence. Those Negroes hereafter imported, who shall de-
nounce the Vessel in which they have come, are declared to be entitled
to their liberty, but not those illegally introduced, up to the present pertod.
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And finally, it is ordered, that these measures shall not be carried into effect

until after the Royal Order shall be published.

The strong incitement held out to Slaves to denounce transactions of illicit

Slave- trade has created universal alarm and dissatisfaction here ; and should

Informers of that class receive encouragement and protection from the

Tribunals of the Island, little doubt can be entertained that this measure will

afford an effectual check to the Traftick.
We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, W. S. MACLEAY.

&e. &ec. &e.

 

First Enclosure in No. 69. (Translation.}

The Captain-General to the Mixed Commission.

Most Excertznt Sin, anp GENTLEMEN, Havannah, April 11, 1826.

UNDER date the 2d of January of this Year, his Excellency the Duke del Infantado, First

Secretary of State, writes to me as follows :—

ROYAL ORDER.

Most ExceLient Siz,
Madrid, 2d January 1826.

HIS Britannick Majesty’s Minister here having remonstrated against the fraudulent Importa-

tion of Negroes into the Island of Cuba, in manifest violation of the Treaty of 1817, in the exact

fulflment of which the English Nation and Government have always taken so much interest, Our

Lord the King could not do less than take this matter into consideration, fur the more prudent

determination of which he has not only consulted the Council of Indies and the Juuta of His Mi-

nisters, but he has also acquired information trom Persons in whose knowledge upon the subject

he has reliance; and after maturely examining the several arguments and measures which have

been proposed to him, he has been pleased to adopt those, which, in his high consideration, he

bas esteemed best adapted for securing more ‘effectually the suppression of this illicit Traffick,

although he does not believe to be insufficient the measures already taken and prescribed in the

different Orders issued to the Authorities of that Island during the whole period that has elapsed

from the conclusion of the above-mentioned Treaty of 1817, to this date, .

Oar Lord the King has accordinyly resolved, that every Vessel proceeding from theCoast of Africa

shail, immediately apon her arrival at the Ports of the Island of Cuba, deliver up her Log-book

to the Naval Commandant, in order that he may examine it, and should there be any reason to

suspect that the Vessel has brought and clandestiuely landed Negroes, that he may instantly report

the same to your Excellency, to the end that you may proceed to the proper investigation and

punishment, in conformity to the Laws in force relating to the subject, it being well understood

that, to your Excellency alone, with the advice of your Assessor, belongs the cognizance of such

Causes; His Majesty, moreover, declaring, that any Person, of whatever class lhe may be, may

denounce the Negroes who shall be received by smuggling, and, should the informer be a slave,

that, in the very act he becomes free, the Purchaser being fined 200 dollars for each of the slaves he

shall have acquired. His Majesty has likewise resolved, that the Very Reverend the Archbishop of

Cuba, and the Reverend the Bishop of Havannah, shall. impress upon the Rectors and those

belonging to their respective Dioceses, that from the moment His Majesty was pleased to prohibit

the Traffick in Negroes, its continuation in any manner whatever was no longer permitted in con-

science, a real robbery being committed by those who should acquire any of them fraudulently ;

for which purpose, I write under this day’s date, to. the Minister of Grace and Justice, in order

that he may give the necessary directions for the fulfilment of the same to the said Reverend

Prelates. ,
His Majesty has also determined that those Negroes ‘shall obtain their liberty, who shall

denounce the Vessel in which they themselves may have come, subsequently to the order which

your Excellency shall publish to this effect, but not thoseimported into the Island prior to its

publication.
By Royal Order I transmit all this to your Excellency, for your intormation, and that of the

Mixed Commission, and that you fhay communicate it to those. whom it may concern, in order

that this Sovereign Resolution may be carried fully into effect, as well by your Excellency as by the

other Authorities of the Island, but your Excellency will not permit these measures to be put into

execution until after that Resolution shall be published. :

(Signed) EL DUQUE DEL INFANTADO.

J transmit the above to you for your information, apprizing you, at the same time, that I com-

municate it to those whom it may concern, for.the fulfilment of the same.

God preserve, &c. . (Signed) FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES.

His Excellency the Intendant, and the other Members

of the Mized Commission.
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Second Enclosure in No. 69. (Translation.)

The Mixed Commission to the Captain- General,

Most Excettent Sir, Havannah, April 13, 1826.
TITE Mixed Conmission has received your Excellency’s Offcia! Letter of the Hih instant, in

which is inserted the Royal Order of the 2d of January of this Year, -by which His Majesty has
been pleased to adopt the measures which he las deemed just and proper for the suppression of
the illicit Traffick in African Negroes, in violation of the Treaty relating to this subject, of which
Sovereign Resolation this Mixed Commission is duly apprized, observing in it ajl the interest His
Majesty takes in attaining the ubject of that Treaty.

God preserve, &c. (Signed) H. T. KRILBER,
W. S. MACLEAY.
C.M. DE TYNILLOS,

His Exceileacy The Captain-Generai, kK. DE QUESADA.,

 

No. 70.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.--( ReceivedJune 12.)
I

Sir, Havannah April 16, 1826.

WE have the honour to inform you, that, on the 2d instant, the Spanish
Schooner “ Minerva,” Manuel Fernandez, Master, and on the 14th, the
Spanish Schooner “ Dolorita,” Joaquin Aureycochea, Master, sailed trom
this Port fer the Coast of Africa.

‘We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, W. 8. MACLEAY.

&e. &c. &e.

 

> No. 71.

Fits Majesty's Commissioners to Mr, Secretary Canning.--( teceivedJune 24.)

Sir, Havaunah April 30, 1826.
ON the 24th instant, the Spanish Schooner “ Jacinta,” Don Francisco

Prieto; Master, sailed trom this Port for the Coast ofAtrica.
Since the date of our Despatch of the 22d ofFebruary, we have not heard of

the arrival on the Coasts of this Island of any Vessel with Slaves.
We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, W..S. MACLEAY.

&c. &e. &e.

 

No. 72.

His MajestysCommissioners to Mr. Sceretary Canning.(ReceivedJune 24.)

Str, Havannai:, May 2, 1826.
WE have the honour to acknowledge the Receipt of your Despatch of the

31st January last, in which you have been pleased to transmit to us Copies
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of a Correspondence with His Majesty’s Envoy at Madrid, upon the Subject

of the Orders which His Catholick Majesty has recently addressed to the

Captain-General of Cuba, for the more effectual execution of the Treaties

between Great Britain and Spain, for the Abolition of the Trafick in Slaves.

In our Despatch of the 15th ultimo, we had the honour of forwarding to

you the Communication made by the Captain-General to the Mixed Com-

mission upon the same Subject, together with a Translation of the Royal

Order which has been published here.
We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, W. S. MACLEAY,
. &e. &e. Se.

 

No. 73.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.--(ReceivedJune 24.)

Str, Havannah, May 2, 1826.

WE had yesterday the honour of receiving your Despatch of the 23d of

February. last, relative to the reported re-capture, by a Spanish Brig, which

had arrived at Cuba, of 2 Slave Vessels, previously detained by a British

Cruizer on the Coast of Africa.
No time shall be lost in making the enquiries which you direct, into the

truth of this transaction; but we think it right to apprise you, that some

delay will in all probability occur, the communication between this Place and

Cuba being slow and unfrequent.
In our Despatch of the 18th of January last, we had the honour of transmit-

ting to you a Communication, which we had received from the French Con-

sul General, upon the subject of the above-mentioned re-capture.

We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, W. S. MACLEAY.
&e. &e. &ec.

 

No. 74.

His Majesty's Commassioners to Mr. Secretary Canning —(ReceivedJuly 14.)

Sir, - Havannah, May, 31, 1826.

ON the 30th instant the Spanish Brig “ Breves,” (formerly the “ Conguis-

tador,” an old and notorious Slave-trader) sailed from this Port for the Coast

of Africa.
On the 27th instant the Spanish Schooner “ Zeagenes,” arrived here in

ballast.
In our Despatch of the 22d of Februaryofthis Year, it was stated that a

report prevailed, that this Vessel had landed a Cargo of Negroes-on the South

side of the island, which report proves to be correct;and we have learned, that

since the disembarkation, she has been employed by the Government in con-

veyiag Troops from Batabano, where they had proceeded by Land from

Havannah, to Trinidad de la Isla.

We have heard that the Spanish Schooner “ Jris,” which sailed for the

Coast of Africa in November 1825, bas lately landed a Cargo of Negroes at

Puerto Escondido, to the Westward of Matanzas. The Vessel, however, has  
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not arrived here, and it is even said, that she has been destroyed by her Crew
to avoid detection: a report has been prevalent here, that she has had an
action with one of His Majesty’s Schooners, which she had beaten off.

We have the honour to be, &ce.

(Signed) © HENRY T. KILBEE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, W. §. MACLEAY.

&ec. &e. &c.

 

No. 75.

Ils Majesty's Commissioners to Mr, Secretary Canning.-—( Received July 14.)

Str, Flavannah, June 14, 1826.

HAVING learned from good authority that the Matanzas. Steam Vessel
“* Neptune.” which arrived here on the Evening of the 4th ultimo, had
brought upwards of 100 Negroes, whom she bad received on board at a small
Port to the Westward of Matanzas, called Puerto Escondido, and who, pro-
bably, belonged to the Cargo of the “ Iris,” mentioned in our last Despatch;
we resolved to lose no time in calling the attention of the Captain General to
this matter, and accordingly, on the Morning of the 6th, we apprised him of
the circumstance, and endeavoured to impress upon him, that it was particu-
larly incumbent upon this Government; to make an example ot the perpetra-
tors of this scandalous violation of onr Treaty, committed so shortly after the
publication of His Catholick Majesty’s Royat Order of January last, as, if
they were allowed to escape with impunity, that Royal Order, would, like
those previously issued on the same Subject, be considered as a mere dead
letter. ‘

. His Excellency replied, that the Naval Department had not reported: to
him any such arrival of Negroes, but that he would immediately write to the
Cemmandant of the Naval Forces, and direct him to investigate the Case. In
subsequent conversations he stated, that he had not yet received any Answer,
but on the 1st instant he transmitted a Letter, of which a ‘Franslation is en-
closed, to His Majesty’s Commissary Judge, communicating the result of the
Investigation made by the Naval Department; according to which it appears
‘that there was not the slightest ground for even a remote suspicion that
the Steam Vessel had on board the Negroes referred to.”
On the 7th instant another Letter was received from the Captain-General,

in which was inserted the Report of the Auditor of War, respecting that In-
vestigation, merely recommending that a Statement of the Case should be
laid before His Catholick Majesty, lest intelligence of a different tenour
should reach him through another channel.

Notwithstanding the result of the’ Investigation undertaken by the Naval
Department, it is perfectly notorious that the Negroes were brought in the
Steam Vessel, as stated in the foregoing part of this Despatch : several highly
respectable Foreigners came passengers in her; and though none of them will
‘venture to incur general odium, and perhaps some danger, by coming forward
to.give information upon the Subject, we have the most undoubted authority
for assuring you that the fact is as we have related.

We have the honour te be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY, T.. KILBEE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, W.S. MACLEAY, |

&e. &e. &e.
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First Enclosure in No. 75. - . (Translation )

The Captain- General to the British Commissary Judge.

Sir : Havannah, June 1, 1826.

THE Commandant-General of the Naval Forces ‘on this Station has transmitted to me, in an
Official Letter, dated yesterday, the Proceedings adopted in consequenceofthe information which
you gave me, and which l immediately communicated to him, respecting the denunciation of the
Steam Vessel ‘* Neptune’ having introduced into this Port a number of ‘¢ bozal’’ Negroes, brought
from the Coast of Africa,
From the Declarations in the said Proceedings no such fact results, as will be seen by the Ex-

tract of the Decision upon those Proceedings, which I forward to you; but J transmit the same,

notwithslanding, under this day's date, to the Auditor of War for his opinion; and I state this
for your information, and will communicate to you the result in due time. ‘

God preserve, &e, (Signed) |FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES.
H. T, Kiibee, Esq.

.

 

First Enclosure (A.) in No. 75. (Translation.)

Result of the Investigation made by the Naval Department.

(Extract.) Havannah, May 13, 1826.

BY the Declarations received in this Cause, to the number of eleven, from the Master

and Sailors of the Steam-Vessel ‘* Neptune,” the Passengers who were conveyed in the same from
Matanzas to this Port, aud the Custom-House Officers who searched her, it appears that on the
5th instant they sailed from the former for this Port, with a cargo of produce of the Country,
none of the said Declarations affording the slightest ground for even a remote saspicion that the
Steam-Vessel had on board the Negroes referred to in the Denunciation,arising apparengly from
an involuntary mistake, which has occasioned these Proceedings.

It has likewise been proved, iu the most explicit and direct manner, that the said Steam-Vessel
did not touch at any of the intermediate Ports on the Coast, neither did she communicate with
any other Vessel, whence the disembarkation, or transfer to another Vessel, of the Slaves might
be presumed.

Conceiving, therefore, that the mistaken impression under which the aforesaid Denunciation
was made, is fully proved, and, consequently, no charge whatever resulting against the Master,
Don Angel Bruzon, or any other Person, Iam of opinion that Bruzon may be released from the
arrest under which he has been placed, as well as the other Individuals of the Crew, who have

likewise been detained, and that they shall be free to exercise their respective employments, since
nothing has been proved agaiust them that can injure their reputation, in which state of the Case
Itransmit the Proceedings to you that you may adopt the proper measures.

(Signed) BARTOLOME MARQUES PACHEE€O.

The Commandant of the Naval Forces.

Second Enclosure in No. 75. __ {Translatton.)

The Captain- General to the British Commissary Judge.

Siz, Havannah, June 7, 1826.

THE Auditer of War has, under date the 5th instant, made to me the following Report :-—

‘© Most Excenztent Sir,

*¢ On the 6th of May, Mr. H. Kilbee, British Commissary Judge of the Mixed Commission,
“Entormed your Excellency, that he had been assured that upwards of 100 Negroes had arrived the.

day before in the. Steam-Vessel from Matanzas; and, on the same day, your Excellency wrote
- to the Naval Department to proceed to the proper Investigation without delay. This was done;
and, by the Declarations of the Ciew, and of the Passengers who arrived in the Steam-Vessel, it
is proved, to conviction, that no such Negroes came in her,

_ As the Royal Order of the 2d of January of this Year commits to your Excellency alone.
the cognizance of these Causes, and the proceeding to investigation and panishment, conformably
te the Laws in force upon the subject, you being consequently responsible for the obgervance of
the same, and as the Remonstrance of His Britannick Majesty's Minister against the fraudulent
importation of Negroes into thi. Island, gave rise to-that Royal.Order, and. as the information

_ upon which that Remonstrance was grounded was prabably given by the British Commissary
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Judge of the Mixed Commission, Mr, H. Kilbee, the same who communicated to your Excellency

the fact respecting which this Investigation has taken place, the Auditor is of opinion that it is

indispensably uecessary that a Report be made to His Majesty upon the subject, lest any intel-

ligence of a contrary tenour should reach him, aud for his Sovereigu information.”

And having adopted this opinion, 1 transmit it to you, in continuation of what I stated to you

upon the sane subject in my Note’ of the Ist instant
God preserve, &e,

HH. T. Kilbee, fsq, (Signed) FRAN®. DION®. VIVES.

 

No. 76.

His MajestysCommissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning-—(ReceivedJuly 14.)

Sir, Havannah June 14, 1826.

ON the 5th instant, the Spanish Brig “ Pepe,” Don José Gomez, Master,

well armed, and with a Crew, as we have heard, of upwards of 80 men,

sailed for the Coast ot Africa.
The Spanish Sehooner “ Carlota,” which sailed for that Coast on 20th

July 1825, arrived here to-day in ballast, aud is announced in the Newspapers

as coming from Bahia de todos los Santos, in Brazil. ‘Phere can be little

doubt, however, that she is really from Africa, and that she has landed a Cargo

of Negroes, but as there is somewhat more mystery observed with regard to

these ‘Transactions now than formerly, we have aot been able to learn the

number of the Cargo, or the Place of Disembarkation.
Wepurpose taking an early opportunity of calling the attention of the

Captain-General to tnis Case. We have the honour to be, &e.
(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, W.S. MACLEAY.

&e. Se. &e.

 

No. 77.

Mr. Seerctary Canning to His Alajesty’s Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, July 31, 1826.

I HAVE received your several Despatches up to the 14th of June last.
I approve of the unceasing watchfulness which you exercise in enquiring

into, and reporting upon, the Undertakings in African Slave-trade from and

to the Island of Cuba, Undertakings which, Iam sorry to observe, from your
Despatches, are not only as unremitting as ever, but are becoming still more
undisguised, and continue in most instances unpunished, to the disgrace of the
Island, and the apparent inefliciency of the Decrees of the Mother Country.

I enclose, for your information, the Copy of a Despatch which I have felt
it proper to address, upon this occasion, to His Majesty's Enyoy at Madrid.*

Tam, &c.

His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

® See Class B.

 

No. 78.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(.Received Sept.6.)

Sir, Havannah, June 28, 1826.

WE had the honour of receiving, on the 23d instant, your Despatch of the
10th of March last, in which you -have been pleased to communicate to us,
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that the Additional Articles to the Treaty of 1817, which were signed under
the Government of the Cortes of Spain, have received the sanction of His Catho-
lick Majesty, and have been transmitted to the Authorities in Cuba.
These Articles, together with the Declarations signed at Madrid, on the

2d of February 1824, have lately been communicated by the Captain-Gene-
ral to the Mixed Commission. .

We have the honour to be, &c..

(Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.

 

The Right Hon. George Canning, - W.S. MACLEAY.
&e. &e. &e.

No. 79.

fiisMajesty's Commissioners to Afr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Sept.6.)

Sir, Havannah, June 30, 1826..

WE have the honour to enclose Copies of the Register* of the Slaves Eman-
cipated by Decrees of the Mixed Commission, since the date of Mr. Kilbee’s
Despatch of the 17th of December. They belonged to the Spanish Vessels
“ Magico,” “ Fingal,” and “ Orestes,” and amount,in all, to 445.

We have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) 1H. T. KILBEE.
&e. &e. &e. W. 8. MACLEAY..

* Magico 175. Fingal 58. Orestes 212. Total 445.

 

No. 80.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning—(Received Sept:6.)

Sir, Havannah, July 1, 1826.

WE have the honour to forward to you, the Return required by the 75th
Section, 5 Geo. 4, Cap. 113.

We have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.
&e. &e. C. W.S. MACLEAY.
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No. 8t.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Sept.6.)

Sir, Havannah, July 3, 1826.

AS we stated in our Despatch of the 14th of June, we took an early

0 portunity of calling the attention of the Captain-General to the Case of

the Spanish Schooner “ Carlota,” whieh sailed for the Coast of Atrica in the

Month of July 1825, and returned in’ ballast on the 14th Ultimo, being

announced to have come from Bahia de todos Santos, although no doubt

existed that she was really from the Coast of Africa direct, and had landed a

Cargo ofSlaves. previously to her entering this Harbour.

We stated to his Excellency, that this was one of those Cases, of which so

many had formerly been submitted to his consideration, of Vessels whicli -

are well known to have come frem the Coast of Africa with Negroes, re-

orting false Places of departure ; we put into his hands the Newspapers in

which the departure and arrival of the Vessel were announced, and we

expressed our regret at having to report this Case to our Government, so

shortly after the publication of the late Royal Order of His Catholick Majesty,

issued expressly for the more effectual suppression of the Slave-trade.

The Captain-General replied, that that Royal Order committed the exa-

mination of Vessels coming from the Coast of Africa exclusively to the

Naval Department, from which he had received no Communication what-

ever respecting the “ Carlota ;” and he recommended, that we should address

a Note to him upon the subject, which he said he would transmit to that,

Department. co

We accordingly forwarded to him the Note, of which a Copy is enclosed,

and have received in Answer two Letters, of which Translations are, also

enclosed ; in the first of which his Excellency apprizes us, that he had trans-

mitted our Note to the Commandant of the Naval Forces; and in the second

he inserts the Reply of the Latter, stating that the Case should be investigated.

We have the honour to be, &c. .
(Signed) H. T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, W.S. MACLEAY.

_&e. &e. Se.

 

First Enclosure in No. 81.

The British Commissionersto the Captain-General. -

Sir, Havannah, June 22, 1826.

JN compliance with your Exeellency’s desire, that we should state in writing what we men-

tioned to you yesterday verbally, we have the honour to apprize you, that we have observed the

arrival of the Spanish Schooner ‘‘ Carlota,” in ballast from Bahia de todes los Santos, an-

nounced in the ‘* Diario de la Havana,” of the 15th instarit, which .Vessel sailed from this Port

for Princes Island, on the Coast of Africa, on the 20th July -1825, and we confidently venture to

assert, that no serious doubt can. be entertained, indeed that it is a matter of notoriety, that, like

the numerous other Vessels which have evtered this Port under similar circumstances, she has

really come direct from that Coast, and had landed a Cargo of Negroes in some of the Out-Ports of

this Island, previously to entering this Harbour. .

It will be most painful for us to have to report to ourGovernment, this fresh Case of the

violation of: our Treaty, so soon after the publication of His Catholick Majesty's Royal Order of

the 2d of January last, which it was confidently expected, would serve effectnally to put a stop-to

the extensive illicit Slave-trade whicli has been so Jong carried on with this Island,

‘We avail ourselves, &c:

(Signed) H..T. KILBEE.

His Excellency the Captain-General. W.S. MACLEAY.  
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Second Enclosure in No. 81. (Translation.}

Lhe Captain-Gencral to the British Commissioners.

‘GENTLEMEN, Havannah, June 23, 1826.

1 HAVE written, under this day’s date, to the Commandant of the Naval Forces on this Station,
as follows :—

‘* I forward to you the Translation of a Note which Messrs. H T, Kilbee and W. 8. Macleay,
have addressed to me, in which they state what they have observed respecting the arrival of the
Spanish Schooner *‘ Carlota,” in ballast, proceeding from Bahia de todos Santos, as announced
in the Diario of this City of the 15th instant, which J likewise enclose; which Vessel sailed from
this Port for Princes Island, on the Coast ot Aftica, the 20th of July last Year; with the other
matters to which those Gentlemen refer; enclosing also the Diario ef the 21sc of July of last
Year, in order that, with all these betore you, you may be pleased to direct the investigation of
the Case, to. determine what may be proper in contormity to the Treaty and Sovereign Orders
upon the subject.”
And I transmit this to you in reply to your aforesaid Note,

God preserve you many Years,

The British Commissioners. (Signed) FRANC*’. DION®S. VIVES,

 

Third Enclosure in No. 81. (Translation.)

The Captain- General to the British Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Havannah, June 30, 1826.
‘THE Commandant of the Naval Forces on this Station, writes to me, under date the 2Sth

instant, .as follows :— /
* Most Excellent Sir, An enquiry is now making into the circumstances, that may §erve to

shew the nature of the Voyage of the Spanish Schooner ‘‘ Carlota,” from the departure of the
same from this Port on the 20th of July last Year, up to her return onthe J4th instant, for the
purpose of ascertaining whether there be any ground for suspecting that she has been engaged in
the illicit Traffick in Slaves; and until 1 shall be enabled to communicate the result to your Ex-
ellency, 1 state this in immediate Reply to your Official Letter of the 23d instant, in which you
enclose a Translation of that ot Messrs. Kilbee and Macleay.”

And transmit the above to you, in Reply to your Letter of the 22d instant, as I shall do what-
ever else may be communicated to me upon the subject by the said Commandant,

God preserve, &c.

The British Commissioners, (Signed) FRANC®, DION®. VIVES.

 

No. 82.

Mr, Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, September 11, 1826.
IN reference to my Despatch to you of the 31stJuly last, I send to you

the accompanying Extractof a Despatch, dated the 18th ult., which I have.
received from His Majesty’s Envoy at Madrid,* on the subject of the Repre-
sentation made by you, as to the evasionof the Order recently promulgated
by His Catholick Majesty, for the more effectual Suppression of the Slave-
tradein Cuba.
You will lose no opportunity of collecting and transmitting to me accurate

information, and supportingit,where you can, by collateral, in the absence of
any direct Evidence, of any facts whereupon His Majesty's Government might
feel called upon to found Representations to the Government of Spain,
as to the non-execution of the Treaty of 1817, and particularly on those
oints wherein the new Decree of The King of Spain shall appear to be

illusory in its effect. - Tam, &e.
Eis Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

% See Class B.
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No. 83.

Henry T. Kilbee, Esq. to Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq.—(Received October 14.)

Sir, Havannah, July 30, 1826.

THE stateof my health rendering it necessary, as you will perceive by the

enclosed Certificate, that I should try the effects of a more moderate Climate,

I beg leave to apprize you of my intention to avail myself of the leave

of absence for two Months, granted to me in your Letiers of the 13th Fe-

bruary 1823, and the 6th February 1824, to proceed to The United States.

I did not avail myself of this permission at the time it was granted, prin-

cipally on account of the absence of His Majesty’s Commissionerof Arbitra~

tion, conceiving that the Publick Service would be likely to suffer from. the

absence of both the British Commissioners at the same moment. This

objection now no longer exists, Mr. Macleay being uponthe spot; and

I purpose, therefore, leaving the Havannah by the first Vessel which shall

sail for New York.
I trust that this short absence from my Post, for the restoration of my.

health, after a constant residence here of seven Years, will not be considered

as precluding me from availing myself next Year of the permission to

return to England, granted by Mr. Secretary Canning, and communicated to

‘me in your Letter of the 10th December 1825.
I have the honour to be, &e.

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. (Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE.

* &e. &e. &c. .

 

Enclosure in No. 83.

Medical Certificate.

1, THE Undersigned, Practitioner of Medicine, do hereby certify, that H. Kilbee, Ese. is

Iabouring under general debility, aud obstinate hernia humoralis, occasionedby a long residenee’

in this Climate; andI am of opinion that a change of Climate will alone be lkely.to effect the

restoration of his health. . . ,

Havannah, July 28, 1826. (Signed) WILLIAM D. CLARK, M.D.

No. 84.

W. 8. Macleay, Esq. to Mr. SecretaryCanning.—(Received October 14.)

. (Extract.) Havannah, September 2, 1826.

IT is my painful duty to report to you an event, which I fear must tend

to encourage the numerous Persons in this Island, who are engaged in

the Traftick of Slaves, beyond all their former expectations. /

On the Forenoon of the 16th ultimo, Captain Jackson, of His Majesty’s

Sloop “ Pylades,” being in company with His Majesty’s Schooner ‘* Magpie,”

under his Orders, chased a Vessel into this Port, which now proves to be the

Spanish Schooner “ Minerva,” a Vessel that His Majesty’s Commissioners

had-the honour of reporting to you in their Despatch of the 16th of April of

this Year, as having sailed for the Coast of Africa, on the 3d of April last.

Being convinced that she was a regular Slave-trader, he sent in after her

an Officer, with Orders to visit: her, and then to report her arrival to the

Captain-General and Commandant of the Naval Forces. Owing to the

unfortunate circumstance of the two Lieutenants of the “ Pylades”. being at

that moment on the Sick List, Captain Jackson was under the necessity of

employing for this Service Acting Lieutenant Mr. Nott, who, on going on

board the Vessel, found her occupied by a Spanish Officer and Guard.

Mr, Nott then reported her to the Flag Ship in Port, as a Slave-trader, and

on requesting permission to search her,was referred to Commodore Laborde,

_ then said-to be at his House in-Town. On calling at the Admiralty, he was
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told to seck the Commodore at the Governor's, and not finding him at tie
Government-House, he reported the arrival of the “ Minerva” to some of the
‘Officers in-attendance on, the Captain-General, when one of them, apparently
of rank, undertook to go immediately on board the suspicious Vessel, for the
purpose ofmaking enquiries into the truth of the statement. He would noi,
however, allow Mr. Nott to accompany him. :

After the Spanish Officer had returned from his visit to the ‘“Minerva,”
and had communicated with the Captain-General, he gave Mr. Nott to-under-

stand that His Excellency did not feel himself authorised to submit any
information respecting her to Captain Jackson, until the Vessel had ‘been
officially reported to him by Commodore Laborde; Mr. Nott accordingly
called a second time at the Admiralty, and, strange to say, was thentoldthat
the Commodore had gone into the Country. . .
Upon Mr. Nott’s return to the “ Pylades,” with intelligence so deeply impli-

cating the good faith and publick conduct of the Chief Authorities of the
Island, Captain Jackson ordered Lieutenant Smith, in His Majesty’s Schooner
“ Magpie,” to come into Port for the purpose of gaining further Intelligence.
By this time it was the general topick of conversation on the Wharfs, that
the “ Minerva” had actually upwards of 200 Negroes then on board. I have
since, however, been given to understand, that in the interval between. Mr.
Nott’s departure tor his Ship, and Lieutenant Smith’s arrival in Harbour; two
Boatfulls of Negroes were landed from the Schooner at Casa Blanca,aVillage
on the side of the Port opposite to the Havannah.
However this may be, Lieutenant Smith, on hearing the- story current

among the Merchants on the Wharfs, placed Mr. Nott in command of a
Boat, so as. to watch the proceedings of the Schooner, and, between 11 and 12
at Night, this Officer observed no less than 6-Boats leave her, crowded with
Negroes, who were finally landed at one of the most publick Wharfs of the
Havannah.

Lieutenant Smith, with the most praiseworthy activity, lost no time in ac-

quainting. both the Captain-General and Commodore of this disgraceful
occurrence: Captain Jackson the following day’came into Harbour, in order

- to. report the whole of the circumstances to His Majesty’s Commissioners;
and, in the mean time, Lieutenant Smith, having, by my advice, applied to
the, Commodore for permission to visit the Vessel, and obtained an Order for
that purpose, found every mark of her just having landed a Cargo of Slaves.

Captain Jackson, on his arrival in Harbour, addressed a Letter to me, a
Copy of which I have the honour to enclose, detailing the above circum-
stances, and I immediately transrnitted his Letter to the Captain-General,
stating, at the same time, that the “‘ Minerva” was reported in the Havannah
Journalsof April last as having sailed for the Coast of Africa, and calling upon
him, in as respectful a manner asI could devise, to put the Spanish Laws,
and particularly the Royal Order, in force against such audacious Delinquents.
Anxious, however, not personally to displease him, I avoided as much as
possible dilating on that part of Captain Jackson’s Letter which so directly
affects the respousibility of the Authorities, and told him, that I was con-
vinced he would take the proper measures to cause the Treaty and Royal Or-
der to be respected; I thought.it right to say, that, although the “ Minerva”

had not been brought before the Mixed Commission as a Seizure uniler' the
Treaty, she was obviously subject to the Spanish Laws; that, im fact, the
proofs were complete against her, and that it only remained for his Excellency
to put the Laws in execution.

Previously to delivering my Letter, of which a copy is enclosed, I fad
ealled upon his Excellency, inorder. to ascertain his feelings on the: subject,
and I learned from him, that, although he considered the Mixed Commission
as having no concern with the affair, yet he was glad to have an opportunity
of informing me, that, in obedience’ to the late Royal Order, he had submitted
the whole affair to the Commodore; and, although he could: not believe
that the “Minerva” had landed any Negroes, he had, in consequence of what
had been stated to him, issued the most positive directions to the Commissa-



Havannan. 123

vios of the various Barrios or Wards of the City, to arrest any Negroes that

might have been landed.
About this time, it appears that Captain Jackson thought proper, of his

own accord, to address a Letter to his Excellency, requesting permission to

aearch the suspicious Vessel.
The Captain-General, in reply to my Letter, transmitted Copies, herewith

enclosed, of the Answer he gave to Lieutenant Smith, on being informed by

that Officer of the disembarkation of the Negroes, and also of the answer he

made to Captain Jackson, on being asked by him for permission_to seize the

« Minerva.”
' His Excellency then proceeds to state, that the Treaty confines all legal

detentions to the High Seas, although he must have recollected that one of the

Vessels lately condemned by the Mixed Commission was taken, after having

been run ashore on the Coast of this Island. He likewise says, that he has

acted, throughout the whole affair, according to the Provisions of the late

Royal Order; that he considers the assertion of Mr. Nott and the British

Seamen, as to their having seen the Negroes landed, to be utterly incredible ;

that, although the “ Minerva” is now reported from Porto Rico, and was for-~

merly reported as having sailed for the Coast of Africa, there is ho necessary

inconsistency in the two Statements, and, finally, that I may depend on his

attention to an affair, the cognizance of which concerns himself alone.

It is worthy of observation, that his Excellency carefully avoids any allu-

sion to the remarkable facts set forth in Captain Jackson’s Letter to me, of

the “ Minerva” having been reported to him by Mr. Nott immediately on her

arrival, aud of her having been then visited, not only by a Spanish Officer and

Guard, but by one of hisExcellency’s own Staff.

On the receipt of his Excellency’s Letter, of which a Translation is en-

closed, I saw that the scenes of January 1825, with respect to the “ Magico,”

which Mr. Kilbee has set so fully before His Majesty’s Government, were

about to be repeated, with the important difference, indeed, that the facts

here were as notorious as noon-day,and the principal actors Persons 1m Autho-

rity in the Island. I accordingly addressed a Representation to the Governor

on the subject. .
To this Letter, of which a Copy is herewith enclosed, his Exeellency has

replied in a tone -which has grieved me much ; first, as it affords not the

slightest hope of this Investigation under the Royal Order tending to any

good; and secondly, inasmuch as he shews great dissatisfaction at my iuter--

fering in the matter at all, and particularly at my blaming the conduct of

those Officers who visited the “ Minerva” on the 16th.

His Excellency in this Letter, of which a Translation is enclosed,.still

avoids explaining the very extraordinary circumstances, of no measures being

taken with respect to her on the dayofher arrival, although reported to bim,

and visited by Spanish Officers and a Guard. He thinks proper to attribute

the whole story of the “ Minerva” being a Slave-trader, to idle rumour: he

denies that the Reports in the“ Diario” and “ Noticioso,” with respect to the

arrival and departure of Vessels, are Official, because they are not headed with

the words “ De Officio,” a title which I may, by the way, observe, is only

used for the Promulgation of Decrees, &c.

His Excellency further states, in his Letter, that, although he continues to

consider the assertion of Mr. Nott, and the Seamen of the “ Magpie” to be

quite incredible, he has, nevertheless, transmitted to the Office of the Marine

the proposition [ made him, of examining these Witnesses of the disembarca-

tion, on Oath: he finally denies that he has approved of that permission

given by the Commodore to Lieutenant Smith, by which this Officer was able

to ascertain that the “ Minerva” had just landed a Cargo of Slaves, and. ob-

frets to this Visit being made a precedent for any similar examination in

uture, ;

_ The style in which this Leiter is writter, betrayed such.displeasure at my

interference, thatIjudged it right to assurehis. Excellency, that I had not

exceeded my duty-so far.as in my Letter‘directly to blame him, although he
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must feel that it was my office to make a full statement to him of an event,
in which the responsibility and veracity of British Officers were so much con-
cerned; and lastly, that[ trusted the harmony which has hitherto existed
between his Excellency andthe British Commissioners, would not be disturbed
by this unpleasant Affair. ,

I have the honour to enclose a Copy of this Letter, together with Copies
of the Letters written to the Captain-General, by Captain Jackson and Lieu-
tenant Smith, which I have requested from those Gentlemen, in order to make
the whole Correspondence on the Subject more complete.

It is with the greatest sorrow that I have now to acquaint you, that Lieu-
tenant Smith and ali the Crew of His Majesty’s Schooner “ Magpie,” except
two, perished at Sea, close off the Havannah, on the 27th ultimo, owing to the
Vessel berng upset in a squall; this melancholy accident has been a general
subject of conversation for some days past in the City: I was, therefore, not
alittle surprized to receive a Letter to day from the Captain-General, re-
questing the attendance of Mr. Nott and the two Seamenofthe “ Magpie” to
give their evidence with respect to the landing of the Negroes; I have an-
swered his Excellency, that Mr. Nott fortunately happens to be now on
board the “ Pylades,” but that he alone survives of the Boat’s Crew, which
witnessed the disembarcation.

Captain Jackson, however, has just informed me, that Captain Wade, the
Master of the “ Mary Braide,” a British Merchant Ship, trading between
this Port and Liverpool, also witnessed the landing, and has declared his
readiness to prove the fact on Oath before a Magistrate, as soon as he arrives
in England.
From the various Letters of the Captain- General, and from the manner in

which the Investigation under the Royal Order has becn commenced, and
is now carried on, I do not, I confess, anticipate otherwise than the acquittal
of the “ Minerva,” in which case the Havannah -will appear to the Slave-
traders to be at once the safest and most profitable Port for their Vessels to
enter; the Government having, I fear, already too plainly shewn, that it
only considers the Traffick in Slaves to be a crime when the Vessel has
allowed herself to be captured at Sea by a British Cruizer.

‘T amnaturally anxious, with respect to the view that you, Sir, may be
pleased to take of my own conduct in this affair, -but I trust that it will
appear to you that I have endeavoured to make the strongest possible re-
presentation of the circumstances, without losing sight of that respect which
is due to the Local Government. If I had suppressed any fact from the
knowledge of the Captain-General, I should be utterly unworthy the Office
T have the honour to hold, and yet, unfortunately, I could searcely hope to
state all the facts to him without giving offence.“
The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) W.S. MACLEAY.

&e. &e. &c.

 

First Enclosure in No, 84.

Captain Jackson to W. S. Macleay, Esq.

Sir, His Majesty's Sloop ‘ Pylades,” Havannah, August 17, 1826.
YESTERDAY Morning, in company with His Majesty’s Schooner * Magpie,” I observed. asuspicious Vessel off Cabanas, which was chased by us into this Port.
An Officer was immediately dispatched after her, who went on board, and found there a SpanishOfficer with a Guard ;- nevertheless his belief was strengthened that she had slaves on board: hethen went to the Fiag Slip in Port, amd stated that he believed her tobe from the Coast ofAfrica

and reques‘ed permissiun and assistance to examine her; from theuce he was reterred to the Com-mander-in-Chief of the Naval Forces, residing at the Admiralty, where, on calling ‘and stating_the suspicions he had, he was directed to seek him at the Governor's 3 pet finding him there, he
submitted the particulars already stated, for the information of the Governor, to several Officersone of whom, apparently of rank,- proceeded with him to the Wharf; with a view ofmaking.
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farther enquiry; he went on board the suspicious Vessel for that purpose, desiring the Officer to

meet him at the Governor’s, where he should be furnished with every particular that he was

desirous of. ,

- After the Spanish Officer had landed and communicated with the Governor, he gave him to

understand, that his Excellency did mot feel himself authorised to submit any particulars respect-

ing the Vessel, for the information of tle Captain of the “ Pylades,” until she had beenofficially

reported to him by the Commander-in-Chief of the Naval Forces, to whose Department the

Case, as it at present rested, entirely belonged, and recommended him to acquaint the Commo-

dore of the circumstances, but on calling at the Admiralty Office, it was reported by the

-Officers in waiting, that the Commodore was in the Country. It then drawing towards sun-set,

the Officer returned to this Ship.*
Upon the receipt of this intelligence, I dispatched Lieutenant Smith, in His Majesty’s Schooner

«© Magpie,” into Havannah, to get every possible additiowal information in a circumstance so

suspicious. He, on going on shore, found a rumour prevalent in the City, that the Vessel in

question had brought into Port between 200 and 300 Negroes.

This Officer, in obedience to my Orders, placed a Boat, in which was an Officer belonging to

this Ship, in such a situation us to observe the motions of the Schooner during the Night. Lieu-

tenant Smith informs me, that between the hours of |1 and 12, the Officer of the Boat observed

no less than 6 Boats leave the Vessel, with a number of Negroes crowded in the hottom of eaeb,

who were finally landed at the Shipping Wharf, near the Church of San Francisco.

Lieutenant Smith also informs me, that he lost no time in acquainting the Captain-General and

Commander-in-Chief of the Naval Forces, of the whole particulars, and that he had permission

from the Commororeto go on board and examine her, in company with his Aid-de-Camp, when

he had indubitable proof of her having had on beard, and very recently landed a Cargo of Slaves.

Lhave endeavoured to be exact in relating every circumstance relative to this Vessel, and

am convinced in my own mind, and perhaps you will agree with me, of the impossibility. of a

‘Vessel arriving in this Port, hauling into a regular discharging Wharf, and. finally disembark-

ing upwards of 200 Slaves at that hour of the Night, without the knowledge of the Police of this

City. 1, therefore, am of opinion, that the Vessel can be proceeded against by due course of

Law, and have to request you will be pleased to adopt such measuresas you may see necessary in

this Case. And bave the honour, &e. &c,

W.S. Macleay, Esq. (Signed) G. V. JACKSON, Commander.

 

Second Enclosure in No 84.

"The British Commissioner of Arbitration to the Captain- General.

Sir, Havannah, August 18, 1826.

1 HAVEthe honour to transmit to your Excellency the Copy of a Letter, dated yesterday,

which I have this moment received trom Captain Jackson, Commander of His Britannick Ma-

jesty’s Sloop ** Pylades,” and from which it appears that, on the 16th instant, when in company

with His Majesty’s Schooner “ Magpie,” under his orders, he chased a Vessel into this Port,

which now proves to be the Spanish Schooner © Minerva.”

- The circumstances under which she escaped from him were so suspicious, that Captain Jackson

thoughtithis duty to remain off the Harbour, and to dispatch an Officer of his Ship to.-visit the

Vessel in Port, and afterwards inform your Excellency, and the Commander in Chief of the Naval

Forces on the Station, of her arrival, in order that she might be searched by the proper

Colonial Authorities, and that she might, if found guilty of a violation of the Treaty for the

abolition of illicit Slave-trade, be forthwith brought to condign justice. This Gentleman, on

visiting her, having failed to get any intelligence from the Spanish Officer, who appears to have

boarded her previous to his approach, proceeded, according to his Instructions, to state the affair

to your Excellency, when one of the Officers, as he believes, ofyour Staff, most readily undertook

to make an immediate Investigation on board, the result Of which, however, is not known,

The British Officer, moreover, endeavoured to call the attention of the Commander-in-Chief of

the Naval Forces to the suspicious Vessel, but was not fortunate enough to find him either on

board his Flag Ship, or at the House of the Admiralty.

The appearance of the Vessel was, however, so decidedly indicative of her having been engaged

jn the illicit Traffick of Slaves, that Captain Jackson in the Evening ordered’ His Majesty’s

Schooner ‘* Magpie” to proceed into Port in order to obtain further information. On his arrival

in Town, Lieutenant Smith, the Commander. of this Schooner, tound it a matter of publick

conversation, that the ‘‘ Minerva”? had, at that very moment, upwards of 200 Negroes on board,

Governed, however, by his respect for the Flagof His Catholick Majesty, and the high authority

delegated to your Excellency, and, moreover, considering the Vessel, in consequence of the

previous information given to you by Captain Jackson, to have been necessarily examined, nay,

knowing her to be even still remaining under the immediate inspection of the Spanish Officers,

awho had been seen on board, Lieutenant Smith refrained from detaining her while actually in

Port, and bringing her as a British Capture before the Mixed Commission, He therefore, con-

tented himself with strictly observing her proceedings, the consequence of which was, that’ at a

very lave hour of the same night, an Officer, and two men under his orders, saw 6 Boatsput off

from the Vessel, and, on approaching them, these Boats were observed: to be crowded with Ne.

groes, who wereat length landed at one of the most publick Wharfs of the Havannah; having
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followed the Boats closely, the Officer and men say, that they are now ready to support this most
important fact on oath. . .

Thave further to remark that, aceording to Captain Jacksou’s Letter, it appeats that Lieutenant
Smith, who, by virtue of an Order from the Commandant of the Naval-Forces, had authority to

visit the ‘* Minerva’ yesterday afternoon, found all the peculiar and well-known marks of her
having been fitted out for the Slave-trade, I observe in the ‘* Noticioso,” that the Vessel is there
reported as having now come fram Puerto Rico in ballast; but it appears ‘rom the ** Noticioso
of the 4th April last, that she sailed from this Port for Princes Island on the Sd of that Mouth.

In short, I yrieve to say, that this Vessel presents a clear and incontestable iustance of the

solemn ‘Treaty between our respective Governments, being notoriously vjolated under the very eye
of the Publick Authorities, and of the late Royal Order of His Catholick Majesty, being completely
get at defiance.
‘It has been the invariable usage tor the British Commissioners to representto your Excellency

every circumstance appearing to them to be an infraction of the Treaty, previously to performing
their painful duty of submitting it to che consideration of His Majesty’s Government ;this course
of proceeding I now follow, bat IT cannot avoid seizing the opportunity itaffords of expressing my
conviction, that so audacious a violation of the late Royal Order of His Catholick Majesty, and so
open an insult to your Excellency’s authority, when thus placed beyond all doubt by the Evidence
of British Officers, canuot escape the most minute investigation in the proper Quarter; Jam very

far indeed from presuming to point out the line of conduct which the Goveruinent of this Island
ought to pursne in anaffairof this importance, but 1 may observe, that, although Captain Jackson
has not brought the ‘* Minerva’ before the Mixed Commission, this Vessel and the Negroes
arrived inher are still subject (o the provisions of the Royal Order, as well as to anterion Spanish
Laws; and the aversion which your Excellency has so lately and humanely declared yourself to
bear towards this detestable Traffick, when connected with the anxiety which His Catholick
Majesty has shewn to extinguish it, make me confident that ere this you have occasioned every
measure to be adopted that the circumstances so imperiously require

I avail myself, &c.

His Excellency the Captain- General. (Signed) W. S. MACLEAY.,

Third Enclosure in No. 84. (Translation.)

The Cuptain-General to Lieutenant Smith.

Sir, Hlavannah, August 17, 1826.
I HAVE received your Letter of this date, in which you inform me of the disembarkation of

various Negroes from a Schooner which entered this Port yesterday, when chased by His Britan-
nick Majesty’s Ship ** Pylades ;’” the circumstances of this affair falling properly within the cog-
nizance of the Commodore on this Station, I have transmitted, this day, your Letter to him that
he may take measures accordingly, and I have, moreover, given the necessary orders to thePetty
Justices, that they may make the most secret and active enquiries on the subject of this said
disembarkation. : ‘God preserve, &c, .
Lieutenant Smith, Commander of His (Signed) FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES.

Britannick Majesty’s Schooner ‘* Magpie,”

 

Fourth Enclosure in No. 84. (Translation.)

The Captain-General to Captain Jackson.
Sir, Havannah, August 19, 1826,

AS soon as I received Lieutenant Smith's Letter, dated 17th instant, intorming me of thecircumstances attending the arrival of the Spanish Schooner, I transmitted it to the Commandantof the Naval Forces, for his information, in order that he might take the necessary measures inconformity with the Royal Order of my August Sovereign, dated 2d Jannary of the present Year.The Commodore has since replied, that he is now occupied with the affair, and, if trom the resultof his enquiries, he sliould fiud sufficient reason for proceeding against the said Schooner, he willdo it by means. of the Tribunal of this Captainey General, to which the affair exclusively belonys,in conformity to the.said Royal Order.
Ybus have I answered your Letter of yesterday. God preserve, &c

Copiain Jackson, Commander of His Britan- (Signed) FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES,nick Majesty's Ship « Pylades”

 

Fifth Enclosure in No. 84. (Translation.}

Lhe Captain- General to the British Commissioner ofArbitration,
Sir,

1 HAVE now before me your Letter of Yes-erday,
Commander of His Majesty's Ship’«*Pylades,”

Havannah, August 19, 1826,
and also the Copy of the Letter which theaddressed to you, wherein he states, that he gave
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chase to a Vessel, now proved to be the ‘* Minerva,” and which entered into this Port on the

16th instant.
You relate at length the various circumstances which rendered this Schooner suspicious, and as

the facts to which you refer were, for the most part, comumeanicated to me on the 17th instant, by

the Commander of His Majesty’s Schooner ‘* Magpie,” I enclose a Copy of my Answer to him,

in order that you may be aware of the measure I tock; likewise enclose, for the same reason,

a Copy of the Reply 1 gave yesterday on this affair to the Commander of His Britannick

Majesty’s Ship.‘Pylades.”

You inform me that Lieutenant Smith, governed by his respect for His Majesty’s Flag, and for.

the high authority which The King, my Master, has delegated to me, refrained from detaining

the ‘* Minerva” While sbe was ‘in Port, aud from bringing her as a British Capture before the

‘Mixed Commission; from ‘this it would appear that Lieutenant Smith might have made himself

Master of the Vessel, and that he only refrained from pure deference to the motives you mention.

Neither in the Treaty of 1817, nor inthe Royal Order of 10th February last, wherein His Majesty

ilirects the observance of the Additional Articles, nor in the Royal Order of the 2d January last,

is there any door open for such an absurdity on the part of Lieutenant Smith ; on the contrary,

the conditions under which Vessels may be detained by Ships-of-War, are very clear, that is, the

detention must always take place on the High Seas, with every attention that is due between,

Friendly and Allied Nations.
The « Minerva”? being anchored within the Port, under thefire of the Fort and Squadron, and

in the view of all the Superior Authorities of the Island, it would have been a violation of the

immunity ot His Majesty's Territory, on the part of Lieutenatt Smith, to have taken possession

of her. ,

My proceedings in the affair have been in exact conformity with the Royal Order of the 2d of

January lasc, and the ‘Office of Marine proceeds, as if the Vessel had.come from the Coast

of Africa, to the examination of the. Log-book, and the verification of the facts stated by

the Commanders of His Britannick Majesty’s Vessels ‘* Pylades” and ‘* Magpie.” I have, more-

~ over, issued orders to the Petry J ustices to investigate the disembarkation of Negroes, asserted to

have been seen late at Night by three Individuals of the ‘© Magpie,’ and to have taken place on

the Wharf of San Francisco, a thing quite incredible that a contraband of this sort could be intro-

duced into a City so populous, and in which Rounds and Patroles cross each other the whole

night. ,

, Savery requisite aid has been afforded to facilitateproofs of the Schooner ‘* Minerva,” having

come from the Coast of Africa, and among others, leave was given to Lieut, Smith to visit her

accompanied by an Officer of the Commodore on this Station ; and you inform me, that he found

on board all the peculiar and well known marks of her being fitted out for the importatiomw of

Slaves, I this day transmit these particulars to the Commodore, in order that he may enquire

inte the facts, aud proceed accordingly; although J should suppose that the Spanish Officer

above-mentioned must have made a report ‘to him of his observations; I also call the

attention of the Commodore to the observation you make, with respect to the destination

for which you say the ‘* Minerva’ sailed in April last, and her arrival from Puerto Rico

although 1 do noi perceive any inconsistency in the two statements, and the truth must appear

from the Log-book. :

You may rest persuaded that Ishall take my measures conformably to the Treaty, itsAdditional

Articles, and the Royal Order of the 2d of January last, and proceed in the investigation ana

punisbment, if it should be necessary, of this affair, according to the existing Laws ; it being well

understood that the cognizance of such matters, according to what His Majesty has heen pleased

to regulate in the above Royal Order, concerns me alone, as advised by my Assessor,

; God preserve, &c, &c.

The British Commissioner of Arbitration, (Signed) FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES.

 

Sixth Enclosure in No. 84.

The British Commissioner ofArbitration to the Captain- General.

Sin, —-Havannah, August 21, 1926.

_J HAVE just had the honour of receiving your Excellency’s Letter, dated the 19th instant,

with Copies of two Letters addressed by, you to the Commanders of His Majesty’s Vessels

*« Pylades” and ‘* Magpie,” on the snbject of the ‘* Minerva.”

From the manner in which your Excellency has been pleased to discuss certain of the various

motives of Lieutenant Smith, for not attempting to detain the “* Minerva,’’ and to bring:

her before the Mixed Commission, Jam led to imagine that you suppos that I do not believe

them to have been perfectly correct, whereas, on the contrary; [am convinced that the union of

activity and moderation shown by this Officer, and his Commander, Captain Jackson, throughout

the whole affair, and above all, the very high respect. which, as. was their duty, they have

both manifested tothe Flag and Fort of His Catholick Majesty, and to your. Excellency’s Supreme

Authority, will meet with the entire approbation of their Government. |

They never could have viewed, for a moment, the possibility of detaining the Vessel against the

will of your Excellency, much less did they ever indulge a wish so to do; but they certainly

reckoned, that when employed in fulfilling the humane object of 0 many Laws of His Catholick

Majesty, they would have met with every assistance from. the ‘Spanish ‘Officers who visited
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‘the ‘© Minerva,” towards the execution of these Laws, and ‘that if the Vessel was not ‘imme-
‘diately seized by the Spanish Authorities, they might have been at least allowed to search or de-
‘tain her themselves,
My sole object, therefore, for stating the various motives for Lieut, Smith’s conduct, wae

to shew that he was not restrained from detaining this Schooner, by the least doubt as to her
having been engaged in illicit Slave-trade, and being, therefore, justly.condemnable under the
Mixed Commission, ‘but -by-consideratious of a wholly different, though paramount nature,
Your Excellency is aware that, by the ‘Treaty of 1817, in the event of a detention being de-

clared illegal by the Mixed Commission, the Captor is bound to-pay the damages that may have
been incurred; yet Lieutenant Smith, and his Commander, Captain Jackson, were ‘both so con-
‘vinced of her guilt, as to be ready so tar to take all the responsibility on themselves and only re-
frained from detaining her on account of the very proper and valid reasons which I have already
‘had the honour of stating to your Excellency.

Considering this violation of the Laws to be so flagrant, they may perhaps have calculated
-on your Excellency’s permission to search her, but -the respect due to the Flag and Fort of

‘His Catholick Majesty would not allow them to anticipate it.
The 5th Article of the Treaty expressly states, that ‘‘ whenever a Ship-of-War shall meet

a Merchant-man liable to be searched, it shall be cone with every a‘tention which is due between
Friendly and Allied Nations.”
And it is clear, theretore, that if Captain Jackson, or Lient. Smith, had yourExcellency’sper-

mission to detain this Vessel, or even if, after her entry, she had been seized by any of the Spanish
‘Craizers now in this Harbour, the circumstance of her having been detained in Port, would not of

itself have withdrawn her from the jurisdiction of the Mixed Commission, or have rendered her
less liable to condemnation under it.
J-am not aware that the Treaty any where limits the detention of Slave-vessels to the High

Seas; and, consequently, if a detention in Port could bave taken place with regard to that reci«
procal respect and attention which is due between Friendly and Allied Nations, then, in my humble
opinion, that detention must have been held so far perfectly legal,

In my last Letter I ventured to express my conviction, that, althongh the “‘ Minerva’ has not
fallen within the province of the Mixed Commission, your Excellency would proceed against her
‘under the Jate Royal Order, and the Royal Ceduia of December 1817, and I experience great
pleasure in observing, that your Excellency is now pleased tocenfirm that opinion, and thereby to
prove your anxietyto preserve that excellent understanding which now so happily exists between
<our respective Nations.

Your Excellency apprises me that the Officeof Marine proceeds, under the Royal Order, against
the “« Minerva,” as if she had come from the Coast of Africa, by first examining her Log-Book,
and then verifying the various facts recited by the Commanders of the ‘* Pylades” and «* Magpie.”
As ‘to the'Vessel having come from the Coast of Africa, it is matter ot sach publick notoriety

in the Havannah, as to ‘be beyond all dispute; but, were it not perfectly notorious, it is proved,
‘by the Vessel having been officially reported in the ‘* Diario” and “ Noticicso’’ as having sailed for
Princes Islind, by her uot subjecting herself to examination by the ‘* Pylades,” by her having
‘been seen by several competent Witnesses to land Negroes, and by the appearance she presented
ito Lieutenant Smith, of having just landed a cargo of slaves; supposing even that it should turn
‘out, that, before she reached the African Shore, she supplied herself with a cargo of slaves trom
another ‘Vessel, she is not the less guilty, nor the less liable to condenmation.

As to the verification -of the facts stated by the British Officers, 1 humbly trust, that your Ex-
-‘cellency will see the absoluté necessity of preventing the Tribunal to which the ** Minerva” is now
subjected, from coming to any decision contrary to the evidence of compctent Witnesses, without
giving them an opportunity of supporting their assertions by oath, particularly when these Persons,
in interfering now, .can have no possible object beyond their anxious desire fur the elucidation of
‘truth, I beg leave, therefore, to observe, that, previously to his sailing on his present Cruize,
{ had prepared Captain Jackson, for the possibilizy of the evidence of the Officer, Mr. Nott,
and two men being required under the Royal Order; and that 1 have authority to state, that his
intention is to retain into Harbour ina few days, under the expectationof your Excellency deem-
ang their evidence necessary. / .

_ Your Excellency expresses great doubt that the slaves could be landed, without detection, in the
scentre-of a City so populous asthe Havannah, exposed ail night to the watches and rounds of the
Police. To this I have merely to reply, that Mr. Nott and two men are reacy to prove the fact of
the disembarkation, on oath; and, that it is impossible they should be under any tuistake, as they
followed the Boat so close as not merely to see theNegroes crowded in the bottum, but even to
-have had a log of wood thrown at them by some Perscn concerned in this criminal transaction,

Indeed I am quite sure that your Excellency is not prepared to deny thelanding of these slaves ;
‘a faet perfectly notorious, and which, I understand, has been even boasted of by those concerned
in the cisensbarkation.

I must, therefore, with regret, express amy entire acquiescence in your Excellency’s remark,—a
remark indeed already made by Captain Jackson—that this event could not have takenplace with-
out the knowledgeof the City Police; but, if it most clearly appears that a Vessel, with slaves on
board, may be chased by a British Cruizer into the Port of che Havannah, may beimmediately re-
ported as such to the proper Authoritics, may be visited by Spanish Officers and a guard of Soldiers
and all this in open day, without such-circumstances leading to her immediate seigure+ it isdif.
ficult to believe that an inferior Officer, whether Civil or Military, would think it his duty to pres
vent the disembarkation of the Negroes, knowing them not to have been arrested byday-light
when the tact of the Vessel’s containing Slaves was maiter of pubbick conversation on the Wharf,
he would scarcely’ conceive himself called upon to arrest them under the shade of night and
would, perhaps, seven consider, that, in refraining from arresting them, he complied with thein-
ecations of some Superior, It appears to me, therefore, that the cirounstanceof the disems
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barkation not being denounced by the City Police, proves nothing but their remissness, which was

otherwise probable.
It is indeed lamentable to think that, although the Evidence against this Vessel be complete, in

allits parts, and quite incontrovertible. it should rest solely on the Evidence of British Subjects,

and that, through their energy-and activity, it appears but too clear, that a Slave-vessel may arrive

in open day in the Havannah, and discharge her Cargo, without being denounced or prevented by

any Subject of His Catholick Majesty.

“Phat remissness of duty, nay, absolute connivance at the detestable objects of this Vessel, is

justly imputable to some one or other of the Individuals who visited the ‘‘Minerva” in their

official capacity, must, I fear, be too manifest to both our Governments, on this Affair being re-

resented to them; and I am certain your Excellency will agree with me, trom the triumphant tone

which the Friends of illicit Slave-trade assume, in speaking of this Event, that if the conduct of

those whose duty it was to examine the Vessel, passes without remark, they will deem the safe

disembarkation of these Negroes to have been viewed with satisfaction by the Government of the

Island, instead of being a crime which the honour of both our Governments requires to be:

punished.
It is in this view of the matter that I may be permitted to express my satisfaction, that your Ex-

cellency has. been pleased to approve of the Order given to Lieutenant Smith by the Commandant

of the Naval Forces, in virtue of which he was able, in company with a Spanish Officer, to ascer-

tain, for all the purposes of legal proof, according to Captain Jackson’s statement, that the

‘Minerva’? had just landed a Cargo ot Slaves.

With reference to my remark, on the difference between the Official Reports in the Noticioso, of

the destination of this Vessel, when she sailed trom this Harbour in April last, and of the Place

trom which she is now said to have arrived, your Excellency is pleased to observe, that there may

still be no inconsistency in these different Statements : of this I was perfectly aware, but the prac-

tice of officially reporting in the Journals false Places of departure of Vessels known to have come

from the Coast of Africa, is'so well known, as already to have been the subject of Communications

between your Excellency and my Colleague, Mr. Kilbee; and I think that your Excellency will

perceive that the discrepancy, which now exists, is more unfortunate evidence for the innocence of

this Vessel, than it she had been reported direct from the Coast of Africa, particularly when, ia

place of arriving in ballast, Negroes were seen to be landed from her: had she been innocent,

there would have been no necessity for any equivocation on her part.

The whole Case, in short, from beginning to end, is so plain, so supported by direct and indi-

rect evidence, and withall so notorious, that the very attempts of the ‘* Minerva’ to prove herself

innocent, only tead more to her Condemnation, and, unless the Treaty, and “His Catholick Ma+

jesty’s Cedula of 1817, together with the Royal Order of the 2d of January last, be all consi-

dered as perfectly nugatory, I cannot conceive how this Vessel can possibly avoid Condemnation,

or her Crew escape punishment. _ As for the Negroes they are legally free already, by the very

circumstance of their having beenjust landed, so that it only remains for the Government to dis~

gover them, which, as the landing and dispersion of them could not, have taken place without the

knowledge of the Police, can, of course, be easily effected. : .

I regret beyond measure this unfortunate occurrence, but J trust that your Excellency is cot

vinced that I have studiously endeavoured to represent the whole details to you with the utmost

deference:-indeed, from gratitude for the urbanity which you bave always been pleased to evince

towards me, in the various Communications I have had the honour of holding with you, I should

be wanting in duty to myself had it been otherwise; but, above all, J should fail in that deep re-

spect which I owe your Excellency, as the Representative of His Catholick Majesty, and, moreover,

be atthe most egregious variance with my Official Instructions, did I venture to interfere with an

investigation, that now, as you justly observe, concerns your Excellency alone.

Iam, indeed, persuaded that every care will be taken to cause the Treaty and the Royal Order

to be respected; and, if I may at any time have appeared to say more than the Case required, IL.

trust you will attribute it, not to any intentionto pass presumptuously beyond the strict line of my

duty, but to a natural anxiety that the details ot this affair may be seen by the Authorities of this

Island in their true light, and, that both our Governments may be convinced not only that justice

has been done to all Parties, but that those Persons here, whose office it is on each side'to carry

the Treaty into execution, have done all that. could be expected of them. :

a Lavail, &c.

His Excellency the Captain-General. (Signed) W. S. MACLEAY,.

 

_ SeventhEnclosure inNo. 84, (Translation.)

The Captain-General to theBritish- Commissioner of Arbitration.

Sir,
Havannah, August 25, 1826.

WHILE I considered your wishes ‘complied with, in the Answer, which, on the 19th instant,

1 returned to your Letter of the previous day, inasmuch as I-then conclusively mavifested my in-

tention to conform my measures in the affair of the suspicious Schooner ‘‘ Minerva’ tothe Treaty

of 1817, its Additional Articles, and the Royal Order.of the 2d of. January last, I have received

your Letter of the 21st instant, in which the same details are recapitulated,. but-in a manner that

has not alittle surprised me, by the mode in which, quitting your functions as a Jadge of the

Mixed Commission, you endeavour to give them an unrecognized extension, for the purpose. of

“blaming those high Authorities of the Iglaud, who are responsible for their conductonly to their

August Sovereign, ee .  
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T have constantly enileavoured to preserve the greatest harmony both with you and.with Mr:
‘Kilbee, in the fulfilment of my duty, and of the Sovereign Orders of His Majesty; I have paid the.
greatest deterence to the various hints that the Commissioners of His Britannick Majesty, and the
Commanders of his Cruizers, have given to me; and when I confided in the candour of my pro-
‘ceedings, I observe, with regret, that my complaisance in receiving their Commmnications has not
‘been sufficient to prevent our Correspondence in this affair of the ‘* Minerva” from taking a dis-
-agreeable character, in consequence-of the mode in which you express yourselfin the Letter I am
‘now about to answer,

In the second and following paragraphs you repeat the motives of Lieutenant Smith for not
detaining the ‘* Minerva,” and-say, that his respect for His .Catholick Majesty’s Flag, and my
“supreme authority, deserve the approbation of His Britannick Majesty's Government, On this’
‘head | have nothing to say, further, than that you may rest persuaded that the ‘Treaty and the
‘Sovereign dispositions of the 10th of February last, by which His Majesty directs the observance
of the Additional Articles, bear reference only to Cruizers on the High Seas, while the Royal Or-
der of the 2d of January this Year, refers to the Vessels which arrive from-the Coast of Africa in
:this Port, as well as in all others of His Majesty's Possessions. The examination of the Log-
Book belongs to the Office of the Marine; and if there should be found any motive of suspicion
-that the Vessel has either bronght or clandestinely disembarked Negroes, that Office is bound to
‘render account thereof immediately to the Captain-General, who is then to proceed according to
.the particular nature of the affair, and to the Laws prevailing on this subject, ‘To detain or visit
a Vessel within the Port, would be to usurp the provinceof the Resident Authorities, and to attack
‘the Independence and Sovereignty of the Spanish Naiion. [n another paragraph of your Letter,
you seem to found your belief of the “¢ Minerva” having arrived from the Coast of Africa, on the
\publicity and notoriety of the affair; and you say, even if it bad not been notorious, it is proved
by the Vessel being announced officially as having: sailed for Princes Island by the Diario and
‘Noticioso, ‘Che same observation was made in your former Letter, and,- as I said in my An-
-swer, I transmitted that Letter to the Commandant of the Marine, in order that it might have its
‘proper effect in the enquiry that has taken place, in conformity to the Royal Order of the 2d of
January last.
“With respect to the publicity and notoriety of the affair, which you allude to and regard as |

‘proof, itis requisite that when similar rumours are circulated, that he who Knows this Country
well should recollect, that the People here are accustomed to amuse themselves with all sorts of
‘talk, fostering their curiosity with the most ridiculous and imprebable reports, which spread with
‘stich velocity as to make it impossible to discover their origin,

In the Havannab there is no Official Journal, and.when the Government makes a communica-
‘tion to the Publick, then the Article necessarily bears the heading “« De Officio,” in order that it
‘may be distinguished from the others which are the productions either of the Editors, or of
‘Private Individuals, If you had ‘attentively read my Correspondence with Mr. Kilbee, you would
shave been convinced of this circurastance, at least so far as not to think that the information
‘from the Publick Papers, without this requisite, possesses the character De Officio

Continuing my deference towards the information you afford me, as likely to elucidate this dis-
-agreeable affair, I have transcribed for the Commandant of the Marine, that passage of your
‘Letter wherein you request, that the Declarations tay be heard, of the Officer, and two other
“Witnesses, who are ready to prove the fact of the disembarkation of the Negroes; this I have
done inorder that the said Commandantin the enquiry which is now going on, may avail himself
-of these Declarations, and act according as he may judge proper, since to him alone belongs
such examination, couformably to the Royal Order of 2d January last. In this particular I can
.do no more, — ,

‘You next say, that the fact of the disembarkation of the Negroes is well known in the Havan-.neh, and that some have even been known to boast of having been employed in this transaction,
Here, you again depend on the vulgar reports of idle Persons in order to present them as proofs.
Ata time whenthejudicial enquiry is going on, prudence dictates that we should wait the con-

«tlusion of the competent Judges,in order to form an exact and true judgment of the affair, and, ‘not allow our imaginations to advance an opinion, founded on popular conversation,
As little does it givevoom to just suspicion with respect to the Schooner’s guilt, that she shouldchave, as you say, fled from the inglish Ships-ot-War, when she perceived them following her,because Privateers and Insurgent Ships-of-War, when they chase our Vessels, frequently make-use of the English and American Flag.
Iu my former Letter of the 19th instant, I informed you that my proceedings in this affair hadheen in exact conformity with the above mentioned Royal Order of 2d January last, and that the»Office ot Marine proceeds, as if the Vessel had come trom the Coast of Africa, to the examination of“the Log- Book, and then to the verification of the facts stated by the Commander of HisMajesty’sShip * Pylades,”’ and of His Schooner “* Magpie.” In addition I have issued orders to the PettyJustices to inquire inte the disembarkation of the Negroes, which it is asserted, was seen late atnight by 3 Individuals of the said Schooner, and which took place near the Wharf of San Fran-‘cisco: a circumstance which Edeem incredible, namely, that a contraband of this kind should.bedntroduced into a populous City, where the Rounds and Patroles cross each ether the wholenight._ On this last head, you say that Mr. Nott and 2 men are realy to prove on cath thie fact of thedisembarkation, and I, with thesame respect which I have always paid to your Communications,shave given notice of this to the Marine, that they, in consequence, may adopt suitable measures.I am very sorry, however, that you shuuld _have been able to deduce from this fact, that it isdifficult to believe that an inferior Officer, whether Civil or Military, would think it his duty toprevent the disembarkation of the Negroes, or, that ‘knowing them not to have been arrested by’day-light, when the fact of the Vessel’s containing Slaves, was a matter of publick conversation,che would conceive himself called upon to arrest them under the shades of night, and would notperhaps even.consider, that in refraining trom arresting them he complied with the intentions of
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some Superior, From this supposition, which is so very violent, and at the same time unfounded,

there results a real inculpation of the Superior Authoririesofthis Island, who are now proceeding

ju the matter,conformably to the Sovereign Orders, and, as 1 repeat, who are responsible for their

conduct to their August Monarch utone.

When, in your Letter of the 18th instant, you informed me that Lieutenant Smith, in virtue of

an order from the Commodore, had, in eompany with a Spanish Officer, passed aboard the

«¢ Minerva,” and had there found all the peculiar marks of her. being fitted out for the importa-

tion of slaves, I answered you, that I should transmit this information to the aforesaid Commo-

dore, in order that the affair might be cleared up, and that he might take the proper steps there-«

upon, although the Officer who accompanied Lieutenant Smith, ought to have already reported

to his Chief, whatever had been observed by the British Officer,

I considered that complaisance on the part of the Marine as a proof of the frankness and

respect which we have always observed towards the Commissioners and Officers of His Britannick

Majesty; but now thar i perceivd from your Letter, that you have formed an idea of my having

approved of the permission given to Lieutenant Smith, to visit the ‘ Minerva,’ I ought to

rectify this mistake, that this visit may never be adopted asa precedent; explaining to you clearly,

that the Commodore might, in the execution of his functions, through pure urbanity, have com-

plied with the wishes of Lieutenant Smith ; that he certainly did not ask my approbation of the

measure; and that I do not sce, in my Letter, any expression suilicient to lead you to suppose

that I approved of it.
,

This is all J have to say in reply to your last Letter, and with this our Correspondence on the

affair ought to cease; and as in the Regulations for, the Mixed Commission, your tunctionsare

clearly marked out, I hope that hereafter you will confine yourself strictly to them.
God preserve you, &e.

The British Commissioner of Arbitration. (Signed) “FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES,

 

Eighth Enclosure in No. 84.

The British Commissioner ofArbitration to the Captain- General.

SIR,. Havannah, August 26, 1826.

I OBSERVE with the greatest regret, from your Excellency’s Letter of yesterday, that Iam >

thought to have exceeded the bounds of my Official Duty, in making my last representation to

youon the subject of the * Minerva,’? and to have encroached, as most assuredly wa’ quite con-

trary to my intention, on that Authority which bélongs to the Government of this Island.

Your Excellency, on a reperusal of my Letter, will, however, as I hope, perceive that I have not

forgotten my duty, so far as in that Letter to attribute blame, on my own part, to the Supreme

Government. My Office certainly does not entitle me to take such a liberty. .Ihave read over

my Letter carefully, and I find that the passages which have excited your chief displeasure, are

those wherein 1 have recorded, as was my duty, the opinions of CaptainJackson, Lieutenant Smith

and others. 1 lament, therefore, exceedingly, that you-should be dissatisfied with my remarks on

the Case of the “Minerva,” a subject upon which I perfectly adopt the opinion of your Excel-

lency, that I am not called upon to address you further.

Iam confident, however, that, when your Excellency takes into consi-leration how deeply the

responsibility, and even veracity of British Officers, have been concerned in this most disagreeable

affair, you will deem me justified in viewing it as one in which I might have been excused for

making a moré detailed statement to you thanusual.

I cannot conclude without saying, that I well kuow, and shall ever gratefully recollect, your

constant dispositionto cultivate the best personal understanding with Mr Kilbee and myself; and

I further beg to assure your Excellency, that nothing would grieve me more in my private as well

as publick capacity, than to think that this harmony should for an instant be disturbed,

: 1 avail myself, &c. -

His Excellency the Captain-General. (Signed) W. S. MACLEAY.

 

Ninth Enclosure in No. 84.

| Captain Jacksonto the Captain- General.

Sir, His Britannick Majesty's Ship ‘* Pylades,"”” Havannah, August 18, 826,

1 HAVE the honour to inform your Excellency that, on the 16th instant, I chased a Schooner

into this Port, and had very strong suspicion she was engaged in illicit Slave-trade.

1 consequently sent a Boat, with an Officer to ascertain the truth, upon whose report I deemed

it necessary to send Lieut. Smith in Elis Majesty’s Schooner ** Magpie’ into this Port, who,

‘together with the Officer and his Boats-crew, did make themselves mastets of facts iincontrover

tible of her having had slaves on board, and landed them after ber arrival in this Port.

~The whole of the circumstances I believe your Excellency to be fully acquainted with, first by

ihe Officer from this Ship, and secondly, by Lieut. Smith’s Official Communication.

- I beg your. Excellency to observe with what unfeigned delicacy I have acted throughout: this

~ extraordinary traasaction, not only in obedience to my Instructions, but from the personal respect
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resides,
-Nevertheless, I feel it a duty incumbent on me to demand that Vessel, the ‘* Minerva,” at the

hands of your Excellency, (she at this moment not being in the possession of any Official Autho-

rity,) that she may be proceeded against by due course of Law, accgrding to the Articles of the:

Treaty now existing between their Britannick and Catholick Majesties, ,
Ihave the honour to be, &c.

‘His Excellency the Captain-General, (Signed) GEORGE VERNON JACKSON, Commander

I have-for the Spanish Flag, particularly in this Port, over which your Excellency so immediately

Tenth Enclosure in No, 84.

Lieutenant Smith to the Captain- General.

Sir, His Britannick Majesty's Schooner “* Magpie,” Havannah, August 17, 1926.

AN unpleasant duty falls to my lot, in reporting to your Excellency, that between the hours of
31 and 12 last Night, 6 or 7 Boats full of Negroes were landed at ‘the Shipping-Wharf from
the Schooner chased into this Port yesterday, by His Majesty’s Ship ‘* Pylades,” of which
circumstance your Excelleney bad due notice by an Officer of that Ship.
To the above fact, 1 have the most direct proof, and] must, therefore, request your Excellency

will be pleased to give such directions as you may think proper for the immediate detention of

 

the said Schooner and Negroes. T have the honour to be, &c,

His Excellency General.Vives, (Signed) EDWARD SMITH, Lieut. and Commander.

Eleventh Enclosure in No. 84. (Translation.)_

The Captain- Generalto.the British Commissioner of Arbitration.

Srr, Havennah, September 2,:1826.

DON BARTHOLOMEW MARQUES PACHECO, dAyudante de Matriculas, has addressed
a Letter tome, dated this day, aud which is as follows :—

€* Most Excellent Sir,—In pursuance of the Letteraddressedby your Excellency, onthe 22d

ult. to the Commodore, informing him. that, among other things stated to you by the British

Commissioner, Mr. Macleay, he had urged the necessity of examining the inglish Officer,

Mr. Nott, and two other British Subjects, on the subject of the Spanish Merchant Schooner
«* Minerva,” and as this enqyiry has been entrusted to me, by order of the said Commodore, I beg,
that in theevent of.those three Individuals being in this Harbour, the necessary measures may be
takén to cause them to present themselves at this Office on Monday the 4th inst, at 9 im the
Morning; for-the ‘purpose of giving their respective Declarations.”

ThisItransmit to-you, Sir, for the end solicited.
: God preserve you many years.

‘The British Commissioner ofArbitration. (Signed) FRANCISCO DIONISIO VIVES,

 

Twelfth Enclosure in No. 84,

The British Commissioner of Arbitrationto the Captain- General.
Siz, Havannah, September 2, 1826,

4 HAVE the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Excellency’s Letter, dated this. day,

and in answer have to acquaint you, that Mr. Nott, who fortunately happens to be nowon.board

the “« Pylades,” will be ready at the Commandancia de Matriculas, to give his evidence on the sub-
sect of the «* Minerva,” on Monday the 4th inst. at 9 o’Clock, A.M.

Your Excellency is aware that the two Sailors, who, with Mr. Nott, witnessed the disembark-

ation of the Negroes fromthe ‘* Minerva,” belonged to His Majesty's Schooner ‘‘ Magpie,” of

which the melancholy fate has been known for several days, and is so much to be deplored.
: , _ Lavail myself, &c.
His Excellency the Captain-General, (Signed) W. S, MACLEAY,

 

No. 835. |

The British. Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning —(Received Oct. 17.)

Str, . _Havannah, July 12, 1826.

_IN referenge:to your. Despatch of the 23d of‘February last, directingus to
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make enquiries into the truth of a statement respecting the re-capture, by a

Spanish Brig, of 2 Prizes which had been taken by a British Cruizer on the

Coast of Africa; we regret to have to inform you, that,notwithstanding our

utmost endeavours, we have not been able to obtain any information upon the

subject. If the Brig had arrived at this Port,.we might probably have suc-.

ceeded in. getting verbal information respecting her proceedings; but as the

transaction is connected with the Port of Cuba alone, written Communications

would be indispensable; and it 1s scarcely necessary to state, that there is no.

Individual in this Island, ‘whatever may be his principles, whom we could

‘nduce to commit bimself so far as to undertakea written Correspondence for

the purpose of investigating a Case of illicit Slave-trade. "

’ “We have not addressed the Captain-General upon the subject, because we

do not consider that we are authorized to de so by your Instructions; besides

such a step would be attended with no advantage whatever, as his Excellency

would, undoubtedly, refer our application for information to the Governor of.

‘Cuba, who would of course return the same answer which he gave to Sir

Lawrence Halsted. Ve have the honour to be, &c.

a (Signed) HENRY -T. KILBEE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, ~'W.S. MACLEAY.
&e. . &c. &e.

 

No. 86.

The British Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Receiwved Oct. 17.)

Sir, , _ Havannah, August 9, 1826.

SINCE the date of our Despatch of the 14th of June, 2 Spanish Vessels

have arrived here which had previously landed Cargoes of Negroes, viz: the

Brigavime “ Maria Isabel,” and theSchooner ‘* Santo Cristo de la Salud,”

alias “ La Dichosa.”
As soon as we had reason to believe that these Vessels hadcertainlybeen

engaged in the Slave-trade, we addressed a Note to the Captain-General, of

which a Copy is enclosed, calling his attention to these Cases, and expressing

our intention of reporting them to His Majesty’s Government. His Excel-

lency, in his Reply, a Translation of which is also enclosed, merely states, that

he had referred our Note to the Naval Department.

Both the above-mentioned Vessels, we understand, were fitted out at

Cadiz. ;

The Spanish Schooners ‘ Montanesa” and “ Amelia,” have lately’ sailed

for Princes Island, on the Coast of Africa. _
We have the honour to be, &c.  -

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) HENRY T. KILBEE,

&e. Se. &e. W.S. MACLEAY. -

 

First Enclosure in No. 86.

The British Commissioners to the Captain-General.

‘Srz, . . Havannah, July 22, 1826.

SINCE we last had the honour of addressing your Excellency, we have observed the arrival of

2 Spanish Vessels, announced in the Newspapers to be in ballast from “St. Thomas, which it is

well known had previously landed Cargoes of Negroes on the Coast of this Island. Their names

are the ‘© Maria Isabel,” a Brigantine, and the ** Santo Cristo de la Salud,” alias «La Dichosa,”

a Schooner. The latter was boarded a few days ago by a British Cruizer, but was not detained,

as theCommanding Officer did not consider that be could produce legal proof of her having just

Janded a Cargo of Slaves, although he was perfectly convinced of the fact.

We feel it to be our duty to report these Cases to our Government, of which we have the honour

to apprize your Excellency. We avail onrselves, &c. Se,

(Signed) — H. T. KILBEE.

His Excellency the Captain- General, ’ W. S. MAGLEAY,



134 Havannat.

Second Enclosure in No. 86. (Translation.)

Lhe Captain-General to the British Commissioners.

GenrLeMEN, Havannah, July 24, 1826;

ALTHOUGH. the2:Spanish Vessels that you announce to me in your Letter of the 22d instant,
have in fact arrived from the Island of St. Thomas, which does not belong to Africa, the only Case
in which they could be subject to the provisions of the Royal Order of the 2d of January last, and
although one of these Vessels, when visited by a British Cruizer a few days since, was uot detained
by theCommanding Officer for want of the legal proof that she had disentbarked-a Cargo of Slaves,
I have, nevertheless, transmitted your Letter to the Officer commaniing the Naval Forces on this
Station, in order that he may take such measures as may be necessary; persuaded, as ] am, that
you are convinced of my aversion to so detestable a Traffick, As soon as it may be in my power I
shall take an opportunity of communicating to you the result.

God preserve you many years.
The British Commissioners. (Signed) FRANCISCO DIOGNISIO. VIVES.

 

No. 87.

W. S. Macleay, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning—(Received Oct. 17.)

Sir, Havannah, September 3, 1826.

{HAVE the honour to acknowledge, on the part of His Majesty’s Com-
missioners, the receipt ofyour Despatch of the 6th of May, transmitting 4
Copies of the Papers, marked A. and B., relative to the Slave-trade, which
were laid before Parliament in the course of the present Year.

I have the honour to be, &c.
The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) W.S. MACLEAY.

— &e. &e.  —-&e.
 

| No. 88.

W. S. Macleay, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Oct. 17.)

Sir, . Havannah, September 4, 1826.

I HAVE the honour to acquaint you, that Captain Jackson, of His Ma-
jesty’s Sloop “ Pylades,” having received private intelligence that some of the
Negroes landed in the Havannah from the Schooner “ A@inmerva,” on the 16th
ult. were to be clandestinely conveyed to Matanzas in the Steam-vessel
‘* Mexicano,” which passes daily between the two Ports, lay in wait for her,
and on the 21st ult. brought her back to the Havannah as a legal detention
under the Mixed Commission, for having violated Article VIE. of the Instruc-
tions annexed to the Treaty of 1817.
As thedetention was clearly legal, I save it.as my decided opinion, that the

“* Mexicano” ought to be condemned, according to the terms of the 3d Article
of the Regulations for the Mixed Commission.
My two Spanish Colleagues also came to the conclusion that the detention

was legal, but singularly enough decided, that this detention ought to produce
no penal consequences, and, therefore, adjudged the Vessel to be liberated,
which has accordingly been done.
As this detention of a Passage-vessel for conveying Slaves along the Coast

without a Passport, is the first Case of the kind, and involves in it some very
important considerations; I regret, that the exceedingly short stay of His
Majesty’s Ship “ Dartmouth” puts it out of my power at present to make a
detailed Statement of the Affair, and to send you an Abstract of the Proceed-
ings of the Mixed Commission, with the opinions of the Commissioners.
These several Documents I shall not fail to transmit to you by the very first
opportunity that may occur. I have the honourto be, &c.
The HighHon, Searge gains (Signed) W. S. MACLEAY.

 JCe Ce Cc. :
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No. 89.

W.S. Macleay, Esq. to Mr; Secretary Canning.—( Received Nov. 6.)

(Extract.) Havannah, September 11, 1826.

IN my last Despatch I endeavoured to give you a brief outline of the

affair of the “ Mexicano” Steam-boat, but the very limited stay of His Ma-

jesty’s Ship “ Dartmoutti” in this Harbour, and the state of the health of our

Secretary, Don Rafael Gonzalez, did not enable me, by that opportunity,

to lay the whole of the details before you.

1 had the honour of stating to you, that during the time that Captain

Jackson, ot His Majesty’s Ship “ Pylades,” remained in Harbour, for the pur-

pose of investigating the very remarkable Case of the Slave-vessel “ Minerva,”

he received private mtelligence that 20 of her Negroes were to be clandes-

tinely removed from the Havannah to Matanzas, in the “ Mexicano” Steam-_

boat. He accordingly resolved to watch this Vessel, and on the 20th ult.,

almost as soon as she had put to Sea, he detained her when between the Moro

and Coxemar. Having found, on searching her, that she had 20 Negroes on

board, without a Government Passport for the purpose, he brought her back

4nto this Harbour the following day, as subject to condemnation under the

Mixed Commission, for having violated the 7th Article of the Instructions

annexed to the Treaty.
I enclose, herewith, a Copy of Captain Jackson’s Letter to the Mixed

Commission, dated the 22d ult., from which, as well as from his Affidavit, also

enclosed, it will clearly appear, that these 20 Negroes were bozals, and of

very recent importation.

On receiving Captain Jackson's Report I immediately summoned a Court

of the Mixed Commission, but unfortunately his Excellency the Intendant

being very unwell with a fever, we were obliged to postpone the meeting until

next day, when, althongh still exceedingly indisposed, his Excellency, rather

than retard the publick business, proposed to have the Courtheld.at his private

house. . 1 mention this circumstance, because it is one among many proofs

which my Colleagues, the Spanish Commissioners, have given me, of their

desire to obviate difficulties, and to expedite the business of this Commission.

In Mr. Kilbee’s Despatch of the 31st of July 1824, lie has stated to you

that this Mixed Commission, in their construction of the 13th Article of the

Regulations annexed to the Treaty, decided, on the 22d July preceding, that

in the event of the absence of any of the Foreign Members, whose places

could not be supplied ad interim, the remaining Individuals of the Commis-

sion should sit together as independent Judges. In pursuance of this deci-

sion, the Mixed Commission,. on the Morning of the 23d ult., consisted of

his Excellency the Intendant, Don Rafael de Quesada, and myself.

The Court was at first principally employed in hearing the Evidence, of

which I have the honour to transmit, herewith, an Abstract, and in perusing

a number of Affidavits and Memorials transmitted to us by the Captain-Ge-

neral, on the part of the Owner at the Steam-boat, the Owner of the Slaves,

and the various Passengers or Persons who had goods on board the Vessel at

the period of her detention.
Messrs. Acosta and Rollo, Don Bernardo Collozo, Don Juan Galup, and

Don Joze Obando, severally transmitted Memorials and Protests, through the

Captain-General, to the Mixed Commission, requesting that, as they had been

in no way concerned with the cause of her detention, the provisions and

other goods they had_ vn board the “ Mexicano” might be restored to them.

The Conde de San Fernando de Penalver likewise transmitted, through the

Captain-General, a Memorial and series of Affidavits, which he had procured

from his Estate in the Country, to shew that the 20 Negroes who were the

cause of the “ Mexicano’s” detention, had been his property ever sintee the

Month of January last, that they had resided from that timeon. his Estate near
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Guanabacoa, and finally, that they were, at the peried of their detention, on
their way to his other Estate at Matanzas under the special care of his Attor-
ney, Don Francisco Dias Bustamante.

LT prieve, however, to be obliged to state, that, notwithstanding the Evidence
and these Affidavits, I entertain little or no doubt as to these 20 Negroes
having formed part of the Cargoof the Minerva.” The nature of the com-
Jaints under which they labour, which are well known to be the ordinary

results of close confinement during the voyage from Africa, their total igno-
rance of the-Spanish language, and excessive alarm at the presence of any
White Person, render it almostincredible that they should have been im this
Island ever since January last ; even if the Person upon whose private infor-
mation Captain Jackson made the seizure did not positively state them to be
part of. the Cargo of the “ Minerva.” Unfortunately, however, such is the
system of terror pursued here with respect to the Slave-trade, that this Inform:
ant dared not give his testimony in Court, and, consequently, all the Evidence
produced went to show, that the Conde de San Fernando had possessed these
Negroes ever since January last, a period which I cannot help thinking has
only been chosen in order to relieve the Owner from the consequences of the
ate: Royal Order issued in that Month. ;
The Persons examined before the Commission were, the Captor, the Master

of the detained Vessel, the Engineer, the Mate, and Don Francisco Dias
Bustamante, who was on board in charge of the Negroes, as Steward or At-
torney of the Conde de San Fernandg.

Throughout the whole of these Examinations I owe it to myColleagues to
_ say,that they objected to only one question that I put to the Witnesses, namely,
-as to whether theWitness knew that these 20 Slaves had formed part of theCargo
of the ** Minerva.” The Spanish Commissioners stated, that ifIthought the
answer to this question could in any way influence my ultimate decision on
the validity of the detention, and its consequences, they would not object to it,
but that as no mention had been made of the “ Minerva ” in the courseof the

_ proceedings, except by myself, they must object to questions being putthat had
reference, as they thought, to matters quite foreign from those before the
Court. I stated, in answer, that although I was aware that the above ques-
tion might not tend to affect my decision in this Case, because this decision,
to all appearance, would depend on considerations quite different; yet that
I could not consent to the question being overruled, because such a proceed-
ing might, in a Mixed Commission like this, where one of the British Commis-
-sioncrs was likely to be often absent, be a precedent injurious to the ordinary
principles of Legal Evidence, which ought to be perfectly free. The question
was accordingly put to the Witness, but as I saw, that if even the Evidence
could establish’ the fact of these slaves having belonged to the “* Minerva,” of
which there was not the shadow of hope, this circumstance could not affect
my decision, as founded on the letter and spirit of the Treaty, I consented to
close the Case, and to enter uponthe discussion of the final Sentence.
_ From the opinion which I laid before the Court, and wherein I have en-
deavoured to answer every argument adduced by my Colleagues for the libe-
ration of the Vessel, you will perceive that the fact uponwhich the detention
was grounded, and by which its legality must be judged, namely, the want of
a Government Passport, has never been disputed. In consequence of this.I
urged the necessity of her condemnation, according to the 3d Article of the
‘Regulations, but the Spanish Commissioners, although they justified the
‘detention, and even held it to be legal, so far as Captain Jackson was con-
cerned, conceived that it ought to have no penal consequences, for the following
chief reasons: First, because, although there is an ambiguity in. thewording
of the 7th Article of the Instructions, this Article, in their opinion, can only
allude to the transportation of Slaves from one different Government to
another, and not from one part of the same Island to another ; and, secondly,
because the Captain-General, acting -upon. this interpretation of the Article,
has never been in the practice of granting Passports to Vessels carrying Slaves
along the Coast. -
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In order to prove the accuracy of this latter assertion, the Spanish Com-

missioners proposed, that a Letter should be written by the Members of the

Mixed Commission, jointly, to the Captain-General, requesting to know frora

him the usual practice observed with respect to the transport of Slaves by Sea

from one Port ofthe Island to another. ‘To this proposition T agreed, making

myColleagues at the same time understand, that bis Excellency’s Answer, so

far as I was concerned, could not affect the Sentence of the Court, inasmuch

as the fact of a violation of the 7th Article of the Instructions being once

proved, condemnation of the Vessel ought to follow as a necessary con-

sequence.
I have the honour to transmit Translations, herewith, of the Letter to the

Captain-General, and of his Excellency’s Reply.

My Answers to the above-mentioned Arguments of my Colleagues will be

found at length in the Opinion laid by me before the Court, and of which I

likewise send a Copy.
It has appeared to me that this Article 7 of the Instructions has little or

no connexion with the rest of the Treaty or its Appendages, and conse-

quently, although by Article 3 of the Regulations for the Mixed Com-

migsion, they are directed to condemn the Vessel in all Cases of legal

detention, there is no explicit provision in the Treaty for the subsequent

disposal of the Coasting Vessels so condemned, for the disposal of the Cargo

they may have had on board, or for that of the Slaves who may have been

the cause of the detention. The 7th Article of the Regulations, which autho-

rizes the sale of condemned Vessels for the profit of the two Governments,

and also the Confiscation of their Cargoes, and the Emancipation of the

Slaves who may have been on board as objects of Commerce, seems to me to

relate only to regular Slave-vessels coming from the Coast of Africa. 1 there-

fore found it necessary, according to my understanding of the Treaty, to

decide that the ““ Mexicano” should be condemned, and await the future

disposal of the two Governments, and that the Cargu on board, as well as the

Slaves, should be returned to their respective Proprietors. In this view of the

subject I signed the Sentence, restoring the Cargo and Slaves to such Pro-

prietors; but dissented from the decision of my Colleagues as to the liberation

of the Steam-Vessel. Ot this Sentence I beg to enclose aTranslation.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) W. 8S. MACLEAY.

&e. &e. &e.

 

First Enclosure in No, 89.

Captain Jackson to the Mixed Commission.

GENTLEMEN, H. B. M's, Ship  Pylades,” Havannah, September 22, 1826.

_ 1 BEG to acquaint you that previous tomy sailing on the 20th instant, I had information that

the Steam-vessel «* Mexicano,’ from Havannah to Matanzas, had slaves on board, and as soon as

it was practicable, 1 boarded her outsitle of this Harbour. .

The Master denied having any on board, and refused to admit the Officer to search; however,

I sent a pariy of Marines to show that opposition would be unavailing, and the result was, 20

Negroes were found secreted below, apparently of very recent importation, they having on new

clothes, their heads shaved, and the Surgeon reports some of them to be in a very deplorable

condition.
: :

I sent on board, the Treaty concluded ‘between Their Britannick and Catholick Majesties, dated

23d September 1817, and pointed out, that I detained her from a belief of his having acted in

direct violation et Article 7 of the said Treaty, and assured him if he could produce any Authority.

for the transportation of the slaves, that I would immediately withdraw the Officer and Men from

the Vessel.

He tailed to do so, and only presented a Licence to gail his Vessel between Havannah and Ma-.

tanzas, and declared he had no other Papers; I therefore felt I was but performing my duty in

bringing her into Havannah for Adjudication before the Honourable the Commissioners of the

Mixed Court. . T have the honour to be, &c. ‘

(Signed) G. V. JACKSON, Commander.

The Members of the Mixed Commission.
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Second Enclosure in No. 89.

Affidavit of the Captor.

1 GEORGE VERNON JACKSON, Conmmander of His Britannick Majesty’s Ship “* Pytades,”
hereby declare, that, on this 20th day of August, being near the Havannah, I detained the Steam-
vessel, named the “ Mexicano,” sailing under Spanish Colours, armed with 2 guns, 9-pounders,
commanded by Don Joze Lopez, who declared her to be bound from Hayannah to Matanzas, with
a Crew, consisting of 22 Men, and 53 Passengers, whose names, as declared by them respectively,
are inserted in a Lisc at the foot hereof, and having on board 20 slaves, said to have been taken on

board at Havannak, on the 19th or 20th of August, and are enumerated as follows, viz. :—

 

 

I

Healthy. Sickly.

Men- - - - - 5 1

Women - - - “se 2

Boys - - - - 5 3

Girls - - +» 2 2  
1 go further declare, that the said Steam-vessel appeared to be seaworthy, and was supplied

with a sufficient stock of water and provisions for the support of the said Negroes and Crew,
on their destined voyage to Matanzas.

I do further declare, that the Master denied having any Slaves on board, and that he prevented a

search being made for them, which obliged me to send greater force, when the said 20 Negroes
were found secreted below, under a quantity of furniture, wood, &c, thereby convincing me that he
was not ignorant of the illegality of bis proceeding.

The Slaves appeared to be of very recent importation, they having on new clothes, their heads
shaved, and many of them being in a deplorable condition,

. (Signed) GEO. V. JACKSON, Commander.
Witnesses, (Signed) Pu. Hosre, Senior Lieutenant.

A, D. Witson, Surgeon,

. [Here follows the List of Passengers.]

 

Third Enclosure in No. 89.

Abstract of the Evidence in the Case of :he *« Mexicany” Steam Vessel.

IN addition to the Evidence of Captain George Vernon Jackson,as set forth at length in his Affida-
vit, Don Joze Maria Lopez deposed, that he is a Native of Ferrol, aged’35 Years, and the Master of
the Steam-boat ‘‘ Mexicano;"’ that in this capacity he left the Port. of Havannah, on the 20th
instant, in order to proceed to Matanzas, to and from which Place he’ is in the habit of going
and returning weekly with Passengers and goods; that he was detained at the Mouth of the
Harbour, about the distance of a musket-shot from the Morro, by 4 Boats of an English Sloop-
of-War for the purpose of examining his Ship, and that the English separated from the different
Negroes then on board about 19 or 20, on ace vant, as the Deponent understood, of their being
suspicious, and that in consequence of thi: he was obliged to return with the said Steam-boat
into Port; that there were several slaves o: boa-d besides the above-mentioned 19 or 20, and the
2 who were employed in the Navigation of the Steam-Boat, but that he, the Deponent, cannot
state the exact number because, having been detained at the Mouth of the Harbour, be bad uot
time to form that List of the Passengers which is usually made out during the voyage; that the
19 or 20 slaves set aside by the English had no Passport from the Government; that he, the
Deponent, has never required any Government Passport for Slaves, but ouly a Written Permission

from their Owners, when these did not accompany them on board, the presence of the Master
having always been deemed a sufficient authority for the transport of his slaves; that the Person
who presented himself with these. 19 or 29 Negroes was Don Francisco Dias Bustamante, as
Attorney or Agent of the Conde de San Fernando, their Master; that he, the Déponent, never
could havé denied to the Captors that there were Negroes on board, because many People of
Colour were to be seen on deck at the time of the Steam-boat being boarded ; that with respect
to the 19 or 20 Negroes being concealed, le only knows that this was not done by the Deponent,
or by his order, and that he is certain that part of the said Negroes, like the rest of the Passengers;
were af times on deck, arid’ part below in the forecastle; that as some of them were diseased,-or
Sea-sick, it is not unlikely that sach may have remained under cover below; that he knows not
whether the above mentioned 19 or 20 Negroes were bozales or not, because he had not time to
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ascertain the fact, nor thought it necessary to make the enquiry; that at the period of being

boarded, the People of Colour, both above and below, were in pertectly free communicationwith

each other; that beside the Passengers, the Steam-Boat had on board the luggage of the said

Passengers, a quantity of tasajo, and other provisions for Matanzas, as well as various merchandize ;

that the Owner of the Steam-boat is Den Antonio Bruzon, an Inhabitant of this City, who has

appointed the Deponent to be Master, with asalary; that he, the Deponent, has been 2 or 3

Years in that capacity; that the Vessel was armed at the time of her detention with 2 guns and

some swords for the purpose of defending herself against Pirates ; that he has neither destroyed,

concealed, or kept back any Paper; that he gave no other Paper to the British Officer than his

Licence for sailing between Havannah and Matanzas; that he, the Deponent, knows not whether

the Ownerof the Steam-bvat knew the circumstance of the 19 or 20 Negroes being on board ; that

never since the Deponent has commanded the Steam-boat, ‘has he been accustomed to ask a

Passport for slaves, it being sufficient for him that their Master, or his Agent, accompanied them,

or that they had from these Persons a Written Permission.

JOHN GILLESPIE deposed, that he isa Scotchman, and unmarried ; that he was the Engineer on

board the Steam-boat ‘*Mexicano,” on her last voyage to Matanzas ; that this Vessel left the Havan-

nah on the 20th instant, and was detained by the Boats of au English Sloop about half a league

trom the Morro, and brought back into Port; that, as at the time of the detention, he was’

employed at the Steam Engine, the Deponent knew not what occasioned the Vessel being detained

nor what the Captors did on board; that there were Negroes on board, but that he does not

know whether they were Jozales; that all the Deponent’s attention was given to the Engine, and

that, consequently, he knew nothing beyond what he had stated.

DON JAYME ESCANDELL deposed, that he was Mate of the Steam-Boat “‘ Mexicano,”

atthe period of her last voyage to the Matanzas; that she sailed trom. the Havannah on the

20th instant, at 6 0’Clock in the Morning, according to custom; that the said Vessel was boarded

and detained by 3 boats of the English Sloop-of-War “ Pylades,” at about the distance of a

cannon-shot from the Morro; that the Officer commanding these Boats came on board tor the

purpose, as this Deponent learned from certain of the Passengers, who understood English, of

examining the said Steam-boat, and of ascertaining whether there were slaves on board; that in

fact the said Officer searched the whole Vessel, and separated from the rest about 39 or 20

Negroes; that this Deponent cannot state the exact number, he having at the time beeu

otherwise employed; that he is ignorant whether the English Officer asked for any Passport 5°

that the said Negroes carried no Passport with them ; that itis not the custom for slaves to get

Government Passports for the voyage from Havannah to Matanzas, a written Order from the.

Owners being sufficient when these do not accompany them; that he, the Deponent, knows not

who is the Master of these Negroes in question; that he knows not the names or the number of

Passengers on board, because the list of them js made out, not at the time of their going on

board, but during the voyage ; that he knows no Person thatis a Proprietor, or has any interest

in this Vessel except Don Antonio Bruzon ; that the Captain of the Steam-Vessel did not refuse.

eitherto deliver ap his Papers to the English Officer, to allow him to search theVessel, or to shew him.

the Negroeson board; that neither at the period ofboarding, norafterwards, did the Deponent see any:

Person present himself to the English Officer, as the Owner of these 20 Negroes, or as the Person

having charge of them ; that he did not see these Negroes either conceal themselves, norany Person

conceal them; that these Negroes were in the torecastle like all the other People of Colour,

that some of them were on deck and others below ; that he, this Deponent, knows not how these

Negroes may have been disposed of at the time the Vessel was boardedby the English ; that the

Enylish Officer experienced neither difficulty or delay in intorming himself as to the Negroes on

board; that the Deponent does not believe these Negroes to have been bozales, although he

cannot be positive on the subject ; that the Deponent knows not that any of the slaves on board

the Steam-boat formed part of the cargo of the ‘* Minerva,” respecting which Vessel he knows

nothing; that he was appointed Mate’by, Don Antonio Bruzon, about 10 Months ago; that the

Master is Don Joze Lopez, whoin the Deponent found acting in that capacity. when he first

entered into the service, and that the Steam-boat is armed with 2 guns, 19 muskets, and some

small arms.

DON FRANCISCO DIAS BUSYTAMANTE deposed, that he is a Native of Santander, and

now an Inhabitant of this City; that he is unmarried and a dependent on the House of the

Conde de San Fernando; that on Sunday the 20th instant, he proceeded in the Steam-boat

¢ Mexicano” for Matanzas, taking with bim 20 slaves of the aforesaid Conde, to place them on an

Estate of his in the above vicinity; that the Steam-boat was boarded by the Boats of an English

Sloop of War, whose Commander, baying insisted on examining her, and fallen in with the above-

mentioned Negroes, detained the said Steam-boat, and brought her back into Harbour; that the

-said slaves had no Passport trom the Goverument, it not being the custom to require any such Pass-

port. for removing slaves from one Estate to another, even although by Sea; that the Ne,roes were

in the forecastle when the English Officer came on board, and the Deponent was on the poop, by

reason of wh ch he knows not whether all or some of the slaves may not at that time have been below

and under cover; that he knows not from whom the Conde de San Fernando honght the said Nee

groes, but that he recollects that they were placed by him so long ago, as the Mouth of January’

last, on the Estate of Jesus Maria, situated in the District of San Geronimo, and Jurisdiction of

Guanabacoa; that they were placed there for the purpose of being taken care of until further ors

ders, as isaffirmed by various Affidavits in the Statement produced before the Commission, in the

name of the said Conde; that he, the Deponent, knows .not if they can speak any ‘Spanish,

because they were not under his immediate care on the Estate; that he is ignorant whether they

are Christiaus or have been baptized; that he knows that some of them are at this ‘moment

afflicted with an inflammation of the eyes, :



140 HAVANNAH.

Fourth Enclosure in No. 89. (Translation.)

Affidavits respecting the Negroes found on board the “Mexicano.”

IN the District of San Jeronimo de Penalver, Jurisdiction of Guanabacoa, on the 23d of Au-
gust 1826, before me, Don Justo Lopez, Knight of the Royal and Military Order of San Er-
menegilda, Captain of Tufantry, attached to the principal Staff of the most faithful City of the
Havaunah, one of the Petty Judges of the aforesaid District, by Commission from his Excellency
the Governor-General, &c., and before my Assessors duly sworn, Don Pedro Dominguez, ana
Don Sebastian Echabarria, has appeared the Presbyter, Dou Manuel de Torres, Chaplain of the

_ Sugar Estate Jesus Maria, belonging to the Conde de San Fernaado de Penalver, to whom [
administered the Oath according to the jermula of his Ministry, upon which he engaged to speak
the truth, and having then read the Warrant tor this judicial Process, he said, that in the Month

of January of this present Year, there came to this Estate 20 Bozal Neg:oes, of both sexes, tor
the purpose of being cured of their diseases, and that Don Francisco Dias Bustamante committed
them tu his care, iu order that, if any of them should bappen to die, it might not be before they
had received the Holy Sacrament of Baptism; and the said Presbyter being asked if he recollected
the-day that these Slaves were taken from this Estate to be carricd in the Steam-Boat ‘* Mexicano”
to Matanzas, said, that be does not recollect the precise day that they were taken from the Estate,
but that it was some day in the course of last Week, aud then having affirmed, that what he
had said is the truth according to the Oath he had taken, he read this Declsration over, and having

stated it to be in exact conformity with his evidence, he signed and ratified it as below with me
and my Assessors. MANUEL D&E TORRES,

{Signed) Justo Loprz,
Pepro Domingues.
SEBASTIAN DE ECHABARRIA,

OWN the same day of the aforesaid Month and Year likewise appeared before me and my said
Assessors, the Licentiate, Don Francisco Valdes, to whom J administered the Oath in form,
which he took by God and the Holy Cross, under which he engaged to speak the truth, and
accordingly declared, that his name is Francisco Valdes ; that he is a married man, aged 40 Years,
by profession aSurgeon, which profession he now exercises on this estate, to which, ia the
_Month of January last, there came 20 Bozal Slaves, i4 males and 6 feprales ; that these Slaves
were placed in the Infirmary, under the Deponent’s care, for the purpose of being cured of certain
diseases that afflicted them, such as diarrhea and ophthalmia, or inflammation of the eyes; that

these Slaves had remained ia the said Infrmary until last week, when he, che Deponent, was con-
sulted as to their being in a fit’staré to remove to the Sugar Estate Alcangia, in the Jurisdiction of
Matanzas; and, although 4 or 5 of them were not quite recovered from the complaint of the
eyes, the Deponent stated, that he saw no objection to their being removed, which was accord-
ingly done,; and then the Deponent having affirmed that what be had said is the truth, according
tothe Oath he had taken, read this Depositionover, and having stated it to be in exact con-
formity with what he had said, he signed and ratified it as under, with me and my Assessors.

(Signed) Justo Lorez. (Signed) FRANCISCO VALDES,
Pzpro DomincueEz.
SeBasTIAN DE ECHABARRIA.

 

Here tollow three similar Affidavits, viz :—

1, Of Don Andres Burgotto, the Owner of the Estate, who-gave the written order for the said
20 slaves being taken to Don Francisco Dias Bustamante, in the Havantiah.

2, Of Don Juan Casablanca, who conducted them from the Estate to the Havannah.
3. OfDon Manuel Diaz, a neighbour, who deposes that he knows these 20 Negroes, and

aaw Don Juan Casablanca conducting them to the Havannab.

 

Fifth Enclosure in No. 89. (Translation) -

The Mixed Commission to the Captain- General.

Sra, Havannah, August 29, 1826.

IN consequence of the discussion which has taken place in this Commission, respecting the.
detention of the Steam-Boat ‘< Mexicano,” by the English Sloop-of-War <* Pylades,” and of the
application to this Case of Acticle 7 of the Instractions aunexed to the Treaty, we have agreed to
request, that your Excellency will direct. your Secretary of the Police D. partment to certify to
us, whether, in the cases of slaves being transported by Sea trom the Havannah to th« Estates of
their Mastets, or from one Estate to another, it has been the custom to deliver Passports for the
purpose, or whether it was quite-sufficient that these slaves had a written Permission on the part.
of their Master, on every occasion that this Person or his Agent did not accompany them,

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS.,
RAFAEL DE QUESADA,

His Excellency the Captuin-General, 3V. S. MACLEAY,
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Sixth Enclosure in No. 89. (Translation.)

The Captain-General to the Mixed Commission.

‘GENTLEMEN, ' Havannah, August 29, 1826.

IN reply to your Letter of this date, requesting to know whether, in the event of slaves being

‘transported by Sea from the Havannah to the states of their Masters, or from one Estate to

another, iz has been the custom to issue Pas:ports for that purpose, or whether it bas been

deemed sufficient that such sl.ves bad the Permission of their Owners, when these Persons or

their Attorneys did’ not acecrapany them; LT have-to inform you, ‘hat by Article Ist, Part 2d, of

the last Regulation of the Consulado respecting runaway slaves, and by Article 10 of the Ta-

structions for the Capitanes de Partidos, the Owuers of Slaves, or even their Overseers, are

authorised to grant wri ten Licences for travelling, to their slaves, without which Licences they

are considered as runaways.
With reference to the above Regulations, Owners, or their Overseers, grant writren Permissions

to their slaves, which authorise them, as well to travel along the high roads as to go from one

Estate to anether, aud those Proprietors whose Estates are situated near the Sea, send their

slaves by Coasting-Vessels, with a permission similar to that which is use. for passing them by

Land. God preserve you many Years.

The Members of the Mixed Commission. (Signed) FRANC?. DION®, VIVES,

 

Seventh Enclosure in No. 89.

Opinion of His Britannick Majesty's Commissioner of Arbitration,

THE «© Mexicano," a Passage Steam-boat sailing under Spanish Colours, was, on the 20th

day of this Month, whiie on her Voyage from Havannah to Matanzas, detained between :he Morro

and Coxemar, by His Britannick Majesty’s Sloop “* Pvlades,” Captain Jackson, on a chargé of

having violated the 7th Article of the Instructions annexed to the Treaty, and having thus become

Hable to condemnation under this Mixed Commission.

There are several discrepancies in the Evicence before the Commission, bul none that in my

opinion ariy way affect the main fact on which this detention has been grounded, and by which

alone it must be declared lawtul or not, This fact is, that 20 slaves were inthe Steam-vessel at

the time of her detention, on their way from Havannah to Matanzas, without the Vessel

being provided with a Passport from the Government on the spot, turnished ad hoc.. ‘This is

allowed on all sides to have been proved by the Evidence.

It appears to me also from the Evidence, that tne slaves were concealed, or at least that delay

and difficulty were placed in the way of the British Officers when searching for them, and that,

while the other Slaves or Negro Servants on board were claime:! by their respective Mastersor

Mistresses, these 20 were not so claimed. All this would go to shew a consciousness of there

being some inypropriety connected with them, which may possibly have be-n the deficiency of a

proper Passport. There is no Evidence before the Court, however, to shew otherwise than that

they are the property of the Conde de San Fernando, and were, when detained, on the nussage

from one of his Estates to another; and, therefore, as such property I am bound to consider them.

By Article 1. of the Regulations for the Mixed Commission, they are to judge according to the

letter and spirit of the Treaty. Now with respect to the intentions ot the High Contracting Parties

who signed the Treaty, itis most clear, both fromthe whole of the tenour of this, and from the te-

nour of the Laws now existing, whether Spanish or British, relative to the Slave-trade, that it was

the most anxious desire of their Britannick and Catholick Majesties, in signing that Treaty, to ex-

tinguish by.its means this inhuman Commerce. Such being the spirit of the Treaty, it appears te.

me, that when two different passages of it are deemed to be in any degree conflicting as to their |

signification, we should adopt, as our guide, that passage the signification of which is the most

-in harmony with this spirit; so that, if one passage should distinctly authorize the detention of

Coasting Vessels, having slaves on board, and another seem not so much to justify it, we ought

to consider that passage which, by authorising the detention ot such Vessels, agrees most with the

grand object of the Treaty, that is, the abolition of the Slave-Trade, to be the true rule of ‘our

proceedings. ,

This remark I-make when, supposing for a moment that, as has appeared to one of my Col-

leagues, there is a disagreement between certain passages of the Treaty, as, for instance, on the

one hand, Article 10 of theTveaty, which says, ‘‘in order to render lawful the detention of any Ship,

whether Spanish or British, the slaves found om board such Vessel must have been-brought there

for the express purpose of the Traffick ;” also paragraph 2 of Article 1 of the Instructions,

which says, ‘* Ships on board of which no Slaves shall be found, intended for purposes -of

traffick, shall not be detained on any account or pretence whatever 5”. and, on the other: hand,

Article 7 of the Instructions, which stipulates that ‘’ no conveyance, of Slaves from one Port in

the Spanish Posséssions to another shall take place. except in Ships provided with Passports from

_ the Government,on the spot, ad hoc,”
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In paragraph 2 of Art. 1 of the Instructions, as above cited, I] may observe, that owing to
the punctuation of the Treaty, as signed in English, there is an ambiguity which does not occur
inthe same Treaty as signed in Spanish, since the former may leave us in doubt whether it is
** Ships intended tor purposes of traffick, on board of which no slaves shall be found,” or whether
it is, as the Spanish Copyol the Treaty expressly says, ‘* Ships on board of which shall be found no
slaves intended for the purposesoftraflick,” that are not to be detained. This ambiguity merits atten-
tion, because, ifit be said that the meaning of the Article is, as may seem fromthe English punc-
tuation, that Ships intended for purposes of traflick, that is Merchant-Ships, on board of which
shall be found no slaves, are not to be detained, it is most clear that we have this paragraph in
complete agreement with Art. 7 of the Instructions. If the other meaning be given to the para-
graph, which it must be allowed is the only one it is susceptible ot, according to tbe Treaty
as signed in Spanish, then we are to understand, that no Ship is to be detained that does not con-
tain Negroes destined for the traffick, a provision which, if taken to relate to all Ships. whatever,
is indubitably at variance with Art. 7 of the Instructions.

That this provision, however, does not relate to all Ships of whatsoever kind, can be shown, as-
follows :-— .

It is most evident, from its first line, that the whole of Art. 14 of the Treaty, relates to regular

Slave-ships coming from the Coast of Afiiica; and, consequently, has not the least reference
to Coasting Vessels from Port to Port ‘of the Spanish Possessions, which may, like the
** Mexicano,” have slaves on board, without the proper Passports. The same observation holds

good with respect to Art. | of the Instructions. namely, that it also has reference only to Ships

regularly fitted out for the Slave-trade, and asall the secoudary paragraphs of anArticle have
a reference to the primary one, it follows that, taking the Treaty as signed in Spavish, the mean-

ing of the 2d paragraph, Art. 1 of the Instructions, is, that ‘* Slave Ships, on board of which no

slaves shall be found intended for purposes of ‘traffick, shall not be detained on any accountor
pretence whatsoever.” lndeed, that thisis thé true interpretation of Art. 1? of the Treaty, and
of the paragraph 2 of the Instructions, sufliciently appears from these being the very provisions,

which, in the opinion of both Governments, required alteration, and which accordingly gave rise

to the Additional Articles signed in: 1822, and lately confirmed by His Cathotick Majesty.
Consequently there is no contradiction bétween the terms of Art. 10 of the Treaty, and para-

graph 2,- Art. | of the Instructions, which relate solely to regular Slave-vessels, and those

of Art. 7 of the Instructions, which Article refers to Vessels not in the regujar Slave-trade,

Indeed, it is impossible to suppose that the High Contracting Parties should not have observed in
these short Instructions so obvious ah iu’ onsistericy as would result from making Article 10 of
Treaty, paragraph 2, Art. 1 of Instruetions, andArt 7 of Instructions, all refer to the same kind of
Vessels. I, therefore, conceive that Art. ¢ of the Tustructions remains clear and uncontradicted,
by any previous or subsequent part of the Treaty and its Appendages.

Thos, the main question before the Commission relates entirely to the lezality ofthe detention
of the Steam-boat, under Art. 7 of the Instructions, for, if rhe Commander of the ‘* Pylades” be
justified under this Article, I hold, from what has been already said, that no other passage of the
Treaty can be brought forward to invalidate the detention: o

But, betore 1 consider the legalicy of chis d: tention, it is uecessary, from observa‘ions made in
Court, that I should acknowledge that the Detainer seems to-me to have erroneously connected
the.3d paragraphofArt. [ of tle Iustructions with Art 7, inasmuch as he conceived it to be his
duty, under the said paragraph, wot to require Passports for 2 Negro servants. tha? appear to have
attended their Master on board, or at least, to have allowed ail the Passengers, whether white or
coloured, whom he found on deck, to go on Shore, whereas, in my oyinion. there cannot be the
least doubt that the true interpretation of the Treaty required that he should nave only luoked to
Art. 7 of his Instructions, under which he detained the Vessel, and have insisted on a Government
Passport being shewn to him by the Captain of the Vessel for all the slaves that might have been
ov board.

Ifind, however, that the Detainer’s application to Vessels of all descriptions, of paragraph 3,
Art. 1 of his Instructions, is perfectly analagous to the opinion of one of my Colleagues, who
thought that paragraph 2, Art 1 of the Instructions, relates to Vessels of all descriptious. If one

of these paragraphs relates to other Vessels shan regular .Slave-ships, then the other must also.
But it is my firm opinion that neither have the least reference to the Case of a Vessel carrying

Negroes trom one Spanish Port to another, and consequeutly that by Art, 7, as was said before,
any Ship with slaves on board, passing from one Spanish Port to auother, without Passports from
the Government on-the spot, is liable most decidedly to detention.

It has been contended, however, by my Colleagues, that this Art. 7 relates only to the trans~
fer of Negroes fron one Spanish Possession, such as Puerto Rico to another, such as Cuba, but
the words are clear, ‘‘ from one Port of the Spanish Possessions to another,’ that is, tor instance,

from the Havanaah, a Port of Cuba, and consequently a Purt of the Spanish Possessions,

to another, Matanzas, likewise a Port of the Spanish Possessions. It is true that the Article ap-
plies also to the trauster of slaves from any Spanish Port, such as Puerto Rico to another, as the
Havannah; but I do not see how, trom the Spanish or English Copy of the Treaty, it can be con-
tended, that this Steam-vessel was not, when detained, in the act of transporting Negroes from
ene Port of the Spanish Possessions to another. It might, perliaps, be said, that this detention is
even more valid, according to the letter of the Treaty, than the detention of slaves passing from
Puerto Rico to the Havannah would be, for the words in the Spanish Treaty are, <* del Gobierno
de aquel Territorio,” aud not ** de los Gobiernos de aquellos Territorios,”’ words that would, in my
humble opinion, have more clearly applied to the transfer of Negroes from one Island to another
havingdifferentGovernors.

In every question of this nature, the spirit of the High Contracting Parties in signing the
Treaty will be an excellent guide. Now, I conclude that it was thé intention of Spain to destroy
every opportunity of subterfuge, and consequent escape from just condemnation, on the. part of
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Slave-traders; and that, therefore, His Catholick Majesty determined to permit no slaves to pass

from one of his Ports to another, in Ships unprovided with Passports for that purpose, thereby pre-

venting the facilities which regular Slave-vessels on the Coast would bave by their means

for landing their Negroes.—By this Article 7, His Catholick Majesty may have intended to prevent

such a case as a Slase Vessel, just arrived from Africa, placing Negroes on board the Steam-boats,

aad so procuring their clandestine eutry into the Havannah, a case that has been publickly said to

have occurred; whereas, were all Vessels transporting sl+ves provided with Passports from the

Authorities of the Port from which they sailed, there could be no such collusion between Coasting

Vessels and Slavers. From these circumstances, and the ardent desire which, in his late Decrees,

His Catholick Majesty has shewn to destroy this Traffick, } infer that it was really his intention,

by Article 7 0f the Instructions, to prohibit any transportation of Slaves by Sea, without Pass-

ports for that purpose.

‘And that it was in this same spirit that the British Government concluded the Treaty I infer,

not only trom the detestation with which this Government is known to the civilized World

to view every thing that aids the Traffick ; but from the whole tenour of the analagous Article of

that Treaty, which was concluded in 1817, between His Britannick and Most Faithtul Majesty,

for the attainment of the same object. . : :

Now it is, on all sides, agreed, that the « Mexicano” bad no passport from the Governmentof

the Havaunah for the 20 slaves belonging to the Conde de San Fernando, and whom this

Steam-vessel was transporting from Havannah to Matanzas; she was therefore legally detained,

according to the Instructions in the possession ot the Detainer. .

But it is said, that the Government of this Island has never been in the practice of giving Pass-

ports to Ships transporting Slaves trom one Port to another. As, however, it can never be urged

that the habitual infraction of a solemn Treaty justifies any particular Case of infraction when de-

tected, it is impossible not to allow that the penalties attendant upon detection, according to the

Treaty, have been justly and legally incurred by this Steam-boat.

~ One of my Colleagues has urged, that this Article 7 of the Instructions is only a precautionary

or preventive one, not carrying any penalty along with it beyond the mere detention, and that,

consequently, although the Conymander of the ‘‘ Pylades” was authorized by his Instructions to de-

tain the Stzam-vessel, no further penal consequences ought to ensue, Now true itis, that this

Article 7 of the Instructions appears to me Co be the only Article, either in the Treaty or its Ap-

pendages, which clearly authorizes the detention of other Vessels than regular Slave-traders. But

I cannot peregive how this circumstance should in any way destroy all the penal consequences at-

tendant upon detention, It is perfectly understood, that the detention of a Spanish Vessel on the

Coast of Cuda, by a British Cruizer, can fall under the cognizance of no other Tribunal than this

Mixed Commission. Now the 3d Article of the Regulations for the Mixed Commission, that is,

the general Regulation for their proceedings, states as follows, that the Commissioners shall pro-

ceed to examine Papers and receive depositions, in order to be able to judge and to pronounce it

the Vessel has been justly detained or not, according to the Stipulations of the Treaty; ‘and,

jn order that, according to this judgment, it may be condemned or liberated,” I am clearly, there-

fore, of opinion, that, if the detention of the ‘* Mexicano” be deemed just and legal by the

Mixed Commission, Condemnation must follow, as the necessary consequence, according to

Article 3 of the Regulations.

It has been said by my Colleagues, that the above interpretation of the Treaty is so severe,

that it would subject any Vessel to condemnation which had two or three slaves on board, without

Passports from the Autborities on the spot, On this head I would observe, first, that I know not

but that such may have been the intention of the High Contracting Parties, in order to destroy

the possibility of Coasting Vessels entering into collusion with Slave Vessels just returned from

the Coast of Africa; and secondly, that, in giving my opinion on the legality of a detention, I

do not feel myself entided, in any way, to discuss how far the provisions of the Treaty may be

severe, aud much less to swerve, from what I may judge, to be the obvious meaning of the

Articles. I am very willing, if my Colleagues desire it, that this matter should be submitted to the

consideration of our respective Governmeuts 5 but,.so far as J am concerned, | have not the least

authority to make alterations or modifications, that, in my opinion, can only be effected by the

High Contracting Parties.

J now. come to the question of the Slaves and Cargo, that, according to the evidence, have been

detained on board the. ‘* Mexicano.”- Article7 of the Regulations seems, at first sight, to be

applicable to this subject, when it stipulates, that, “¢ in the Case of the condemnation of a Vessel for

an unlawful voyage, she sball be declared lawful Prize, as well as her Cargo, of whatever deserip-

tion it may be, with the exception of the Slaves, who may be on board as objects of Commerce,

and who are therefore to be emancipated.” My Colleagues have said, that this voyage of the

Steam-boat was not unlawful, inasmuch as she was provided with a Licence to sail from Havannah

‘to Matanzas; but, as all the regular Slave-vessels condemned by this Commission haye had Li-

cences to sail for the Coast of Africa, and have rendered their voyages home unlawful. by taking

slaves on board, so the voyage of the ** Mexicano” became unlawful, so far as concerns this Mixed

Commission, the moment she took slaves on board without a proper Passport. If, therefore, this

Article 7 of the Regulations be held to apply to all Ships, whether regular Slave-Wessels or not,

the consequence would be, that the Cargo on board must be condenmed, and the Slaves, who may

have been on board ax objects of Commerce, must be emancipated. Now it appears, from the

evidence, that the Cargo. of the“ Mexicano” belonged, as might be supposed in a Passage-Vessel,

to the Passengers and other Persons, in no way connected with the illicit part of this transaction 5

and it moreover appears, that the slaves who have been detained were on board, not as objects of

Commerce, but merely for the.purpose of being transported from one Estate of their Master to

another, The result of this is, that, were we to hold Article 7 to apply to the ‘* Mexicano,”

the Cargo, consisting of the property of Individuals wholly unconcerned with the illicit part of

che transaction, must be condemned, aud the slaves, although the very cause of the detention, not
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being on board as objects of Commerce, must be returned to their Master—a consequence se
monstrous, and obviously unjust, that ] have no hesitation in stating my opinion, that Article 7
of the Regulations does not apply to all Vessels, but ouly to regular Slave-traders.
My view of the Regulations for the Mixed. Commission is as follows: Article 3 is a general

Article, authorizing them to decide on the legality or illegality ofall cases of detention whatsoever,

Article 4 then begins the particular Specification of the line of duty they are to pursue, with. re-
spect to the ordinary cases of the infraction of the Treaty, namely, r gular Slave-vessels, and the
following Ar‘icles, down to Article 10, relate fo the same department of illicit Slave-trade; that
is, not in any way-to such a peculiar and difficult Case as this of the <¢ Mexicano.”. It may then
be asked, what ought to be done, according to the Treaty; with the Cargo and Slaves detained on
board? My decided feeling on the subject is, that they ought to be’yeturned to their respective
Propr etors, for the Treaty does not in my humble opinion seem to have made any pravision for
this very“novel Case ot Detention, so far as the Cargo and Slaves are concerned. It is my duty
‘to'act upon the Treaty as I find it, and according to the interpretation, which FE may think its
Articles most obviously bear, not to attempt to remedy what may. possibly be its defects,

I conclude, therefore, in stating to my Colleagues, that, according to the Treaty, it.is my
opinion, that the ‘* Mexicano’* was justly detained, and therefore must be condemned, and that
she ought, as the Article 7 af the Regulations dues not-apply to such Vessels, to be placed
forthwith at the disposition of the two Governments, for them to take such future measures with
respect to her, as they may judge proper. With respect to the Cargo and Slaves on board, it is
my opinion, that they ought forthwith to be restored to their respective Proprietors.

(Signed) W.S. MACLEAY,

Eighth Enclosure in No. 89. (Translation)

Sentenceof the Mixed Commission in the Case of the “ Mexicano.”

HAVING considered the Proceedings of this Court, with respect to the detention of the Steam-
boat. **, Mexicano,” by the English Sloop-of-War ‘ Pylades,” having before us the Evidence
farnished by the different Parties, and likewise the Information given by his Excellency the Captain-
Genefal! in his Letter of yesterday, with referenceto the Municipal Regulations, and to the
-practice in--consequence of such Regulations, observed in cases ot slaves being passed fiom this

City to .the Estates of their Masters,or trom one Estate to another, such as was the particular

Case, with respect to this Steam-boat, in which were 20 Negroes belonging to the Corde de San
Fernando, who, after having kept them on his Sugar Ustate Jesus Maria, District of Guanabacoa;
was forwarding them, under the care of his Attorney; to his other Sugar Estate, called La Alcancia,
in the District of Matanzas, and considering that there is no proof that these Negroes were on
board the Steam-boat for the express purpose of the Traffick ; we, the Undeisigued, unanimously
de@lare, (the English Commissioner referring for the reasons of hig particular Opinion to the
Docyment which has been laid by him before the Court), that the said 20 Negroes ought to be.
restored to their Owner, and that the same rule ought to be adopted with respect to the cargo, of
every description, that might have. been on board the detained Vessel at the period of her detention.
Besides which, we, the Spanish Commissioners, have taken moreover into consideration, that

Article 7 of the Instructions annexed to the ‘Treaty, appears only applicable to Voyages be-
yond Sea, from-one Port to another of different Provirices, without being capable of an exten-
sion to Voyages only Coasting, and whightake’place by Sea, from one pointof she Island to
another’ only for greater convenience, since similar Journies may also be perfornied by Land ;

considering likewise, that, by means of such Coasting Voyages, Proprietors supply their Estates
with necessaries, while they also make them serve for the transportation of their crops, without
‘their being liable to examination, or any other formality; considering also, that; as the Steam-
boat was proceediig to her destination, under the confidence and good faith resulting from this
known practice, we, the said Spanish Commissioners, absolve. her forthwith, directing that.she
be freely delivered up to her Captain ; although it must be observed, that on this last head the

_ British Commissioner has dissented from the decision of ‘the majority of the Court, aud has stated
‘the reasons for his peculiar Opinion in the above-mentioned Document.

_ And finally, we, the Undersigned, unanimously declare, that, according to the Letter addressed
to the Mixed Commission by the Captor, there having been considered, on his part, to be cause,
at Jeast sufficient, to subject the Vessel to detention, he, the said Captor, is not responsible for the
damages that may have resulted from it. Let all those concerned be jnformed of this Sentence,
and let it be communicated Officially, with a Copy, to his Excelleucy the Captain-Géneral, in
order that it may be duly executed...

(Signed) CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS,
: RAFAEL DE QUESADA,

. : W. S, MACLEAY,
‘Havannah, 30th August 1826, RAFAEL GONSALEZ, Secretary.
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No. 90.

W.S. Macteay, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.~—(Received Dec. 8.)

Sra, Havannah, September 30, 1826.

ON the 29th ult., His Majesty’s Ship “ Aurora,”of 46 guns, commanded

by Captain C. J. Austen, when in the immediate vicinity of Santiago de

Guba, detained the Spanish Brigantine “ Nuevo Campeador,” alias the

“ Argus,” Juan Botel, Master, sailing at the time under Dutch Colours, and

having 263 slaves on board. On searching her, Captain Austen found that

she was provided not only with the usual Spanish, but also with a set of

Dutch Papers, to serve for her protection, as the Master stated, from South

American Privateers. The Vessel, however, clearly belonged to Santiago de

Cuba, and was declared by the Master to be bound to that Port from Old

Calabar, on the Coast of Africa, where she had taken on board 300 or 306

Negroes. About 40 of these had died on the passage from Africa, previous

to her being captured, and the healthof the 263 survivors was in such a

deplorable state, that the Surgeon of the “ Aurora ” urged the necessity of

immediately landing 36ofthe most sickly, as well on account of the impossi-

bility of these poor creatures being able to support the voyage to the Havan-

nah, as in order to preserve the lives of the rest. Captain Austen, after some

difficulty and delay, persuaded the Governor of Santiago de Cuba to take

eharge of these 36 Negroes, and to give a Receipt for them. The ‘Aurora”

then left that Port with the Brigantine, and the remaining Negroes, for the

purpose of having the Case adjudicated by the Mixed Commission here.

established.
While in the Harbour of Santiago de Cuba, Captain Austen was induced,

by motives of humanity, to permit the Master, who was also the oatensible

Owner of this Slave-vessel, to go on Shore, in order to visit his wife, who was

reported to be in a dying state, he giving his solemn promise to return;

instead of this, however, he took the opportunity of escaping from the City

into the interior, as did subsequently also the-greatest part of the Crew.

Captain Austen, nevertheless, brought the Mate and 5 others, out of a Crew con-

sisting, at the period of capture,of 21 men, into this Port, where he arrived

on the 20th instant, after having lost 8 of the Negroes by sickness, on the

passage from Cuba; 2 more died in this Harbour, so as to reduce the whole.

number of Negroes, delivered here into the care of the Person appointed by

ihe Captain-General to receive them, to 217, of whom 6 have died since the

disembarkation. Certificates of the deaths that took place during the time’

that the Negroes were under the charge of Captain Austen were delivered in

by him with the other Papers.

The Mixed Commission, consisting of the two Spanish Commissioners and

myself, having received the Affidavit of the Captor, and the Depositions of

the Mate, and 3 of the Crew of the Slave-vessel, issued, on the 27th instant, a.

Decree condemning the Vessel and Cargo, and emancipating the Slaves, as

well those landed at Santiago de Cuba, as those at the Havannah. Iam

truly happy to state, that this Case offered not the slightest difficulty, the

Spanish Commissioners manifesting throughout the greatest desire to act up

to the spirit ot the Treaty.

I have the honour to transmit a Copy of the Letter addressed by Captain

Austen to the Mixed Commission, and of his Declaration, with an Abstract

of the Evidence, and a Translation of the Decree of the Court. I likewise

forward Translations of the Letters addressed by the Mixed Commission to.

the Captain-General, on the subject of the. 36 Negroes left in Santiago de .

Cuba, and of the Answer returned by his Excellency, in which he undertakes

to securestheir freedom as decreed by the Mixed Commission.

It appears, by Memorandums endorsed on the Papers of this Slave-vessel,

that she was visited by the Boats of His Majesty’s Ship “‘ Maidstone,” at the

Mouth of the Calabar, on the 30th of June last. Oo

. I have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, — (Signed) W. S. MACLEAY.

Se. &e. &e.
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First Enclosure in No. 90.

Receipt of the Governor of Santiago de Cuba, for36 Negroes.

RECEIVED by me, Don Tsidore Barradas, Governor of Santiago de Cuba, at the earnest

request of Charles Jolin Austen, Esq. Captain of His Britannick Majesty's Ship ‘* Aurora,” the

under-meuticned slaves, belonging to the Brigantine Schooner ‘¢Nueve Campeador,”. captured by

that Ship, and brought into the Port of Santiago de Cuba in consequence of the very sickly

gtate of the slaves on hoard the said Schooner, which renders it absolutely vecessary they should

be landed, tur ‘the preservation of the health of the renntinder of the slaves on their passage ta the

Flavannah, to which Place she is bound tor adjudication, as also that these unfortunate and

wretched beings may receive the benefits of the Rites of the Church,

Men 23, women 6, boys 6, girl 1,—Total 36. (Signed) ISIDORE BARRADAS.

On Board His Britannick Majesty's Ship ** Aurora," September 4, 1826,

Second Enclosure in No, 90.

Captain Austen to the Mixed Commission.

His Britannicl Majesty’s Ship ‘© Aurora,”
Homounsniz GENyLEMBN, Havannah, September 20, 1826,

I BEG leave tu acquaint you with my arrival at this Port in His Majesty's Ship under my

commaud, with the « Nuevo Campeador,” Spanish Brigantine, detained off St. Jago de Cuba,
having at that time on board 263 siaves, from the Coast of Africa; for the further particulars of

which E beg leave co refer you to the Documents which | have delivered to the British Commis-
sioner, consisting of my Affidavits and other Papers, all ot which are endorsed by ine.
1 beg ieave to add, that Juan Botel, the Master of this Slave-vessel having represented to me

by. Letter (whilst we were lying in Santiago de Cuba, for the purpose of landing the sick Negroes
which, after a long Correspondence with the Governor of that Place, I was enabled to do), that
his Wife was dangerously ill, and’.arnestly entreated me to allow him to go on Shore to see her,
¥ was induced on the score of humanity to, allow him to do se, and have never seen him siace,
though I waited some hours in the Port for that purpose.

I have, &c.

(Signed) CHARLES JOHN AUSTEN.

The Members of: the MixedCommission.

 

~ : ¥Fhird Enclosure in No. 90.

Declarations: of the Captor.

I, CHARLES JOHN:AUSTEN, Captain of His Majesty’s Ship ** Aurora,” hereby declare,
that, on the29th day of August 1826, being in or about Latitude 19. 46, North, Longitude 75.
56. West, I detained the Brigantine Schooner ‘* Nuevo Campeador,” sailing under Spanish
Colours, but at the time of capture having Dutch Colours hoisted, grmed with | eight-pounder,

‘24 muskets, 4 pistels, commanded by Juan Botel, who declared her to be bound from the Coast
af Africa to St. Jago de-Cuba, with a Crew consisting of 21 men, whose names, as declared. by

them respectively,ave inserted in alist at foot hereof, and having on board 263 slaves, remaining,

from 300 said to have been taken on-board at Old Calabar, on the Coast of Africa, 37 baving-died,
on the passage to St, Jago de Cuba: they are enumerated as follows, viz :—

 

 

 

  

Healthy. Sickly. ,

‘Men wie ee | 156 | i

.Women - - - | 47 : 6

Boys - =~ | 37 |
Girls --.- . 44 , i i

Fotal - 254. 9.

 

¥ do further declare, that the said Schooner appeared to be seaworthy, and was-supplied with a

sufficient stock of water and provisions for the support of the Negroes and Crew for their

destined voyage to Saint Jago de Cuba, but completely inadequate for their sustenance from this
Place to. the- Havannak.
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Y do further declare, that. the state and condition of the health -of the slaves has been repre-

sented by the Surgeon to me, to be so generally bad, as, in his opinion, absolutely to require their

being Iunded so soon as it may be practicable to do so,
(Signed) CHARLES JOHN AUSTEN.

Witnesses, (Signed) J. V. D. Larcom, Senior Lieut. of HisMajesty's Ship ¢* Aurora.”

H. Srerrorp Nixon, 2d Lient. of His Majesty’s Ship “¢ Aurora.”

James Oszorne, Surgeon of His Majesty's Ship ‘* Aurora.”

[Here follows the List of the Crew ot the Schooner ‘ El Nuevo Campeador.’’]

1; CHARLES JOHN AUSTEN, Captain of His Britannick Majesty’s Ship ‘ Aurora,” do

forcher declare, that the Surgeon finding the state and condition of the health of the slaves so

generally bad, as, in his opinion, absolutely to require their being landed so soon as it may be

practicable to do so; and L further considering, that the time which must elapse before they

could have reached the Havannah, to which Place it is my intention to carry the Schooner for.

adjudication, would ia all human probability be attended with very fatal consequences to the livea

ofa large proportion of the Negroes ; I did, therefore, on the 4th day of September 1826, des-

embark the following 36 slaves at Santiago de Cuba, were they now remain. a

 

 

    

Healthy. Sickly.

Men+- --- = . se 23°

Women + - - ane 6

}Boys -- - >. “ 6
Girly «6 + =: “e 1

4 Total “¢ } 36 ;

(Signed) CHARLES JOUN AUSTEN,

Witnesses, (Signed) J. ¥. BD Lancem, Senior Lieut. of His Majesty's Ship «* Aurora,”

James Ossoane, Surgeon of His Majesty's Ship ** Aurora,”

acaba tind nasal nrlaanleieiole!

Fourth Enclosure in No. 90.

Abstract of Evidence.

HENRY SCHOTSZ, a Protestant, deposed, that he is a Native of Hamburgh, aged 32 Years,

unmarried, and by profession a Seaman ; that he served lately as Mate on board the Brigantine

Schooner ** El Nuevo Campeador;” that he arrived in this Port of the Havannah in the said

Brigantine, which hasbeen captured and carried in here by the English Frigate ‘‘ Aurora,” on

account of their. having been found on board a Cargo of Bozal Negroes, proceeding from the

Coast of Africa, and destined for the Province of Cuba; that this Vessel sailed from- Cuba, on the

30th May of this Year, the Deponent believing at the time, according to thé Declaratién of the

Master; that she was bound tothe Portuguese Island Del Principe ; but that instead of this the

Vessel proceeded straight to the River of Calabar, on tle said Coast, where the said Master coma

menced a ‘Lrafiick of Slaves, and obtained about 300, with whom he set sail for thesaid Province

of Santiago de Cuba, near whiclr Port the Scliooner was’ captured; that the Master and Owner

of the Schooner was Don Juan Botel, a Spaniard by birth, who was on bvard at the time the

Wessel was captured by the English Frigate; that the Deponent is ignorant where the said Botel

now is, because theCrew when taken were separated, the said Captain Botel being taken on board

the Frigate, and this Deponent. remaining on board the Schooner to take care of the Negroes ;

that he, this Deponent, can, however, state that, according to what he heard, the said Juan Borel

remaains on Shore.at Cuba; that-there were 263 Negroes on board at the time of tlie capture, the

- ethers having died on the passage fram Africa to Caba, and that of these 263, tlrere were 36 left

at Cuba:in the cate of the Government,

FRANCISCO:FRASQUET, a€atholick, deposed, that heis a Nativeof Barcelona, aged23Years,

unmasried, and by profession a Sailor; that he was lately in this capacity serving on board the Bri-

gantine Schooner ‘* Nuevo Campeador,”’ Captain Don Juan Botel; that he has arrived’ herein con»

‘sequence of the capture of the said Schooner, with a Cargo of Bozal Negroes on. board, made by

. His Britannick Majesty’s Frigate ‘¢ Aurora,” close off Santiago de Cuba ; that’ the said Cargo:of

Negroes was: taken on board.at Calabar; on. the Coast of Africa, where: 300: or 306- were

embarked; that the Deponent knows not how many ot-them were in existence at the momént of

the capture, because many had died on the passage, and the Deponent was not preseut: whe

they were numbered; that some of the captured Negroes remaipeil at Cuba sick, but how:many he

knows not ; that-the said Schooner was- fitted out and equipped: for the voyage to Calabar ; in the.

ntoresaid. City of Santiago de: Cuba, to- which. Port she* was’ proceeding at the: moment of

eapture ; that Captain Don Juan. Botel, according to’ what.this Deponent hag-heard, remained:‘at

- Cuba, the Captain of the Frigate having given him leave to go onShore tovisit his wife, who was
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sick, and that he knows nothing of him, since that time;that the Deponent, on leaving Cuba.for the

‘Coast of Alvica, was a common Sailor, but that the Boatswain, Pablo George, being taken so ill

that it was found necessary to leave him in Africa, the Deponent then succeeded to his-place,

and was performing the duties of it at the time of the capture; that D. José Chamorro, who is

inscribed on the List of the Crew as next in command to the Master and Mate, remains likewise

in Cuba unwell, but that the Deponent knows not how he got on Shore.

LORENZO CITTERICH, a Catholick, deposed, that he is a Native of Venice, aged 34 Years,

‘unmarried, and by trade a Sailor, that he came to the Havannah in the English Frigate

«© Aurora,” which lately arrived in this Port, in consequence of having captured the Brigantine

‘Schooner ‘* El Nuevo Campeador,”” in which this Deponent was a sailor; that the said Schooner

was captured close offthe Morro ofSantiago deCuba,on account of there having been found on, board

a Cargo of Bozal Negroes; that the Vessel was then proceeding from Old Calabar, on, the Coast

of Africa, where she had taken ou board 300 or 306 Negroes, of whom 36 or 37 may perbaps

‘have died previously to the capture, that Don oan Botel was the Owner, Cuptain, and Master of

the said Schooner, and the Mate was Henrique Schotsz, who is now in prison with the Deponent,

that the said Vessel was fitted out for the Voyage to Africa in Santiagg de Cuba; that the Master,

Don Juan Botel, remained in Cuba, although this Deponent does not positively know the cause of

his having been allowed to land, any further than that he heard it was on account of sickness; that

PD. José Chamurro, whe was one of the Crew captured on board the Schooner, remained also at

Cuba, but the Deponent knows not how he contrived to get on Shore, because the said Chamarro

semained on board the Schooner, and the Deponent was taken on board the Frigate; that

Estevan Rodriquez, who is inscribed in the List of the Crew as Cook pf the Schooner, was. never

erployed in that capacity, the Deponent being the only Cook, from the moment of leaving

the Port of Santiago de Cuba; that.the said Rodriquez remains in ‘Cuba, but how or why this

Depenevt knows not, and that Pablo George, the Boatswain, remaivedat Calabar sick.

LOUIS ROLLE, a man ot Colour, and a Catholick, deposed, that he isa Native ot Martinique,

caged 26 Years, and by trade a Carpenter, that on Wednesday last he arrived in this Port on

board the Brigantine Schooner *‘ El Nuevo Campeador,” captured by the English Frigate

** Aurora,” opposite to the Morro of Santiago de Cuba; that the cause.of the said capture was 4

‘Cargo of Bozal Negroes having been found on board; that the Vessel at the time was proceeding

‘toon Calabar on the Coast of Africa, which Place she left with 300 or more Negroes, of whom,

- £60 or more were in existence at the period of her detention, the others having died on

the’passage ; that this- Deponent was Carpenter on board the Schooner; that the Master of the

Vessel was Juan Botel, and that the Deponent is ignorant of there being any other Owner ; that

the said Botel and José Chamorro remained at Cuba, the former because his wife was sick, and the

other he knows not on what account ; and finally, that Pablo George was left sick at Calabar.

Fifth Enclosure in No. 90. (Translation.)”

Sentence.

. . Havannah, September. 27, 1826,

HAVING takeninto. consideration. the Judicial Proceedings consequent upon the detention of
“the Spanish Merchant Schooner ‘* Nuevo Campeador,” Don Juan Botel, Captain, Master, and
‘Owner, with a Cargo of 263 Negroes on board at the time of her detention, which was effected in
the immediate Vicinity of the Port of Santiago de Cuba, by the English Frigate ‘ Auyora,”
commanded by Captain Charles John Austen; and having found; according to-these proceedings,
that, althoagh the Declaration of the aforesaid Don Juan Botel is wanting, owing to this Person’s
escape in the City of Santiago, it is nevertheless most cowpletely proved by the Declarations of
the several Witnesses.examined, and by the Papers of the Vessel, that the said Schooner having

sailed from the aforesaid Port, in the Month of April in the present Year, with Papers and Cargo,

as if for the Portuguese Island ‘© Ei Principe,” proceeded straight to Old Calabar, on the-Coast

of Africa, where she tock on board 300. or 396 slaves, of whom so many died on her passage.
to Guba as to redue the number to 268, of which last number, according to the Evidence of the
Captor and the Re.cipt of the Governor of theCity of Santiago de Cuba,’ produced by the said
Captor, 36 were left in the said City, on account of their extreme sickness, and 10, as appears by.
the Capror’s Certificate, subsequently died. We do now, with due regard to the merits of the
‘Cause, and according to the usual brief and summary modeof proceeding which has been adopted by
the Mixed Conunission in all such Cases, when the truth has béen made manifest, hereby declare,
that the capture of the said Schooner *f Nuevo Campeador,” and of the 263 Negroes found onf
board, is good and legal, and that the said Schooner, ber tackle, ‘apparel, and whatever she may
contain, are subject and liable to confiscation, with the exception of the aforesaid Negroes, who
‘are. Jeclared to be freed from all slavery and captivity: It is accordingly hereby directed that,

with respect.to the said Vessel, and whatever belongs to her, a Valuation shall be made thereof
ander Oath, by the Principal Masters of theRoyal Arsenal, who shall give in a proper Voucher

to this effect, and that she shall be exposed to publick auction, in the presence of the Royal
Notary Don José Ratael de Meja, in order that, being disposed of to the highestbidder, in the

Auction-Roam of Don Antonio Galea, the proceeds may be applied ¢o the benefit of the
two. Governments, the said Vessel being forthe’ present, placed in deposit with Don Jayme
Andreu, who shall likewise swear faithfully to perform his duty, and shall-receive her from the
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the Captor, according to formal Inventory; proceeding, moreover, without loss of fime, to de-

liver to such of the satd Negroes as are in this City, their Certificate of Emancipation, by the means,

as is customary, of the Deputy Secretary, Don Rafael Gonzales Barranco, who is appointed to per-

form that duty. An official Letter, with a certified Copy of tle Sentence, shall be forthwith ad-

dressed to his Excellency the Captain-General, in order that he may take the proper measuresfor

that purpose ; and with respect to those Negroes who are left in Santiago de Cuba, as the liberiy

to which they are entitled, ought not to be delayed, his Excellency shall be further requested to

appoint in that Citya Person in whom be has confidence, or to direct the Gover: or of it to appoint

such a Person to deliver to them also their respective Certificates of Liberty, according to the form

that has hitherto been adopted, For which purpose there shall be transmitted to Cuba, through

the medium of his Excellency, thé necessary printed Certificates, duly legalized by the Mixed Com-

mission, baving blanks to be filled up with the descriptions and peculiar marks of each Person, so as

‘to secure their identity, and being marked from No.1 to No. 36 inclusive, care being taken to

suspend to the neck of each Negro, asinall piece of tin-plate, corresponding with the number of the

Certificate, and also to make out accurately a separate account of all that is written on each of

these Certificates, so that it may be transmitted to this Mixed Commission, and form part of the

Book in which all such accounts are inserted, while a Duplicate, or certified Copy, of this Docu-

ment shall be left in Santiago de Cuba, for the purpose of clearing up any doubt that may in

future occur; and, according to the mode of proceeding that has beenpractised in all such mat-

ters, the said-Negroes are placed at the disposal of the aforesaid Governor of Cuba, for him to

dispose of them during the years of their apprenticeship, in conformity to the Instructions which

his Excellency will communicate to him. . .

(Signed) W. 8. MACLEAY.
CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS.
RAFAEL DE QUESADA.
RAFAEL GONZALES, Secretary.

 

Sixth Enclosure in No. 90. (Translation)

The Mixed Commission to the Captain- General.

‘Str, Havannah, September 27, 1826.

BY the accompanying certified Copy, your Excellency will be made acquainted with the Defini-

tive Senterice issued by this Mixed Commission, in the Case of the Capture of the Brigantine

Schooner ** Nuevo Campeador,” with a Cargo ot Bozal Negroes, by the English Frigate *¢ Aurora,”

which Sentence declares the detention ot this Vessel to be good and legal, and the said Negroes

- to be free from all slavery and captivity.
Among the Negroes found on board, there were 36 who, on account of ill-health, were left at

Santiago de Cuba, in charge of the Governor of that Place, according to the Receipt given by bim

to the English Captain, of which a Copyis herewith enclosed to your Excellency. In consequence

of what has been determined in the said Definitive Sentence, the Mixed Commission now proceeds

to deliver the Certificates of Emancipation, to those Negroes who have been brought into this City,

placing them forthwith at the disposal of your Excellency in the customary form, Not being able

to do the same for those Negroes who were léft at Santiago de Cuba, where the Commission has

no Agent whatever, the Undersigned have deemed it their duty to request your Excellency, in this

novel Case, to assist them in carrying the above-mentioned Sentence into effect, so that the Ne-

groes left at Santiago may not have the important benefit of their liberty retarded. For this pur-

pose the Undersigned herewith transmit and place at the disposal of your Excellency, 36 blank

Certificates of Liberty, with 4-others, to be used in the event of any error in the former rendering

them necessary. - .
- God preserve your Excellency manyYears,

(Signed) W. 8. MACLEAY. o
CLAUDIO MARTINEZ DE PINILLOS.

 

His Excellency the Captain-General. RAFAEL DE QUESADA.

Seventh Enclosure in No. 90. - {Translation.)

The Captain- General to the Mized Commission.

GznTLeMEN, Havannah, September 29, 1826.

WITH your Official Letter of the 27th instant,I received a certified Copy of the Definitive

‘Sentence pronounced by you in the Case of the capture lately made of the Spanish Merchant

Brigantine Schooner ‘* Nuevo Campeador,” with a Cargo of Bozal Negroes, and also 40 Certifi-

cates of Emancipation, duly signed by you, and numbered from | to 36, with 4 more, which 40

Certificates are destined for 36 Negroes Jeft in Cuba, and belonging to the said Cargo. Entering

into the anxiety expressed by you that I should, on my part, co-operate so.as to give the afore-

said Sentence its full and proper effect with respect to the said 36 Negroes, and, in order that the

benefit of their liberty may suffer no delay, I have acceded to your request, with the advice « f the

- Auditor of War, aud, in consequence, now transmit to the Governor of Santiagode Cuba the  
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Appointment of a Person in whomT have full confidence, and whose dutyit willbe to deliver the

said Certifieates, and to carry the other parts of the Sentence into effect. To this Person 1 trans~

mit the above-mentioned Certificates, with 80 Copies of Forms for registering the descriptions of

the said Negroes, and the like number of Conditions, all signed by me; so that every necessary

precaution and measure may be taken tor the dispatch of this affair, and for the disposal of the

Negroes, in the usual manner. I have also, at the same time, directed him to seud me, with the

least possible delay, the particular kind of Register mentioned in the said Sentence, which, as soon

as I receive, J shall, according to your request, transmit to you for the object you specify.

God preserve you many Years.

(Signed) FRAN®, DIONISIO VIVES.

The Members of the Mixed Commission.

 

No. 91...

W. S. Macleay, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received December 8.)

Sir, Havannah, October 9, 1826.

On the 3d instant, the Spanish Brig “ San Pedro,” alias “ Currutaco,”

Juan Coll, Master, which Vessel, as reported to you in the Despatch of His

Majesty’s Commissioners of the 11th of March of this Year, sailed from this

Port on the 26th of February last, arrived here from the Coast of Africa, in

ballast, atter having landed a Cargo of Negroes on the Coast, to theWestward

of the Island.
L have not been able to learn the number of Negroes she disembarked.

I have the honour to be, &e.

: (Signed) W. S. MACLEAY.

The Right Hon. George Canning,
— «&e. &e. &e.

 

No. 92.

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 20, 1826.

IN compliance with the desire which you have expressed, that you should

have some assistance for carrying on the details ofyour Correspondence with

this Office, Mr. Secretary Canning has selected Mr Richard Belgrave Jack-

son, the bearer of this Letter, to be Clerk to His Majesty’s Commissioners

at the Havannah.-

You will employ Mr. Jackson accordingly, in the business of the British

Commissioners, in the manner in which he may be made most useful to the

purpose for which he is sent out. .

Mr. Canning has allowed to Mr. Jackson a Sum, by way of Outfit, which

has been paid to hitn here; and he has assigned to him a Salary of Z£300, a

Year, to commence from the 10th of October 1826, and to be augmented

every Year, at the rate of £25. a Year, until the Salary shall reach the

amount of s£500.a Year. And Mr. Canning has been pleased to hold out

to Mr. Jackson the prospect, that, provided he shall conduct himself to the

satisfaction of his Superiors, a Pension, not exceeding the half of his Salary,

may be granted to him after 12 Years actual service at the Havannah.

I.am directed, by Mr. Canning, to acquaint you with this arrangement,

and to request that you will pay to Mr. Jackson the Salary assigned to him,

in Quarterly Payments, as it shall become due, including the same in the

Contingent Accounts of the Commission, and drawing for itupon the Agent

to the Commission, according to the Account and Vouchers which you will

sendin, with a Letter to me on the occasion.
Tam, &c.

His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) JOSEPH PLANTA, Jun.
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No. 93.

Mr. Secretary. Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 30, 1826.() 2 I

YOUR several Despatches, to the 9th of October inclusive, have been

duly received.
I transmit to you, for your information, the accompanying Copy of a

Despatch*, which I addressed to His Majesty’s Envoy at Madrid on the 10th

ult., upon the subject of the violations of the Treaty, as stated in your Des-

patches of the 9th of August, and of the 2d, 4th, and 11th of September

last.
You will continue to watch over and report to me the particulars of every

transaction which may come under your knowledge, connected with illegal
Slave-trade upon the Coast of Cuba.

Lam, &c.

His Majesty's Commissioners. . (Signed) ‘GEORGE CANNING.

* Spe Class B.
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No. 94.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—
(Received April 10, 1826.)

Sir, Rio de Janeiro, December 28, 1825.

‘WE have the honour to acquaint you, for your information, that His
Imperial Majesty has been pleased to appoint Senhor Joao Carneiro de
Campos to the Office of Commissary Judge of the Mixed Commissicn here
established, which Office became vacant on the confirmation of Senhor
José Silvestre Ribello to the Appointment of Brazilian Chargé d’Affaires to
The United States of North America; and that our new Colleague, after

taking the prescribed Oath before the Chancellor, was duly installed on
. the 7th mstant. We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY HAYNE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, ALEX. CUNNINGHAM.

&e. &e. Se.

No. 95.

Els Majesty’s Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—

( Received April 10, 1826.)

Sir, Rio de Janeiro, December 30, 1825.

“SHORTLY after the signing of the new Slave-trade Treaty with the
Brazilian Government, by Sir Charles Stuart, we were enabled tully to
satisfy ourselves of the truth of suspicions, which we had entertained for some
time, not only of irregularities, but actual malversation, on the part of some
of those Persons who had been appointed to superintend the care and well-
-being of those Negroes who have received their Emancipation, trom the
Mixed Commission here established, under the late Convention with
Portugal.

Having ascertained that Sn". Manuel Joaq™. Gliz. de Magelloens, the
_ present Curador of the Emancipated Negroes, had been collecting money in
the capacity of Curador, under the semblance of authority from the Trea-
surer, from Persons to whom some of the emancipated Negroes had been
apprenticed, under the condition of an annual payment for their labour, which
sum was to be placed in deposit, to be divided amongst them, at the expira-
tion of their term of servitude; that he had made this collection without the
authority of the Treasurer, and had applied it to other uses than those pre-
scribed by the Alvara. We felt it to be our duty, after taking pains to satisfy
ourselves of the facts, to call the attention of His Imperial Majesty’s Govern-
ment to a Transaction, in itself fraudulent and disgraceful, as well as prejudi-
cial to the emancipated Negroes, to remain under the superintendence of a
Man, who, if be could be guilty of such a crime, might be supposed to be fully
equal to committing the more heinous one, of selling those into slavery who
had been emancipated atid placed under his especial superintendence, which
abominable crime is said to have been practised, though we have not been
able to obtain proof of a single instance of it.
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To call the attention of His Imperial Majesty’s Government to this Case,

with the greatest chance of success, knowing that Sir Charles Stuart was in

daily intercourse with the Ministers of State, we stated, verbally, the circum-

stances to bis Excellency, with a view to his urging His ImperialMajesty’s

Ministers to an investigation into them, to which Sir Charles listened with

readiness, and requested us to write to him a Letter on the subject, a Copy of

which we have the honour to enclose for your information.

We earnestly hope, Sir, for the sake of the emancipated Negroes, that the

system ofsuperintendence of their welfare, which has hitherto been pursued,

may undergo some reform, at least periodical investigation, or any other checks

that’ can be devised to prevent a recurrence of the evils complained of,

which, since a period has at length been happily fixed, for the entire and

complete abolition of the Traffick, it will, doubtless, tend greatly to enhance

the value of those Slaves already imported and, therefore, hold out greater

temptation to the evil-disposed of re-enslaving those who have received their

Manumisgion.
The system prescribed by the Alvara of 26th January 1818, would, we con-

ceive, in a great measure, meet its object, provided a reliance could be placed

on the probity of those employed under it; and, if we might be allowed

the liberty of suggest'ng an Amendment thereto, it would be, that the

Curador should be obliged to keep a regular and accurate Register of all the

emancipated Negroes, together with the names and address of all those who

have hired them, who should be made responsible for them under a penalty,

and answer for their appearance before their Superintendent twice a Year; and

to give proof of death, or absconding, if either should have happened since

the last Inspection, and the Superintendent himself should be obliged Halt-

Yearly, and always when called upon, to make his Report to the Juiz da

Camarca, for the time being, or to some other Authority, in order to insure

the fulfilment of his duty, and have a check upon his integrity; which, in

our humble opinion, would greatly tend to prevent the abuses now said

to be practised. We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) HENRY HAYNE.

The Right Hon. George Canning, ALEX. CUNNINGHAM.

&e. &e. &e.

 

Enclosure in No. 95.

The British Commissioners to Sir Charles Stuart.

Sir,
” Rio de Janeiro, November 19, 1825.

FINDING, by the Slave-trade Convention between His Britannick Majesty and His Majesty

The Emperor of Brazil, signed by your Excellency on the 18th October last,* that the Stipulations

relative to the treatment of Emancipated Negroes, are similar to those contained in the Jate

Convention with Portugal, under which we have been acting, we feel it to be a duty incumbent

upon us to state to your Excellency, that some abuses aud malversations. in that -particular, bave,

of late, come within our observation, to enable your Excellency, if you should think fit, to draw

the attention of His Imperial Majesty's Government to the provisions contained in the 5th Article

of the Alvara of the 26th January 1818, with a view of rectifying the existing perversion of them.

Report says, that many of the emancipated Negroes have been sold as Slaves; of this we have

no proof, but, since those who hired them have never been called upon to produce them before any.

competent Authority, such abuse is practicable.

The majority of the Negroes who have been emancipated by the Mixed Commission, were

hired out to Individuals, who were to support, clothe, and instruct them, and pay a certain sum

annually, which sum was to be deposited in a coffer with three keys, one to be kept by the

Juiz da Camarca, another by the Curador, and the third by a Treasurer, and at the expiration of

the fixed term of the Free Negroes’ servitude, the balance was tobe distributed among them. It is

in this Department, Sir, that investigation is more especially necessary, as the Treasurer takes no-

steps to collect annually the amount due for the Negroes’ services ; and we have certain informa-

tion that Manoel Joaqm. Gliz. de Magelloens, the Curadur, has gone about with a List, as

complete as he could make it, of those who are in possession of the Negroes hired out, whose interests

and comforts he is especially appointed to watch, and has received the amount due, giving

a receipt in his own name ; which amount the Treasurer declares he has never received, and that

_® Not subsequently ratified.”
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the Curador had no authority from him to-collect anymoney on account of the emancipated
“Negroes. ’

This is an abuse which your Excellency will perceive requires to be checked, and investigation
on the part of His Imperial Majesty’s Government, may possibly throw light upon others, which

 

-are not within our reach. We have the honour to be, &c.
, (Signed) HENRY HAYN®,

The Right Hon. Sir Charles Stuart, G. CB. ALEX. CUNNINGHAM.
&e. &e. &e.

No. 96.

Elis Majesty's Commissioners to Mr.Secretary Canning—|{ReceivedApril 10.)

Sir, Rio de Janeiro, January 10, 1826.

AGREEBLY to your Instructions, to forward to you Half- Yearly Reports
-of the Cases which are brought to us for Adjudication, we have the honour
‘to inform you, that no Case has been Jaid before us since our Report of July
‘last. We have the honour to be, &e.

(Signed) “HENRY HAYNE. .
Lhe Right Eon. George Canning, _ ALEX. CUNNINGHAM.

&e. Se. &e.

 

No. 97.

Mr. Sceretary Canning to Ehs Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign. Office, Afay 16, 1826..

I HAVE reccived your Despatch of the 30th of December last, suggesting
some Regulations for the amelioration of the treatment of emancipated Slaves.

I cordially concur in the object of these suggestions. I beg that you will
take an early opportunity of conferring upon the point with your Brazilian
Colleagues, and of making a joint representation on the subject, through the

_ proper Channel, to the Brazilian Government.
You will press upon the Ministers of Brazil the adoption of Regulations

better suited than the present appear to be, to their beneficent purpose; and,
whenever such Regulations shall have been adopted, you will have the good-
ness to give, to the due execution of the new System, the benefit of your super-
intendence, reporting to me from time to time the result thereof.

: Tam, &e.
iis Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING,

 

No.98.

Lfis Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. SecretaryCanning —(Received NVou.28.)

Sir, Rio de Janeiro, July 30, 1826.

WE have. the honour to acknowledge the receipt, on the 20th ultimo, of
two Copies of Papers, marked A and B, relative to the Slave-trade, which
were presented to both Houses of Parliament, in the course of the last Ses-
sion. We have the honour tobe, &c.

. (Signed) HENRY HAYNE.
The Right Hon. George Canning, ALEX. CUNNINGHAM.

&e. Se. &e.
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No. 99..

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.--(Received Nov. 28.)

Siz, Rio de Janeiro, August 1, 1826.

WE, have the honour to inform you, that during the Half Year, ending on

the Ist of July last, no Slave-vessel was brought in here for Adjudication.

We were unable to forward this Report, at the usual time, owing to Mr.

Hayne’s being, at that period, dangerously ill of an inflammatory bilious

fever; and Mr. Cunningham laid up, in consequenceof a severe fall from his

horse ; but we are happy to say that we are now both convalescent ; and have

the nonour to be, &c.

 

(Signed) | HENRY HAYNE.
The Right Hon. George Canning. ALEX. CUNNINGHAM.

&e. &e. &e.

No. 109.

Henry Hayne, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—{Reecived Dec. 16.)

Sir, Rio de Janeiro, October 26, 1826.

IT is with great regret that I feel myself under the necessity of earnestly

soliciting your kind interposition, to obtain for me His Majesty’s gracious

_ permission to return to England, for the purpose of re-establishing my health,

which hasofJate suffered materially from the effects of the Climate.

I am at this moment ina great state of debility, the effects of a relapse,

after only six weeks convalescence from my late serious illness.

I had hoped that I should have been able to have remained at my Post

until the final abolition of the Slave-trade in this Country, which I still do

not altogether despair of accomplishing, provided the change of air to the

neighbouring Mountains answers the desired end, and it is only on its failure,

and its being deemed highly expedient by the Faculty for me to remove to ~

anotber Climate, that I should think of availing myself of the leave of absence

I now solicit. ;

On this plea, Sir, may I entreat that such conditional leave may be for-

warded to me, as will warrant my quitting my Post for the recovery of my

health, I have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) HENRY HAYNE.

&e. &e. Se.

 

No. 101.

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to Henry Hayne, Esq.

‘Sir, Foreign Office, December 16, 1826.

MR. SECRETARY CANNING has received your Letter of the 26th of

October 1826, and I am directed by him to state to you, that, under the.

circumstances which yor mention, with respect to your health, Mr. Canning

consents to your having a conditional leave to return to England for a period

of six Months, if the state of your health should absolutely require it.
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You are aware that your Salary will be diminished by one half during

your absence, and that the period of your absence cannot be counted as

“actual service at your Post,” in consideration of which a Pension may

eventually be granted to you.

 

J am, &c.

Henry Hayne, Esq. (Signed) JOSEPH PLANTA, Juy.

No. 102.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 30, 1826.

_ YOUR several Despatches, to the 26th of October last inclusive, have been

duly received.
I am, &e.

His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

,
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No. 103.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, March 13, 1826.

WITH reference to the Treaty with the Netherlands, for the prevention

of the Slave-trade, I have to acquaint you, that, by a Communication.

received this day from the Admiralty, it appears that the Instructions

referred to in the said Treaty, have been issued to the following Ships and

Vessels of His Majesty’s Navy :—

Names, Guns. Commanders.

Hussar vavcccccveee AGB wcveee G. Harris:

Brawen veccsevencee 26...... G. W. Willes.

Primrose veescences 18 ...6.. Oct. V. Vernon.

Redwing..cscccevees 18...... D.C. Clavering.

Dispatch sevvre oes 18 ...eee Robt. W. Parsons.

Ferret couccccveccce WDveece « Wm. Hobson.

Conflict .....65 sence 12 ..seee Lieut. J. Chrystie.

And that the Instructions which had been issued to His Majesty’s Ships

« Pyramus,” “« Ariadne,” “ Bann,” “ Victor,” “ Ringdove,” and “ Grecian”

have been recalled and cancelled.
I am, &c.

His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

 

No. 104.

His Majesty?sCommissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning —(ReceivedAprii2\.)

Sir, Surinam, January 18, 1826.

IN reference to the Correspondence reported in Class B. of the Papers laid

before Parliament for the Year 1825, page 81, on the subject of the insuffi-

ciency of the Dutch Naval Force on this Station, to prevent the fraudulent

importation of Slaves, and the promise therein expressed by the Minister of

His Netherlands Majesty, that measures should be adopted-in order constantly

to maintain at Surinam a Cruizer, in- aid of one of the Dutch Ships-of-War

stationed in the West Indies; we feel it our duty to acquaint you, that there

has been no Dutch Vessel-of-War here of any description since the 3d of

July last, when the “ Mercure ” Brig. (Captain Muller) left this Port for

Curagoa, and that we still continue without one, notwithstanding the frequent

prevalence. of reports of Slave-ships being off the Coast, and effecting illicit

debarkations, but of which it is almost impossible to obtain any conclusive

evidence.
. We have the honour to be, &c. -

(Signed) CHRIS. EDWD. LEFROY,

The Right Hon. George Canning, J. H. LANCE.
c ooec. &e.
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No. 105.

Mr. Secretary Ganning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, . Foreign Office, June 28, 1826.

I TRANSMITTED your Despatch of the 18th of January last, on the
want of Dutch Cruizers at Surinam, to His Majesty’s Ambassador in the
Netherlands, with Instructions to represent to the Netherlands Government

the circumstances stated in your Communication, and I now send to you
the Copy of the Answer from the Netherlands Minister,* by which it
appears that, since the Month of February last, the Dutch Brig-of-War “ De
Valk,” has been cruizing upon that Station; and that measures have been
taken to ensure in future the regular performance of this Service.

Lam, &e.
His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

® See Class B,

 

No. 106.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GFNTLEMEN, Foreign Office, July 8, 1826.

IT SEND to you, for the information of yourselves, and pf the other Gentle-
men composing the Board of Commission whereof you are Members, the
accompanying Copy ofaNote, which I have received from His Netherlands
Majesty’s Chargé d’Affaires at this.Court, by which it appears that the Nether-
Jands Brig-of-War “ Panther,” destined for the West Indies, will be fur-
nished with a Copy of the Treaty of the 4th of May 1818, and the Documents
annexed thereto, for the suppression of the Traffick in Slaves.

Iam, &c.
(Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

His Majesty's Commissioners.

. No. 107.

HisMaesty’s Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Tuly 15.)

Sir, Surinam, May 15, 1826.

WE have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch dated
March 13, 1826, acquainting us, that the Instructions referred to in the
Treaty with the Netherlands for the prevention of the Slave-trade, have been
issued to the followingShips and Vessels of His Majesty’s Navy :—

Names. Guns. Commanders.

USSOP veocivecasace 7) G. Harris.
Brazen vocvecceccee 26 ...... G. W. Willes:
Primrose ..... aeees 1B..00., Oct. V. Vernon.
Redwing. ...... ce... 18 .cseue D.C. Clavering.
Dispatch ....... wee WB. R. W. Parsons.
Perret. vce vecccecees TO... W. Hobson.
Conflict wo... ce ccees 12...... Lieut. J. Chrystie.

And that the Instructions which had been issued to His Majesty’s Ships
yramus,” “ Ariadne,’ “ Bann,” “ FVietor,? Ringdove,” and © Grecian,”

have been recalled.and cancelled.

ce

Wehave the honour to be, &e.
— (Signed) . CHRIS. EDWD. LEFROY.

the Right Hon. George Canning, — J. H. LANCE, ©
&e. &e. &e.
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No. 108.

Mr. Secretary Canning to HisMajesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 5, 1826.

I HAVE to acquaint you, for your information, and that of the other

Gentlemen composing the Mixed Board of Commission, of which you are

Members, that it appears, by a Communication from the Admiralty, under

date of the 25th ult. that the Instructions referred to in the Treaty ‘between

Great Britain and the Netherlands, for the suppression of the Slave-trade,

have been issued to the following Ships and Vessels of His Majesty's Navy =

Natnes. Guns. Commanders,

Druid ..... o+..46........ Lieut. Chambers.

North Star .c.os. QB...eees . Capt. Arabin.

 Scylla weseecves 1S. .cceees Wm. Hobson.

Pyladess....0+04: US. .eceeee G. V. Jackson.

And that those Instructions have been recalled and cancelled which had

been issued to His Majesty’s Ships “ Hussar,” “ Dartmouth,” “ Dispatch,”

-& Ferret,” and “ Swinger.” Tam, &c. oS

. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

His Majesty's Commissioners.
,

 

No. 109.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning.—(Received Dec. 18.)

(Extract.) a Surinam, September 22, 1826,

WE have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch, dated

May 6, 1826, accompanied by the Papers, marked A. and B., relative to the

Slave-trade, which were presented to both Houses of Parliament by His

Majesty’s Command, in the course of the last Session,

ee (Signed) CHRIS. EDWD.LEFROY.

The Right Hon. George Canning. J. H. LANCE.

&e. &. &e
 

No. 110.

HisMajesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canmng—-(ReceivedDec.18.)

Sir, : Surinam, September 25, 1826,

WEbeg leave to enclose, for your perusal, threePublickDocuments regarding

the Registration of Slaves in this Colony, with which we have been favoured

‘by his Excellency the Governor, Numbered 1, 2 and 3, with their respective

‘Pranslations, of which the following isa summary +—

No. 1, is a Publication of his Excellency, dated the 1gth. April 1826, for

the purpose of putting in force a Decree of His Majesty The King of the

Netherlands, dated 4th January 1826, whereby itis decreed :— .

Arr. 1.—That the present Registers shall be enlarged by an additional

column, in which the increase and decrease of all Slaves is to be noted.

Art. 2.—Every Proprietor to give in, upen oath, awritten Declaration of

every increase and decrease of his slaves. ; 8 .

Art. 3.—The same to be given in within 3 days in Paramaribo, and

within 14 days elsewhere, after they respectivelyhappen.
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Arr. 4.—In default of so doing a Penalty is incurred of from 100 to 500
guilders,

Art. 5.—In the increase or decrease of the Slaves of any Person, by sale or
purchase, the Declaration to contain the names ofboth Vender and Purchaser.

Art. 6.—A Receipt to be given by the Publick Officer on the fulfilling of
Articles 2 and 9.

Art. 7.—The aforesaid Declarations, as soon as given in, to be noted in the
additional column of the Yearly Registers, designated in Article 1.

Art. 8,—In case of increase or decrease of hired Slaves, the Person hiring
must give notice to the Owner, within 24 hours if both reside in Paramaribo,
and within 8 days if both, or either of them, reside elsewhere, under a
Penalty of 25 guilders for each day’s neglect.

Art. 9.—A written Declaration ot all Bonds, or other Instruments affecting
Slaves to be given in at the Capitation Tax Office, under pain of being held
void.
Art. 10.—No name not known at the Capitation Tax Office, to be

accepted without 2 known Securities, who shall be personally answerable for
the contents of the Declaration, on neglect of which regulation the Registrar
to be personally answerable.
_Art. 11.—No Publick Officer to pass or execute any deed, without ascer-

taining thatthe Slaves thereby affected are registered, under pain of dismissal-
from his Office, and the act being void.

Art. 12-and 13.—No Slaves to be sold or hired out at publick vendue,
without an extract from the Registers, under pain of the Vendue-Master
being dismissed from his Office.
‘Art. 14.—No Slave to be freed, unless registered.
Art. 15.—No Sentence to be passed, or Decision made, by any Publick

Authority, without ascertaining that the Slaves thereby affected are registered,
under pain of such decision being held void.

Art. 16.—The Fiscal to have the superintendence of the Registry Office.
Art. 17.—On discovery of any fraud, the offenders to be dealt with accord-

ing to Article 6 of the Decree of 18th August 1823.
Any 18.—When any thing appears unsatisfactory, the Owner to be sum-

moned.
Axrt. 19.—Ifconvicted, the Slaves are forfeited to the Government, and the

Owner dealt with according to Article 4.
Art. 20.—If not able to pay a fine, he is to be imprisoned from 1 to6

Months.
Art. 21.—These alterations not to affect the Publication of the 18th

August 1823, concerning the Capitation Tax.
Art. 22.—All Articles affecting Owners to be applicable to their Attornies.
Art. 23.—Extracts trom the Registers to be furnished to every Person

requesting the same, on payment of the Stamp-duty, and f10. if the number of
Slaves therein mentioned be under 20, and £20. if above 20, the said fees to be
for the benefit of the. Registrar.
Arr. 24.—-A Registrar to be appointed.
Art. 25.—He can neither own nor administer Estates.
Art. 26.—-He is bound under pain of dismissal, to give notice to the Fiscal

of all frauds or neglects, or even suspicion thereof.
Arr. 27.—He must attend at his Office from 8 to 11 a. M., and from 2 to 4

P.M. every day, Sundays and Holydays excepted, and he must be under the
eontroul of the Book-keeper General.
Art. 28.—When the Registrar is byany cause detained from his Office

the Bovk-keeper General, with the Governor's sanction, to appoint a Person to
officiate.

Art. 29.—The Book-keeper General to examine, verify, sign, and close the
Registers at the end of every Year.
Art. 30.—The Inhabitants of Nickerie to give in their Returns within 3

days to the Landrost or Drost of that District, whois to forward them by the
first opportunity to the Book-keeper General.
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Apr. 31.—One third of all fines to go to the Colony Chest, one third to the

Fiscal’s Gffice, and one third to the Registrar. ,

Art. 32.—Lhis Decree to be in force from the Ist of this Month, and

Returns of every increase and decrease of Slaves from that time to the day

the Lists are given in, to be made within 14 days for Paramaribo, and within

1 Month for the other parts of the Colony, to be reckoned-from the Publica~

tion of the Decree.

Here follows a Description of the Forins.

No. 2, is a Publication of his Excellency the Governor, dated the 5th May

4826, and made for the purpose of extending the Limitations of Articles 3,

30 and32of the above Decree, by ,

ist.—Allowing to the endofJuly to prepare theRegisters.

od.—The 14 Days and 1 Month mentioned in Article 32, to be reckoned

from the 1st of August 1826.

3d.—The 14 Days mentioned in Article 3, are extended to 1 Month for

giving in Returns for elsewhere than in Paramaribo.

ath.—The 3 Days mentioned in Article 30, are extended to 14 days, for the

Inhabitants of Nickerie to make theirReturns.

~ 5th.—Certificates from the Capitation Tax Office to serve in placeof extracts

from tne Registers, till the 31st July 1826.

"No. 3, is a Publication of his Excellency the Governor, dated the 19th

April 1826, whereby a Registrar is appointed with a fixed Salary of 12,000

guilders, Surinam Currency, in place of the Fees mentioned in Article 23,

which are to go into the Colenial Chest.

We hope and trust that these measures will at length put an end to that

abominable Traffick against which they are directed, and which, notwith-

standing all that has been done before, we have strong grounds for believing

has been till very lately carried on, though on a limited scale; but the pre-

cautions taken by these interested have been so great, that we have not heen

able to procure evidence sufficient to justify an application on our parts to the

Governor on the subject. We have the honour to be, &c.

(Signed) CHRIS. EDWD. LEFROY.
J.H. LANCE,

The Right Hon. George Canning,

&e. &e. &e.
erecencetenantnan errs

First Enclosure in No. 110. (Translation.)

Publication of the Governor of Surinam, 19th April 1826.

4826. OFFICIAL PAPER. No |.

Publication.

Whereby is put into-execution The King’s Decree of the 4th January 1826, No, 92, containing

‘some further Limitations ‘and Provisions to amplify the Registers of the Slave Population ia

this Colony, to serve as an efficacious curb to the Slave-trade.

We Abraham de Veer, Knight of the Order of the Belyic Lion, Major-General in the

Service of His Majesty The King of the Netherlands, Governor of the Colony of

Surinam, and Commander-in-Chief over the Land and Sea Forces within the

sane, &c, &e, &c.

To all who-shall see or hear read these Presents, greeting, be it knowns

- WHEREAS it has pleased His Majesty The King, by His Majesty’s Decree of the 4th of Jan-

uary of this Year, 1826, No. 92, to make some further Limitations and Provisions te amplify the

Registers of the Slave Population in this Colony, toserve as an efficacious curb to theSlave-trade.

And whereas his Excellency the Minister for the Navy and Colonies, entrusted with the execu

tion of the said Decree, has sent:us a Copy of the same, in his Letter dated 24th January afore-

said, La-J, No. 98.| 3, with orders. to. adopt the most proper measures for the speedy and due

execution of the Limitations thereby made : . o

Having heard the.deliberations and advice of our confidential Court 5



162 SURINAM.

We, therefore insert the aforesaid Royal Decree in these Presents, 98 follows :

No. 92.—We William, by the Grace of God, King of the Netherlands, Prince of ‘Orange-
Nassau, Grand Duke of Luxembourg, &c. &c. &c.

Considering that the Registers of the Slave Population, that are at present held in the Colony
of Surinam, can be properly rendered serviceable to the efficaciously curbing of the Slave-trade,
by the ordaining of some further Limitations and Provisions
On the Report of our Minister for the Navy aud Colonies, of ‘the 16th December last, La. J.

No. 68. :
Having seen the Joint Report of our Minister of Justice, and of the Department of Foreign

Affairs of the 28 | 31 of the said Month No. 67 { 22.
Having renewed the Report of our Minister for the National Industry and Colonies, of the 4th

December 1824, No. 28 | 491, likewise that of our Minister of Justice and of Foreign afiairs of

the 29 | 31 thereunto next ensuing, La. P’ No. 5.
Have decreed and «lo decree:

Agr. 1.—The Registers that are held at the Office of the Capitation Tax, according to the

Lists, which, as ordained by the Publication of the Governorand Court of the 8th Augast 1823,

are rendered in to the said Office, of the Families and Individuals, who inbabit the said Colony,

and also of their proper slaves, shall be enlarged by a columm of Miitati ns, in order therein

successively to mark the increase or decrease tha may take place in the number of the slaves

since the last Yearly List rendered in, unui the date of the rendering in the ensuing List.

Arr, 2.—Every Owner of slaves shall be bound and held to render in to the Office of the

Capitation Tax a written Declaration, undersigued by him, and made undef presentation of oath,

of all increases and decreases which, after the giving in of his Yearly List to the sid Office, may

take place in the unmber of his slaves, either by birth, death, purchasy, sale, donation, exchange,

or in whatscever other manner ; in which Declaration the name of the thereby denominated -slave

must be distinctly expressed.

Arr. 3.—The declarations of all increases and decreases in the number of the slaves, such as

the same are designated in the foregoing Article, must be g:ven in within the time of 3 days, for

- as much as relates to the Town of Paramaribo, and within the time of a fortnight for_as far as

the said changes might happen elsewhere.

Art. 4.—Every Owner who purchases, sells, gives away, or obtains by donation, a slave, or

from whose female slave a child is born, also whose slave dies, or to whom, in whatever manner,

auy facrease or decrease in the number of his slaves occurs, alter or sce the giving in of his last

Yearly List, and who. should not make Declaration thereof within the period prefixed bythe

foregoing Article, shall, in similar manner as is limited by Article 6 ot the aforesaid Publication

of the 18th August 1823, torfeic a fine of not less than one hundred guilders (f100.) and of not

more than five bundred ;uilders (f500.) unless he should prove sati-factorily to the Judge that he

hadno earlier potice of the increases or decreases that. have taken place in the number of his

" slaves after the giving in of his last Yearly List.

Agr. 5.—When the iticrease or decrease in the number of the slaves arises from transfer of

Ownership, the Declaration thereof is to contain as well the name ofthe Person by whom the

slave is transferred, as that of the Person to whom he is transferred, also the nature or title of the

transfer, and by default of any of these requisites, the Declarations are not to be, accepted at the

Office of the Capitation Tax, and are to be considered as not made.

Aa. 6.—In testimony of the giving in ot tle Declarations required by Article 2 and Article

9 of this Decree, a due Receipt shall be given by the Publick Officer hereatter to be designated,

on which Receipt the date of the Month, and the number of the Year are to be noted, not in

ciphers but ia letters.

Arr. 7.--As soon as the aforesaid Declarations are given in at the Office of the Capitation

Tax, the contents of the same shall be noted in the Registers of the Yearly Lists, in the column of

Mutations, designated by Article I of this Decree.

Ant. 8.—Whien a child is bore of a female slave during the time that she is eithet hired by

contract, or by any other agreement bound in the service of any other. Person. than her, Owner; or

when aslavethat, in a similar manner, is engaged in another's service, dies during: that period,

the hiver or holder of the same shall give notice thereof to the Owner within thetime, of. twenty-

four hours, if-both are residing at Paramaribo, and within the time of eight days if both,-or either

of them, are residing elsewhere, under penalty of a fine of twenty-five guilders (f/5.) for every

day’s neglect of so doing.

Arr. 9 —A writcen Declaration of all bonds affecting slaves, whether the same bebound or

mortgaged, separately or jeintly, with the immoveable properties, whereto ihe, belong, and

whether such bond or mortgage be made privately, or before a Notary Publick, shall be.givep: in

at the Office of the Capitation ‘lax, by she Party concerved, in the form prescribed. by Article 2,
inorder that ‘the sime may be duly noted in the Registers of the Yearly Lists in. the Column of

Mutations, and in default thereof the same Mortgage or Bond given in favour ot a.third Person.

shall beheld null and void

~ Ase. 10,—1n case in any of the Declarations, designaied by the foregoing. Articles, the name

of any Person should appear, who is unknown in the Registeis at theOffice of the Capitation

Tax,such a Declaration shall not be accepted unless the same beundersigued hy two. Sureties,
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knownat the said Office; and to the said Signature is hereby attached this effect or consequence,

that the same two Sureties are held personally answerable forthe contents of the same Declaration,

and for the judicial consequence thereof, and this responsibility shall devolve on the Publick

Officer appointed to keep the Registers, in case he should, without having taken the above pres-

cribed precaution, have accepted and entered in the Registers, any Declaration in which may

‘appear any name, either ofa Purchaser or of a Seller, whichever it may be, who is uot known in

the Registers held at the Office of the Capitation Tax; and besides the said responsibility, such

correction is hereby reserved as his Superiors may jodgeproper to give to himonthis account.

Arr. L1.—Itis hereby moststrictly prohibited to every Publick Officer or Authority to pass or

execute, of to allow the same. to be. passed or executed before him, any act regarding the

transfer of the Ownership of slaves under whatsoever title, or of hiring out, mortgaging or binding

‘of slaves, unless it tully appear chat such slave or slaves are known in the Registers of the Lists,

which mustappear by the citing the number and letter of the Books, under the penalty of the

same act being void; and that the Publick Officers, who shall have acted contrary to this pro-

hibition, be dismissed from their Offices.

_Ary,,,12.—No slaves shall be sold at publick auction, unless it shall have appeared to the

Vendug Master, from a due extract, that the same are known in the Registers of the Lists, under

penalty of being deprived of his Office; and the Commissaries for the Vendues, who are thereto

appointed gut pf the Body of the Court of Policy, are ordered to attend most strictly hereto,

Art. 13:—Neithtr shall any‘slaves be publickly rented out unless it appear, from a due Extract

to che Publick. Officer before whom this renting out takes place, that the same are known in.the

Registers, underpenalty that the said Publick Officer be immediately dismissed from his Office.

- Arr 14,.—No regard shall be paid by the Court of Policy to any Petition, requesting to be

authorized to act as Curator for a slave, in order to petition for Letters of Freedom for the same,

norté'any Petition to obtain the said Letters, unless the Petition, in both cases, be accompanied

by an Extract to prove that the slave thereby concerned is known in the Registers of the Lists.

Ax#.:-15.+It is not allowed to any Publick Authority whatsoever to give any Appointment,

‘Sentence;or Decision; in any case regarding the transfer of‘Ownership, or the hising or binding

out of slaves, before having been convinced, from a due Extract, that the same slave or slaves are

known in the Registers of the Lists, under penalty that such Decision be annulled. oe

- Aitr’ 16.—It is enjoined to the Councillor Fiscal to take the utmost possible care for the striet

pertormance of all the limitations in general contained in this Decree; in particular he shall be

obliged to look over the Registers of the Lists in the Month of March of every Year, to examine

and compare the same with the Quarterly Reports of the Captains of the several Burgher Divi-

sions, likewise with the Registers of former Years, for which purpose the Secretary of the Court

shall lay before the Councillor Fiscal, when thereto required, the said Quarterly Reports in the

eriginal, upon receiving a Receipt for the same; and the Councillor Fiscal is bound to give in to

the Governor a summary Report of the result of his aforesaid Investigations, over and above

which is reserved to the Councillor Fiscal the power to proceed to similar overlookings, examina-

tions and comparisons, as often as he judges necessary.

Arr. 17.—When it has appeared to the Councillor Fiscal, either from the like overlooking,

examining or comparing, or in whatever other manner, that a Person has become Owner of one

or more slaves, without having ascertained that the same, at the time of the transfer of Ownership,

were known in the Registers of the slaves, unless such Person had become Owner of such slave or

slaves, directly by way of legal importation, or also when it has therefrom appeared to the Coun-

cillor Fiscal that a Person has become Owner, of a slave without having had the slave or slaves

transferred to his name, within theperiod limited by this Decree, or likewise, when, from the

aforesaid examining, it should appear to him that no Declaration has been made, withinthe fixed

eriod, of the decrease that any Owner has experienced in the nomber of his slaves, he shall,

although the Declaration of the former and the latter case might have been. madeafterwards,

nevertheless always be held and bound to act against the Defaulters, by applying such punishments

as are decreed by Article 6 of the aforementioned Publication of the 18th August 1823, and

which is referred to in Article 4 of our present Decree,

“Arr 18.—If it should appear to the Councillor Fiscal, from the overlooking, examining,. and.

compising of the Registers, that, in the Yearly Lists, slaves are mentioned who do not appear in

the ‘Litof tke'foregoing Year, and of whose acquisition, nevertheless, no annotation be found in

the Colamn of Mutations, he shall be held to make the necessary enquiry thereinto, and summon

the’Owner to declare in what manner he has acquired the possession of such slave.

Arr. 19.—When, from the proceedings, that, according to both the foregoing Articles are to

be fiistituted, by the Councillor Fiscal, it should not be convincingly proved by the Owners, that

suchslaveor slaves as have not been entered in the Registers of the Lists, or not been done,so

within the prefixed period, are born in the Colony of Surinam, or legally imported into the same,

sucli slave or slaves shall be declared to be forfeited to the disposal of Government, and shall be

dealt-with in such manner as will be found right, without doing away with the punishments pre-

scribed by Article 4, against the defaulting Owners.

Arr, 20.—In case of total inability to pay the fine decreed by the aforementionedPublication

of the 18th August 1823, and by this Decree, the punishmentfor such Defaulters may be com-

ruted for an imprisonment from one to six Months, the expences .of which shall be paid out ‘of

_ the Colony Chest, reserving, however, the right of recovering the.same, when the gaid Defaulters

do at arly time become able to refund the same.
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Arr. 21.—Notwithstanding the new obligations laid on the Owners of slaves by our present

Decree, the Yearly L'sts prescribed .by the Publicationof the 18th August 1823, dostill remain

as.the basis.of the Capitation Tax, so-that the said Tax shall he due for those slaves only that

avere in possession of the Owner on the Ist-of January-of each Year.

Art. 22.—All the Articles of this Decree regarding the Owners, are likewise applicable to

‘their Attorneys, or Representatives, who, accordingly, in case of transgression, shall incur the

samepunishments, as are hereby decreed against the defaulting Owners.

Arr. 23.—Yo all and every one, Extracts of the Registers shall be given attheir request, pro-

wided they do pay, besides the. Stamp dety, te guilders (t10.) for the Extract when the number

-of the slaves therein meutioned be less than 20, and twenty guilders -(f20.) when the muniber do

‘surpass 20; from this payment, however, are exempted the Pablick Authorittes, to whom such

Extracts might be requisite in the exercise of their functions, which shall in such case be given

gratis ; and further, the said fees shall be for the profit of the Publick Officer, who is to be nomi-

nated by the following Article.

Arr. 24.—To do the work -arising from this Decree, a separate Publick Officer shall be ap-

pointedand, attached to the Office of the Capitation Tax; this Officer shall have to attend to the

establishing, continuation, and keeping of the Registers, in the mauner limited by this Decree,

cand shall be personally answerable therefor.

Arr. 25.—The said Officer shall not -hold any administration of Estates or Grounds, nor be in

any manner concerned therein.

Art. 26.—Though it is enjoined to the Councillor Fiscal to overlook the Registers from time
to tinie, the aforesaid Officer shall, nevertheless, be bound, on penalty of forfeiting his Situation,

to give notice to the Fiscal’s Office of such fraud, or neglect regarding this institution, as may be

discovered .or-even suspected by him.

Art. 27.—He must officiate daily for the Publick Service, from § to 11 in the Forenoon, end
from 2 to 4-in the Afternoon, Sundays and Holydays excepted, and shall furthermore regulate
himself, after such further instructions, as slrall be given to him by the Councillor Contoller of

the Finances, under whose superintendence he is placed.

Axt. 28.—In case of any impediment, whereby he might for a lesser or longer time be de-
tained from his functions, the Councillor Controller of the Finances shall, under the approbation
.of the Governor, appoint another Functionary attached to the Department of the Finances,

Arr, 29.—The Registers of the Lists shall be quoted on the first and last page, and further be
marked with the initials of the Councillor Controller of the Finances in every page, in the Month
-of- January-of every. Year; the same shall likewise be verified and closed by the Councillor Con-
troller-of the Finances at the.expiration of every Year.

-Arr, 30.—In order to acconmodate the Inhabitants of the Upper and Lower Districts of
‘Nickerie, the same shall render in, within the time of 3 days, to the Land Drost, or to the Drost
‘Of the said Districts, the required written Declarations of all increases or decreases that may occur
in the number of their slaves since the rendering in of their Yearly Lists, which Declarations
must be made.out as is limited by this Decree ; and the Land Drost and Drost sball be obliged to
send in the said Declarations by the first opportunity, to the Councillor Controller of the Finances,
in order to enter them into the: Office of the Capitation Tax, and in the Registers.

Arr, 31.—By alteration of what is with regard hereto ordained, by the frequently mentioned
Publication of the 1th August !823, all fines, arising aswell from the said Publication, as from
our present Decree, shall dévolve one third part thereof to. the Colony Chest, one third part to the
Fiscal’s Office, and one third part to the Officer who has charge of the Registers.

_Arv, 32.—This Decree shall be considered to be putin force from the Ist of this Month, and
_ those concerned shall be obliged to give in Lists of all Increases or Decreases that have occurred
in the number of their slaves, from the Ist of this Month to the day they give in these Lists,
which is to be dune within a fortnight for as lar as regards the Town of Paramaribo, ard within
a month for as jar as relates to the further Part of the Colony, both to be reckoned from the day
of the publication of this Decree.

_ And’our Minister for the Navy and Colonies is charged with the execution.of this Decree, and
the same shall be madé known fo our Minister of Justice, and te the Department ofForeign

Affairs, ° ‘

Given at the Hague, this 4th day of January, in the Year 1826, the thirteenth of Oar Reign.

; . (Signed) WILLIAM.

By His Majesty's Command, (Signed) J. G. pe Mex ‘van SrReerkerk.

Agrees with its Original, The Greffier at the State Secretary’s Office,
A true Copy; - ‘ (Signed) L H Exias Scnover.

The Secretary-General ofthe Ministry for the Navy and Colonies,
: (Signed) Quartzs vaw Urrorp. ©

And we, therefore, furthermore, adhering to the limitations of the Publication of the Governor
and Court of the 18th August 1823, Official Papei No 5, have ordained the Five Forms of De-
clarations’ hereafter’ mentioned, ‘to be -observed by all-and every one at the giving in of their
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Declarations, according to the tenour of His Majesty’s aforewritten Decree, for which end the

said Forms shall be obtainable at the Office of the Capitation Tax, viz :—

Form of declaring the Birth of Slaves.

Form of declaring the Death of Slaves, :

Form of declaring the Increase of One’s Slaves, arising from purchase or any other title.

Form of declaring the Decrease of One's Slaves, arising from sale or any other title.

5. Form of declaring the Pledging of Slaves.

we
W
o

And do Command and Order that these Presents shall be duly published, affixed, inserted in

the Official Papers, and in the, Newspapers of this Colony, and also sent round through the

diferent Divisions and Districts of this Colony, from Plantation to Plantation, and be made

generally known by these means, in order that every one do regulate himself hereafter:

‘And we do, in the Name of His Majesiy The King, forbid the transgression of His Majesty’s

aforewritten Laws, within this Colony, under the penalties therein mentioned, the execution

whereof shall be strictly and severely attended to. ae

Done at Paramaribo, in the Colony of Surinam, the 19th of April, in the Year 1826, the

thirteenth of His Majesty’s Reign. (Signed) DE VEER. ©

By his Excellency’s Command, The Secretary of Government,

(Signed) J. G, Rincerine.

Published the 21st next ensuing, The Secretary of Government,

(Signed) :J. G. Rincerine.’

‘Translated from the Official Paper issued and published in this Colony,

Paramaribo, the 31st July 1826. (L. 8.) (Signed) JG, Rines.ine,

/ Sworn Translator,

No. 129. Seen for legalisation of the signature of J. G. Ringeling, Esq. sworn Trauslator ‘in this

 

Colony. The Major-General, Governor of Surinam,.

Paramaribo, the 31st July (826. . (L.8.) (Signed) DE VEER.

By his Excellency’s Command, The Secretary of Government,

(Signed) J, G. Ruvezrine.

Second Enclosure in No. 110. (Translation )

Publication of. the Governor of Surinam, 5th of May 1 826.

1826. OFFICIAL PAPER. No 2:

Publication..

Whereby are extended Article 32, also Atticles 3 and 30, of the Decree of His Majesty The King,

of the 4th of January 1826, No. 92, regarding the Registers of the Slave Population in this

Colony, put in force by the Publication contained in the Official Paper of this Year, No. J.

We, Abraham de Veer, Knight of the Order of the Belgic Lion, Major-General in the

Service of His Majesty The King of the Netherlands, Governor of the Colony of Su-

rinam, and Commander-in-Chiet over the Land and Sea Forces within the same,

&o, &c. &e.

To all who shall see or hear read these Presents, greeting, be it known:

WHEREAS experience has taught that a longer period than that which has been hereto pre-

fixed, is required to establish and keep the Registers of the Slave Population amplified with a

column of Mutations, and, through those means, duly to exeeute the limitations of the Decree of

His Majesty The King, dated 4th of January of this Year, No. 92, published in this Colony on

the 2ist of April last, and contained in the Official Paper of this Year, No. 1, and further to con-

tinue the same by the booking of the Mutations that have occurred from the Ist of January of this

Year, and will occur in future, as is prescribed to be done by the limitadons of His Majesty's said

Decree; likewise, that longer periods must be granted for the sending in of the Declarations from

Plantations, in order not to expose the Planter to the loss of the labour of his able workmen,

through the necessity of sending, at every occasion, Boats to Paramaribo to carry over the said

Declarations.
. a

And whereas, by virtue of the Order given to us by his Excellency the Minister, by his Letter of

the 24th of January last, No. 98 |3,to adopt the most propermeasures for the due, as well as for

the speedy, execution of the Limitations made by the aforesaid Royal Decree, we have, with the

advice of our confidential Court, resolved to provide for the aforewritten impediment, by means of

farther limitations, to the best effect.

‘herefore, we do amplify and extend the Limitations of Article 32 in particular, and‘also of

Article 3, and of Article 30, of the said Decree, and accordingly do ordain as follows:

Art. }.—To establish the Registers of the Slave Population, amplified with.a column of Mu-

tations, as prescribed by The King’s Decree of the 4th of January 1826, No. 92, and the writing

of the said Registers, time is allowed to the last of the Month of July of this Year to the Officer

appointed for the said Registers, to whom two Assistants are added ; and the said Registers must

be in readiness at that time. ot
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Ant. 2.—The period of 14 days and of a Month, within which, according to Article 32of the
aforesaid Royal Decree, the Declarations are prescribed to be done of all increases and decreases
occurred in the number of the slaves, from the Ist of January of this Year to the day of the giving
in of the Declaration, shall be reckoned to begin with the Ist of the Month of August of this
Year; and the said Declarations must be given in to the Registration Office within the first 14
days, as for Paramaribo, and before the last day af that Month, as fot Plantations, and all the
Declarations of each Deponent must be contained in ane Document, according to the forms pre-
scribed.

Art. 5.—A period of a Month is, by extension, granted, instead of 14 days, to give in the
Declarations ordained by Article 3 of the Decree, from elsewhere than of Paramaribo, it being,
hewever, understood, that such Declarations shall contain all the Mutations that have occurred
from the first to the last of each Month.

Axt. 4.—A period of 14 days is granted instead of that of 3 days, stipulated by Article 30
of the Deeree, to the giving in of the Declarations by the Inhabitants of the Upper and Lower
Districts of Nickerie, to the Land-Drost, and to the Drost of the said Districts; this, however,
only for as far as the said Inhabitants reside on Plantations.

Arr. 5.—In the Cases stated in Article 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15, of the said Decree, wherein
Extracts of the Registers are required, it will, during the intercourse or interlapse from the pub-
lication of the Decree on the 21st of April last to the 31st of the Month of July next, inclusive,

suffice to produce Certificates of the Olhce of the Capitation Tax to prove that the slave or slaves
thereby concerned is or are known on the Yearly Lists.

And for the rest, all the Limitations of His Majesty's aforesaid Decree remain in full force and
effect.
And we do ordain and command that these Presents be duly published, affixed, inserted in the

Official Papers and in the Newspapers of this Colony; also, that Copies of the same be sent to
circulate from Plantation to Plantation, through the several Divisions and Districts of thisColony,
and be made generally known through these means, that every Person do conform to the same.

Done at Paramaribo, in the Colony of Surinam, the 5th of May, in the Year 1826, the thir-
teenth of His Majesty’s reign. (Signed) DE VEER.

By command of his Excellency the Secretary of Government,
(Signed) J.G, Rinezume,

Published ou the 6th thereunto next ensuing. The Secretary of Government,
: (Signed) J.G. Rineguine,

Translated from the printed Copies, issued in this Colony of Surinam,
Parimarito, the\st of August 1826. (L.S.). (Signed) J.G. Rincztine, Sworn Translator.
No, 131—Seen for legalisation of the Signature of J, G. Rincexine, Esq. Sworn Tians-

lator in this Colony.

 

Paramaribo, 1st ofAugust 1826. The Major-General, Governor of Surinam,
; (L.8.) (Signed) DE VEER.

By bis Excellency’s Command, ‘The Secretary of Government,
> (Signed) J. G. Rincerine,

Third Enclosure in No. 110. (Translation.)

Publication of the Governor of Surinam, April 19, 1826.

Paramaribo, Wednesday the 19th April, 1826.—No. 80.

N PB. It is hereby requested, that at the citing of these Presents, the Date and Number of the same
be likewise punctually mentioned.

We, Abraham de Veer, Knight of the Order of the Belzic Lion, Major-General in the
Service of His Majesty The King of the Netherlands, Governor of the Colony of Suri-
nam, aud Commander-in-Chief over the Land and Sea Forces within the saine, &c.
&e., &e. , —

HAVING read the Letter, dated 24th January of this Vear, Littera J. No. 98 | 3, of his
Excellencythe Minister tor the Navy and Colonies, wherein his Excellency encloses to usa Coot the Decree of His Majesty The King, dated the 4th of the said Month of January, No. 92, b
which it has pleased His Majesty to make some further Limitations and Provisious to amplif "theSlave Regi-ters in this Colony,in order to serve as an efficacious curb against the Slave-tvade, andfurther his Excellency, as being entrasted with the execution of the said Decree, empowers us toadopt the most proper measures for the speedy and due execution of the Limitations therein con-tained, and furthermore, his Excellency, as empowered by His Majesty, authorizes us to fix and
appoint a Salary for the Publick Officer designated in Articles 23, 24, and 25 of His Majesty’s De-

’ eree, and who is to be nominated by us to do the work arising from the said Decree, a minimum
of the fees, which said Functionary has to demand and receive, for his profit, according to the
_tgnour of the said Article 23, on which said Minimumaccordingly he might reckon andrely as a statedincome; and with regard whereto his Excellency the Minister will expect our Repcrtand Pro-
posal, in order to solicit His Majesty's sanction thereun :

. e
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Having heard the deliberations and advice of our confidential Court;

Have found proper and resolved:

Tn fulfilment of the aforesaid Ministerial Order, and to the putting into effect of the aforesaid

Decree of His Majesty, dated 4th January of this Year, No. 92, to-issue and execute the follow-

jing Publication, as its tenour purports -

(F. ¥.)

[See the Official Paper of this Year, No. 1]

Under higher sanction, by alteration of the Clause of Article 23, of the aforesaid Royal Decrée }

to order, as we do by these Presents, that the fees, designated and alluded to by the said Article,

shall be held to the profit of, and paid to the Publick ‘Treasury inthis Colony, and that instead

thereof, a stated Salary shall be appointed and allowed to the Publick Officer, which, according to

Article 24 of the Decree, is to be nominated to do the work of the Registers, on which stated

Salary the same might reckon and rely“as a stated income, over and above which the one third

part of all fines to be incurred and arising from His Majesty’s said Decree, as well as from the

Publication of the Governor and Court of the 18th August 1823, contained in the Official Paper

of that Year, No. 5, remains allowed to the said Functionary in pursuance of Article 31 of the

said Decree.
To nominate and appoint, as we do nominate and appoint by these Presents, A. A. Boers, Esq.,

at present Archivist at the Secretary’s Office of the Court of Policy and Criminal Justice of this

Colony, as Publick Officer, to do the work of the said Registers, according to the Limitations of the

said Decree, on a fixed Salary of 12,000 guilders, Surinam currency, Yearly, to be reekoned from

the 2Ist of this Month; also on the one third part of the afore-mentioned eventual fines ; and the

said A. A. Boers shall accordingly resign the said Office of Archivist, and the Yearly Salary of

4,000 guilders, Surinam currency, thereunto attached, shall cease with the 20th of this Month.

To eausé Copies of these Presents to be sent to all the competent Authorities, with Conductory

Letters where requisite, in order duly to execute the Limitations of these Presents, and. of the

afore-mentioned Publication.

To cause a Copy hereof to be sent to the nominated Publick Officer Boers, to serve as his Com-

mission, to whom it is hereby enjoined to be sworn to the Office upon him conferred, also to filk

and send in before the last of this Month to the Board of Administration of the Pension Fund, the

List or Statement in triplicate, as required by the Regulation of the said Fund.

(Signed) DE.VEER.

By his Excellency’s command, The Secretary of Government,

(Signed) J. G. Rincg.ine.

Agrees with the Original. The Secretary of Government; .
(Signed) J. G, Rincerine,

(Addressed) To the Mixed Court for the Abolition of Slave-trade, established in the Colony

of Surinam, For a true Copy, the Secretary of the Mixed Court, for the Abolition of Slave-

trade.
(Signed) G. De Vzsr.

Translated from the aforesaid true Copy, written in the Dutch Language. ;

Paramaribo, the 31st July 1826. (E.8.) (Signed) J. G. Rincerine, Sworn Translator.

No. 127.—Seen for Legalisation of the Signature of J. G. Rincerine, Esq. sworn Trans

lator in this Colony. The Major-General, Governor of Surinam,

Paramaribo, the 31st July 1826. (L. 8.) (Signed) DE VEER.

By his Excellency’s Command, The Secretary of Government,
(Signed) J. G, Rincguine.

 

No. 111.

J. H, Lance, Esq. to Mr. Secretary Canning.—+(Received December 18.)

‘Sir, Surinam, September 25, 1826.

HAVING in the last dry Season experienced a very severe attack of sick~

ness, from the effects of which 1 am not yet perfectly recovered, and a change

to a colder Climate being recommended to me by my Medical Advisers, I

should feel most sensibly obliged, if you, Sir, would have the goodness to pro-

cure His Majesty’s permissionfor me to pass @ few Months in England in the

ensuing Year, for the purpose of re-establishing my health.

I have the honour to be, &c.

The Right Hon. George Canning, (Signed) J. H. LANCE.

&e. &e. &e.
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No. 112.

His Majesty's Commissioners to Mr. Secretary Canning—(Received Dec.18.)

Sir, Surinam, October 14, 1826.

WE have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your several Despatches

of the present Year, dated June 28th 1826, and July 8th 1826, with their

respective Enclosures. We have the honour to be, &c.
(Signed) CHRIS. EDWD. LEFROY.

The Right Hon. George Canning, J. H. LANCE.
&e. &e. &e

 

No. 113.

Joseph Planta, Jun. Esq. to J. H, Lance, Esq.

Sir, Foreign Office, December 29, 1826.

MR. SECRETARY CANNING has received your Letter of the 25th of
September 1826; and I am directed by him to state to you, that, under the
circumstances which you mention, with respect to your health, Mr. Canning
consents ia grant you permission to return to England, in the ensuing
Year, for a period of 6 Months, if the state of your health should require it.

’ You are aware that your Salary will be diminished by one-half during your
absence, and, that the time during which you are absent, cannot be counted
in that period of “ actual service at your Post,” in consideration of which a
Pension may eventually he granted to you.

Iam, &c.

J. H. Lance, Esq. (Signed) JOSEPH PLANTA, Juv.

 

No. 114.

Mr. Secretary Canning to His Majesty's Commissioners.

GENTLEMEN, Foreign Office, December 30, 1826.

J HAVE received your Despatches up to the 14th of October 1826.
His Majesty’s Government have learnt with-much satisfaction, the Regula-

tions which have been adopted for the Registration of Slaves in Surinam,
with a view to the more effectual suppression of any attempts which might be
made to carry on an illegal Traffick in Slaves in that Country. | -
Isend to you, for your information, the accompanyingCopy of a Despatch

which, by His Majesty’s Command, I have addressed upon this subject to
His Majesty’s Ambassador at the Court of The King of the Netherlands.*

Iam, &c.

His Majesty's Commissioners. (Signed) GEORGE CANNING.

* See Claas B.

 

Frinied by RB. G. Claske, at the London GazetteOffice, Cannon-Row, Westminster,


